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PART I
NOTIFICATION

Item 1. Significant Parties

(a) Directors of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.

Name Business
Address

William D. Sullivan 4700 Belleview Avenue
Suite 300

Kansas City, Missouri 64112

(b) Officers of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.

Name Business
and Title Address
William D. Sullivan, 4700 Belleview Avenue
Chairman and Chief Suite 300
Executive Officer Kansas City, Missouri 64112
Thomas H. Holcom, Jr., 4700 Belleview Avenue
President and Chief Suite 300
Operating Officer Kansas City, Missouri 64112
Randall J. Opliger, Chief 4700 Belleview Avenue
Financial Officer, Suite 300

Treasurer and Secretary Kansas City, Missouri 64112

(c) Not applicable.

Residential
Address

1212 W. 57th Terr.
Kansas City, MO 64113

Residential
Address

1212 W. 57th Terr.
Kansas City, MO 64113

820 W. 65th St.
Kansas City, MO 64113

18820 W. 117th St.
Olathe, KS 66061

(d) Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. owns of record all of the issued and
outstanding shares of the issuer, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. The
business address for Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. is 955 South
Virginia Avenue, Suite 116, Reno, Nevada 89502.

(e) See (d) above. As the trustee or beneficiary of various trusts, William D.
Sullivan has sole or shared voting or investment power over 159,420
shares, or 88.61%, of the common stock of Pioneer Financial Industries,

Inc.
€ Not applicable.

(g) As follows:



Name

PML Management
Services, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending,
Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Georgia, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Tennessee, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Washington, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Nevada, Inc.

THE Military Solutions
Corp

Military Acceptance
Corporation of Nevada

Pioneer Military Insurance
Company

MIJS Distributors, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Michigan, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Kentucky, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Oklahoma, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Arizona, Inc.

Whitbread Management,
Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Colorado, Inc.

Business
Address

955 S. Virginia, Ste. 116
Reno, NV 89502

1605 Galvin Rd., Ste. A
Bellevue, NE 68055

4525 Victory Drive
Columbus, GA 31903

3281 E. Ft. Campbell Blvd.
Clarksville, TN 37042-2397

3819 100th Street, SW
Ste. 6B
Lakewood, WA 98499

3050 E. Desert Inn Rd.
Ste. 125 & 126
Las Vegas, NV 89121

3050 E. Desert Inn Rd.
Ste. 125
Las Vegas, NV 89121

955 S. Virginia, Ste. 116
Reno, NV 89502

3225 N. Central Avenue
Phoenix, AZ 85012

955 S. Virginia, Ste. 116
Reno, NV 89502

30600 Telegraph Rd.
Bingham Farms, MI 48025

Kentucky Home Life Bldg.,
Room 1102
Louisville, KY 40202

735 First National Bldg.
Oklahoma City, OK 73102

3225 N. Central Avenue
Phoenix, AZ 85012

3050 E. Desert Inn Rd., Ste. 125
Las Vegas, NV 89121

1675 Broadway
Denver, CO 80202

Residential
Address
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable



Name

Pioneer Military Lending
of New Mexico, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Illinois, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Missouri, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Virginia, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Indiana, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Texas, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Florida, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of South Carolina, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of North Carolina, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Alabama, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Kansas, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending
of Louisiana, Inc.

Pioneer Financial
Industries, Inc.

Penwith Corporation

Westport Investment Corp.

Pioneer Sales Services,
GmbH

Pioneer Financial Services
Guaranty Corporation

Business
Address

123 E. Marcy Street
Santa Fe, NM 87501

208 S. LaSalle Street
Chicago, IL 60604

4700 Belleview, Ste. 300
Kansas City, MO 64112

4701 Cox Rd., Ste. 301
Glen Allen, VA 23060-6802

36 S. Pennsylvania St., Ste. 700
Indianapolis, IN 46204

350 N. St. Paul Street
Dallas, Texas 75201

1200 South Pine Island Rd.
Plantation, FL 33324

Two Insignia Financial Plaza
75 Beattie Place
Greenville, SC 29601

225 Hillsborough Street
Raleigh, NC 27603

2000 Interstate Park Drive,
Ste. 204
Montgomery, AL 36109

515 S. Kansas Avenue
Topeka, KS 66603

8550 United Plaza Blvd.
Baton Rouge, LA 70809

955 S. Virginia, Ste. 116
Reno, Nevada 89502

3050 E. Desert Inn Rd., Ste. 125
Las Vegas, NV 89121

3317 Dominion Drive
Independence, MO 64055

Vor der Pulvermuhle 9
D-63457
Hanau-Wolfgang, Germany

735 First National Bldg.
Oklahoma City, OK 73012

Residential
Address
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable



Business Residential
Name Address Address
Pioneer Education 3050 E. Desert Inn Rd., Ste. 126 Not applicable
Services, Inc. Las Vegas, NV 89121
Pioneer Licensing 3050 E. Desert Inn Rd,, Ste. 125 Not applicable
Services, Inc. Las Vegas, NV 89121
Armed Services Benefits 955 S. Virginia, Ste. 116 Not applicable
Reno, NV 89502
William D. Sullivan, 4700 Belleview Avenue 1212 W. 57th Terr.
Chairman and Chief Suite 300 Kansas City, MO 64113
Executive Officer Kansas City, Missouri 64112

Item 2.

Item 3.

Item 4.

(h)  Blackwell Sanders Peper Martin LLP
Two Pershing Square, Suite 1000
2300 Main Street
Kansas City, MO 64108
Attn: Gary D. Gilson
Phone: (816) 983-8141
Fax: (816) 983-9141

(1) There are no underwriters in connection with this offering.
) Not applicable

(k)  Not applicable

D Not applicable

(m)  Not applicable

Application of Rule 262

(a) None of the persons identified in response to Item 1 are subject to the
disqualification provisions set forth in Rule 262.

(b) Not applicable

Affiliate Sales

Not applicable

Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

(a) and (b) This rescission offer is being made directly by officers and
directors of the Issuer to existing holders of junior subordinated
debentures of the Issuer residing in the state of Missouri and not by



Item 5.

Item 6.

Item 7.

underwriters, dealers or salespersons. No director, officer or
employee of the issuer will receive remuneration in connection
with the sale of the securities in this offering.

Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

(a) Since January 1, 2002, the Issuer sold, for cash, $1,276,266 in aggregate
principal amount of its junior subordinated debentures to 70 persons,
including renewals of outstanding debentures.

(b)  Not applicable.

(© The junior subordinated debentures were registered with the Securities
Division of the Missouri Secretary of State, but not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933. The junior subordinated debentures were offered
and sold only to residents of the state of Missouri in reliance upon the
exemption set forth in Section 3(a)(11) of the Securities Act for intrastate
offerings. While the Issuer does not believe or admit that it sold
debentures in violation of the Securities Act, it is possible that reliance
upon the exemption provided under Section 3(a)(11) of the Securities Act
might not have been appropriate in light of the increased scope of the
Issuer’s business activities in recent years.

Other Present or Proposed Offerings

The Issuer intends to file a Registration Statement on Form S-1 with the
Securities and Exchange Commission to register $25,000,000 in aggregate
principal amount of its junior subordinated debentures. The Issuer intends to
register these securities with the securities commissions of the states of Illinois,
Kansas and Missouri and to offer these securities to residents of those states. The
Issuer’s officers and employees will offer the securities in accordance with Rule
3a4-1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
all applicable state securities laws.

Marketing Arrangements

(a) Neither the Issuer nor any person named pursuant to Item 1 knows of any
arrangements made for any of the following purposes:

1. To limit or restrict the sale of other securities of the same class as
those to be offered for the period of distribution.

2. To stabilize the market for any of the securities to be offered.
3. For withholding commissions, or otherwise to hold each
underwriter or dealer responsible for the distribution of its
participation.
6



Item 8.

Item 9.

(b) Not applicable.
Relationships with Issuer Experts Named in Offering Statements

No expert named in this Offering Statement as having prepared or certified any
part hereof was employed for such purpose on a contingent basis, or, at the time
of such preparation or certification or at any time thereafter, had a material
interest in the Issuer, its parent or any of its subsidiaries or was connected with the
Issuer or any of its subsidiaries as a promoter, underwriter, voting trustee,
director, officer or employee.

Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

No written document or broadcast script authorized by Rule 254 was used prior to
the filing of this notification.
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300
Kansas City, Missouri 64112
(816) 756-2020

RESCISSION OFFER
Junior Subordinated Debentures

We are offering to repurchase all of the junior subordinated debentures we have issued since January 1,
2002, including all debentures that we have renewed in accordance with their terms since that time. The
repurchase price for each debenture will be equal to the original principal amount of the debenture or the principal
amount of the debenture on the date it was renewed, plus interest at the rate of 8% per annum calculated from the
date you purchased the debenture or the debenture was renewed, as applicable, to, but not including, the date of
payment, less any interest payments you have received from us. PLEASE NOTE THAT IF THE INTEREST
RATE ON YOUR DEBENTURE IS GREATER THAN 8%, THE INTEREST RATE YOU WILL
RECEIVE IN THIS RESCISSION OFFER IS LESS THAN THE CURRENT INTEREST RATE ON
YOUR DEBENTURE.

Assuming that we make payment for the tendered debentures on April 15, 2003, the aggregate cost to us of
the rescission offer (the amount of cash which we will pay if all persons who purchased debentures from us, or had
their debentures renewed, since January 1, 2002, chose to rescind their purchase) is $1,353,348. We believe we
will have adequate funds to finance the rescission offer.

BY TENDERING YOUR DEBENTURE YOU WILL NOT BE ENTITLED TO ANY OTHER
PAYMENTS ON YOUR DEBENTURE INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY ACCRUED AND
UNPAID INTEREST.

Our rescission offer expires at 5:00 p.m. (Kansas City time) on Monday, April 7, 2003.

The procedures for accepting this rescission offer and tendering your debenture are described in this
offering circular under “The Rescission Offer.” You can contact Melissa Kuhn, Investment Analyst, at 816-756-
2020 or via email at mkuhn@askpioneer.com with any questions about the rescission offer.

In considering whether to accept this offer, see “Risk Factors” beginning on page 7.

This offer is only being made to the initial purchasers of the debentures. There are no underwriters in
connection to this rescission offer.

Neither we nor our Board of Directors makes any recommendation to you as to whether to accept or
decline this rescission offer. In addition, no one has been authorized to make any such recommendation.
You must make your own decisions whether to accept this rescission offer based on your own financial
position and requirements and the advice of your financial and tax advisors.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS
UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE
TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF
ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE
OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION;
HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT
THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

The date of this offering circular is February , 2003.
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You should rely only upon the information contained in this offering circular. We
have not authorized anyone to provide you with information different from that contained
in this offering circular. We are making this rescission offer only to residents of the state of
Missouri, and this offering circular shall not be considered to be an offer or sale in any
jurisdiction in which such offers and sales are not permitted. The information contained in
this offering circular is accurate only as of the date of this offering circular, regardless of
the time of delivery of the offering circular or of any sale of the debentures.

In this offering circular, reference to “the Company,” “Pioneer,” “we,” “us” and
“our” refer to Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. and our subsidiaries.



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This offering circular contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of federal
securities law. Words such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“continue,” “predict,” or other similar words, identify forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements appear in a number of places in this offering circular and include statements
regarding our intent, belief or current expectation about, among other things, trends affecting the
markets in which we operate, our business, financial condition and growth strategies. Although
we believe that the expectations reflected in this forward-looking statements are based on
reasonable assumptions, forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance
and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those predicted in
the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth in the
“Risk Factors” section of this offering circular. If any of the events described in “Risk Factors’
occur, they could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operation. When considering forward-looking statements, you should keep these risk factors in
mind as well as the other cautionary statements in this offering circular. You should not place
undue reliance on any forward-looking statement. We are not obligated to update forward-
looking statements.

b
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT OUR RESCISSION OFFER

The following highlights certain information regarding the rescission offer. It is not

complete and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You should
carefully read the entive offering circular before you make a decision to accept or reject our
rescission offer.

Q:
A:

What is a rescission offer?

A rescission offer is an offer by the issuer of securities to repurchase the securities at
their purchase price plus interest.

Why are you making the rescission offer?

While all of the debentures affected by this rescission offer were registered with the
Securities Division of the Missouri Secretary of State, we recently discovered that the
exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 that we relied on may not
have been available due to the increased scope in our business activities in recent years.
This rescission offer is not an admission by us that we failed to comply with the
registration or disclosure requirements of federal securities laws.

Does the failure to register the debentures with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission affect my ability to transfer the debentures?

No. The debentures subject to this rescission offer were, and will continue to be,
transferable only on our books and records.

What will I receive if I accept the rescission offer?

If you accept our rescission offer, we will repurchase your debenture for an amount equal
to the original principal amount of your debenture or the principal amount of your
debenture on the date it was renewed, plus interest at the rate of 8% calculated from the
date you purchased the debenture or the date the debenture was renewed, as applicable,
up to but not including the date of payment less the amount of any interest payments
made on the debenture. Please note that if the interest rate on your debenture is
greater than 8%, the interest rate applicable to this rescission offer is LESS than
the current interest rate on your debenture. If you accept our rescission offer you
will not be paid any other amounts on your debenture, including any future interest
on such debenture. Note the following examples:

e If (1) you accept this rescission offer and properly tender a debenture with a
principal amount of $10,000 purchased on June 1, 2002 with an interest rate
of 10%; (2) you had elected to receive annual payments of interest; and (3) we
pay for the debenture under this rescission offer on April 15, 2003 — you
would receive $10,000 plus $706.67 which represents the accrual of the 8%
statutory interest rate in Missouri, calculated from June 1, 2002 (the issue date
of the debenture) up to but not including April 15, 2003 (the payment date).
Had you not tendered the debenture, you would be entitled to interest of



e R

<

$1,000.00 on June 1, 2003 and would still be entitled to future interest and
principal payments on the debenture.

e If(1) you accept this rescission offer and properly tender a debenture with a
principal amount of $10,000 purchased on June 1, 2002 with an interest rate
of 10%; (2) you had elected to compound the interest annually; and (3) we
pay for the debenture under the rescission offer on April 15, 2003 — you
would receive $10,000 plus $706.67 which represents the accrual of the 8%
statutory interest rate in Missouri, calculated from June 1, 2002 (the issue date
of the debenture) up to but not including April 15, 2003 (the payment date).
Had you not tendered the debenture, you would hold a debenture with a
principal amount of $10,000 which would continue to accrue interest at 10%,
which interest would compound annually for the term of the debenture.

e If (1) you accept this rescission offer and properly tender a debenture with a
principal amount of $10,000 purchased on June 1, 2002 with an interest rate
of 10%; (2) you had elected to receive monthly payments of interest; and
(3) we pay for the debenture under this rescission offer on April 15, 2003 —
you would receive $10,000 plus $706.67 which represents the accrual of the
8% statutory interest rate in Missouri, calculated from June 1, 2002 (the issue
date of the debenture) up to but not including April 15, 2003 (the payment
date), less $706.67 of interest you had previously received. Had you not
tendered the debenture, you would hold a debenture with a principal amount
0f $10,000 and still be entitled to future payments on the debenture of $83.33
per month for the term of the debenture.

When does the rescission offer expire?
Our rescission offer expires at 5:00 p.m. (Kansas City time) on Monday, April 7, 2003.
What do I need to do if I want to accept the rescission offer?

Return your debenture properly endorsed, along with the enclosed letter of transmittal
properly completed and executed and any other document required by the letter of
transmittal, to us prior to the expiration of the rescission offer.

What do I need to do to reject this rescission offer?

If you do not return your debenture properly endorsed and the enclosed letter of
transmittal properly completed and executed prior to the expiration of the offer, you will
be deemed to have rejected this rescission offer. However, if you decided to reject the
offer, please return the enclosed letter of transmittal properly executed with the
appropriate box marked indicating that you reject the offer and are waiving any further
action you may have against us.



What happens if I reject this rescission offer?

You will continue to own your debenture, continue to receive interest payments or accrue
interest on the debenture at its stated rate and be paid its principal amount upon maturity
unless the debenture is earlier redeemed in accordance with its terms. We believe that by
conducting this rescission offer, you will be precluded from requiring us in the future to
repurchase your debenture.

-Can I change my mind after I have returned my debentures and the letter of

transmittal?

Yes. You can change your decision about accepting our rescission offer at any time
before the expiration date. You can do this by sending written notice to: Melissa Kuhn,
Investment Analyst, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., 4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300,
Kansas City, Missouri 64112. The notice must contain the following information: the
name of the debenture holder of record, the principal amount and number of the
debenture, and the date the debenture was issued. The notice must also be signed by the
registered debenture holder and notarized. We must receive your written notice prior to
the expiration of the offer.

When and how will payment be made?

We will mail checks to you within 15 business days after the expiration of the offer,
provided we have received your debentures properly endorsed and a properly completed
and executed letter of transmittal.

Can I accept this rescission offer if I hold my debenture in an IRA, a simplified
employee pension or a Roth IRA?

Yes. Please note, however, that if you tender your debenture held in an IRA, a SEP
account or a Roth IRA, we will no longer serve as the custodian for your account. Asa
result, you will have the following options: (1) have us transfer your account to a new
custodian; (2) take a distribution from your account and roll it over to a new tax-deferred
account with a different custodian within 60 days; or (3) take a distribution from your
account, keep the cash, and pay the applicable income taxes and penalties. Complex
rules apply to transfers and rollovers. Therefore, if you have us transfer your account or
roll over your account into a new tax-deferred account, you should consult your
individual tax advisor to make sure that your transfer or rollover is handled in accordance
with the applicable rules. Similarly, complex rules apply to the taxation of distributions
from a tax-deferred account. Therefore, you should consult your individual tax advisor
to determine the taxation of your distribution and whether any penalties or exceptions to
penalties apply to you.

Who can help answer my questions?

You can contact Melissa Kuhn, Investment Analyst, at 816-756-2020 or via email at
mkuhn@askpioneer.com.

(5



RISK FACTORS

In deciding whether you should keep your debenture or accept our rescission offer, you
should carefully consider the following information, together with the other information
contained in this offering circular. Our operations and your investment in the debentures are
subject to a number of risks, including but not limited to those described below. If any of the
following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or operating results and our
ability to repay the debentures could be materially adversely affected.

Lending exclusively to the military market may result in higher delinquencies in our loan
portfolio, which could result in a reduction in profitability and impair our ability to pay
interest and principal on the debentures.

A large portion of our customers are unable to obtain financing from traditional sources,
such as commercial banks, due to factors such as their age, likelihood of relocation and lack of
credit history. Historically, we have experienced higher delinquency rates than traditional
financial institutions. While we use underwriting standards and collection procedures designed
to mitigate the higher credit risk associated with lending to these borrowers, our standards and
procedures may not offer adequate protection against risks of default. Higher than anticipated
delinquencies, foreclosures or losses on the loans we originate or purchase would reduce our
profitability, which could restrict our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures.

An increase in market interest rates may result in a reduction in our profitability and
impair our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures.

Interest rates are currently at historic lows. Sustained, significant increases in interest
rates could unfavorably impact our liquidity and profitability by reducing the interest rate spread
between the rate of interest we receive on loans and interest rates we must pay under our
outstanding bank debt and debentures. Any reduction in our profitability would diminish our
ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures.

Acts of war or terrorist attacks in the United States may cause disruption in our business
and may adversely affect the markets in which we operate, which could affect our
profitability and our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures.

Terrorist attacks in the United States in September 2001 caused major instability in the
U.S. financial markets. Additional attacks and the response of the U.S. government may lead to
additional armed hostilities or to further acts of terrorism in the U.S. which may cause a further
decline in the financial markets and may contribute to a further decline in economic conditions.
In addition, the involvement of military personnel in armed hostilities may reduce the demand
for our products and services or increase payment delinquencies and therefore reduce our
revenues, possibly without immediate comparable reductions in overhead. To the extent these
events occur, our profitability and cash flow could be reduced and our ability to pay interest and
principal on the debentures could be impaired.



If an event of default or a breach of our senior lending agreement occurs, we may not be
able to pay interest and principal on the debentures.

In the event of a default under our senior lending agreement, our various loans under the
senior lending agreement may become immediately due and payable. As a result, we may be
required to liquidate some or all of our assets, including our portfolio of consumer loans and
retail installment contracts for an amount less than the fair market or book value of those assets.
As aresult, we may not have sufficient funds to pay outstanding interest and principal on the
debentures. Furthermore, if we breach certain financial covenants in our senior lending
agreement, the banks would have the right to receive 80% of all payments we receive on our
consumer loans and retail installment contracts. If the banks exercised this right, we would
receive only 20% of our cash flow and thus our ability to make interest and principal payments
on the debentures could be impaired.

Our debentures are not insured or guaranteed by any third party, and we are not subject
to regulatory requirements designed to protect investors.

Our debentures are not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC, any governmental agency or
any other public or private entity as are certificates of deposit or other accounts offered by banks,
savings and loan associations or credit unions. You are dependent upon our ability to effectively
manage our business to generate sufficient cash flow, including cash flow from our financing
activities, for the repayment of principal at maturity and the ongoing payment of interest on the
debentures. If these sources are inadequate, you could lose your entire investment.

Because the debentures are not secured by any collateral, you are dependent upon our
successful operations to service the interest and principal payments on the debentures.

Substantially all of our assets have been pledged to our banks to secure our borrowings
under our senior lending agreement. Accordingly, in the event of a default under our senior
lending agreement, it is likely that our assets would be liquidated to repay our bank debt.
Therefore, repayment of the debentures is dependent on our continued successful operations.
There can be no assurance that we will continue to operate successfully in the future.

Payment on the debentures is subordinate to the payment of all outstanding senior
indebtedness, and the debentures do not limit the amount of senior indebtedness,
additional junior subordinated indebtedness or other indebtedness we may incur.

The debentures are subordinate and junior to any and all senior indebtedness (defined
generally as any debt or liability for money borrowed, regardless of when incurred or created,
that is not expressly subordinate or equal in right of payment to the debentures, including bank
debt), and will rank equal in payment priority with all junior subordinated debentures we issue in
the future. There are no restrictions in the debentures regarding the amount of senior
indebtedness, junior subordinated indebtedness, or other indebtedness that we or our subsidiaries
may incur. We intend to incur additional senior indebtedness and junior subordinated
indebtedness in the future. Upon the maturity of our senior indebtedness, by lapse of time,
acceleration or otherwise, the holders of our senior indebtedness have first right to receive
payment in full prior to any payments being made to any debenture holders. In addition, any
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indebtedness of our subsidiaries will have rights upon liquidation or dissolution of the particular
subsidiary prior to payment being made to any debenture holders. Therefore, you would only be
repaid if funds remain after the repayment of our senior indebtedness. As of September 30,
2002, we had approximately $110.6 million of senior indebtedness outstanding.

Payment of interest and principal on the debentures is effectively subordinate to the
payment of the unsecured creditors of our subsidiaries.

Substantially all of our assets are held by our subsidiaries. As a result, in the event of the
liquidation of any of our subsidiaries, all the creditors of our subsidiaries would be paid prior to
the subsidiary distributing any amounts to us. While our senior loan agreement limits the
amount of debt that our subsidiaries may incur, if our subsidiaries did not have sufficient funds
to pay their debts, our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures would be impaired.

If a large number of our borrowers are wounded in combat, our profits may be adversely
affected.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary reinsures a portion of the credit accident and health
insurance policies issued on the borrowers for the loans we originate. These policies pay the
loan payments as they become due during a customer’s disability due to illness or injury,
including war-related injuries. Therefore, if a large number of our borrowers are injured and
disabled in combat, the profitability of our insurance subsidiary would be impaired, which could
impair our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures.

Our operations are not subject to regulatory requirements designed to protect investors.

Our operations are not subject to the stringent regulatory requirements imposed upon the
operations of commercial banks, savings banks and thrift institutions and are not subject to
periodic compliance examinations by federal banking regulators. Therefore, an investment in our
debentures does not have the regulatory protections that the holder of a demand account or a
certificate of deposit at a bank does. The return on your investment is completely dependent
upon our successful operation of our business. To the extent that we do not successfully operate
our business, our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures will be impaired.

The debentures do not contain any restrictive covenants or other provisions to protect your
investment.

The debentures do not have the benefit of any restrictive covenants. Therefore, your
investment is not protected if there is a material adverse change in our financial condition or
results of operations. For example, the debentures do not contain any restrictions on our ability
to create or incur senior indebtedness or other indebtedness or to pay dividends. In addition, the
debentures do not contain covenants specifically designed to protect debenture holders if we
engage in a highly leveraged transaction such as a requirement that we redeem the debentures if
there is a takeover, recapitalization or similar restructuring. Furthermore, the debentures do not
contain a provision accelerating the indebtedness in the event of a default on the debenture.
Under the debenture, a debenture holder’s remedy in the event of a default on the debentures is
to obtain a list of all other registered debenture holders.
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Your investment in the debentures is illiquid.

The debentures are not listed on a national securities exchange or authorized for
quotation on The Nasdaq Stock Market. Further, it is very unlikely that any trading market for
the debentures will develop. You have no right to require redemption of the debentures, and
there is no assurance that the debentures will be readily accepted as collateral for loans. Due to
the lack of a market for the debentures, we cannot assure you that you would be able to sell the
debentures.

We are subject to many laws and governmental regulations, and any changes in these laws
or regulations may materially adversely affect our financial condition and business
operations.

Our operations are subject to regulation by federal authorities and state banking, finance,
consumer protection and insurance authorities and are subject to various laws and judicial and
administrative decisions imposing various requirements and restrictions on our operations which,
among other things, require that we obtain and maintain certain licenses and qualifications, and
limit the interest rates, fees and other charges we may impose. Although we believe we are in
compliance in all material respects with applicable laws, rules and regulations, there can be no
assurance that we are or that any change in such laws, or in the interpretations thereof, will not
make our compliance therewith more difficult or expensive or otherwise adversely affect our
financial condition or business operations.

We are subject to regulation by states where our lending subsidiaries are located. At this
time, we are not subject to consumer lending regulation in the states in which we only have retail
offices. If this were to change in the future, any resulting regulation by the states in which we
only have retail offices could adversely impact our operating costs and our ability to repay the
debentures.

Almost all of our borrowers are active duty military or federal government employees who
could be instructed not to do business with us, or their access to the Government Allotment
System could be denied.

When they deem it to be in the best interest of their personnel, military commanders and
supervisors of federal employees may instruct their personnel, formally or informally, not to
patronize a business. If military commanders or federal employee supervisors at any given level
determine one or more of our retail offices or our Internet site to be off limits, we would be
unable to do new business with the potential customers they command or supervise.
Additionally, approximately 74.7% of our borrowers make their monthly loan payments through
the Government Allotment System. Military commanders or federal employee supervisors could
deny those they command or supervise access to these programs, increasing our credit risk.
Without access to sufficient new customers or to the Government Allotment System, we may be
forced to discontinue lending and liquidate our portfolio of consumer loans and retail installment
contracts.

10
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Our profitability and future growth depend on our continued access to capital.

The growth of our business currently depends on access to bank debt at competitive rates,
and we cannot guarantee that such financing will be available in the future. Our bank debt is
comprised of individual loans from 11 banks which are party to our senior lending agreement.
This senior lending agreement provides common terms and conditions pursuant to which
individual banks that are a party to this agreement may choose to make loans to us in the future.
This senior lending agreement is renewed annually, but no bank has an obligation to make any
additional future loans. We also depend upon other sources of financing, including the sale of
our debentures. If we are unable to renew or replace this financing, we may be forced to
liquidate. If we are forced to liquidate, there can be no assurance that we will be able to pay the
interest and principal on the debentures.

There is no sinking fund to ensure repayment of the debentures on maturity.

We do not contribute funds to a separate account, commonly known as a sinking fund, to
repay the debentures upon maturity. Because funds are not set aside periodically for the
repayment of the debentures over their term, debenture holders must rely on our cash flow from
operations and other sources of financing for repayment, such as funds from bank loans, the sale
of debentures and other credit facilities. To the extent cash flow from operations and other
sources are not sufficient to repay the debentures, you may lose all or a part of your investment.

Additional competition may decrease our profitability, which would adversely affect our
ability to repay the debentures.

We compete for business with a number of large national companies and banks that have
substantially greater resources, lower cost of funds, and a more established market presence than
we have. If these companies increase their marketing efforts to include our market niche of
borrowers, or if additional competitors enter our markets, we may be forced to reduce our
interest rates and fees in order to maintain or expand our market share. Any reduction in our
interest rates or fees could have an adverse impact on our profitability and our ability to repay
our debentures.

If we redeem the debentures, you may not be able to reinvest the proceeds at comparable
rates.

We, at our option, may at any time redeem all or a portion of the outstanding debentures
for payment prior to their maturity. If we purchase fewer than all of the outstanding debentures,
we will determine the debentures to be purchased in our sole discretion. The debentures will be
purchased at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus any accrued but unpaid
interest. In the event we redeem your debentures, you would have the risk of reinvesting the
proceeds at the then-current market rates which may be higher or lower.

The laws and regulations of the Arizona insurance authorities may restrict our reinsurance
subsidiary’s ability to distribute available cash to us.

The operations of our wholly-owned reinsurance subsidiary are subject to the laws and
regulations of the insurance authorities in the state of Arizona. Among other things, these laws

11



. } H
. . J R

and regulations place restrictions on the amount of dividends that our reinsurance subsidiary can
pay to us and require us to maintain a certain capital structure. If our reinsurance subsidiary does

not satisfy these requirements, it will be prohibited from distributing available cash to us, which

may in turn impair our ability to pay interest and principal on the debentures.
We are controlled by a single shareholder.

As of January 31, 2003, our sole shareholder, Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc., owned
all of the outstanding shares of our capital stock. Various trusts controlled by William D.
Sullivan control Pioneer Financial Industries. Accordingly, Mr. Sullivan will be able to exercise
significant control over our affairs including, but not limited to, the election of directors,
operational decisions and decisions regarding the debentures.

If you hold your debenture in an IRA, simplified employee pension account or a Roth IRA
and elect to accept this offer, you may suffer adverse tax consequences.

If you accept the rescission offer, we will cease to act as custodian for your account. As a
result you will have one of the following options: (1) have us transfer your account to a new
custodian; (2) take a distribution from your account and roll it over to a new tax-deferred account
with a different custodian within 60 days, or (3) take a distribution from your account, keep the
cash, and pay the applicable income taxes and penalties. Complex rules apply to transfers and
rollovers. If you fail to comply with these rules you could suffer adverse tax consequences.
Furthermore, distributions from a tax deferred account are subject to many restrictions. For
example, if you take a distribution from an IRA, SEP account or a Roth IRA before you reach
the age of 59 1/2 and do not otherwise qualify for an exemption, you may be subject to a 10%
penalty in addition to being required to pay income taxes on the amounts withdrawn. If you hold
your debenture in an IRA, SEP account or a Roth IRA, you should consult with your own tax
advisor before accepting this rescission offer.

Rescission offer may not eliminate all our liability.

Under federal securities laws and the laws of the state of Missouri, if we were found to
have made material misstatements in this rescission offer (as contrasted with provisions requiring
registration or qualification for exemptions from registration), persons who tender their
debentures to us for repayment may continue to have certain rights against us notwithstanding
the rescission offer. Notwithstanding this rescission offer, a state or federal securities
commission is not prohibited from bringing an administrative enforcement action against us for
our failure to register under the Securities Act or failure to register pursuant to state registration
requirements. Such an action may result in us paying penalties to the regulatory authorities.

12
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THE RESCISSION OFFER

Background of the Rescission Offer

Since January 1, 2002, we sold $1,276,266 in aggregate principal amount of our junior
subordinated debentures to 70 persons, including renewals of outstanding debentures. The
debentures were registered with the Securities Division of the Missouri Secretary of State, but
not registered under the Securities Act of 1933. In general, Section 5 of the Securities Act
requires all offers and sales of securities in interstate commerce in the United States (“public
offerings”) to be registered with the SEC. The offer and sale of securities is presumed to be a
“public offering” which must be registered under Section 5, unless it satisfies the requirements of
an applicable exemption from the registration requirements.

Among the exemptions from the Section 5 registration requirements is the “intrastate”
offering exemption provided by Section 3(a)(11) under the Securities Act, exempting offers and
sales of securities solely to the residents of one state. The issuer always has the burden of proof
that it complied with the conditions to the availability of an exemption. If the transactions are
not registered, and the issuer cannot sustain the burden of showing how it complied with the
conditions to one of the Securities Act exemptions, the offer and sale of such securities would
not comply with the Securities Act.

The debentures were offered and sold only to residents of the state of Missouri in reliance
upon the exemption set forth in Section 3(a)(11) of the Securities Act for intrastate offerings.
While we do not believe or admit that we sold the debentures in violation of Section 5 of the
Securities Act, it is possible that reliance upon the exemption provided under Section 3(a)(11) of
the Securities Act might not have been appropriate in light of the increased scope of our business
activities in recent years.

The principal remedy under the Securities Act for violations of Section 5 is to permit
Investors in an offering to sue for a refund of what was paid for the securities, plus interest, less
the amount of any income received by the investor. This remedy is only available within one
year of the later of the investment transaction or the date of delivery of certificates for the
securlties.

While we do not believe or admit that we violated any applicable federal securities laws,
if you purchased debentures or if any of your debentures were renewed since January 1, 2002,
you may have the right under federal securities laws to require us to repurchase from you the
debentures. We are making this rescission offer in an attempt to provide restitution to holders of
our debentures and reduce possible contingent liabilities. None of the investors who bought the
debentures have told us they intend to file suit to get their money back under applicable federal
laws.

This rescission offer may not terminate any liability that we may have for any alleged
failure to register the debentures under the Securities Act. Persons who reject this rescission
offer and fail to return a properly executed letter of transmittal may continue to have claims
against us for alleged violations of federal securities laws.
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Sources of Funds to Pay the Rescission Offer.

If all of the debenture holders who receive this rescission offer accept our offer to
repurchase their debentures, we will have an aggregate liability of approximately $1,353,348,
assuming that we make payment for the tendered debentures on April 15, 2003. We believe that
we have adequate cash on hand or available through our senior lending agreement to fund this
obligation. There are no covenants or restrictions in our senior lending agreement or in any other
material agreement that would prohibit us from consummating the repurchase of all debentures
that may be delivered to us.

Terms of the Rescission Offer.

If you purchased debentures after January 1, 2002, or if your debentures were renewed
after January 1, 2002, we are offering you the right to rescind your purchases of debentures in
accordance with the terms set forth below:

If you accept this rescission offer, you may exchange your debenture for cash in the
amount equal to the original principal amount of your debenture or the principal amount of your
debenture on the date it was renewed, plus interest at the rate of 8%, the rate specified by the
laws of the state of Missouri, calculated from the date you purchased the debenture, or the date
the debenture was renewed, as applicable, up to but not including the date of payment, less the
amount of any interest paid to you on the debenture. Please note that if the interest rate on
your debenture is greater than 8%, the interest rate applicable to this rescission offer is
LESS than the current rate of interest on your debenture. By tendering your debentures
you will not be entitled to any other payments on your debentures, including, without
limitation, any accrued and unpaid interest.

Please note that you may only accept this rescission offer with respect to the entire
principal of a debenture. If, however, you own more than one debenture you can accept this
offer with respect to the entire principal amount of one debenture and elect to continue holding
the entire principal amount of others.

We will mail payment for debentures as to which the rescission offer has been accepted
within fifteen business days after the expiration of this rescission offer to the address to which
this offering circular was sent, unless a different address is listed in the letter of transmittal.

How to Accept the Rescission Offer.

You may accept the rescission offer only by properly completing and executing the
enclosed letter of transmittal together with any other documents required by the letter of
transmittal and sending or delivering it to us together with your debenture properly endorsed
prior to the expiration of the rescission offer. Please carefully read and follow the instructions
included with the letter of transmittal to ensure proper execution of all documents. If you send
your debenture rather than hand deliver it, we recommend that you use an insured delivery
service.

All acceptances of the rescission offer will be deemed to be effective at 5:00 p.m.
(Kansas City time) on April 7, 2003. If we do not receive your debentures properly endorsed, a
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properly completed and executed copy of the enclosed letter of transmittal and any other required
documents before that time, your right to accept this rescission offer will terminate.

Please note that if you tender your debenture held in an IRA, a SEP account or a Roth
IRA, we will no longer serve as the custodian for your account. As a result, you will have the
following options: (1) have us transfer your account to a new custodian; (2) take a distribution
from you account and roll it over to a new tax-deferred account with a different custodian within
60 days; or (3) take a distribution from your account, keep the cash, and pay the applicable
income taxes and penalties. Complex rules apply to transfers and rollovers. Therefore, if you
have us transfer your account or rollover your account into a new tax-deferred account, you
should consult your individual tax advisor to make sure that your transfer or rollover is handled
in accordance with the applicable rules. Similarly, complex rules apply to the taxation of
distributions from a tax-deferred account. Therefore, you should consult your individual tax
advisor to determine the taxation of your distribution and whether any penalties or exceptions to
the penalties apply to you.

We reserve the absolute right to reject any or all tenders of outstanding debentures that
are not in proper form, including, without limitation, for failure to properly complete and execute
the letter of transmittal, and any other required document or to properly endorse the debenture.
We also reserve the right to waive any defects, irregularities or conditions of tender as to
particular debentures.

Our interpretation of the terms and conditions of the rescission offer, including, without
limitation, the adequacy and completeness of the letter of transmittal and any other required
document, will be final and binding.

Any defect or irregularity in connection with tenders of outstanding debentures must be
cured prior to the expiration of the offer, unless waived by us. Tenders of outstanding
debentures will not be deemed to have been made until all defects and irregularities have been
waived by us or cured. Neither we, nor any other person, will be under any duty to give notice
of any defects or irregularities in tenders of debentures, or will incur any liability to holders for
failure to give any such notice.

How to Reject This Rescission Offer.

If you do not tender your debentures properly endorsed and return a properly completed
and executed letter of transmittal and any other required documents to us prior to the expiration
of our rescission offer, you will be deemed to have rejected our offer and will continue to own
your debenture, receive interest payments on your debenture at its stated rate and will be paid its
principal amount upon maturity unless the debenture is earlier redeemed in accordance with its
terms. If you decide to reject this offer, please execute and return the enclosed letter of
transmittal with the appropriate box marked indicating that you reject our offer and waive any
further action you may have against us. Regardless of whether you return the enclosed letter of
transmittal formally rejecting the offer and waiving any further action you may have against us,
we will deem your failure to return any document to us as a rejection of the rescission offer. We
believe that by our conducting this rescission offer, you will be precluded from requiring us in
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the future to repurchase your debenture based upon our failure to register the debenture under
federal securities law.

Expiration; Extensions; Termination; Amendments.

The rescission offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., Kansas City time, on April 7, 2003, unless
extended by us. We expressly reserve the right to extend the rescission offer. During any
extension of the rescission offer, all outstanding debentures previously tendered, not validly
withdrawn and not yet accepted for rescission will remain subject to the rescission offer and may
be accepted for rescission by us.

To the extent we are legally permitted to do so, we expressly reserve the absolute right, in
our sole discretion, to waive any condition to the rescission offer and amend any of the terms of
the rescission offer.

Any waiver or amendment to this rescission offer will apply to all debentures tendered,
regardless of when or in what order the debentures were tendered. If we make a material change
in the terms of the rescission offer or if we waive a material condition of the rescission offer, we
will disseminate additional rescission offer materials.

We expressly reserve the right, in our sole discretion, to terminate the rescission offer. In
the event we terminate the rescission offer, we will notify you of the termination, and all
outstanding debentures previously tendered and not yet accepted for rescission will be returned
promptly to the tendering holders.

If any tendered outstanding debentures are not accepted for rescission for any reason such
debentures will be returned, at our expense, to the tendering holder at the address to which this
offering circular was sent, unless a different address is listed in the letter of transmittal, promptly
following the expiration or the termination of the rescission offer.

Withdrawal of Tenders.

You may withdraw your tender of debentures at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., Kansas City
time, on the expiration date.

To withdraw your tender, you must send written notice to: Melissa Kuhn, Investment
Analyst, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., 4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300, Kansas City,
Missouri 64112. The notice must contain the following information: the name of the debenture
holder of record, the principal amount and number of the debenture, and the date the debenture
was issued. The notice must also be signed by the registered debenture holder and notarized.

Withdrawals of tenders of debentures may not be rescinded, and any debentures properly
withdrawn will thereafter be deemed not validly tendered for purposes of the rescission offer.
Properly withdrawn debentures may, however, be re-tendered by following the procedures
described in “- How to Accept the Rescission Offer,” above at any time prior to the expiration
date.
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Other Terms and Conditions.

The conditions to the rescission offer are for our sole benefit and may be asserted by us in
our sole discretion or may be waived by us, in whole or in part, in our sole discretion, whether or
not any other condition of the rescission offer also is waived. We have not made a decision as to
what circumstances would lead us to waive any condition, and any waiver would depend on
circumstances prevailing at the time of that waiver. Any determination by us concerning the
conditions described in this section shall be final and binding upon all persons.

ALTHOUGH WE HAVE NO PRESENT PLANS OR ARRANGEMENTS TO DO
SO, WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TO AMEND, AT ANY TIME, THE TERMS OF THE
RESCISSION OFFER. WE WILL GIVE HOLDERS NOTICE OF ANY AMENDMENTS
IF REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW,

We have not retained nor do we intend to retain any person to make solicitations or
recommendations to you in connection with our rescission offer.

Neither we nor our officers or directors may make any recommendations to you
with respect to our rescission offer. We urge you to read this offering circular carefully
and to make an independent evaluation with respect to the rescission offer.

Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following is a summary of the material United States federal income tax
considerations relating to the rescission offer, but does not purport to be a complete analysis of
all the potential tax considerations relating thereto. This discussion is based on provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, applicable regulations thereunder, judicial authority and current
administrative rulings now in effect, all of which are subject to change, potentially with a
retroactive effect.

This summary applies only to United States holders that are beneficial owners of the
debentures as “capital assets,” within the meaning of Code Section 1221 and who were the
original purchasers of the debentures. This discussion does not address tax considerations
applicable to an investor’s particular circumstances or to investors that may be subject to special
tax rules such as (1) banks, thrifts, regulated investment companies, or other financial institutions
or financial service companies, (2) S corporations, (3) holders subject to the alternative minimum
tax, (4) tax-exempt organizations, (5) insurance companies, (6) foreign persons or entities, (7)
brokers or dealers in securities or currencies, (8) holders whose “functional currency” is not the
U.S. dollar, or (9) persons that will hold the debentures as a position in a hedging transaction,
“straddle,” “conversion transaction” (as defined for tax purposes) or persons deemed to sell the
debentures under the constructive sale provisions of the Code. Each debenture holder should
consult his or her own tax advisor.

In connection with the rescission offer, the portion of the payment that you receive that is
attributable to interest will be taxed at ordinary income rates. The portion of the payment you
receive that 1s attributable to principal generally will be taxed at capital gains rates to the extent
that the amount of cash you receive exceeds your adjusted tax basis in the debenture. Your
adjusted tax basis in a debenture generally will equal the cost of the debenture less any principal
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payments received. Such capital gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if your
holding period in the debenture is more than one year at the time of repurchase. Long-term
capital gains recognized by some noncorporate holders, including individuals, will generally be
subject to taxation at reduced rates. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.
Because we have not made any principal payments on the debentures subject to this rescission
offer, if you tender your debentures for repurchase, you should not recognize any gain on the
portion of the payment attributable to principal.

If you decide to reject the rescission offer and continue to hold the debentures, you will
not have any immediate federal income tax consequences and will continue to be taxed on your
ownership of the debentures in the same manner as you currently are.

If you hold your debenture in an IRA, a SEP account or a Roth IRA and accept this
rescission offer, we will no longer serve as a custodian for your account. Therefore, you must
elect one of the following options: (1) have us transfer your account to a new custodian, (2) take
a distribution from your account and roll it over to a new tax-deferred account with a different
custodian within 60 days; or (3) take a distribution from your account, keep the cash, and pay the
applicable income taxes and penalties. Complex rules apply to transfers and rollovers.
Therefore, if you have us transfer your account or rollover your account to a new tax-deferred
account, you should consult your individual tax advisor to make sure that your transfer or
rollover is handled in accordance with the applicable rules. Similarly, complex rules apply to the
taxation of distributions from a tax-deferred account. Therefore, you should consult your
individual tax advisor to determine the taxation of your distribution and whether any penalties or
exceptions to penalties apply to you.

Under the Code, we must report the interest earned on debentures with respect to each
holder to the Internal Revenue Service. Generally, we will not withhold any taxes for holders
who properly provide us with a taxpayer identification number on Forms W-8 or W-9. If,
however, you decide to accept this rescission offer and do not provide us with a taxpayer
identification number on Forms W-8 or W-9, we are required to withhold tax on the portion of
your payment attributable to interest. The withholding rate is presently 30% of the interest, but
the rate is to reduce over time in stages to 27% in 2006.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization at September 30, 2002, and as adjusted to
give effect to the rescission offer, assuming (1) that thirty percent (30%) of the debentures that
were sold or renewed are repurchased; (2) that sixty percent (60%) of the debentures that were
sold or renewed are repurchased, and (3) that all of the debentures that were sold or renewed are

repurchased.

At September 30, 2002
As
As Adjusted for As
Adjusted for  Repurchase of  Adjusted for
30% of the 60% of the ~ Repurchases of
Actual Debentures Debentures all Debentures
Senior Indebtedness:
Revolving lines of credit
(1) e $12,717,831 $13,123,835  $13,529,840  $14,071,179
Amortizing and single pay
term notes ........ccocveeennn. $97,925,405  $97,925,405 $97,925,405 $97,925,405
Junior subordinated debt.. $21,396,438 $20,990,434 $20,584,429 $20,043,090
Total equity ...ccoovveriiireennene $17,320,279  $17,320,279  $17,320,279  $17,320,279

(1) Includes debt to our parent under a revolving line of $1,941,831.
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BUSINESS

General

We originate and service consumer loans, and provide other financial products and
services on a worldwide basis, exclusively to active duty or retired career military personnel or
Department of Defense employees. We make direct loans to our customers through our network
of retail sales offices and via the Internet. We also purchase retail installment contracts from
retail merchants that sell consumer goods to active duty or retired career military personnel or
Department of Defense employees. We are not associated with, nor are we endorsed by, the
United States military or Department of Defense. However, we do seek to maintain a positive,
supportive relationship with the military community. Through sponsorship and underwriting of
military programs, and educational efforts, we actively support initiatives aimed at improving the
quality of life for military personnel and their families. Our operations and financial products are
also designed to meet the needs of military service personnel. Various aspects of our loan
application process, our suspension of collection efforts during Operation Desert Storm and after
September 11, 2001 and our emergency funeral assistance program were designed to meet the
unique needs of our customer base.

We also offer credit life, credit accident and health and credit property and casualty
insurance to our loan customers. This insurance is issued by a non-affiliated insurance company.
We also sell roadside assistance packages and discount healthcare cards issued by an unaffiliated
third party.

Our lending subsidiaries originate and service direct consumer loans made to customers
referred by our retail office network of 25 locations and our unaffiliated strategic partners. Some
subsidiaries purchase retail installment contracts generated by merchants when active duty or
retired career military personnel or Department of Defense employees purchase consumer goods.

J We have three full service lending subsidiaries strategically located
throughout the United States. Our lending subsidiaries are responsible for all
direct lending activity. They receive applications from customers, make all
underwriting decisions, generate loan documents and necessary disclosures,
prepare loan disbursements, maintain loan documentation and service
outstanding direct loans. If a customer is approved for a loan, in addition to
loan disclosures, he receives information regarding various types of credit
insurance. If the customer chooses to purchase this insurance, licensed
insurance agent employees of the lending subsidiary sell this coverage on
behalf of an unaffiliated insurance company.

o We have another lending subsidiary that also originates and services loans to
customers primarily via the Internet. It also originates loans to customers
referred by a German affiliate. Our Internet lending capability allows
customers to apply online via the Internet and receive loan proceeds
electronically, If a customer is approved and accepts the loan offer, loan
proceeds are generally deposited into the customer’s bank account within 24
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hours. This lending subsidiary also sells credit life insurance products over
the Internet.

Another subsidiary operates our retail network of 25 offices located in 16 states. Our
retail network offices are located in close proximity to, but not on, military installations. They
are typically located in retail strip shopping centers. We continually review our retail network to
determine how to best deploy our resources and look for opportunities for expansion. Our
locations were strategically selected based on several criteria including market size of military
installation, convenience and growth and profitability opportunities. The retail network sells
various financial products and services, roadside assistance packages and discount healthcare
cards which are designed for military personnel. At no charge to customers, our retail offices
also provide financial education courses, credit bureau analyses, living wills, auto insurance
quotes, child fingerprinting cards, and copying, fax and other services. At selected locations
within the retail network, licensed insurance benefit counselors sell selected non-credit insurance
and savings products. Our retail network refers customers to our lending subsidiaries and
expedites the loan application process. None of our retail offices will expedite a loan application
process for residents of the state in which the office is located, unless we have a lending license
in that state.

We also have a subsidiary that purchases retail installment contracts from approximately
77 retail merchants. Retail installment contracts are notes generated by a single purchase of
consumer goods by active duty or retired career military personnel or Department of Defense
employees. We generally acquire these contracts without recourse to the originating merchant.
However, most retail merchant reserve agreements allow us to withhold funds from the
merchant’s proceeds to create reserves to be used in the event a customer defaults and the loan 1s
deemed uncollectable. Retail installment contracts generally have maximum terms of 48
months. To supplement our direct lending and retail installment activities, we occasionally
purchase active duty or retired career military personnel or Department of Defense employee
consumer loan portfolios that meet our quality standards and return on investment objectives.
This subsidiary also sells credit property insurance.

Our collection activities are generally performed by our lending subsidiaries. Once an
account reaches a certain delinquency level or the customer becomes a civilian or declares
bankruptcy, the account is transferred to our collection subsidiary.

As discussed under “Insurance Operations” below, we have a subsidiary that reinsures a
portion of the accident and health credit insurance issued by an unaffiliated insurance company
in connection with loans we make.

Our subsidiaries’ activities are supported by a centralized support services subsidiary that
provides the following services:

Finance and accounting services

Human resources and recruiting services
Information technology services
Marketing and solicitation services
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Customer

We exclusively market and sell financial services and products to persons who are, at the
time the loan or sale is made, active duty or retired career military personnel or Department of
Defense employees. In general, our customers are unable to obtain traditional financing from
banks, credit unions or savings and loan associations due to factors such as their age, likelihood
of relocation and lack of credit history.

In general, customers use our direct loans for purchases of appliances, furniture,
household electronics and other durable goods, emergency expenses, vacations, auto purchases
and debt consolidation. Where appropriate, we obtain security interests in collateral, often
consumer goods, to support repayment of loans. However, the resale value of used consumer
goods often makes foreclosure and liquidation of this collateral uneconomical.

These borrowers are attracted to our loan products as a result of being referred to us by an
existing customer or by our marketing efforts. Retail installment contracts are another source of
loan customers. These customers have demonstrated an apparent need to finance a retail
purchase and a willingness to use credit. After we purchase a retail installment contract, we
often contact the customer using various solicitation methods. We invite the customer to visit
one of our retail network offices to discuss their overall financial needs and consider our other
products and services.

Seasonality

Our highest finance receivable demand occurs generally from October through
December, our first fiscal quarter. From January to March, our second fiscal quarter, demand is
generally lower and repayments higher. Demand is generally stable in the third and fourth
quarters. Consequently, we experience mild seasonal fluctuations in our cash requirements
during our first and second quarters.

Direct Lending Activities

A risk in all consumer lending and retail sales financing transactions is the customer’s
unwillingness or inability to repay obligations. Unwillingness to repay is usually evidenced by a
consumer’s historical credit repayment record. An inability to repay occurs after our initial
credit evaluation and funding and usually results from lower income due to early separation from
the military, major medical expenses, or divorce. Occasionally, these types of events are so
economically severe that the customer files for protection under the bankruptcy laws. We use
standard underwriting guidelines at the time the borrower applies for a loan to help minimize the
risk of unwillingness or inability to repay. These guidelines are developed from past customer
credit repayment experience and are periodically revalidated based on current portfolio
performance. We use these guidelines to predict the relative likelihood of credit applicants
repaying their obligation to us. We extend credit to those consumers who fit our underwriting
guidelines. The amount and interest rate of the loan or retail sales finance transaction are based
upon the estimated credit risk assumed.
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In general, our loans are under $5,000, repayable in equal monthly installments and have
terms no longer than 48 months. In evaluating the creditworthiness of potential customers, we
primarily examine the individual’s debt to income ratio, discretionary income, military rank,
time served in the military and prior credit experience. Loans are limited to amounts that the
customer can reasonably be expected to repay from that discretionary income. Loan repayment
terms are generally structured to repay the entire loan prior to the customer’s estimated
separation from the military.

All of our customers are required to complete standardized credit applications in person
at one of our retail network offices or to complete an online application via the Internet. All of
our retail network offices are staffed and equipped to expedite loan applications electronically to
one of the lending subsidiaries for loan underwriting. Promptly, our lending subsidiary
employees verify the applicant’s military service history and status including rank, review credit
histories using major credit reporting agencies and conduct other review procedures as deemed
necessary.

The majority of our customers submit a listing of personal property that will be pledged
as collateral to secure the loan, but we generally do not perfect a security interest in that
collateral. Often the current value of the collateral does not exceed the expense of repossession.
Accordingly, if the customer were to default in the repayment of the loan, we may not be able to
recover the outstanding loan balance by resorting to the sale of collateral. In certain transactions,
based on the amount of the loan, we will take a security interest in the collateral in the event of a
change in the customer’s circumstances that might prevent the customer from repaying the loan
as agreed.

We believe that the development and continual reinforcement of personal relationships
with customers improves our ability to monitor their creditworthiness, reduce credit risk and
generate loyal repeat customers. It is not unusual for us to have made a number of loans to the
same customer over the course of several years, many of which were refinanced with a new loan
after approximately one third of the scheduled payments were made. In determining whether to
refinance existing loans, we typically require loans to be current on a recency basis, and
customers are required to complete a new credit application. Rarely do we grant extensions or
deferments, or allow account revisions, rewriting renewal or rescheduling to bring an otherwise
delinquent account current. Qur policy is that we do not refinance loans to cure a default in
principal or interest. Generally, we refinance existing loans when a portion of the new loan
proceeds is used to repay the balance of the existing loan and the remaining portion is advanced
to the customer. We actively market the opportunity to refinance existing loans prior to
maturity, thereby increasing the amount borrowed and increasing the fees and other income we
realize. In fiscal 2002, approximately 46% of the number and 27% of the amount of our loan
originations were refinancings of outstanding loans.

To reduce our credit risk, we encourage our customers to employ the convenience of
making their monthly loan payments electronically through payroll deduction via the
Government Allotment System or through an automatic debit of their account through the
National Automated Clearinghouse Association. As of September 30, 2002, approximately 95%
of our customers were utilizing these options.
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Credit Loss Experience

We closely monitor portfolio delinquency and loss rates in measuring the quality of our
portfolio and the potential for ultimate credit losses. We attempt to control customer
delinquency through careful evaluation of each application and credit history at the time the loan
is originated or purchased and through appropriate collection activity. Collection efforts
continue after an account has been charged-off until it is determined that the cost of collection
efforts outweighs the benefits received.

Insurance Operations

Generally, where applicable laws permit, we sell various types of credit insurance
products offered by third party insurance companies to our customers. We earn a pre-negotiated
commission on the sale of credit insurance. The customer’s premiums for insurance coverage
are financed as part of the customer’s loan.

Credit life insurance policies typically cover the life of the customer and provide for the
full payment of the outstanding loan balance in the event of the customer’s death, including war-
related deaths. Credit accident and health insurance policies provide for the payment of loan
installments as they become due while a customer is disabled due to illness or injury, including
war-related mnjuries. Credit property insurance is written to protect the property pledged as
security for the obligation. Purchases of credit life insurance and credit accident and health
insurance are entirely voluntary and at the customer’s discretion. Property insurance is expected
for property pledged as collateral unless the borrower provides evidence of coverage with
another insurance carrier naming us as payee.

We have a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary that reinsures a portion of the credit
accident and health insurance that we sell on behalf of an unaffiliated insurance carrier,
providing us with an additional source of income from the earned reinsurance premiunis. If
these customers are injured or become ill, including during war, this subsidiary will have
payment obligations. In fiscal 2002, our insurance subsidiary reinsured approximately 54% of
the credit accident and health insurance we sold and contributed approximately $1.3 million to
our total revenues.

The laws of the states in which we operate regulate our sale of insurance to our customers
by prescribing, among other things, the maximum amount of coverage and term of policy and by
fixing the permissible premium rates or authorizing a state official to fix the maximum premium
rates.
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The following table sets forth information concerning our re-insurance operations:

2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)

Premium income ...........ccocevvennn. $1,317 $1,440 . $1,270
Investment income ..........cccoouene. _ 109 118 _ 7
Total revenue........coccocevvveveennneneen. $1,426 $1,558 $1,347
Claims paid .......covvevveriiveerrenenn, 31 17 26
Operating eXpenses ..................... 19 1 _ 20
Income before income taxes........ $1,376 $1,530 $1,301

Regulation

Our consumer lending business is subject to extensive regulation, supervision and
licensing by various state departments of banking and other state and federal agencies. We are
also subject to various judicial and administrative decisions of general applicability that also set
requirements and restrictions applicable to our lending activities. Failure to comply with these
requirements can lead to, among other sanctions, termination or suspension of licenses,
consumer litigation and administrative enforcement actions. ‘

Our lending subsidiaries are subject to detailed supervision by authorities in the states
where they are located. Legislation and regulations generally require licensing, limit loan
amounts, duration and charges for various categories of loans, require adequate disclosure of
certain contract terms and limit collection practices and creditor remedies. Licenses are
renewable and may be subject to revocation for violation of these laws and regulations. In
addition, these states have usury laws which limit the interest rates we may charge.

State and federal regulatory agencies, state attorneys general, the Federal Trade
Commission, and the U.S. Department of Justice have increased their focus on certain types of
lending practices by some companies in the subprime lending industry, sometimes referred to as
“predatory lending” practices. State and federal governmental agencies have imposed sanctions
for certain lending practices, including, but not limited to, charging borrowers excessive fees,
making loans to refinance existing loans when there is no tangible benefit to the borrower,
imposing higher interest rates than a borrower’s credit risk warrants and failing to adequately
disclose the material terms of loans to borrowers.

We are subject to the Truth-in-Lending Act and Regulation Z promulgated thereunder.
This act requires us, among other things, to disclose pertinent terms of our consumer loans,
including the finance charge and the comparative costs of credit expressed in terms of an annual
percentage rate. These disclosure requirements are designed to provide consumers with uniform,
understandable information with respect to the terms and conditions of loans and credit
transactions in order to enable them to compare credit terms.

In addition, we are subject to the Equal Credit Opportunity Act which, in part, prohibits
credit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, marital status, national origin or
age. Regulation B, promulgated under this act, restricts the type of information that we may
obtain in connection with a credit application. It also requires us to make certain disclosures
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regarding consumer rights and requires us to advise applicants who are denied credit the reasons
for the denial. In instances where a loan application is denied or the rate or charge on a loan is
increased as a result of information obtained from a consumer credit agency, the act requires us
to supply the applicant with the name and address of the reporting agency.

Our insurance activities are also regulated by state and federal law, and are subject to
supervision by agencies having jurisdiction over consumer credit and insurance. These
regulations cover such matters as solicitation practices, disclosure, policy terms, claims payment,
premiums, premium financing and permitted commissions. In addition, our reinsurance
subsidiary is subject to laws and regulations of the insurance authorities in the state of Arizona.
These regulations cover such matters as its capitalization, reserve requirements, affiliate
transactions, permitted investments and limitations on the amount of dividends payable.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which was signed into law at the end of 1999, contains
comprehensive consumer financial privacy restrictions. Various federal enforcement agencies,
including the Federal Trade Commission, have issued final regulations to implement this act.
These restrictions fall into two basic categories. First, we must provide various notices to our
customers about our privacy policies and practices. Second, this act restricts us, and gives our
customers the right to prevent us, from disclosing non-public personal information about the
customer to non-affiliated third parties, with certain exceptions. We believe we have prepared
the appropriate consumer disclosures and internal procedures to address these requirements.

We have procedures and controls to monitor compliance with numerous federal and state
laws and regulations. However, because these laws and regulations are complex and often
subject to interpretation, or because of a result of inadvertent errors, we may, from time to time,
inadvertently violate these laws and regulations. If more restrictive laws, rules and regulations
are enacted or more restrictive judicial and administrative interpretations of those laws are
issued, compliance with the laws could become more expensive or difficult.

The merchants who originate retail installment contracts purchased by us also must
comply with both state and federal credit and trade practice statutes and regulations. If the
merchants fail to comply with these statutes and regulations, it could result in consumers having
rights of rescission and other remedies that could have an adverse effect on us.

The Soldiers and Sailor’s Civil Relief Act, in part, requires lenders to reduce the interest
rate charged on loans to customers who have subsequently joined the military. Due to our policy
to onginate loans to only active duty and retired career military personnel, this act does not affect
our business. Furthermore, our customers waive their right to enforce this act at time of loan
closing.

Although we believe our operations comply with current regulatory requirements, we are
unable to predict whether state or federal authorities will require changes in our lending practices
in the future, or the impact of those changes on our profitability. These agencies have the
authority to require a lender that has violated existing laws to reimburse customers for fees or
other charges.
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Competition

The markets in which we operate are competitive. Traditional competitors in the
consumer finance industry include independent finance companies, banks and thrift institutions,
credit unions, credit card issuers, leasing companies, manufacturers and vendors. Some of these
competitors are large companies that have greater capital and technological and marketing
resources than we do. These competitors also have access to capital at a lower cost.

Competition varies by delivery system and geographic region. For example, some
competitors deliver their services exclusively via the Internet while others exclusively through a
branch network. We distribute our products using both delivery channels. In addition, we
compete with other consumer finance companies on the basis of overall pricing of loans,
including interest rates and fees, and general convenience of obtaining the loan, including the
location of our retail offices to the military base.

We maintain product delivery flexibility and convenience, which we believe offers us a
competitive advantage. In addition, we believe that innovation is necessary to compete in the
industry, including enhanced customer service, products designed for military personnel and use
of the Internet for loan processing and funding. While some of our customers might qualify for
loans from traditional lending sources, we believe they are attracted to our products and services
as a result of our exclusive commitment to the military market, an understanding of the military
culture, our products and services and our expedited loan processing and funding.

Trade Names

A subsidiary of our parent has applied for federal trademark protection for the name
“Pioneer Services,” other names we use in our business and the logo that incorporates the
“Pioneer Services” name. Trademark protection for certain other names, logos and phrases we
use in our business operations are being applied for.

Employee Relations

At September 30, 2002, we employed approximately 266 persons, none of whom were
represented by labor unions. We believe that our employee relations are good.

Properties

Our operations are generally conducted on leased premises under operating leases with
terms not normally exceeding five years. At September 30, 2002, we had 31 leased operating
facilities in the United States. Please see Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for
information concerning our lease obligations. The furniture, equipment and other personal
property that we own represents less than 1% of our total assets at September 30, 2002 and is
therefore not significant in relation to our total assets.

Legal Proceedings

We are currently involved in various litigation matters in the ordinary course of our
business. We are not currently involved in any litigation or other proceeding that we expect,
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either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our
audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes, with other financial data included
in this offering circular and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.” The data is as of September 30, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998,
and for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 and has been derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in this offering
circular.

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Finance receivables (1).....c.ccovecvannnnn $159,011 $137,314 $127,746 $107,935 $ 90,298
Allowance for credit 10SSes .................. $(6,221) $(4,421) $(3,833) $(3.,301) $ (2,704)
Total aSSets c.ucvvvivveicieeieiiiee e $159,997 $141,328 $132,067 $111,388 §$ 92,269
Senior Indebtedness:
Revolving lines of credit (2)............. $ 12,718 $ 12310 $ 10,851 $ 9,138 §$ 8,158
Amortizing and single pay
TEITI IOLES . veveieeeeree e $ 97,925 $ 83,847 § 80,466 § 64,561 $52,277
Junior subordinated debt ...........ccooco.. $ 21,396 $ 20973 $ 19204 $ 17,908 §$16,329
Total €QUILY ....ovovereereeeeees e $ 17320 $ 14,861 $ 13,070 $ 11,488 $ 9,967

Consolidated Statement of
Operations Data:

Revenue:
Finance income...........c.ccooeevveineennnas $45.884 $38965 $34,670  $28,688 $24,262
Insurance premiums and
COMUIISSIONS ..covvrivveivresree v 4,652 4,561 4,467 3,992 2,754
Other income, fees and
COIMMISSIONS..eeeeerieeeeererirerenenens 1,755 1,596 1,313 113 60
Total revenue.......ooocviviveveieicevenne 52,291 45,122 40,450 32,793 27,076
Provision for credit losses ................. 10,594 8,264 7,476 6,577 4,617
Interest eXpense .....c.occovveeviiveecnrennenn, 9,599 9,455 8,334 6,990 6,103
NELTEVENUE .....voeeiiiiereeeceee e, 32,098 27,403 24,640 19,226 16,356
Operating exXpenses.......c.coecvrvcerenneae 27,589 24,052 21,727 17,014 14,654
Income before income taxes.............. 4,509 3,351 2,913 2,212 1,702
Provision for income taxes............... 1,645 1,210 1,055 492 375
Net INCOME ....ovviviiriiiieie e $284 $ 2,141 3 1858 § 1,720 § 1327
Earnings per share .........ccccoovecvennnes, $167.14 312491 $10839 §$10043 $ 77.44
Cash dividends per common share..... $ 2363 $2039 § 1605 $ 11.66 $ 1080
(1) Finance receivables balances are presented net of unearned finance charges, unearned insurance

commissions and discounts on purchases of retail installment contracts.

(2) Includes debt to our parent under a revolving line of $1,941,831, $1,839,521, $1,244,413,
$147,945 and $388,607 in fiscal years 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the information under
“Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and our audited consolidated financial statements and
related notes and other financial data included elsewhere in this offering circular.

Overview

We originate and service consumer loans and provide other financial products and
services on a worldwide basis, exclusively to active duty or retired career military personnel or
Department of Defense employees. We make direct loans to our customers through our network
of retail sales offices and over the Internet. We also purchase retail installment sales contracts
from retail merchants who sell consumer goods to active duty or retired career military personnel
or Department of Defense employees. We refer to these consumer loans and retail installment
contracts as finance receivables.

Our finance receivables are generally unsecured with fixed interest rates and typically
have a maturity of less than 48 months. During fiscal 2002, the size of our average finance
receivable at origination was approximately $2,844. A large portion of our customers are unable
to obtain traditional financing from banks, credit unions or savings and loan associations due to
factors such as their age, likelihood of relocation and lack of credit history.

Further improvement of our profitability is dependent in large part upon the growth in our
outstanding finance receivables, the maintenance of loan quality, acceptable levels of borrowing
costs and operating expenses and the ongoing introduction of innovative new products and
services to our customer base. Since September 30, 1998, finance receivables have increased at
a 15.2% annual compounded rate from $90.3 million to $159.0 million at September 30, 2002.
The increase reflects the higher volume of loans generated through our existing retail offices and
through the Internet and the addition of new retail offices to our network. We plan to look for
opportunities to expand our retail offices as we evaluate new military markets and possible
products.

To support this growth, we continuously seek to introduce new products and services to
our customer base. In addition to new insurance and savings products we introduced to selected
markets in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2002, we sell discount health care cards,
roadside assistance program and offer an array of free services to our customers.

Sources of Income

We derive revenues and resulting income from finance income derived from direct
consumer lending and retail installment contracts, commissions earned on the sale of credit
insurance products, credit reinsurance premiums, and commissions earned on the sale of
ancillary products and services. For purposes of the following discussion, “revenues” means the
sum of our finance income, insurance premiums and commissions and other income.
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Direct Lending

Our finance income from direct loans to customers consists of interest and fees paid by
the customer. Our interest income is based on the risk adjusted interest rates we charge
customers for loans. Interest rates vary from loan to loan based on many factors, including the
overall degree of credit risk assumed and the interest rates allowed in the state where the loan is
originated. Substantially all of the fee income we derive from these loans consists of origination,
prepayment and late fees. Finance income from our direct lending business comprised
approximately 79.4% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002, 74.3% of our revenues in fiscal 2001
and 71.8% of our revenues in fiscal 2000.

Retail Installment Contracts

We purchase retail installment contracts from approximately 77 retail merchants. Retail
installment contracts are notes receivable generated by a single purchase of consumer goods.
Our revenue from retail installment contracts consists of interest and fees. Like our direct loans,
interest rates charged on retail sales contracts vary from contract to contract based on many
factors, including the overall degree of credit risk assumed and the interest rates allowed in the
state where the loan is originated. Substantially all of the fee income we derive from retail
installment contracts consists of prepayment and late fees. Interest and fee income from retail
installment contracts comprised approximately 8.4% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002.

Credit Insurance Commissions

We sell credit life, credit accident and health, and credit property insurance. Our income
from the sale of these products consists of commissions paid to us by an unaffiliated insurance
company that issues the policies. The commission rates are based on a pre-negotiated schedule.
Commissions are recognized ratably over the life of the policy. Credit insurance commissions
comprised approximately 6.2% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002.

Credit Reinsurance Premiums

We have a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary that reinsures a portion of the credit
accident and health insurance sold in connection with loans we make. A portion of the
premiums for policies that we sell for the unaffiliated insurance company are ceded to one of our
subsidiaries, providing us with an additional source of revenue. Net credit reinsurance premiums
comprised approximately 2.6% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002.

Ancillary Products and Services

We also sell non-loan related products and services including roadside assistance
programs and discount healthcare cards. Our revenues from the sale of these products and
services consists of commissions paid by an unaffiliated company. These sales commissions
comprised approximately 3.4% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002. In October 2002, at selected
locations we started selling non-credit lines of insurance and savings products as well as
supplemental life insurance. Revenues from the sale of these products consists of commissions
paid by unaffiliated insurance companies.
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Finance Receivables

Our finance receivables are comprised of direct loans and retail installment contracts.
The following table sets forth certain information about the components of our finance
receivables as of the ends of the periods presented:

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands, except for average note balances)

Finance Receivables:

Finance receivables balance .......... $159,011 8137314 $127,746  $107,935  $90,298
Average note balance................. $ 1946 $ 1,753 $ 1,763 $ 1,714 § 1,646
Total finance income ...........ooovvve. $ 45,884 $ 38,965 § 34,670 $ 28,688 $24,262
Total number of notes.................... 81,726 78,316 72,478 62,978 54,850

Direct Loans:

Notes receivable balance ............... $139,664 $117,098 $102397 § 88,192 $73,777
Percent of finance receivables......... 87.83% 85.28% 80.16% 81.71% 81.70%
Average note balance..................... $ 1959 $ 1,767 $ 1,746 S 1,706 $ 1,667
Number 0f ROLES w..voioriiecensies 71,302 66,264 58,635 51,693 44,267

Retail Installment Contracts:

Notes receivable balance ................ $ 19,348 § 20216 $25349 $ 19,744 $16,521

Percent of finance receivables......... 12.17% 14.72% 19.84% 18.29%  18.30%

Average note balance................ $ 1,856 $ 1,677 § 1,831 $ 1,750 $1,561

Number 0f NOtES ...ccoivinsivrrvnn, 10,424 12,052 13,843 11,285 10,583
Net Interest Margin

The principal component of our profitability is our net interest margin, which is the
difference between the interest we earn on finance receivables and the interest we pay on
borrowed funds. In some states, statutes regulate the interest rates that we may charge our
customers while in other states competitive market conditions establish the interest rates we may
charge. Differences also exist in the interest rates we earn on the various components of our
finance receivable portfolio.

Unlike our interest income, our interest expense is sensitive to general market interest
rate fluctuations. These general market fluctuations directly impact our cost of funds. Our
general inability to increase the interest rates earned on new and existing finance receivables
restricts our ability to react to increases in our cost of funds. Accordingly, increases in market
interest rates generally will narrow our interest rate spread and lower our profitability, while
decreases in market interest rates generally will widen our interest rate spread and increase our
profitability.
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The following table presents important data relating to our net interest margin as of, and
for the years ended, September 30, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998.

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Finance receivables balance ........ $159.011 $137314 $127.746 $107.935 $90,298

Average finance receivables ... $149.729 $131,741 $118901 $100,391 $84,073

Average interest bearing

liabilities (1) ccvoveoiiiriiiiins $125,561 $111,195 $100,614 § 83,467 $70,022
Total finance income ................... $ 45,884 $ 38,965 3 34,670 $ 28,688 $24,262
Total interest EXPENnse ... $ 9,599 $ 9,455 $ 8,334 $ 6,990 $ 6,103
Net provisions for credit losses ... $ 10594 S 8264 $ 7476 $ 6577 $ 4.617
Net charge-offs.......ccoceveeniennnn, $ 8794 $ 7,676 $ 6944 $ 5980 $ 4,212

(1) Averages are computed using month-end balances during the years presented.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended September 30, 2002 Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2001

Our aggregate finance receivables grew 15.8% during fiscal 2002 to $159.0 million on
September 30, 2002 from $137.3 on September 30, 2001. This growth is due primarily to
increases in finance receivables from the Internet, which grew by more than $14.0 million or
42%. The Internet is a lower-cost method of loan origination and proceed distribution, and we
plan to increase this distribution channel in the future.

Total revenues in fiscal 2002 increased to $52.3 million from $45.1 million in fiscal
2001, an increase of $7.2 million or 15.9%.

Finance income in fiscal 2002 increased to $45.9 million from $39.0 million in fiscal
2001, an increase of $6.9 million or 17.8%. This increase was attributable to an increase in the
number of loans in our portfolio and an increase in our average loan size due to the higher credit
worthiness of an increased number of our customers with higher military rank.

Insurance premium and commission revenues in fiscal 2002 increased to $4.7 million
from $4.6 million in fiscal 2001, an increase of $.1 million or 2%. While the commissions on
credit insurance products remained strong, with growth of approximately $.4 million or 14.4%,
the premiums received by our insurance subsidiary declined by $.3 million or 18.7%. This
decline is due to a reduced number of policies reinsured with our subsidiary by an unaffiliated
insurance carrier over the course of the year. We do not anticipate this trend continuing.

Other income, fees and commission revenues in fiscal 2002 increased to $1.8 million
from $1.6 million in fiscal 2001, an increase of $.2 million or 10.0%. This revenue is comprised
primarily of commissions from sales of roadside assistance policies and health discount cards, as
well as commissions from the sale of prepaid cellular phones prior to September 1, 2001. The
increase is attributable to commissions from sales of discount healthcare cards, which began in
January of 2002.

Provision for credit losses in fiscal 2002 increased to $10.6 million from $8.3 million in
fiscal 2001, an increase of $2.3 million or 28.2%. The net charge-offs incurred in connection
with our finance receivable in fiscal 2002 increased to $8.8 million from $7.7 million in fiscal
2001, an increase of $1.1 million or 14.6%. This increase is consistent with the increase in our
finance receivable portfolio and was 5.87% of the average finance receivable balance in fiscal
2002 compared to 5.83% in fiscal 2001. Historically, our net charge-offs have been less than 6%
of our average finance receivables. Our allowance for credit losses at September 30, 2002
increased to $6.2 million from $4.4 million at September 30, 2001, an increase of $1.8 million or
40.7%. This increase reflects, among other things, our concern regarding uncertainty
surrounding possible Middle-East hostilities.

Interest expense in fiscal 2002 increased to $9.6 million from $9.5 million in fiscal 2001,
an increase of $.1 million or 1.5%. Our average interest bearing liabilities increased by $14.4
million or 12.9% during fiscal 2002. However, this increase was offset by decreased interest
rates. The weighted average interest rate on our debt declined to 7.5% in fiscal 2002 from 8.2%
in fiscal 2001.
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Operating expenses in fiscal 2002 increased to $27.6 million from $24.1 million in fiscal
2001, an increase of $3.5 million or 14.7%. This increase is due primarily to an increase in
employment costs, which increased by $3.0 million. During fiscal 2002, we enlarged the
software development team that is developing a comprehensive enterprise-wide software
application and continued our efforts to build infrastructure, primarily in our Internet distribution
facility, audit and compliance, collections and product development teams.

We generated income before income taxes of $4.5 million and net income of $2.9 million
in fiscal 2002 compared to income before income taxes of $3.4 million and net income of $2.1
million in fiscal 2001.

Year Ended September 30, 2001 Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2000.

Our aggregate finance receivables grew 7.5% during fiscal 2001 to $137.3 million on
September 30, 2001 from $127.7 on September 30, 2000. This growth is due primarily to
increases in our Internet lending distribution channel, which grew by more than $18.2 million or
121% in fiscal 2001. The Internet is a lower-cost method of loan origination and proceed
distribution.

Total revenues in fiscal 2001 increased to $45.1 million from $40.5 million in fiscal
2000, an increase of $4.7 million or 11.5%.

Finance income in fiscal 2001 increased to $39.0 million from $34.7 million for fiscal
2000, an increase of $4.3 million or 12.4%. This increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in our average finance receivables outstanding over the course of the year.

Insurance premium and commission revenues in fiscal 2001 increased to $4.6 million
from $4.5 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $.1 million or 2.1%. While the premiums on
credit insurance products for loans originated remained strong, we recognize these commissions
ratably over the life of the loan, so only minimal revenue increases were realized in fiscal 2001.

Other income, fees and commission revenues in fiscal 2001 increased to $1.6 million
from $1.3 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $.3 million or 21.5%. This revenue is comprised
primarily of commissions on sales of roadside assistance policies and prepaid cellular phones.
The increase 1s attributable to commissions on sales of prepaid cellular phones, which we sold
prior to September 1, 2001.

Provision for credit losses in fiscal 2001 increased to $8.3 million from $7.5 million in
fiscal 2000, an increase of $.8 million or 10.5%. The net charge-offs in fiscal 2001 increased to
$7.7 million from $6.9 million in fiscal 2000, an increase of $.8 million or 10.5%, an increase
consistent with the increase in the finance receivable portfolio. Net charge-offs as a percent of
our average finance receivables portfolio decreased to 5.83% in fiscal 2001 compared to 5.84%
in fiscal 2000.

Interest expense in fiscal 2001 increased to $9.5 million from $8.3 million in fiscal 2000,
an increase of $1.1 million or 13.4%. This increase is consistent with the increase in our average
debt which increased by $10.6 million or 10.5%. The weighted average interest rate on our debt
decreased to 8.23% in fiscal 2001 from 8.74% in fiscal 2000,
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Operating expenses in fiscal 2001 increased to $24.0 million from $21.7 million in fiscal
2000, an increase of $2.3 million or 10.7%. This increase is due primarily to an $.8 million
increase in professional fees incurred in connection with a suit we filed against a competitor.
Employment, occupancy and communication expenses also increased by $1.4 million as a result
of the opening of a new retail sales office and moving our administrative offices to a new
facility.

We generated income before income taxes of $3.4 million and net income of $2.1 million
in fiscal 2001 compared to income before income taxes of $2.9 million and net income of $1.9
million in fiscal 2000.

Delinquency Experience

Our customers are required to make monthly payments of interest and principal. We
analyze our delinquencies on a recency delinquency basis. A loan is delinquent under the
recency method when a full payment (95% or more of the contracted payment amount) has not
been received for 60 days after the last full payment. We do not grant extensions or deferments,
or allow account revision, rewriting, renewal or rescheduling in order to bring otherwise
delinquent accounts current.

The following sets forth our delinquency experience for accounts for which payments are
60 days or more past due and allowance for credit losses for our finance receivables:

As of September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Finance receivables
balaNCes. .. ovieieieee e $159,011 $137,314 $127,746 $107,935 $90,298

Finance receivables balances 60
days or more past due.........co. o $ 5,580 $ 6,369 $ 5,176 $ 4,741 $3,924

Finance receivables balances 60
days or more past due as a
percent of finance receivables........ 3.51% 4.64% 4.05% 4.39% 4.35%

Our 60-day delinquency accounts have remained generally constant at less than 4.7% of
the entire finance receivable portfolio. However, in September of 2001, we experienced an
increase in delinquencies due to the issues surrounding the September 11" tragedy. In an effort
to be sensitive to the activities of the military, we limited collection efforts during the remainder
of the month of September. As a result, we ended that year with a delinquency amount in excess
of our historical rates.

Credit Loss Experience and Provision for Credit Losses

Our provisions for credit losses are charged to income in amounts sufficient to maintain
our allowance for credit losses at a level considered adequate to cover the probable losses
inherent in our existing finance receivable portfolio. Historical credit loss experience,
delinquency of finance receivables, the value of underlying collateral, current economic
conditions, current military activities and management’s judgment are factors used in assessing
the overall adequacy of the allowance and corresponding provision for credit losses.
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Our charge-off policy is based on an account-by-account review of delinquent
receivables on a recency basis. Finance receivables are charged-off when management deems
them to be uncollectable or they become 270 days past due. Our primary source of charge-offs is
when a customer leaves the military prior to repaying the finance receivable. Our second
greatest source of loss 1s when a customer declares bankruptcy.

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Direct loans:
Loans charged-off...........cooovvnnnns $ 9555 § 8752 $ 7,791 $ 6,683 $ 4,802
Less recoveries. ..o, 869 1,080 965 693 671
Net charge-offs ..o S 868 S 7672 $ 6826 $ 5990 $ 4,131
Average monthly balance
outstanding (1) $130,223 $108,939 §95,780 $82,114 565,627
Percentage of net charge-offs to average
monthly balance outstanding............... 6.67% 7.04% 7.13% 7.29% 6.30%

(1) Averages are computed using month-end balances during the years presented.

Under our retail merchant reserve arrangements, we withhold a percentage (usually
between five and ten percent) of the principal amount of the retail installment contract
purchased. The amounts withheld from a particular retail merchant are recorded in a specific
reserve account. Any losses incurred on the retail installment contracts purchased from that
retail merchant are charged against its specific reserve account. Upon the retail merchant’s
request, and no more often than annualily, we pay the retail merchant the amount by which its
specific reserve account exceeds 15% of the aggregate outstanding balance on all retail
installment contracts purchased from them, less losses we have sustained, or reasonably could
sustain, due to debtor defauits, collection expenses, delinquencies and breaches of our agreement
with the retail merchant. Our allowance for credit losses is charged only to the extent that the
loss on a retail installment contract exceeds the originating retail merchant’s specific reserve
account at the time of the loss.

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Retail installment contracts:

Contracts charged-off..........c.c.coovees § 190 § 221 $ 338 § 253 § 264
Less recoveries.........ocicinnninne, 82 217 220 264 183
Net charge-offs ..o $ 108 S 4 § 118 & (dn & 8i
Average monthly balance
outstanding (1) $19,506  $22,802 $23,121 $18,277  $18,446
Percentage of net charge-offs to average
monthly balance outstanding.......... 0.55% 0.02% 0.51%  (.06)% 0.44%

(1) Averages are computed using month-end balances during the years presented.
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The following table sets forth our allowance for credit losses:

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Average finance receivables (1)....  $149,729 $131,741 $118,901 $100,391 $84,073
Provision for credit losses............. $ 10,594 $ 8,264 $ 7,476 $ 6,577 $ 4,617
Net charge-offs.........cccoeinicniinn $ 8,794 $ 7,676 $ 6,944 $ 5,980 $ 4,212
Net charge-offs as a percentage of

average finance receivables....... 5.87% 5.83% 5.84% 5.96% 5.01%
Allowance for credit losses............ $ 6,221 $ 4,421 $ 3,833 $ 3,301 $ 2,704
Allowance as a percentage of 4.15% 3.36% 3.22% 3.29% 3.22%

average finance receivables.......

(1) Averages are computed using month-end balances during the years presented.

The following table sets forth changes in the components of our allowance for credit
losses:

As of, and For the Years Ended, September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Balance beginning of period ......... $4,421 $3,833 $3,301 $2,704 $2,299
Additions:

Provision for credit losses ........... 10,594 8,264 7,476 6,577 4,617

Recoveries.......ocooveevviivviineeennin, 951 1,296 1,185 956 854
Deductions:

Charge-offs....c..cccvreiiieireiceeiicnns (9,745)  (8,973) (8,129) (6,936) (5,066)
Balance end of period ................... $6,221 $4,420 $3,833  $3,301 $2,704

Nonearning Assets

Accrual of interest income is suspended when a payment has not been received for 60
days or more, and the interest due exceeds an amount equal to 60 days of interest charges. The
accrual is resumed when a full payment (95% or more of the contracted payment amount) is
received.

Nonearning assets represent those finance receivables on which both the accrual of
interest income has been suspended and for which no payment of principal or interest has been
received for more than 60 days. Noneaming assets at September 30, 2002 decreased to
$5.58 million from $6.37 million at September 30, 2001, a decrease of $790,000 or 12.4%.
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Loan Origination

Our loan origination is the most important factor in determining our future revenues. Our
loan origination in fiscal 2002 increased to $191.9 million from $158.6 million in fiscal 2001, an
increase of $33.3 million or 21.0%. This increase is the result of an 8.6% increase in the number
of new loans as well as an 11.4% increase in the average loan size, due primarily to the increased
creditworthiness of an increasing number of customers with a higher military rank. This increase
was primarily the result of an increase in direct loans, which experienced a $31.2 million, or
21.6%, increase from fiscal 2001, due in large part to increased Internet loan originations.

For the Years Ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands, except for average note amounts)

Total Loan Origination:

Gross balance.........coooveeen, $191,931 $158,594 $158,220 §$136,457 §111,713
Number of notes ................... 67,483 62,123 63,123 56,570 48,620
Average note amount............ $ 2844 § 2553 § 2,507 § 2412 § 27298
Direct Loans:

Gross balance...........ocooevvne. $175,932 $144,693 $134,870 $117,064 $97,818
Number of notes ..o 62,532 57,576 54,558 48,724 43,255
Average note amount............ $ 2813 § 2513 §$§ 2472 § 2403 § 2,261
Retail Installment Contracts:

Gross balance...........cooeeeuee. $15999 § 13,901 $ 23,350 §$ 19,393  §$ 13,895
Number of notes ................... 4,951 4,547 8,565 7,846 5,365
Average note amount............ $ 3231 § 3057 $ 2726 $§ 2,472 § 2,590

Liquidity and Capital Resources

A relatively high ratio of borrowings to invested capital is customary in consumer finance
activities due to the quality and term of the assets employed. Our principal use of cash is to
make new loans and purchase retail installment contracts. We use our borrowings to fund the
difference between the cash used to make new loans and purchase retail installment contracts,
and the cash generated from loan repayments. This amount is generally our cash used in
investing activities. Cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2002 was approximately $31.2
million, compared to $18.0 million in fiscal 2001.

Investing activities in fiscal 2002 were primarily funded by $16.3 million from operating
activities and $13.6 million from financing activities. Financing activities consist of borrowings
under our senior lending agreement, borrowings under an unsecured revolving credit line from
our parent, Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc., and sales of junior subordinated debentures.
Information about the length to maturity of our debt may be found under Note 3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The revolving credit line from our parent consists of various
borrowings at 2% above the prime rate. See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for general remunerations.
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Senior Indebtedness

Our senior lending agreement is a common loan agreement with a group of banks.
Currently, 11 banks are parties to this agreement. The senior lending agreement is an
uncommitted facility which permits any bank to elect not to participate in any future fundings at
any time without penalty. Prior to fiscal 2002, two banks elected not to extend further credit to
us in the future.

Our senior lending agreement gives us access to a revolving credit line, amortizing notes
and single pay term notes. As of September 30, 2002, the outstanding balance under the
revolving credit loan was $10.8 million floating at prime rate, or 4.75%. The revolving credit
line is payable upon demand in 12 equal monthly payments of principal and monthly payments
of interest on the outstanding principal on the tenth day of each month. As of September 30,
2002, the outstanding balance of the amortizing notes was $93.9 million, with interest rates fixed
at 270 basis points over the ninety day moving average of like-term Treasury notes when issued.

All amortizing notes have terms not to exceed 48 months, payable in equal monthly principal and

interest payments. As of September 30, 2002, we had 225 amortizing notes outstanding with a
weighted average maturity of 34.4 months and a weighted average interest rate of 7.37%. The
rates and terms of single pay term notes are negotiable. These notes typically have a term of 36
to 48 months and require interest only payments until maturity. As of September 30, 2002, we
had 4 single pay term notes outstanding in an aggregate amount of $4.0 million, with a weighted
average maturity of 10.48 months and a weighted average interest rate of 8.59%. Interest on all
borrowings under our senior lending agreement is payable monthly.

Substantially all of our assets secure this bank debt. The senior lending agreement limits,
among other things, our ability to (1) incur additional debt from the banks that are party to the
agreement beyond that allowed by specific financial ratios and tests, (2) pay dividends, (3) make
certain other restricted payments, (4) consummate certain asset sales and dispositions, (5) merge
or consolidate with any other person, and (6) incur additional debt for borrowed money.

The senior lending agreement also contains certain restrictive covenants that require us,
among other things, to maintain specific financial ratios and to satisfy certain financial tests. In
part, these include: (a) an Allowance for Credit Losses (as defined in the senior lending
agreement) equal to or greater than the Allowance for Credit Losses shown on our audited
financial statements as of the end of our most recent fiscal year and at no time less than 2% of
our net receivables, (b) a Senior Indebtedness to Tangible Net Worth (as defined in the senior
lending agreement) as of the end of each quarter not greater than 4.75 to 1.00, and (c) Senior
Indebtedness to Net Receivable Ratio (as defined in the senior lending agreement) as of the end
of each quarter of no more than 80%. We are also required to maintain a Consolidated Total
Required Capital (as defined in the senior lending agreement) of at least $9 million plus 50% of
the cumulative positive net income earned during each of our fiscal years ending after
September 30, 1999. The breach of any of these covenants or other terms of the senior lending
agreement could result in a default under the senior lending agreement, in which event the
lenders could seek to declare all amounts outstanding under the senior lending agreement,
together with accrued and unpaid interest, to be immediately due and payable. As of
December 31, 2002, we were in compliance with all loan covenants.

40

47



- R

- - l- -

e

We also have a revolving line of credit, payable on demand, from our parent, Pioneer
Financial Industries, Inc. Interest on this facility accrues at the prime rate plus 2%. At
September 30, 2002, there was $1.9 million outstanding under this credit facility with an interest
rate of 6.75%.

As of September 30, 2002, the total borrowings and availability under our senior lending
agreement and our revolving line from our parent, consisted of:

As of September 30,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands)

Revolving Credit Line (1):

Total facility......c.cccoriieniinnne $ 27,000 $ 23,000 $ 22,000 $ 20,000 $22,000
Balance at end of year .......... $ 12,718 $ 12,310 $ 10,851 $ 9,138 $ 8,158
Available credit..........c.oooee. $ 14,282 $ 10,690 $ 11,149 $10,862 $13,842
Term Notes (2):

Total facility.....c.ccvvccenncnenne $125,470 $123,432 $ 99,755 $90,730 $76,500
Balance at end of year............ $ 97,925 $ 83,847 $ 80,466 $ 64,561 $52,277
Available credit.......ccooovvinnn $ 27,545 $ 39,585 $ 19,289 $ 26,169 $24,223

Total Revolving and Term
Notes (1)(2):

Total facility......c...ccoovieiinnn. $152,470 $146,432 $121,755 $110,730 $98,500
Balance at end of year............ $110,643 $ 96,157 $ 91,317 $ 73,699 $60,435
Available credit........... $ 41,827 $ 50,275 § 30,438 $ 37,031 $38,065

Percent utilization 72.60% 65.70% 75.00% 66.60% 61.40%

(1) Includes revolving credit line from our parent.
(2) Includes amortizing notes and single payment term notes.

Outstanding Subordinated Debt

Prior to November 1, 2002, we also funded our liquidity needs through the sale of
unsecured junior subordinated debentures. We have not sold any junior subordinated debentures
since November 1, 2002. These debentures have varying fixed interest rates and are subordinate
to all senior indebtedness. We can redeem these debentures at any time upon 30 days written
notice. As of September 30, 2002, we had issued approximately $21.4 million of these junior
subordinated debentures at a weighted average interest rate of 9.44%.

The sale of unsecured junior subordinated debentures provides us with additional
liquidity and capital resources. Issuing debentures increases our tangible net worth which allows
us to borrow larger amounts under our senior lending agreement. To finance growth in our
finance receivables portfolio, we intend to borrow additional funds under our senior lending
agreement from time to time as we sell additional debentures.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Our profitability and financial performance are sensitive to changes in the U.S. Treasury
yields and the spread between the effective rate of interest we receive on customer loans and the
interest rates we pay on our borrowings. Our finance income is generally not sensitive to
fluctuations in market interest rates. The primary exposure that we face is changes in interest
rates on our borrowings. A substantial and sustained increase in market interest rates could
adversely affect our growth and profitability. The overall objective of our interest rate risk
management strategy is to mitigate the effects of changing interest rates on our interest expense
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through the utilization of short term variable rate debt and medium and long term fixed rate debit.
We have not entered into any derivative instruments to manage our interest rate risk.

The amounts set forth below show the impact on earnings of changes in interest rates on
our variable rate debt as of the time it is scheduled to adjust, and upon the debt that 1s scheduled
to mature during 2003, assuming adjustments to, or refinancing at, rates available to us at
September 30, 2002. Changes in our interest expense for various possible fluctuations in the
interest rates of our debt for fiscal 2003 may be estimated as follows:

Decrease/increase 2% -1% 0% +1% +2%
Revolving credit line........ $(215,520) $(107,760) $0 $107,760 $215,520
Amortizing and
single pay term notes ....... (1,309,602) (919,840)  (530,077)  (140,315) 249,448
Junior subordinated debt.. (34,542) (10,554) 13,433 37,420 61,408
Total impact on
interest expense............. $(1,559,664) $(1,038,154) $(516,644) $4,865 $526,376

The following table shows our contractual obligations and commitments as of
September 30, 2002.

Payments Due By Period
Contractual Less than After
Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years S years
Long-Term Debt ........... $119,321,843  $41,374,998 $68,697,322 $3,117,312 $6,132,211
Operating Leases........... 3,777,000 846,736 1,654,462 1,020,642 255,160
Total Contractual Cash
Obligations................. $123,098,843  $42,221,734 §$70,351,784 $4,137,954 $6,387,371
Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Total
Other Commercial Amounts Less than
Commitments Committed 1 year 1-3 years 4-Syears Over 5 vears
Lines of Credit .............. $12,717,831  $12,717,831(1) --- ---

(D Includes $1,941,831 owed to our parent.

Impact of Inflation and General Economic Conditions

Although inflation has not had a material adverse effect on our financial condition or
results of operations, increases in the inflation rate generally are associated with increased
interest rates. A significant and sustained increase in interest rates could unfavorably impact our
profitability by reducing the interest rate spread between the rate of interest we receive on our
customer loans and interest rates we pay under our senior lending agreement and debentures.
Inflation also may negatively affect our operating expenses.
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Recent and Proposed Accounting Pronouncements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (SFAS No. 144), Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, was issued in
August 2001 and supersedes Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121. SFAS No.
144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets.
We adopted SFAS No. 144 as of October 1, 2002, and the provisions of this statement have not
had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

We also adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS No. 142),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which establishes financial accounting and reporting for
acquired goodwill and other intangible assets and supersedes Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets”. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets are no longer amortized but are reviewed at least annually for impairment. We
adopted SFAS No. 142 as of October 1, 2002, and the provisions of this statement have not had a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements. '

Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies are in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and conform to general practices within the
finance company industry. The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Certain critical accounting policies require our management to make estimates and
assumptions, which affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. As a
result, changes in these estimates and assumptions could significantly affect our financial
position and results of operations. We consider our policies regarding the allowance and
resulting provision for loan losses to be our most critical accounting policy due to the significant
degree of management judgment that is applied in establishing the allowance and the provision.
We have developed policies and procedures for assessing the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses, which take into consideration various assumptions and estimates with respect to the loan
portfolio. Historical credit loss experience, delinquency of finance receivables, the value of
underlying collateral, current economic conditions, current military activities and management’s
judgment are factors used in assessing the overall adequacy of the allowance and corresponding
provision for credit losses. The assumptions and estimates used by management may be
significantly affected in the future by changes in economic conditions, among other factors. See
“ - Credit Loss Experience and Provision for Credit Losses."
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MANAGEMENT
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regarding each person who serves as a director
or executive officer of Pioneer as of January 31, 2003.

Name Age Position
William D. Sullivan 65 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and sole
Director
Thomas H. Holcom, Jr. 56 President and Chief Operating Officer
Randall J. Opliger 45 - Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

William D. Sullivan is the Chairman and sole member of our board of directors. He has
been a director since 1957. Mr. Sullivan has been associated with Pioneer since 1957 and has
served in all levels of branch office operations as well as all management and executive
capacities. He has been our Chief Executive Officer since 1963. Mr. Sullivan was one of the
founders of a Kansas City bank which merged with a multi-billion doliar bank holding company.
After 20 years of service, he retired in 1987 as a member of their Kansas City regional bank

“executive committee and its board of directors. In addition, he has served as President of the

National Second Mortgage Association, Kansas Association of Financial Services and the
Consumer Credit Counseling Service. He is also former officer of the Missouri Financial
Services Association and the Better Business Bureau.

Thomas H. Holcom, Jr. is our President and Chief Operating Officer. He has been
associated with Pioneer since 1985 when he joined us as our Chief Financial Officer. He was
named President and Chief Operating Officer in September, 2000. Prior to joining us,

Mr. Holcom spent 19 years with a regional bank with assets over $1 billion and was Executive
Vice President of that bank. His career has encompassed strategic planning, corporate finance,
consulting, investments, risk management and marketing. He served on the boards of numerous
professional and civic organizations.

Randall J. Opliger joined us as our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary in
April, 2000. From 1997 to March, 2000, Mr. Opliger held the chief financial officer position
with Propeller Creative Services, Inc., an interactive web development company. Mr. Opliger
received his CPA designation in 1982, and his prior experience includes both public accounting
and other executive level responsibilities, including serving as a chief financial officer of a
consumer finance company of a similar size.

Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth all cash compensation we paid during our last fiscal year to
our Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary.
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Capacities in Which Aggregate
Identity of Group Remuneration was Received Remuneration
Executive Officers Chief Executive Officer, President, $1,441,777
(Three Persons) Chief Operating Officer, Chief

Financial Officer, Treasurer and

Secretary

Options Grants
We have not granted any options or equity-based incentives.
Employment Agreement

We have entered into an employment agreement with Randall J. Opliger pursuant to
which we have agreed to pay him a base salary of $90,000 per year. The employment agreement
may be terminated by either party upon five days notice, except that we may terminate the
agreement without notice for cause or if Mr. Opliger violates any provision of the agreement.
The agreement contains customary non-disclosure provisions and prohibits Mr. Opliger from
competing with us or soliciting any of our customers or employees for two years following his
termination. In addition, both parties agree to arbitrate most disputes arising under the
agreement.

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of January 31, 2003, Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc., a Nevada corporation, owns
17,136 shares of our common stock, which constitutes all of our issued and outstanding shares of
common stock. We have no other class of capital stock authorized. The address of Pioneer
Financial Industries is 955 South Virginia Avenue, Suite 116, Reno, Nevada 89502. Pioneer
Financial Industries has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of our
common stock set forth above. Neither our director nor any of our executive officers own any
shares of our common stock.

As of January 31, 2003, as the trustee or beneficiary of various trusts, William D.
Sullivan had sole or shared voting or investment power over 159,420 shares, or 88.61%, of the
common stock of Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. Upon the death of Mr. Sullivan, the trust
department of a commercial bank will exercise the voting rights over these shares.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

We are a privately held company. Our sole shareholder, Pioneer Financial Industries,
Inc., has the flexibility of structuring our operating activity so as to optimize our ability to
borrow capital for use in our lending activities and to reduce our exposure to the risks of
developing new products and services. As a result, certain expenditures and assets related to our
operations have been paid for or financed by Pioneer Financial Industries and its subsidiaries.
We then lease or purchase these products and services from them.

At September 30, 2002, we had borrowed $1,941,831 from Pioneer Financial Industries,
Inc. pursuant to an unsecured revolving line of credit. Interest on this facility accrues at the
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prime rate plus 2%. During fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, we made interest payments on this debt
in the amount of $132,856, $170,109 and $12,572, respectively.

During fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, we paid $734,596, $726,768 and $701,162,
respectively, to Pioneer Financial Industries and its subsidiaries for strategic planning and
professional services, including (i) $187,596, $172,728 and $-0-, respectively, paid to Pioneer
Licensing Services, Inc., to acquire, develop and maintain intellectual property assets employed
by us, including names, trademarks, websites, logos, branding rights and software, and to license
those intellectual property rights to us as needed; and (i1) $120,000, $118,680 and $219,000,
respectively, paid to Penwith Corporation for strategic planning and professional services,
including product identification and procurement.

We and Armed Services Benefits, a subsidiary of our parent Pioneer Financial Industries,
each receive a portion of the commissions on health discount cards we sell. During fiscal 2002,
2001 and 2000, their commissions totaled $392,619, $974 and $-0-, respectively.

Pioneer Sales Services, GmbH, a German subsidiary of Pioneer Financial Industries,
receives a fee for each loan customer it refers to one of our lending subsidiaries. During fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, we paid this entity $556,651, $630,522 and $578,767, respectively, which
approximates its cost of identifying and making these referrals.

Midstate Leasing, LLC, an entity owned by William D. Sullivan and his children, leases
certain office equipment, signs and automobiles to several of our subsidiaries. During fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, payments under these leases totaled $226,929, $107,647 and $107,252,
respectively.

We rent a building from Westport Investment Corp., a subsidiary of Pioneer Financial
Industries. During fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, we made lease payments to Westport Investment
Corp. in the amount of $139,500, $139,200 and $126,250, respectively.

Our customers execute a master credit agreement in connection with direct loans. The
extended effectiveness of this agreement helps expedite the extension of subsequent loans to the
customer. William D. Sullivan developed and copyrighted the form of this agreement, and we
license it from him in return for a royalty. In fiscal 2002, the royalty averaged $2.29 per loan,
and Mr. Sullivan received a total of $143,263 in royalty payments. In fiscal 2001 and 2002, the
royalty average $2.14 and $1.92 per loan, respectively, with Mr. Sullivan receiving a total of
$123,180 and $104,802 in royalty payments, respectively.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBENTURES

The debentures subject to this rescission offer have been issued or renewed by us from
time to time since January 1, 2002. The exact terms and conditions of the debentures are set
forth on the actual debenture certificate. We, however, have summarized certain terms of the
debentures below. The summary is not complete and you should refer to your debenture
certificate for an exact description of the terms and conditions.
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General

The debentures are our unsecured obligations and are subordinate to all of our senior
indebtedness. Generally, the debentures have a term of not less than 12 months and not more
than 120 months as determined by us and the holder at the time the debenture is purchased.
There is no sinking fund or similar provision for payment of the debentures at maturity. We pay
maturing debentures from our general funds.

The debentures mature on the date specified on the debenture. The debentures subject to
this rescission offer will not automatically renew upon maturity. We may redeem the debentures
prior to their maturity, but the holders have no right to redeem the debentures prior to maturity.

Subordination

The payment of principal and interest on the debentures is subordinated to all senior
indebtedness, as defined below. Upon the maturity of the senior indebtedness, by lapse of time,
acceleration or otherwise, the holders of the senior indebtedness will be entitled to receive
payment in full before the holders of the debentures are entitled to receive any payment. There is
no limit on the amount of additional indebtedness, including senior indebtedness, which we or
any of our subsidiaries may create, incur, assume or guarantee. As a result of these
subordination provisions, upon default, holders of the debentures may recover less than holders
of our senior indebtedness.

The debenture defines “senior indebtedness” as all Superior Indebtedness (which means
all indebtedness for money borrowed which is not expressed to be subordinate or junior to any
other indebtedness); Subordinated Indebtedness (which means all indebtedness for borrowed
money which is expressed to be subordinate and junior to all Superior Indebtedness, but not to
any other indebtedness); and Series A Subordinated Indebtedness (which means all indebtedness
for borrowed money which is expressed to be subordinate and junior to all Superior Indebtedness
and Subordinated Indebtedness, but not to any other indebtedness) outstanding at the time the
debenture is issued or thereafter incurred.

The debentures rank equally with each other, and with our other outstanding junior
subordinated debentures, as to payment rights.

Interest

The interest rates at which the debentures are issued from time to time are based on
market conditions, our financial requirements, the principal amount of the debenture and the
term to maturity chosen by the purchaser.

We pay or compound interest on the debentures annually, at the election of the debenture
holder. Holders of debentures in principal amounts of $10,000 or more may, in return for a %
percent reduction in the interest rate on the debenture, elect to receive monthly interest payments.

Interest rates on debentures in a principal amount in excess of $100,000 are negotiated on
a case by case basis based upon our financial requirements, the term of the investment and
prevailing interest rates.
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Redemption at the Option of Pioneer

We may, at our option, redeem any or all of the debentures on at least 30 days written
notice to each holder at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debentures being
redeemed, plus accrued interest on a daily basis to the redemption date. We may select
debentures for redemption in our sole discrétion.

Events of Default

An event of default is defined in the debentures as being a default in payment of principal
or any installment of interest on the debentures which has not been cured following 10 days
written notice from the debenture holder; the cessation of business or certain events of
bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization. If an event of default occurs, the indebtedness
represented by the debenture does not accelerate. A debenture holder’s remedy is to sue for
payments not made and to obtain from us the names and addresses of all other registered
debenture holders.

Transfer
A debenture is only transferable on our books and records.

EXPERTS

Our financial statements included in this offering circular for the years ended
September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been audited by BKD, LLP, independent certified
public accountants, as indicated in their report with respect thereto, and are included herein in
reliance upon the authority of such firm as experts in giving said report.
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Independent Accountants' Report

Board of Directors

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
Kansas City, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pioneer Financial Services,
Inc., a Missouri corporation (the “Company”), as of September 30, 2002 and 2001, and the
related consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended September 30, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. as of September 30,
2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended September 30, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

BKD, LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
November 18, 2002
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

Cash
Other investments

Finance receivables:
Direct receivables
Retail installment contracts
Finance receivables before allowance for
credit losses
Allowance for credit losses
Net finance receivables

Furniture and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes

Prepaid and other assets

Total assets

ASSETS

2002

§ 1,150,863
1,868,509

139,663,612
19,347,567
159,011,179

(6,220,869)
152,790,310

1,577,950
2,331,000
278,154

$159,996,786

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2001

$ 2,428,899
1,733,147

117,097,715
20,215,935
137,313,650

(4,420,869)
132,892,781

2,160,115
1,612,100
500,742

$141,327,784

2%



LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

Revolving credit line — banks
Revolving credit line — affiliate
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Amortizing and single pay term notes
Junior subordinated notes

Total liabilities

Stockholder’s equity:
Common stock, $100 par value (authorized
20,000 shares; issued and outstanding 17,136
shares)
Retained earnings

Total stockholder’s equity

Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2002
$ 10,776,000
1,941,831
1,240,629
9,396,204
97,925,405
21,396,438

142,676,507
1,713,600

15,606,679
17,320,279

$159,996,786

2001
$ 10,470,500
1,839,521
700,923
8,636,160
83,846,763
20,972,820

126,466,687
1,713,600

13,147,497
14,861,097

$141,327,784
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Revenue
Finance income
Insurance premiums
and commissions
Other income, fees
and commissions
Total revenue

Provision for credit losses
Interest expense

Net revenue
Operating expenses

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income

Net income per share

2002 2001

$45,883,890 $38,964,775
4,651,960 4,561,416
1,754,713 1,595,834
52,290,563 45,122,025
10,593,540 8,264,275
9,598,667 9,454,989
32,098,356 27,402,761
27,589,252 24,052,341
4,509,104 3,350,420
1,645,000 1,210,000

§$ 2,864,104 §$ 2,140,420
$ 167.14 $§ 124091

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2000

$34,669,828
4,467,392
1,313,485
40,450,705

7,476,479
8,334,493

24,639,733
21,727,370

2,912,363

1,055,000

$1,857,363

$ 108.39
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Retained earnings, beginning of year

Net income

Dividends paid ($23.63; $20.39
and $16.05 per share)

Retained earnings, end of year

2002

$13,147,497

2,864,104

(404,922)

$15,606,679

F-6

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2001
$11,356,480

2,140,420

(349,403)

$13,147497

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2000
$ 9,774,150

1,857,363

(275,033)

$11,356,480



PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES;, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income
Items not requiring (providing) cash:
Provision for credit losses on
Finance receivables
Depreciation
Compounded interest added to
junior subordinated debt
Deferred income taxes
Loss on disposal/donation of equipment
Changes in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Other
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Loans originated

Loans purchased

Loans repaid

Capital expenditures

Net purchases of investments

Net cash used in investing

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net borrowing of short-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt
Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year
Cash, End of Year
Additional Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

2002

§ 2,804,104

10,593,540
1,165,973

1,111,331
(718,900)
16,845

1,066,145
222,588

16,321,626

(123,772,782)
(15,998,887)
109,280,600
(600,653)

(135,362)
(31,227,084)

641,414
52,852,841

(39,461,911)
(404,922)

13,627,422

— o= T
(1,278,036)

2,428,899
$ 1,150,863

§ 8,462,313
$ 3,047,633

2001

§ 2,140,420

8,264,275
863,190

1,017,212
(229,400)
38,174

175,243
(320,610)

11,948,504

(102,097,953)
(13,901,139)
98,755,408
(898,809)
90,117

(18,052,376)

2,145,100
33,995,980

(29,864,147)
(349,403)

5,927,530
(176,342)

2,605,241
$ 2,428,899

3 8371,853
§ 1,265,830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2000

$ 1,857,363

7,476,479
716,373

928,024
(219,400)
223,978

959,039
144,928

12,086,784

(97,016,152)
(23,349,662)
93,610,325
(912,822)

(661,612)
(28,329,923)

937,514
40,220,110

(23,947,169)
(275,033)

16,935,422
692,283

1,912,958
§ 2,605,241

§ 7,350,873
$ 1,594,190



PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation (the “Company”), is a specialized
financial services company. The Company’s revenues are primarily earned from the making of
direct loans and the purchasing of retail installment contracts of active duty or retired career
military personnel and Department of Defense employees. The Company also earns revenues

from commissions on premiums for credit property, life and accident and health insurance placed

with non-related insurance companies and from premiums earned on the reinsurance of credit
accident and health insurance. Additionally, the Company earns commissions from the sale of
ancillary products and services.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pioneer Financial
Services, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc.) and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated from the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments

Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposit, amounting to $355,873 and $537,199,
and certain debt securities, amounting to $1,512,636 and $1,195,948 at September 30, 2002 and
2001, respectively. These debt securities, which the Company has the positive intent and ability
to hold until maturity, are classified as held-to-maturity and valued at historical cost, adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts computed by the level-yield method. Of
the held-to-maturity debt securities at September 30, 2002, $212,562 matures in less than one
year, $1,200,074 matures between two and five years and $100,000 matures between six and ten
years. The recorded value of these investments approximates fair value at September 30, 2002
and 2001. Investments aggregating $1,768,509 and $1,633,147 at September 30, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, were required as statutory reserves and are on deposit with regulatory authorities or
maintained in trust accounts.

Revenue Recognition

Interest income on finance receivables is recognized using a method which approximates the
level yield method. Late charges are credited directly to income when received. Accrual of
interest income on finance receivables is suspended when a payment has not been received for
60 days or more, and the interest due exceeds an amount equal to 60 days of interest charges.
The accrual is resumed when a full payment (95% or more of the contracted payment amount) is
received.

Credit property, life, accident and health insurance premiums are placed with non-related
insurance companies. Premiums on such insurance are remitted to the insurance companies, net
of applicable advance commissions, which commissions are credited to income ratably over
policy terms. Retrospective insurance commissions, if any, on this insurance are taken into
income only as received. Pioneer Military Insurance Company, a subsidiary of the Company,
reinsures from a non-affiliated insurance company risks on the credit accident and health
insurance policies written on loans to customers of the Company.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is maintained and estimated by management in an amount
sufficient to cover future losses. The Company conducts a loan-by-loan review of delinquent
accounts, and its policy requires charge-off before an account exceeds 270 days since the last full
payment.



PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are carried at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful life of each
asset. At September 30, 2002 and 2001, accumulated depreciation was $4,076,860 and
$3,351,857 respectively.

Net Income per Share

Net income per share is computed based upon the weighted-average common shares outstanding
of 17,136 during each year. There are no potentially dilutive securities issued and outstanding.

Income Taxes

The Company files its federal income tax return on a consolidated basis with its parent company,
Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc., and other affiliates. The provision for income taxes in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income represents the Company’s share of the
consolidated income tax provision on a separate return basis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of finance receivables and borrowings were calculated by discounting expected
cash flows, which method involves significant judgments by management and uncertainties.
Because no market exists for these financial instruments and because management does not
intend to sell these financial instruments, the Company does not know whether the fair values
represent values at which the respective financial instruments could be sold individually or in the
aggregate. The carrying amounts for cash, accounts payable and current liabilities are a
reasonable estimate of their fair values. The fair value of other investments is based on quoted
market prices. Additional information about the fair value of financial instruments is contained
in Notes 2, 3 and 4.

NOTE 2: FINANCE RECEIVABLES
Loan Portfolio

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, finance receivables totaled $159,011,179 and $137,313,650
respectively; all receivables originated from direct loans and retail installment contracts. Direct
loans originated in 2002 and 2001 averaged $2,813 and $2,513 with a weighted maturity of 24.2
and 23.1 months, respectively, while retail installment contracts averaged $3,231 and $3,057
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with a weighted maturity of 30.1 and 28.9 months, respectively. Approximately 95 percent and
94 percent of finance receivables were paid electronically via the Government Allotment System
or through the National Automated Clearinghouse Association for the years ended September 30,
2002 and 2001. On September 30, 2002 and 2001, the accrual of interest income had been
suspended on $5,579,681 and $6,369,081 of loans, respectively.

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, the fair value of notes receivable approximates book value.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Changes in the allowance for credit losses are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,420,869 $ 3,832,868 $ 3,300,868
Provision for credit losses 10,593,540 8,264,275 7,476,479
Loans charged off (9,744,584) (8,972,679) (8,129,298)
Recoveries 951,044 1,296,405 1,184,819
Balance, end of year $ 6,220,869 $ 4,420,869 $ 3,832,868
F-11
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

NOTE 3: LONG-TERM DEBT

Scheduled maturities of indebtedness during the fiscal years subsequent to September 30, 2002
are as follows:

Senior Subordinated

Total Indebtedness Indebtedness

2003 $ 41,374,998 $ 38,976,255 $ 2,398,743
2004 33,044,689 30,168,971 2,875,718
2005 24,935,671 20,074,642 4,861,029
2006 10,716,962 8,611,626 2,105,336
2007 1,391,693 93,911 1,297,782
2008 1,725,619 1,725,619
2009 1,593,667 1,593,667
2010 1,401,136 1,401,136
2011 1,826,213 1,826,213
2012 and thereafter 1,311,195 1,311,195
Total 2002 $ 119,321,843 $ 97,925,405 $ 21,396,438
Total 2001 $ 104,819,583 $ 83,846,763 $720,972,820

The senior notes are fixed-term and fixed-rate notes. There were 229 and 215 notes outstanding
at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These notes had a weighted average interest rate
based on balances at September 30, 2002 and 2001 of 7.42 percent and 8.18 percent,
respectively. Maturities in 2003 include $36,976,255 for amortizing note payments and
$2,000,000 for single pay term note payments.
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

NOTE 3: LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

The junior subordinated indebtedness consists of debentures, which are non-callable before
maturity by the holders, issued at various rates and mature one to ten years from date of issue.
The Company, at its option, may call at any time and retire any or all of the debentures upon 30
days written notice. The average debenture size was $22,035 and $21,379, with a weighted
interest rate of 9.44 and 9.39 percent at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
retainment percentages for the debentures maturing in 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Renewed Total
Automatically Reinvested Retained Amount Due  Percentage
2002 $468,144 $260,923 $729,067 $2,215,641 32.91%
2001 $584,522 $273,852 $858,374 $1,563,715 54.89%

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, the fair value of long-term debt approximates book value.

The Company has entered into a Senior Lending Agreement with its banks which will expire on
March 31, 2003. Substantially all of the Company’s assets secure this bank debt. The senior
lending agreement limits, among other things, the Company’s ability to (1) incur additional debt
from the banks that are party to the agreement beyond that allowed by specific financial ratios
and tests, (2) pay dividends, (3) make certain other restricted payments (4) consummate certain
asset sales and dispositions, (5) merge or consolidate with any other person, and (6) incur
additional debt for borrowed money. At September 30, 2002, the minimum stockholder’s equity
required under the agreement was $12,431,000. The Company’s outstanding line of credit
balance, with interest at prime rate (4.75% at September 30, 2002), was $10,776,000 and
$10,470,500; the unused line of credit balance was $14,224,000 and $10,529,500 as of
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, the fair value of senior notes approximates book value.
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001
NOTE 4: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
consists of the following:

2002 2001 2000
Taxes currently payable $ 2,363,900 $ 1,439,400 $ 1,274,400
Deferred income taxes (718,900) (229,400) (219,400)
Total provision $ 1,645,000 $ 1,210,000 $ 1,055,000

The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the September 30,
2002 and 2001 consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

2002 2001
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Allowance for credit losses $ 2,239,500 $ 1,679,900
Accumulated depreciation 43,500 (76,400)
Other ~ 48,000 8,600
Net deferred tax asset $ 2,331,000 $ 1,612,100

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the normal federal statutory rate of 34
percent to the provision included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income is
shown below:

2002 2001 2000
Provision for federal income taxes at
statutory rate $ 1,533,095 $ 1,139,143 $ 990,203
Increase (decrease) in income tax
provision resulting from:
State and local income taxes, net of
federal tax benefit 39,232 38,900 59,370
Nondeductible expenses 72,673 31,957 5,427
Provision for income taxes $ 1,645,000 $ 1,210,000 $ 1,055,000
F-14
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001

NOTE 5: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated financial statements include general and
administrative charges from the Company’s parent, Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. Such
charges amounted to $734,596, $726,768, and $701,162 for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. has an unsecured revolving credit line due on demand with the
Company and advances various amounts at market rates of interest during the fiscal year with

- $1,941,831 and $1,839,521, due on demand at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Interest expense on the credit line during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and
2000 was $132,856, $170,109 and $12,572, respectively.

NOTE 6: LEASE OBLIGATIONS

At September 30, 2002, the Company was obligated under non-cancelable operating leases
covering its facilities and certain equipment expiring through 2009. Aggregate minimum annual
rentals payable are summarized as follows:

Year Ending September 30:

2003 $846,736
2004 633,820
2005 510,321
2006 510,321
2007 510,321
Thereafter 765,481

The minimum rentals shown above do not include rents payable on a “month-to-month” or
“cancelable” basis. Rental expense charged against operations totaled $1,604,230, $1,168,263,
and $834,758 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively.
Included in these amounts were $139,500 in 2002, $139,200 in 2001, and $126,250 in 2000 paid
to an affiliated company.

NOTE 7: PROFIT-SHARING PLAN

The Company participates in a profit-sharing plan which covers substantially all employees who
are 21 years of age and have been employed by the Company for one year. The Company
contributes an amount to the plan each year that is determined by the board of directors. The
Company also matched 33.3 percent of participant 401(k) deferrals up to a maximum of 5
percent of total compensation. Participant interests are vested after three years of service.



Contributions to the plan were $656,022, $279,118, and $385,465 for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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SIGNATURES

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf b‘y the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Kansas City, State of Missouri, on
F¢./ruqr~, 1 , 2003.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

William D. Sullivas,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Date: Felraery (O , 2003

Williarth D: fvan,
Chief Exectitive Officer and Sole Director

Date: , 2003

Randall J. Opliger,
Chief Financial Officer

KC-1040747-1
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SIGNATURES

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Kansas City, State of Missouri, on
Fcfmahl. 0 , 2003.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

By:

William D. Sullivan,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Date: , 2003

William D. Sullivan,
Chief Execympe Officey and e Director

2 el 20e
/4 Date: TET /e , 2003

Ranfall J. Oplié[, )
Chief FinancialOfficer

KC-1040747-1
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EXHIBIT 2.1

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company



RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
PIONEER FINANCE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of The General and Business
Corporation Law of Missouri, the undersigned corporation hereby
adopts the following Restated Articles of Incorporation, which
Restated Articles of Incorporation correctly set forth, without
change, the corresponding provisions of the Articles of Incorpora-
tion as heretofore amended, and these Restajed Articles of
Incorporation supersede the original Articlés of Incorporation
and all amendments thereto:

FIRST

That the name of the corporation shall be PIONEER
FINANCE COMPANY.

SECOND

That the address of the registered office of the corpora-
tion in the State of Missouri is 4233 Roanoke Road, KXansas
City, Missouri and the name of its registered agent at that
address is William D. Sullivan.

THIRD

That the aggregate number of shares which the corpora-
tion shall have authority to issue shall be 20,000 shares,
2all of which shall be common shares and shall have a par
value of $100.00 per share.

FOURTH N

That before the corporation commenced business, 350
shares were issued, all of which were common shares with
a par value of $100.00 per share. The corporation did not
commence business until consideration of the value of at
least $500.00 had been received for the issuance of shares.

FIFTH

That the number of directors to constitute the Board .
of Directors shall be three.
The property and business of the corporation shall

be controlled and managed by the Board of Directors.




In addition to the other powers and duties from time
to time delegated to it by the shareholders, the Board of
Directors shall have the power to make, alter, amend or repeal
the By-laws of the corporation.

SIXTH
That the duration of the cdrporatibn shall be perpetual.
SEVENTH kﬂ'

That this corporation is organized FOR PROFIT and
the nature of its business and the purposes for which it -
is formed are as follows: ,

To engage in and carry on the general business of
a finance company.

To subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire, under-
write, obtain an interest in, own, hold, pledge, hypothecate,
create security interests in, assign, deposit, create trusts
with respect to, sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of
and generally deal in and with securities of every kind and
description of any government, state, territory, district,
municipality, or other political or governmental division .
or subdivision, body politic, corporation, association, paftner-
ship, firm, trustee, syndicate, individual, combination,
organization, or entity whatsoever located in or organizéd
under the laws of any part.of the world, including (without
limiting the genérality of the foregoing) stocks, shares, voting
trust certificates, bonds, mortgages, debentures, notes, land
trust certificates, warrants, rights, scrip, commercial paper,
choses in action,mgyiQPnceé of indebtedness, certificates
of interest or other obligations or other securities of any
nature howsocever evidenced; to acquire or become interested
in any such securities by original subscription, underwriting,
participation in syndicates, or otherwise and irrespective
of whether or not such securities are fully paid or subject
to further payments or assessments; to exercise any and all

rights, powers and privileges of individual ownership or interest




in respect of any such securities, including the right to

vote thereon and otﬁerwise act with respect thereto, and to
promate, manage, participate in, and act as agent for any
underwriting, purchase, or selling syndicate or group or otherwise
to take part in and assist, in any legal manner, by guaranty
or otherwise, the purchase, sale or distrf!htion of any such
securities; to promote, finance, aid and assist, financially
or otherwise, any body politic, corporation, associatidn,
partnership, firm, trustee, syndicate, individual, combination,
organization or other entity, located in or organized under

the laws of any‘part of the world, to purchase, lease or other-
wise acquire, take over, hold, sell, liquidate, or otherwise
dispose aof the business and properties, of every kind, of
.corporations, associations, partnerships, firms, trustees,
syndicates, individuals, combinations, organizations and other
entities located in or organized under the laws of any part

of the world; to continue, alter, extend, and develop their
business, assume their liabilities, guarantee or become surety
for the performance of thelr obligations; réorganize their
capital, and participate in any way in their affairs, and

to take over as a going concern and to continue in its own

name any business so acquired; and to act as financial, commercial,

R e AT T

N special or general agent or representative of bodies politic,
corporations, associations, partnerships, firms, trustees,
syndicates, individuals, combinations, organizations, and
other entities located in or organized under the laws of any
part of the world; |

To buy or otherwise #cquire, own, hold, lease, sell
or otherwise dispose of, and to mortgage or otherwise encumber
real property and personal property of all kinds;

To own, hold and construct buildings and structures
of all types, and to buy, sell, lease, own, manage, operate,
maintain, repair, restore and rebuild the same;

To purchase, take and lease or exchange or hire or




otherwise acquire real or personal property, rights or privileges
suitable or convenient for any of‘ the purposes of this business,
and to purchase, operate, hold, sell or otherwise dispose of
businesses or ventures of every character and description;

To borrow money and for such purpose to execute notes,
bcnds,'debentures or any other form of evidence of indebtedness,
and to secure the payment of the sahq by martgage, deed of
trust or other form of encumbrance, pledge or other form of.
hypothecation;

To execute deeds; mortgages, deeds of trust, contracts
and other types of written instruments; . }

To loan or otherwise invest its funds, from time to
time, secured or unsecured, for such time and upon such terms
and conditions as its Board of Directors may authorize;

To buy or otherwise acquire, sell or otherwise dispose
of, pledge or otherwise hypothecate stocks, bonds, notes,
debentures, accounts receivable, and all other types of securities,
evidences of indebtedness or choses in action, whether issued

|
by this company or any‘other corporation, and while owner
thereof, to exercise any rights and privileges of ownership
pertaining thereto;

To acquire, deal in, purchase, own, hold, lease, mortgage
or otherwise encumber, develop, expleoit and dispose of mineral
rights or royaity interests of every kind;

To have and to exercise all powers necessary or incident
to carrying out its corporate purposes; to éxercise all other
powers permitted by law, and to possess and enjoy all rights
and powers which now or at any time hereafter may be granted
to or exercised by a corporation of this character.

EIGHTH

That the names, places of residence of the incorporators

were:
Name Address
William J. Sullivan 3411 Gillham Road

Kansas City, Missouri




Grace Sullivan 3411 Gillham Road
Kansas City, Missouri

E. H. Brillault 201 Brush Creek Blvd.
Kansas City, Missouri
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, William D. Suilivan,
President, has executed this instrument and Geecrgia K. Sullivan,
Secretary, has affixed its corporate se¥ hereto and atteéted

' z5
said seal on the ({7 day of January, 1975,

PIONEER FINANCE COMPANY

(Corporate Seal)
_ By L}/V~

WIIIlam7DL/SﬁLllvan, President

ATTEST:

Ceorglé ?. gu;flvan, Secretary

STATE of MISSOURI )

y ss
COUNTY of?&Ji’M«/ 3

I,\fﬂAMLaéLL'{)/u/u>‘¥LLb¢LéL; , & Notary Public, do
hereby certify that on the ((9 day of January, 1975, personally

appeared before me WILLIAM D. SULLIVAN, who by me first duly
sworn, declared that he is the person who signed the foregoing

instrument as President and that the statements therein contained

(SEAL Notary Publiic

are true,

W
.
i
(-
i
H
v
£
.

My.:commission expires:

16-3n-7¢

FILED AND CERTIFICATE
SSUED

AT e ey e et
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“JAN 22 1875

wepers

Larporstion Dept,  SECRETARY OF STATE
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EXHIBIT 2.2

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of the Company
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STATE of MISSOURI

JAMES C. KIRKPATRICK, Secretary of State

Corporation Division

WHEREAS, PIONEER FINANGIAL SERVICES, INC. (FORMERLY: PIONEER FINANCE
COMPANY)

a corporation organized under The General and Business Corporation Law has delivered to

me a Certificate of Amendment of its Articles of Incorporation and has in all respects

complied with the requirements of law governing the amendment of Articles of Incorporation

under The General and Business Corporation Law,

NOW, THEREFORE, I, JAMES C. KIRKPATRICK, Secretary of State of the State of Missouri,

L §

do hereby certify that I have filed said Certificate of Amendment as provided by law, and that

1

the Articles of Incorporation of said corporation are amended in accordance therewith,

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed the GREAT SEAL of the State of Missouri, at the City

—. \-L

of Jefferson, this 19th day of .....euuus Septemher‘ 19 ...

>
o

RECEIVED OF: ......Rianger. Einancial Services..Inc.............. errrens eereen
' Fifteewm.Rallaxs..andne/100 s nnsianniinnnnion.. Dollars, $.02.:00 e,
For Credit of General Revenue Fund, on Account of Amendment Fee.
l No. ... AR00SS259.uine.. YVl L lon

Deputy Collector of Revenue

CORP. 20 2/78
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AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
PIONEER FINANCE COMPANY

Honorable James C. Kirkpatrick
Secretary of State .
State of Missouri

Jefferson City, Missouri 65101

Pursuant to the provisions of The General and Business
Corporation Law of Missouri, the undersigned corporation cer-
tifies the following:

1. The name of the corporation is PIONEER FINANCE
COMPANY, which is to be changed to PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES,
INC. The name under which it was originally organized was
SULLIVAN CHEVROLET COMPANY.

2. An amendment to the corporation's Articles of
Incorporation was adopted by the shareholders on September 8,
1978.

3. Article First is amended to read as follows:

FIRST-That the name of the corporation shall be PIONEER
FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

4, Of the 17,136 shares issued and outstanding, 17,136
of such shares were entitled to vote on such amendment, all
of which shares consisted of one class of common shares,

5. 17,136 shares voted for the amendment and no shares
voted against the amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, William D. Sullivan,
President, has executed this instrument and its Secretary,
Georgia K. Sullivan, has affixed its corporate seal hereto
and attested said seal on the 8th day of September, 1978.

PIONEER FINANCE COMPANY

(Changed to Pioneer Financial
Services, Inc.)

(CORPORATE SEAL) By:
William D, /Sullivan

President F|LED AND CERTIFICATE
ATTEST: ISSUED

, . SEP 191978
égéﬂ—rﬂﬂ%/“agklééL/Z;yMn’

Georgid K. Sullivan

(L///*'f—j_i
Secretary C::;?““‘?°“7”“““*“

Corporotion Degt, SECRETARY OF STATE

e kT i

T



STATE OF MISSOURI )
)

COUNTY OF i;fKSON )

1,/ D ¢¢9@>j(‘F-// Ck«» , a notary public, do
hereby certify that on this 8th day of September, 1978, personally
appeared before me WILLIAM D, SULLIVAN, who, belng by me first
duly sworn, declared that he is the President of Pioneer Financial
Services, Inc., that he signed the foregoing document as President
of the corporation, and that the statements therein contained are

true.

sSs,

ifuéfa Vg*c’au' N

) Notary Publlc

My commission expires:

Dhace Al 0>

5/



EXHIBIT 2.3

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company
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EXHIBIT A

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYILAWS
OF
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

ARTICLE T

OFFICES AND RECORDS

1.1 (a) Registered Office and Registered Agent. The registered
office and the registered agent of the Corporation ir. the State of

Missouri ("THE STATE") shall be determined from time to time by the
Board of Directors. The address of the reglstered office and the
name of the registered agent shall be on file in the appropriate
office of the THE STATE pursuant to applicable provisions of law.
Unless otherwise permitted by law, the address of the registered
office of the Corporation and the address of the business office of
the registered agent shall be identical. If the registered agent
is an individual, he shall be a Missouri resident.

(b) Corporate Offices. The Corporation wmay have such
corporate offices anywhere within and without THE STATE as the
Board of Directors from time to time may appoint or i4he business of
the Corporation may require. The "principal place of business,™
"principal business office," and "executive office"™ of the
Corporation may be determined from time to time bv the Board of
Directors.

1.2 (a) Records. The Corporation shall keep correct and complete
books and records of account, including the amount of its assets
and liabilities, minutes of the proceedings of the shareholders and
Board of Directors, and a list of the names and places of residence
of the officers. The Corporation shall keep at its registered
office, its principal place of business in THE ST TE or at the
office of its transfer agent 1in THE STATE the stock records
referred to in these Bylaws, and from time to time such other or
additional records and information as may be regquired by law,
including the shareholder lists mentioned in Section 3.13 of these
Bylaws. .

(b) o Inspection of Books. A shareholder, if he demands to
inspect the books of the. Corporatlon pursuant to any statutory or
other legal right, shall have access to and may examine such books
for any proper purpose during the usual and customary hours of
business and in such manner as will not unduly interfere with the
regular conduct of the business of the Corporaticn. No shareholder

shall use or permit to be used or acquiesce in the usz by others of -

any information so obtained to the detriment of the Corporation,
nor shall such shareholder furnish or permit to be furnished any
information so obtained to any competitor or prospective competitor
of the Corporation. The Corporation, as a conditicmn precedent to
any shareholder’s inspection of the books of the Corporation, may

1
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require the shareholder to indemnify the Corporation against any
less or damage which may be suffered by it arising out of any
unauthorized disclosure made or permitted to be made by such
shareholder of information obtained 1in the course of such

inspection.

ARTICLE IT
SEATL
2.1 Corporate Seal. The corporate seal shall be in the

form prescribed by the Board of Directors. Said seal may be used
by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or

in any manner reproduced.
ARTICLE III '
SHAREHOLDERS

3.1 Place of Meetings. All meetings of the shareholders
shall be held at such reasonably convenient place within the United
States of America as the Board of Directors, or such other
authorized persons who called the meeting, shall designate. In the
absence of such a designation, the meeting shall be held at the

principal cffice of the Corporation.

3.2 Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the shareholders
shall be held on the second Tuesday in January of each year,
beginning with the year 1991, if not a legal holiday, and if a
legal holiday, then on the next secular day following, at the hour
of 10:00 a.m. or such other hour as may be designated in the notice

of the meeting.

3.3. Special Meeting. Special meetings of the shareholders
may be held for any purpose or purpcses and may be called by the
Chairman of the Board (if any), by the President or by the holders
of (or by any officer upon written request of the holders of) not
less than one-fifth (1/5th) of all outstanding shares entitled to
vote at any such meeting, and shall be called by any officer
directed to do so by the Board of Directors or by the holders of
not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of all ocutstanding shares

entitled to vote at any such meeting.

3.4. Notice Required.

"(a) Kind and Manner. Written or printed notice of -

such meeting of shareholders, whether annual or special, stating
the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in case of a special
meeting, the purpose or purposes thereof, shall be delivered or
given, either personally or by mail, to each shareholder entitled
to vote thereat, not less than ten (10) days nor more than fifty
(50) days prior to the meeting by or at the direction of the

2
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President, the Secretary, or the officer or persons calling the
meeting. Any notice of a shareholders’ meetlng sent by mail shall
be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail,
postage prepaid, addressed to the shareholder at his address as 1t
appears on the records of the Corporation.

(b) Attendance and Waiver. Attendance of a shareholder
at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting,
except where such shareholder states at the opening of the meeting

of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting
is not lawfully called or convened.

(c)  gther Waiver. Any notice required to be given by
any provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or
any law may be waived in writing signed by the person entitled to

'such notice, whether before, at or after the time stated therein,

and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such
notice.

3.5. Presiding Officials. Every meeting of . the
shareholders shall be convened by the President, Secretary, or
other officer or by any other person who called the meeting by
giving written notice as above provided, but it shall be presided
over by the officers specified in Section 5.6 and 5.7 of these
Bylaws; provided, however, that the shareholders may,
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, select any person
to preside at a meeting and any person to act as sécretary of such
meeting.

3.6. Business Which May Be Transacted at Meetings.

(2) Annual Meetings. At each annual meeting of the .
shareholders, the shareholders shall elect (by ballot if requested
by any shareholder) a Board of Directors to hold office until the
next succeeding annual meeting or until their successors shall have
been elected and gqualified, and they may transact such other
business as shall come before the meeting, whether or not the same
was specified in the notice of the meeting. .

(b) Special Heetlngs. Special meetlngs ‘may be called

:for ahy purpose ‘or purposes, but business -transacted at each

special meeting of shareholders shall be confined to the purpose
stated in the notice of such meeting, unless the transaction of
other business is consented to by the holders of all outstandlng
shares of stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereat.

.7. Quorum; Shareholder Action. Except as otherwise
provided by law or by the Articles of Incorporation, the holders of

a majority of the voting shares issued and outstanding, and
entitled to vote thereat, present in person or by proxy, shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings
of the shareholders. Every decision of a majority in amount of

3



shares of such quorum shall be valld as a corporate act, except in
those specific instances in which a larger vote 1is required by law
or by the Articles of Incorporaticn. If, however, such guorum
should not be present at any meeting, the sharoholders present and
entitled to vote shall have power successively to adjourn the
meeting, without notice other than ninety (90) days after such
adjournment. At such adjourned meetings at which a quorum is
present any business may be transacted which might have been
transacted at the meeting which was adjourned.

3.8. Method of Voting; Proxies. At any meeting of the

shareholders, every shareholder having the rlght to vote shall be
entitled to vote in person or by proxy executed in writing by such
shareholder or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. No proxy
shall be wvalid after eleven (11) months from the date of its
execution, unless cotherwise provided in the proxy.

3.9. Number of Votes. Each shareholder shall have one vote
for each share of stock entitled to vote under the provisions of
the Articles of Incorporation which is registered in his name on
the books of the Corporation, except for those shares belonging or
hypothecated to the Corporation; but in the election of directors

cumulative voting shall prevail; that is to say, each shareholder

shall have the right to cast as many votes in the aggregate as
shall equal the number of voting shares so held by him, multiplied
by the number of directors to be elected at such election, and he
may cast the whole number of such votes for one candidate or
distribute them among two or more candidates. No person shall be
entitled to vote any shares belonging or hypothecated to the

Corporation.

3.10. Shareholders Entitled to Vote. If the Board of
Directors dces not close the transfer bocks of the Corporation or
set a record date as provided in Section 7.3 of these Bylaws, only
those shareholders who are shareholders of record at the close of
business on the twentieth (20th) day preceding the date of the
shareholders’ meeting shall be entitled to notice of and to vote at
the meeting and any adjournment thereof; except that if,. prior to
the meeting, written waivers of notice of the meeting are signed

-and delivered to the Corporation by all of the shareholders who are

shareholders of record at the time the meeting is convened, only
the shareholders who are shareholders of record at the tlme the
meeting is convened shall be entitled to vote at the meeting and
any adjournment thereof. If the shareholders act by consent in
lieu of a meeting as provided in Section 3.14 of these Bylaws,

shareholders who are shareholders of record at the time designated’

in the written consent as the time the action was taken shall be
entitled to consent.

3.11. Voting by Ballot; Inspectors. No vote shall be

required to be taken by ballot unless a resolution requiring the
same is adopted at a shareholders’ meeting by a majority of the

4
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shareholders present in person or by proxy, without regard to the
number of shares held by each. - If a vote by ballot shall be
required, the person presiding at the meeting shall appoint not
less than two persons, who are not directors, as inspectors to
receive and canvas the votes and certify the results to the person
presiding. In all cases where the right to vote any share shall be
questioned, it shall be the duty of the inspectors, if any, or the
person conducting the vote to examine the transfer books of the

Corporation, and all shares that stand in the name of any person in-

the transfer books shall be voted by such person. Any lnspector,
before entering the duties of office, shall take in writing and
subscribe the following oath before any officer authorized by law
to administer oaths: "I do solemnly swear that I will execute the
duties of an inspector of the election now to be held with strict
impartiality and according to the best of my ability."

3.12. Ownership of Shares. The Corporation shall be
entitled to +treat the holder of any share of stock of the
Corporation as recorded on the stock record or transfer boocks of

the Corporation as the holder of record and holder and owner in .

fact thereof and, accordingly, the Corporation shall not be
required to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest

in such share on the part of any other person, firm, partnership,

corporation or association, whether or not the Corporation shall
have express or other notice thereof, except as is otherwise
expressly required by law. The term "shareholders" as used in
these Bylaws means one who is a holder of record of shares of the
Corperation; provided however, that, if permitted by law:

(1) shares standing in the name of
another corporation, domestic or foreign, may be
voted by such officer, agent or proxy as the Bylaws
of such corporation may prescribe or, in the
absence of such provision, as ' the Board of
Directors of such corporation may determine;

. (ii) = shares standing in the name-.of a

partnership  (including any- jOlnt venture) may be

. voted by any. general. partner, agent. or proxy of

.such partnership as permitted by the partnérship
agreement of such partnership;

(iii) shares standing in the name of a
deceased person may be voted by such person’s
administrator or executor, either in person or by
proxy, and shares standing in the name of a
guardian, curator or trustee may be voted by such
fiduciary, either in person or by proxy, but no
guardian, curator or trustee shall be entitled, as
such fiduciary; to 'vote shares held by such
fiduciary without a transfer of such shares into

5
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such fiduciary’s name;

(iv) shares standing in. the name of a
receiver may be voted by such receiver, and shares
held by or under the control of a receiver may be
voted by such receiver without the transfer thereof
into such receiver’s name if authority so to do be
contained in an appropriate order of the court by
which such receiver was appointed;

(v) a shareholder whose shares are
pledged shall be entitled to wote such shares until
the shares have been transferred of record into the
name of the pledgee, and thereafter the pledgee
shall be entitled to vote the shares so

transferred; and

(vi) shares standing in the name of two
or more persons jointly may be voted by either of
them in the absence of the other owner or owners or

i their proxies .

The casting of votes with respect to shares which are
held of record by a corporation, partnership, deceased person,
receiver, or joint owners shall constitute a certification by the
person casting such votes that such person is entitled to vote such
shares under the provisions of this Section 3.12, and the officers
of the Corporation shall not be requlred to inquire into the

accuracy of such certification.

3.13. Shareholders Lists. A complete 1list of the
shareholders entitled to vote at each meeting of the shareholders,
arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of, and the number
of voting shares held by each, shall be prepared by the officer of
the Corporation having charge of the stock transfer books of the
Corporation, and shall for a period of ten (10) days prior to the
meetlng be kept on file in the registered office of the Corporation
in THE STATE and shall at any time during the usual. hours of

business be subject to inspection by any shareholder.: Such list or .
La dupllcate thereof shall also be produced and kept open at the
- time and place of the meetlng' and shall be "subject to the

inspection of any shareholder during the whole time of the meeting.
The original share ledger or transfer boock, or a duplicate thereof
kept in THE STATE, shall be prima facie evidence as to who are

shareholders entitled to examine such list, ledger or transfer book

or to vote at any meeting of shareholders. Failure to comply with
the foregoing provisions of this Section 3.13 shall not affect the
validity of any election taken at any such meeting.

3.14. Shareholders Action'without Meeting. Any action

required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the shareholders
may be taken without a meeting if consents in writing, setting

6
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forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the
shareholders entitled to vote with respect to the subject natter
thereof. Such consents shall have the same force-and effect as a
unanimous vote of shareholders at a: meetlng duly held, and the
Secretary shall file such consents with' the minutes of the meetings
of the shareholders.

ARTICILE IV
DIRECTORS

4.1 Number; Term:; Qualification. Unless otherwise provided
by law, or the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, the
number of directors to constitute the Board of Directors shall be
not less than one (1) nor more than nine (9). Each director shall
hold office for the term for which he is elected or until his
successor shall have been elected and gqualified. Each director,
upon his election, shall qualify by accepting the office of
directecr and his attendance at, or his written approval of the
minutes of, the next meeting of dlrectors after his election shall
constitute his acceptance of such office, or he may execute such
acceptance by a separate writing, which shall be placed in the
minute book. Directors need not be shareholders unless the
Articles of Incorporation at any time so require.

4.2. Powers of the Board. The property and business of the
Corporation shall be controlled and managed by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors shall have and is vested with

all the unlimited powers and authorities, except as may be.

expressly limited by law, the Articles of Incorporaticn or by these
Bylaws, to do or cause to be done any and all lawful things for and
on behalf of the Corporation, to exercise or cause to be exercised
any or all of its powers, privileges and franchises and to seek the
effectuation of its objects and purposes. The Board of Directors
shall have the power to set the compensation of the directors
unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation.

.4.3. Meetings of Newly Elected Board; Notice. .~The members-

of - each newly elected. Board of Directors shall meet at. such time

and . place as 'shall be - provided.-for by resolution of the
shareholders at the annual meeting, and no notice of .such meeting
shall be necessary to the newly elected directors in order legally
to constitute the meeting, provided a quorum shall be present; or,
regardless of whether the time and place of such meeting shall be

so provided by the shareholders, the members of such Board of

Directors may meet at such time and place as shall be consented to
in writing by all of the newly elected directors.

4.4. Reqular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of
Directors may be held without notice at such time or times and

.place either within or without THE STATE as shall from time to time

be fixed by resolution of a majority of the full Board of Directors
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and, if not so fixed, then at the principal business office of the
Corporation. Any buSLness may be transacted at a regular meeting.
Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any place
either within or without THE STATE and may be called by the
Chairman of the Board (if any), or the President, by giving no less
than forty-eight (48) hours prior notice of such meeting to each
director, either personally or by mail or telegram, stating the
time, place and purposes of any such meeting.

4.5. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of
Directors may be called by or at the request of the President, any
Vice President, the Secretary, or any two (2) directors by giving
or delivering wrltten notice of such meeting to each director at
least two (2) full days, not counting Sundays and legal holidays,
before the day on which the meeting 1is to be held, either

'personally or by mail or telegram, stating the place, day and hour

of the meeting and the purpose or purpcoses for which it is called.
The person or persons calling the special meeting may fix the
place, either within or without THE STATE, a place for holding the
meeting. If notice is glven by mail, 1t shall be deemed to be

* delivered when deposited in the Unlted States mail with postage

thereon prepaid, addressed to the director at his residence or
usual place of business. If notice is given by telegraph, it shall
be deemed to be delivered when it is delivered to the telegraph
company . If notice is given in person, it may be given by an
officer having authority to call the meeting or by any director.

4.6. Conference Call Meetings. Members of the Board of

Directors or of any committee designated by the Board of Directors
may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors by means of
conference telephone or similar communications equipment whereby

‘all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and

participation in a meeting in this manner shall constitute presence
in person at the meeting.

. Quorum; Corporate Action. At all meetihgs of the

Board of Directors a majority of the full Board of Directors shall,

" urrless a greater number as to any particular matter is:.required by

the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business. The act of a majority of the

~directors present at any meeting at which there is a guorum, except

as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute, by the
Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws, shall be the act of
the Board of Directors. Less than a quorum may adjourn a meeting

successively until a gquorum is present, and no notice of

adjournment shall be required.

4.8. Waiver. Attendance of a director at any meeting shall
constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting except where he
attends for the express purpose (and so states at the opening of
the meeting) of objecting to the transaction of any business
because the meeting is not lawfully called cr convened. Any notice
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required to be given to a director by any provision of these
Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or any law may be waived in
writing signed by such director, whether before, at or after the
time stated therein, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to
the giving of such notice.

4.9. Directors’ Action Without Meeting. Any action which is
required to be or may be taken at a meetlng of the directors may be

taken without a meetlng if consents in writing, setting forth the
action so taken, are signed severally or collectively by all of the
directors. The consents shall have the same force and effect as a
unanimous vote of the directors at a meeting duly held. The
Secretary shall file such consents with the minutes of the meetings
of the Board of Directors.

4.10. Vacancies. If the office of any director becomes
vacant by reason of death, resignation, removal from office or

- otherwise, or if a vacancy occurs by reason of the creation of a

new directorship, & majority of the remaining directors, though’
~less than a quorum, or the sole remaining director, may £ill the
vacancy until a successor shall have been duly elected at a

shareholders’ meeting.

4.11. Removal. At a meeting of the shareholders called
expressly for that purpose, directors may be removed in the manner
herein provided. The entire Board of Directors may be removed,
with or without cause, by a vote of the holders of a majority of

" the shares of stock of the Corporation then entitled to vote at an
election of directors. ILess than the entire Board of Directors may

be removed, with or without cause, but in such case no one of the

‘directors may be removed if the votes cast against his removal

would be sufficient to elect him if then cumulatively voted at an
election of the entire Board of Directors. o

4.12. Executive Committee and Other Committees. - The
Board of Directors may, by resolution or resolutions passed by a
majority of the whole Board of Directors, designate an Executive

Committee, such.committee to consist of .two or more. directors of
- the . Corporation, which committee, to the extent provided in said
- resolution .or resolutions, shall have' and may exercise.all of the
‘authority of the Board of. Directors in the .management of the

Corporation; but the designation o¢f such committee and the
delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the
Board of Directors, or any member thereof, of any responsibility
imposed upon the Board of Directors by the General Business
Corporation Law of THE STATE. The Board of Directors may also, by
resolution or resolutions passed by a majority of the whole Board
of Directors, designate other committees, with such persons, powers
and duties as it deems desirable and as are not inconsistent with
law. The Executive Committee and other committees shall keep
regular minutes of their proceedings and the same shall be recorded
in +the minute book of the Corporation. The Secretary or an
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Assistant Secretary of the Corporation may act as secretary for any
committee if such committee so requests.

4.13. Compensation of Directors and Committee Members.
Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation,
directors and members of all committees shall not receive any
stated salary for their services as such, but by resolution of the
Board of Directors a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any,
may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of
the Board of Directors or committee; provided that nothing herein
contained shall be construed to preclude any director or committee
member from serving the Corporation in any other capacity and
receiving compensation therefor.

4.14. Interest of Directors. In case the Corporation
enters into contracts or transacts business with one or more of its
directors or with any firm of which one or more of its directors
are members or with any other corporation or association of which
one or more of its directors are members, shareholders, directors

or officers, such transaction or transactions shall not be.

invalidated or in any way affected by the fact that such director
or directors have or may have interests therein which are or might
be adverse to the interests of this corporation; provided that such
contract or transaction 1is entered into in good faith and
authorized or ratified on behalf of this Corporation by the Board
of Directors or by a person or persons (other than the contracting
person) having authority to do so, that the directors or other
person or persons so authorizing or ratifying shall then be aware
of the interest of such contracting person, and that the contract
or transaction is not otherwise contrary to law.

ARTICLE V
OFFICERS
5.1. Elected Officers. A President and a Secretary shall be

elected annually by the Board of Directors at its first meeting
following each annual shareholders’ meeting. If the Board of

' Directors desires, a Chairman of the Board, one or more Vice

Presidents, a Treasurer, and one or more Assistant Secretaries and
Assistant Treasurers may be elected by the Board of Directors from
time to time as it deems necessary or advisable. The Board of
Directors may at any time it deems necessary or advisable elect
officers to £ill vacancies created by the death, inability or

refusal to act, resignation, or removal of any officer. If a

Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected and if the Board of
Directors designates the Chairman as having the powers of the chief
executive officer coextensively with the President, the designation
shall be filed in writing, and attested by the Corporation’s
Secretary, with the Secretary of State of THE STATE. Any two or
more of such officers may be held by the same person. An elected
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officer shall be deemed gqualified when such officer begins the
duties of the office to which such officer has been elected and
furnishes any bond required by the Board of Directors, but the
Board of Directors may also require of such person a written
acceptance and promise to discharge faithfully the duties of such
coffice. The officers of the Corporation need not be members of the
Board of Directors or shareholders in the Corporation.

5.2. Term of Office. ' Each elected officer of the

Corporation shall hold office for the term for which such officer
was elected or until such officer resigns or is removed by the
Board of Directors, whichever first occurs. .

5.3. Appointed Officers and Agents; Terms of Office. T h e

Board of Directors from time to time may also appoint such other
officers and agents for the Corporation as it shall deem necessary
or advisable. All appointed officers and agents shall hold their

‘respective positions at the pleasure of the Board of Directors or

for such terms as the Board of Directors may specify, and they
shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be
determined from time to time by the Board of Directors or by an
elected officer empowered by the Board of Directors to make such

determinations.

5.4. Removal. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by
the Board of Directeors, and any employee, may be removed or
discharged by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the
best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby, but such
removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any,
of the person so removed.

5.5. Salarjes., Compensation and Designation of Duties.

Salaries and compensation of all elected officers and of all
appointed officers, agents and employees of the Corporation may be
fixed, increased or decreased by the Board of Directors, but until

‘action is taken with respect thereto by the Board of Directors, the

same shall be fixed, increased or decreased by the President or by
such other officer or officers as may be empowered by .the Board of
Directors to.do so. 'The Board of Directors from time to time may

‘delegate .to. the Chairman:.of the .Board, the President.or other

officer or executive employee of the: Corporatlon authorlty to hire,
discharge and fix and modify the duties, salary or other
compensation of employees of the Corporation under the jurisdiction
of such officer or executive employee, and the Board of.Directors

may delegate to such officer or executive employee similar

authority with respect to obtaining and retaining for the
Corporation the services of attorneys, accountants and other
experts.

5.6. The Chairman_ of the Board. The Board of Directors may
elect a Chairman of the Board and may designate the Chairman of the
Board as having the sole powers of the Chief Executive Officer or
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as having the powers of the Chief Executlve Officer coextensively

with the President. If so designated and if notice of such

desxgnatlon, attested to by the Secretary of the Corporation, has
been filed in writing with the Secretary of State of THE STATE the
Chairman of the Board shall have all the powers and duties of the
President solely or coextensively with the President and such other
powers and duties as the Board of Directors may determine, and any
act required or permitted by law to be done by the President may be
done instead by the Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the
Board, whether or not designated as having powers of a Chief
Executive Officer, shall preside at all meetings of the
shareholders and of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise
specifically provided in Section 3.5 of these Bylaws.

5.7. President. . Unless the Board of Directors provides
otherwise, the President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of
the Corporation, with such general executive powers and duties of
supervision and management as are usually vested in the office of
the Chief Executive Officer of a Corporation, and he shall carry
into effect all directions and resolutions of the Board of
Directors. The President, in the absence of the Chairman of the

- Board or if there be no Chairman of the Board, shall preside at all

meetings of the shareholders and of the directors. The President
may execute all bonds, mortgages and other contracts requiring a
seal under the seal of the Corporation, and he shall (unless the
Board of Directors otherwise provides) be ex officio a member of
all standing committees and have such other or further duties and
authority as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of
Directors. Unless the Board of Directors provides otherwise, the
President, or any person designated in writing by the President,
may (a) attend meetings of security holders of other corporations
to represent this Corporation and vote or take action with respect
to the securities of any such corpcration owned by this Corporation
in such manner as he or his designee may determine, and (b) execute
and deliver waivers of notice and proxies for and in the name of he
Corporation with respect to any such securities.

‘ " 5.8. Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents in the order of
their rank (as determined by the order of their election or as

determined from time to time by the Board of Directors). shall, in '
' the absence, disability, refusal or inability to - act of the

Chairman of the Board and the President, perform the duties and
exercise the powers of the Chairman of the Board and the President,
and shall perform such other duties as the Board of Directors shall

from tlme to time prescrlbe.

5.9. Secretg;x and Assistant Secretary The Secretary shall

attend all sessions of the Board of Directors and all meetings of
the shareholders, and shall record or cause to be recorded all
votes taken and the minutes of all proceedings in a minute book of
the Corporation to be kept for that purpose. He shall perform
like duties for the Executive Committee and other standing
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committees when requested by the Board of Directors or such
committee to do so. He shall have the principal respon51b111ty to
give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the
shareholders, and of the Board of Directors, but this shall not
lessen the authority of others to give such notice as is authorized
elsewhere in these Bylaws. He shall have charge of the stock
books, keep or supervise the keeping of a record of the issuance
and transfer of stock, have custody of the seal of the Corporation
and affix the same when duly authorized to do so, and when so
affixed, he shall attest the same by his signature. He shall
perform such other duties and have such cther authorlty as may be
prescribed elsewhere in these Bylaws or from time to time by the
Board of Directors or the President, under whose direct supervision
he shall be. He shall have the general duties, powers and
responsibilities of a Secretary of the Corporation.

Any Assistant Secretary, in the absence, disability, refusal
or inability to act of the Secretary, may perform the duties and
exercise the powers of the Secretary, and shall perform such other
duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

5.10. Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer The Treasurer
shall have responsibility for the safekeeping of the funds and
securities of the Corporation, and shall keep or cause to be kept
full and accurate accounts or receipts and disbursements in books

belonging to the Corporation. He shall keep or cause to be kept
all other books of account and accounting records of the

”i°:Corporatlon and shall dep051t or cause to be deposited all monies

and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the
Corpecration in such depositories as may be designated by the Board
of Directors. He shall disburse, or permit to be disbursed, the
funds of the Corporation and shall furnish the directors, whenever
they may require it, an account of all his transactions as
Treasurer and of those under his jurisdiction, and of the financial
condition of the Corporation. The Treasurer shall perform such
other duties and shall have such other responsibility and authority
as may be prescribed elsewhere in these Bylaws or from time to time
by the Board of Directors. : He shall have general duties, powers
and -responsibility of a Treasurer of a Corporation,_end'shall be
the -chief financial and accounting officer of the Corporatlon. If
required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give the
Corporation a bond in a sum and with one or more sureties
satisfactory to the Board of Directors, for the faithful
performance of the duties of his office, and for the restoration to

the Corporation, in the case of his death, resignation, retirement

or removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money and
other property of whatever kind in his possession or under his
control which belong to the Corporation. Any Assistant Treasurer,
in the absence, disability, refusal or inability to act of the
Treasurer, may perform the duties and exercise the powers of the
Treasurer, and shall perform such other duties as the Board of
Directors shall from time to time prescribe. :
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5.11. Duties of Officers May Be Delegated. If any

officer of the Corporation be absent or unable to act, or for any
other reason that the Board of Directors may deem suff1c1ent the
Board of Directors may delegate for the time being some or all of
the functions, duties, powers and responsibilities of any officer
to any other officer, or to any other agent or employee of the

Corporation or other responsible person.

ARTICLE VI

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS.

6.1. Generally. The Corporation shall indemnify any person
who has or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any

- threatened, pending or completed acticn, suit or pProceeding,

whether'civ1l criminal, administrative or investigative, other
than an'action by or in the right of the Corporation by reason of
the fact that he is or was a director or officer of the
Corporation, or 1is or was serving at the regquest of the
Corporation, "as a director or officer of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against
expenses, including attorney’s fees, judgments, fines and amounts
paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good
faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect
to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to
believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action,
suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction or
upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of
itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good
faith or in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect
to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to

believe that his conduct was unlawful.

6.2. Derivative Suits. The Corporation shall indemnify any
person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made-a party to
any threatened, pending, or completed action or suit by or in the
right of the Corporatlon to procure a judgment in its favor by
reason of the fact that he is or was a director or officer of the
Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of he Corporation
as a director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including

attorney’s fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him in

connection with the defense or settlement of the action or suit if
he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be
in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation; except
that no indemnification shall be made in respect to any claim issue
or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be
liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duty
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to the Corporation unless and only to the extent that the court in
which the action or suit was brought determines upon application
that, despite the adjudication of liability and in view of all the
circumstances of the case, the person is fairly and reasonably
entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the court shall deem
proper.

. Expenses. To the extent that a director or officer of the
Corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in
defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in Sections
6.1 or 6.2, above, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter
therein, he shall be indemnified against expenses, including
attorney’s fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him in
connection with the action, suit or proceeding.

4 6.4. Conditions. Any indemnification under Sections 6.1 or
6.2 above, unless ordered by ‘a court, shall be made by the
Corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a
determination that indemnification of the director or officer is
proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable
standard of conduct set forth in this Article VI. The
determination shall be made by the Board of Directors by a majority
vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to
the action, suit or proceeding, or if such a quorum is not
obtainable, or even if obtainable a gquorum of disinterested
directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written
opinion, or by the shareholders.

. Advance of Expenses. Expenses incurred in

defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be
paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of the
action, suit or proceeding as authorized by the Board of Directors
in the specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf
of the director or officer to repay such amount unless it shall
ultimately be determined that he is entitled to be indemnified by
the Corporation as authorized in this Article VI.

6.6. Rights Not Exclusive. ' . The indemnification provided by
this Article VI shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights
to ‘which those. seeking indemnification ‘may be entitled:under any

" bylaws, agreement,.vote of.shareholders or.disinterested directors

or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to
action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall
continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director or officer
and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and
administrators of such a person. '

6.7. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain
insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or
officer of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the regquest of
the Corporation as a director or officer of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any
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liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such
capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the
Corpération would have the power to :Lndemnlfy him against such
liability under the provisions of this Article VI.

6.8. Entities Covered. References to 'Ythe Corporation™
include all constituent corporations absorbed in a conscolidation or
merger as well as the resulting or surviving corporation so that
any person who is or was a director or officer of such a
constituent corporation or is or was serving at the request of such
constituent corporation as a director or officer of another
corporation, partnership, jc:z.nt venture, trust or other enterprise
shall stand in the same position under the provisions hereof with
respect to the resulting or surv1v1ng corporation in the same

capacity.
ARTICLE VIT

SHARES OF STOCK

7.1. Certificates for Shares of Stock. The certificates for
shares of stock of the Corporation shall be numbered, shall be in
such form as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors in
conformity with law, and shall be entered in the stockbooks of the
Corporation as they are issued, and such entries shall show the
name and address of the person, firm, partnership, corporation or
association to whom each certificate is issued. Each certificate
shall have printed, typed or written thereon the name of the
person, firm, partnership, corporation or association to whom it is
issued and number of shares represented thereby and shall be signed
by the President or a Vice President, and the Treasurer or an
Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of
the Corporation, and sealed with the seal of the Corporation, which
seal may be facsimile, engraved or prlnted. If the Corporation has
a registrar or a transfer agent who is not the Corporaticn or any
employee of the Corporation and who countersigned such
certificates, the signatures of any of the other officers above

- mentioned may be facsimile, engraved or printed In case ‘any such
offlcer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose
- facsimile signature has been placed upon any such certificate shall

have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before
such certificate is issued, such certificate may nevertheless be
issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if such officer,
transfer agent or registrar were an officer, transfer agent or

registrar at the date of its issue.

7.2. Transfers of Shares : Transfer Agent; Registrar.

Transfer of shares of stock shall be made on the stock record or

transfer books of the Corporation only by the person named in the ‘

stock certificate, or by his attorney 1lawfully constituted in
writing, and upon surrender of the certificate therefor. The stock
record book and other transfer records shall be in the possessicn
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of the Secretary or of a transfer agent or clerk for the
Corporation. The Corporation by resolution of the Board of
Directors, may from time to time appoint one or more transfer
agents and, if desired, one or more registrars, under such
arrangements and upon such terms and conditions as the Board of
Directors deems advisable, but until and unless the Board of
Directors appoints some other perscon, firm or Corporation as its
transfer agent (and upon the revocation of any such appointment,
thereafter until a new appointment is similarly made) the Secretary
of the Corporation shall be the transfer agent or clerk of the
Corporation without the necessity of any formal action of the Board
of Directors, and the Secretary shall perform all of the duties

thereof.
7.3. Closing of Transfer Books; Record Date. The Board of

Directors shall have power to close the stock transfer bocks of the
Corporation for a period not exceeding fifty (50) days preceding
the date of any meeting of the shareholders, or the date for
payment of any dividends, or the date for the allotment of rights,
or’' the date when any payment of any dividends, or the date for the

allotment of rights, or the date when any change or conversion or-

exchange of shares shall go into effect; provided, however, that in
lieu of closing the stock transfer books as aforesaid, the Board of
Directors may fix in advance a date not exceeding fifty (50) days
preceding the date of any meeting of shareholders, or the date for
the payment of any dividend, or the date for the allotment of
rights, or the date when any change, conversion or exchange of
shares shall go into effect, as a record date for the determination
of the sharsholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, any such
meeting or any dividend, or to any such allotment of rights or to
exercise the rights in respect of any such change, conversion or
exchange of shares; and in such case such shareholders and only
such shareholders as shall be shareholders of record on the date of
closing of the transfer books or on the record date so fixed shall
be entitled to such notice of, and to vote at, such meeting, and
any adjournment thereof, or to receive payment of such dividend, or
to receive such allotment of rights, or to exercise such rights, as
the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any shares on the
books of. the Corporation after such date of closing of the transfer
books, or such record date fixed as aforesaid. If the Board of

.. Directors :does ‘not: close.the .transfer books or set a .record date

for determination of the shareholders entitled to notice of, and to
vote at, a meeting of shareholders, only the shareholders who are
shareholders of record at the close of business on the twentieth
(20th) day preceding the date of the meeting shall be entitled to

notice of, and to vote at, the meeting, and any adjournment of the -

meeting; except that, if prior to the meeting written waivers of
notice of the meeting are signed and delivered to the Corporation
by all of the shareholders of record at the time the meeting is
convened, only the shareholders who are shareholders of record at
the time the meeting is convened shall be entitled to vote at the
meeting, and any adjournment of the meeting.
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7.4. Iost, Mutilated or Destroyed Certificates. In case of
the loss, mutilation or destruction of any certificate for shares
of stock of the Corporation upon due proof of the registered owner
thereof or his representatives, by affidavit of such 1loss or
otherwise, the President and Secretary may issue a duplicate
certificate (plainly marked "duplicate") in its place, upon the
Corperation being fully indemnified therefor. _

7.5. Power of Board. The Board of Directors shall have the
power and authority to make all such rules and regqulations it may
deem expedient concerning the issue, transfers, conversion and
registration of certificates for shares of stock of the Corporation
not inconsistent with any loan, the Articles of Incorporation, or

these Bylaws.
ARTICIE VIIT

GENERAT,

8.1. FPixing of Capital; Transfers of Surplus. Except as
may be specifically otherwise provided 1in the Articles of
Incorporation, the Board of Directors 1is expressly empowered to

exercise all authority conferred upon the Corporation by law with
respect to:

(a) The determination that part of the
consideration received for shares of the Corporation
shall be stated capital:;

(b) The increase of stated capital;
(c) The transfer of surplus to stated capital:

(d) The consideration to be received by the
Corporation for its shares; and

(e) All similar or related matters; provided that
any concurrent action required by. law to be
taken by the shareholders is duly:-taken.

_ 8.2. Dividends. Dividends wupon the shares.. of the
Corporation subject to the provisions of the Articles of

Incorporation and of any applicable law or statue, may be declared
by the Board of Directors at any regular or spec1al meeting.
Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the
Corporation’s stock. Liquldatlon dividends or dividends
representing a distribution of paid-in surplus or a return of
capital shall be made only when and in the manner permitted by

laws.

8.3. Creation of Reserves. Before the payment of any
dividend there may be set aside out of any funds of the Corporation
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available for dividends such sum or sums as the Board of Directors

from time to time deems proper as a reserve fund or funds, to meet
contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for repalrlng or
maintaining any property of the Corporatlon, or for any other
purpose deemed by the Board of Directors to be in the best
interests of +the Corporatlon, and the Board of Directors may
abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.

8.4. Articles of Incorporation Any reference herein made
to the Corporation’s Articles will be deemed to refer to its
Articles of Incorporation and all amendments thereto as at any
given time are on file with Secretary of State of THE STATE,
pursuant to applicable law. The Articles of Incorporatlon will in

- all respects be considered senior and superior to these Bylaws,

with any inconsistency to be resolved in favor of the Articles of
Incorporation, and with these Bylaws to be deemed automatlcally
amended from time to time to eliminate any such 1ncon51stency which
may then exist.

8.5. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall
begin on the first day of October and end on the last day of
September of each year.

8.6. Amendments. The Bylaws of this Corporation may from
time to time be repealed, amended or altered, or new Bylaws may be
adopted, in either of the following ways:

(a) By the affirmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of stock of the
Corporation entitled to vote, at any annual or special
meeting thereof; or :

(b) If permitted by the Articles of Incorporation
of the Corporation by resoclution adopted by a majority of
the members of the Board of Directors then in office,
provided, however, that (i) the power of the directors to
suspend, repeal, amend or otherwise alter the Bylaws or
any portion thereof may be denied as to any Bylaw or
portion thereof enacted by the shareholders if at the
time of such enactment the shareholders shall so
expressly provide, .and (ii) .the power to designate the

‘number of directors of the Corporation as provided for in
Section 4.1 of these Bylaws shall be vested exclusively
in the shareholders of the Corporation.

ARTICI.E IX
CONTRACTS, IOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS
9.1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any
officer or officers, agent or agents to enter into any contract or

execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of

19



the cOrporatlon, and such authority may be general or confined to
specific 1nstances.

9.2. loans. No loans shall be obtained on behalf of the
Corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its
name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors.
Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

9.3. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other
order for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of

indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation, shall be signed
by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and
in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by

resolution of the Beoard of Directors.

9.4. Deposits. All funds of the Corpbration not otherwise
employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the
Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as

the Board of Directors may select.

CERTIFICATION

I, Barbara J. Dickens, hereby certify that I am the Secretary
of Ploneer Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri Corporation, and
the keeper of its corporate records; that the foregoing Bylaws were
duly adopted by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the
Corporation as and for the Bylaws of said Corporation, effective as
of the 17th day of December, 1950; that the foregoing constitute

the Bylaws of said Corporation; and that such Bylaws are now in
full force and effect.

Dated: /92,//77/7'&

L Q/Z%M

Secreta

20
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EXHIBIT 3.2

Form of debenture issued prior to November 1, 2002
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Incorporated under the laws of the State of Missouri

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES

nc.
Junior Subordinated Debenture )

‘ms NO.
For value received the Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. (bereinafler called Company) promises to pay st its Home Office i Kansas City,
Missouri 1o the order of
on the maturity date, together with the imterest at the rate and when due, all as foliows:

[ssue Maturity Interest Interest Interest

Date Amount Term Date Rate Due FPayment

This Debenture is one of an authorized issue of Junjor Subordinated Debentures to be issued by the Company. The name of the person to whom this
Debenture shall be ariginally issued and the name of each transferes hersof shall be registered on the Books of the Company. No transfer bereof shall be valid
unless made on the Company books as directed by the registered holder in person or by his duty authorized attorney. The registered holder hereof shall be deemed
and treated as the owner hereof for all intents and purposes and the Compary shall not, in any way, be affected by any notice to the contrary. The Companry shall
bwetbeprmlegeofprepaymgﬂns:mtrumcm.wnhotnpena}tyorpmmum.upon30dayspnorwrm=nnoceemaﬂedordehvaedwtheregstaedhold='baeof
according to the records of meCompanymbolder’saddrmmmdm no interest shall accrue after the prepayment date. If less than all of the

are to be redeemed, the Deberhures to be redeemed shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

This Debenture is issued subject 1o the following subordination provisions, and each person holding this Debenture whetber upon original issue or
uﬁ:amﬂammmﬂmmagw!obebomdbysmdpmvmomasfol!mtowﬁ.

The indebledness evidenced by this Debenture, and any renewals or extensions thereof, shall be subordinate and umo:mngnofpnmmall
rweds.toallSupmorhdebtednm(wlnchshaumeanallmdebtedmmofﬁeCampmyfmmoneybormwedwtndmnotexpresedto subordinate or junior
to anry other indebtedness of the Comparty) and Subordinated Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebtedness of the Company for borrowed money which is
expresedtobembordmatemdmonoal]SupenorIndebtedmsoftheCompanybmmmanyothumdebtedn&oNnCompany)aSmaASubwdmawd
Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebtedness of the Companry for borrowed money which is expressed to be subordinate and junior to all Superior Indebtedness
and Subordinated Indebtedness of the unnmmmyod!emdeM&OfmeCompmy)oﬁbe , whether outstanding at the date hereof or
bereafter incurred. Without limiting the effect of the foregoing, “subordinate” and “junior™ as used herein mclndewrthmthmmmngsﬂufoﬂowmg:(n)
Mhtheevemofmyinsolvuwyorbankmpwyprmdmgmdmmymcewasmp liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceedings in connection
therewith relative to the Company or its credrtors or its property, and mhevmxym@mgfmwl@nhm@n&mlﬂm«mm@of

the Coarpany, whether or not involving insolvency or bankruptcy principal and interest on all Superior Indebtedness and
Indebtedness and Series A Subordinated Indebtedpess (bemnaﬂeralled?norDebt)shallﬁrstbepaxdmﬁleorsuchpaymembeprvvndedfor,bcfmany

payment on account of principal or interest is made upon the indebtedness evidenced by this Debenture, and in any such proceedings any payment or distribution

”'"‘-\ot'anykmdcrchmm whether in cash or property or securities, which may bé payable or deliverable in respect of this Debenture shall be paid or delivered
Idirectly to thé bolders of such Prior Debt for application in payment thereof, unless and until such Prior Debt shall have been paid and satisfied in full or such

payment and satisfaction shall have been provided for; provided, however, the foregoing provisions arewbjecttodzpowuofaeonmofcompetanjunsdtaxouto
makeothu-equnableprovmonreﬂectm the rights conferred herein upon the Prior Debt and the holders thereof with respect 1o the junior subordinated
mdeb!cdn&repruanedbythxsDebennneandthcboldmthereofbyalawﬂxlplanofmmmunonundertbeapphcnblebanlu‘upwylaw;and(u)mﬁnevn
that this Debenture is for any reason declared due and payable by any bolder or holders prior to its expressed maturity date (under circumstances when the
prvvunomoftheforegomgclausc(:)shaﬂnotbeapphcable)andtheholda-ofﬂnsl)ebcnnmshaubeamﬂedmpaymcmonl after there shall first have been
paid in full the Prior Debt outstanding at the time thus Debenture 50 becomes due and yablebeuuseofsuchcvcznofdefaulnorwchpaymanshallhavebeen
provided for. NopresentorﬁmueboldaoanorDebtshallbepre]udmedmhxsng!ntomfommbordmanonofﬂnsDebezmuebymaaotfaﬂmtoaaouthe
part of the Company. The provisions of this section are solely for the purpose of deﬁmngtherelauvenghtsof!hebold:soanwDeb!ontbeonehand.andthe
bolder of this Debenture on the other hand and nothing berein shail impair, as between the Company ard the bolder of anry Debenture, the obligation of this
Companywlnchmmcondmomlandabsohne,mpaytotbeholderth«wﬁheprmapal mdm&thammmordaneewﬂhﬂsmmmrsbaﬂmyﬂmg
berein prevent the holder of this Debenture from exercising all remedies otherwise permitted by applicable law or hereunder upon default bereunder, subject to the
nghts,xfany mdathnmonofholdasof?norDebuoreeeweash.p’upatywseamamhmmscpayabkadehvaablewdzbolduoﬂhnm

Any one of the following shall constitute an eventt of default s to this Debenture: If the Company ceases domghmxfmymﬂlmunofmmpal
ormaenont.huDebamreunotpmdwnhmtm(lO)daysaﬂswnnmnouee&omlhemgsuedboldsofwchmpaymwbmkmpwy reorganization or
insotvency proceedings. 1f an event of default as berein defined occurs, the Company agrees to give the registered holder of this Debennare, upon request, the
names and addresses of all registered Deberture holders.

MDebmmmﬂmmnmﬂymfaaddmmm(“Emlme’jmnﬁeqmlmla:gthmthemgmdtam.mlmandmhbe
for Term shall accrue at the rate being offered by the

regmeedholdahmrequ&edpaymmtmwrﬂmgonorpnormamm . Interest for each Extension Term
Company on newly issued Debmnuofl&zdenmmmmdmnmammofwmmmofmchﬁnmme The Company reserves the right

to issue and seil otber Debentures having equal rank and priority with this Debenture,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, mwmmmmmummmmmmwmm«n&mw@
PmdmmdmmwnawdmbebaﬂoaﬁxedandeymSeumwmdmAmeMnam th day of ,19

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES

President
(Saal)
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: This certificate Is liansferable only on the books etemtrby =My ot tenant presenting the original Debenture at the Office of
Ploneer Financlal Services, Inc.

4700 Belleview, Suite 300
Kansas City, Missour 84112-1359

The ‘following abbreviations, when tised in the Inscllption on the face of this certificate, shall be canstrued as though they wers written outin full
actording to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants In cormmon UNIF GIFT MIN ACT - _ Custodian
TEN ENT - as lenanis by the entlreties ) (Cust) - {Minor)
JTTEN - asjoint tenants with right of S .

under Uniform Gifts {o Minors Act of
survivorship and not as lenants (Stale)
in common

Additional abbrevianns may also be used though nol In the above list.

5 ~m}m A mewgﬂokﬁ%e

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersighed hereby:

I:I Sells, assigns and transfers unto

(Name and Address of Asslgnee, Including Zip Code, Must Be Printed or Typewrilten)

the within Certificats, and all rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably conslituling and appointing
Wiliam.D. Sullivan or Donald D. Herlford Altorney lo iransfer said Cerlificale on the books of the
Cuslodian, with full power of substitution In the premises.

Please Insert Soclal Security or Other
\dentifying Number of New Owner

Permanently Changes the Name(s) OLD NAME (Regislration) :
or Reglstration i ’

o : ] NEW NAME (Registration):
Redeams the within Certificate Please Send Check ta:
At Maturity Value : Lo

Reinvests the maturity value

of the within Certificate (Please complele and include an Offer \o Purchase and Recelp\ Form for your new certificate.)
DATED:

X "Subscribed and sworn to before me .
Replstered Owner this ___ dayof ] 19
X : ' : (SEAL)
Registered Owner .. Notary Public My Commission Expires
X

Regislersd Owner

NOTICE; The signaturs must correspond with the name as It appears upon the face of the within Certificate in every partxcular without
alteration or enlargement or any change whatever. . -

|-ASSIGNMER

fm
ko)
>
5

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the underslgned hereby cerlifies that this debenture has been assigned to: .

(Name and Addresa of Asslgnes, lncludlng Zlp Code, Must Be Prinled at Typewrlllen)

X

Subscribed and sworn to before ma
this ____day of 19__ .
X . : ‘ (SEAL)
- Registored Gurer " Notary Public My Commission Explrés_ )
RELEASE OF ASSIGNMENT: The underslgned hereby releases the above described assignment and reasslgns this
. debenture to lhe origlnal named owner (s).

Registerad Owner

X_ Subscnbed and swom to before me ‘

this ___dayof : 19

Lending Instilution

X . |

N - (SEAL)
X Tenaing Inslilution - -
Notary Public My Commisslon Explres

Pioneer Financ&al Serwces nc.

State of Missouri )
)ss.
© County of Jackson )

Subscribed and sworn to before me thls /ﬂ day of December 2001

My Commission Expires;_¢~/=0d

John T, Aliano
NOWY Public - Notary Seal
‘Btate of Missour} ) l
Jackson County [ [

Mv Commisninn Fynirae Avmsies ¢ anne
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EXHIBIT 3.3

Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated March 1, 1996,
between the Company and various banks named therein

e



AMENDED AND RESTATED
SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement ("Agreement”) is made as of
this lst. day of March, 1996 by and between Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri
corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Pioneer”), UMB Bank, N.A., a national banking
assoc;iation (hereinafter referred to as "UMB"), Mercantile Bank of Kansas City, a Missouri
sta;te banking association (hereinafter referred to as "Mercantile”), Bank of Boston, a
Massachusetts banking corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Boston"), Boatmen’s First
National Bank of Kansas City, a national banking association (hereinafter referred to as
"Boatmen’s"), First National Bank of Kansas, a national banking association (hereinafter
referred to as "Kansas"), LaSalle National Bank, a national banking association (hereinafter
referred to as "LaSalle"), Liberty Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City, N.A,, a
national banking associatioﬁ (hereinafter referred to as "Liberty”), NBD Bank, a Michigan
banking corporation (hereinafter referred to as "NBD") and Southwest Bank of St. Louis, a
Missouri banking association (hereinafter referred to as "Southwest"), all of UMB, Mercantile,
Boston, Bc;atmen’s, Kansas, LaSalle, Liberty, NBD and Southwest being hereinafter referred

to collectively as "Banks".

WHEREAS, Pioneer and the Banks entered into a Senior Lending Agreement dated as

of June 9, 1993; and
WHEREAS, Pioneer and each of the Banks desire to amend such Senior Lending

Agreement by the execution and delivery of this Agreement; and

HeesdumbMercPio Sl February & 1996 1
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WHEREAS‘, Pioneer is willing to confirm that all provisions of such Senior Lending
Agreement and of all notes, documents evidencing or confirming the grant of liens and security
interests and all other related documents, except as otherwise expressly amended by this
Agreement, shall remain in full force and effect; and

WHEREAS, Pioneer and the Banks desire that all existing and future extensions of
credit by any of the Banks to Pioneer be subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements of the parties hereto
and for ofher good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

I. DEFINITIONS

When used in this Agreement, the following words, terms or names shall have the
meanings set forth in this section:

1. "Adjusted Capital” shall mean Total Required Capital plus loan loss and dealer
reserves minus all delinquent accounts by recency of payment of 90 days or more.

2. "Agent Bank" shall mean UMB Bank, N.A., Kansas Ciiy, Missouri, unless
changed pursuant to the terms hereof.

| 3. "Amortizing Note" shall mean any note in the form of Exhibit B attached
hereto.

4. "Assignment of Note Payments” shall be the document in the form attached

hereto as Exhibirt J.

2{gfeadumdMaePio Sl Febroary 6 1996 2
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5. "Banks" shall mean UMB, Mercantile, Boston, Boatmen’s, Kansas, LaSalle,

Liberty, NBD and Southwest, and "Bank" may refer to any of the foregoing.

6. "Boatmen’s shall mean Boatmen’s First National Bank of Kansas City, Kansas

City, Missouri.

7. "Boston” shall mean the Bank of Boston, Boston, Massachusetts.
8. "Business Day" means any day on which the Agent Bank is open for business.
9. "Compliance Certificate” shall mean each certificate executed by Pioneer in the

form of Exhibit G attached hereto.

10.  "Consolidated" shall, with respect to financial terms and financial statements,

have the meaning as used in generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of

- America in effect from time to time, consistently applied.

11.  "Credit Facility Letter” shall mean each letter submitted to Pioneer by any of

the Banks in the form of Exhibit F attached hereto.
12.  "Event of Default” shall mean any of the following:

(a) Pioneer fails to make any payment of Senior Debt when due after written
demand therefor following the expiration of the notification period set forth in Section X 2(a).

(b) Pioneer fails or refuses, in the event of the declaration by any Bank of
nonperformance of Pioneer due to the occurrence of a Performance Event, tvo deliver to the
Agent Bank as required by the terms of Section V (3) hereof within three (3) Business Days
of receipt of a notice declaring nonperformance, all stock certificates evidencing all shares of
the issued and outstanding capital stock of each of its Subsidiaries listed on Exhibit D attached -

hereto with stock powers attached thereto endorsed in blank;

HafendambMerePioSrl Februzry & 1996 3
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() Any material representation or warranty made by Pioneer in Section I of
this Agreement being untrue in any material respect now or at any time hereafter; or any
material schedule, statement, report, notice, information or writing furnished by Pioneer to
the Banks being untrue or misleading in any material respect as of the date the facts set forth
therein are stated or certified;

(d) A material breach by Pioneer of any covenant, obligation or fequirement
contained in Section VIII of this Agreement, except Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of Section
VIII, and failure of Pioneer after receipt from the Banksvof written notice pursuant to Section
X 2(a) hereof specifying the same, to perform any such covenant, obligation or requirement;

(e) Any failure to make payment when due, or other default or justifiable
demand by a creditor other than any of the Banks for accelerated payment by Pioneer under
the terms of any contract or agreement for borrowed money in any amount greater than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) in the aggregate, if such payment is not made, such default is not
cured or such demand is not rescinded within ten (10) Business Days of receipt of notice
thereof by Pioneer;

| () Pioneer shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature;
or Pioneer shall make a general assignment for the benefit of it creditors, or Pioneer consents
to, applies for or acquiescences in the appointment of a trustee or receiver for it or for
substantially all of its property; or Pioneer shall suffer proceedings under any law relating to
bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization or the release of debtors to be instituted by or
against it, and if contested, not dismissed or stayed within ninety (90) calendar days; or Pioneer-

shall suffer any writ of attachment or execution or any similar process to be issued or levied
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against any material portion of its property which is not released, stayed, bonded or vacated
within thirty (30) calendar days after its issue or levy;

(g) One or more final judgments or judicial orders for the payment of money
in excess of an aggregate of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) shall be rendered
against Pioneer and said judgments or orders shall continue unsatisfied and be in effect for a
period of thirty (30) consécutive calendar da}s unless adequate tnsurance coverage exists for any
such judgments or orders, an appeal bond in the amount of any such judgments or orders has
been issued or Pioneer has adequately reserved cash or other liquid assets for the payment of
any such judgments and orders; and

(h) the occurrence of any change of control of Pioneer subsequent to the
execution of this Agreement. For purposes hereof, a change of control of Pioneer shall have
occurred, only if as the result of any event except death or disability, William D. Sullivan
ceases to be the Chief Executive Officer of Pioneer or of the surviving corporation in the event
of a merger.

13.  "LaSalle" shall mean the LaSalle National Bank, Chicago, Illinois.

14.  "Liberty” shall mean Liberty Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City,
National Association, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.

15.  "Mercantile" shall mean Mercantile Bank of Kansas City, Kansas City, Missouri.

16. . "NBD" shall mean NBD Bank, Detroit, Michigan.

17. "Net Receivables” shall mean (1) all receivables due from customers of all

Subsidiaries of Pioneer except Pioneer Military Insurance as a result of direct cash loans,
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| purchased retail notes and real estate and home improvement loans less (ii) all deferred income

and reserves for loan losses.
18.  "Kansas" shall mean the First National Bank of Kansas, Overland Park, Kansas.
19.  "Performance Event" shall mean the failure of Pioneer to be in. compliance with
any of the covenants set forth in Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of Section VIII hereof, such
compliance to be determined by the Banks as of the last Business Day of each March, June,
September and December by reference to Compliance Certificates delivered to the Banks by

Pioneer pursuant to Section VIII (10) hereof.

20.  "Pioneer” shall mean Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a Missourn corporation.
21.  "Quarterly Certificate” shall mean the certificate in the form attached hereto as

Exhibit H.

22. | "Revolving Grid Note" shall mean any note in the form of Exhibit A attached
hereto.

23.  "Senior Debt" means any debt of Pioneer which is not Subordinated Debt and
is owed to any Bank or other lender which is a party hereto at the time such debt is incurred
and 1is evl;denced by an Amortizing Note, a Revolving Grid Note, a Single Pay Term Note,
or which is listed on Exhibit K attached heret‘o. Senior Debt shall also include unsecured
indebtedness payable to Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. in an aggregate outstanding principal
amount not to exceed $500,000 at any time.

24, "Single Pay Term Note" shall mean any note in the form of Exhibit C attached

hereto.

25.  "Southwest" shall mean Southwest Bank of St. Louis, St. Louis, Missouri.
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26.  "Subordinated Debt" shall mean any unsecured debt of Pioneer, payment of
which is subordinated to payment of all Senior Debt and which is evidenced by a note
generally in the form of Exhibit M attached hereto or other form approved by the Banks.

27.  "Subsidiary” shall mean each of the operating companies which are owned by
Pioneer and which are listed on Exhibit D attached hereto and each operating company which
Pioneer owns at any time hereafter except Pioneer Military Insurance Company.

28.  "Subsidiary Revolving Grid Note" shall mean all notes in the form of Exhibit
E attached hereto.

29.  "Tangible Net Worth" shall mean (i) the sum of the book value of all common
stock, the liquidation value of all preferred stock, the principal amount of all Subordinated
Debt of every class, and the amount of all loan loss reserves and all dealer loss reserves, less
(1) the aggregate amount of all notes payable to Subsidiaries of Pioneer except Pioneer Military
Insurance which are delinquent by recency of payment by 90 c;lendar days or more. For
purposes of this Agreement, a payment on a note payable to a Subsidiary of Pioneer in an
amount equal to at least 95% of the amount of the payment being made shall constitute full

payment of such payment.

30.  "Total Indebtedness" shall mean the sum of (i) all Senior Debt and (i) all

Subordinated Debt of every class.
31.  "Total Required Capital” shall mean the sum of (i) the book value of all
common stock and (ii) the liquidation value of all preferred stock, less (iii) the book value of

all treasury stock and the outstanding principal amount of all notes payable to any Subsidiary-
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of Pioneer except Pioneer Military Insurance which are delinquent by recency of payment by

270 calendar days or more.
32. "UMB" shall mean UMB Bank, N.A., Kansas City, Missouri.
43! o o

II. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

In order to induce the Banks to enter into this Agreement and receive requests for
extensions of credit subject to this Agreement, Pioneer hereby represents and warrants to the
Banks as follows:

1. Corporate Existence and Authority. Pioneer and each of its Subsidiaries are duly
incorporated and are in good standing under the laws of their respective states of
incorporation; have all necessary permits, licenses and franchises to enable each of them to
conduct their respective Business; and are qualified to do business as a foreign corporation in
every jurisdiction where the ownership of their respective property or the nature of their
respective business requires qualification except where there would be no material adverse
effect if Pioneer or any of its Subsidiaries were not so qualified. Pioneer is duly authorized
by all required corporate action to execute and deliver this Agreement, to borrow monies from
the Banks and to execute and deliver notes evidencing such borrowings in the form of Exhibits
A, B and C hereto. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and of any
notes evidencing any borrowings from the Banks do not and will not conflict with (i) any
provision of law or any order of any court or government agency applicable to Pioneer, (ii)

the charter or bylaws of Pioneer or (iii) any material agreement binding upon it or upon its

properties and do not or will not result in or require the creation of any lien, security interest
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or other charge or encumbrance upon or with respect to its properties, except as contemplated
by this Agreement.

2. Performance of Other Agreements. Pioneer is not a party to any indenture,
agreement, lease or other instrument, nor is it subject to any charter or other corporate
restriction which materially affects the operation of its business in any adverse manner, and
to its knowledge it is not in default in the performance, observance or fulfillment of any
material covenant or obligation contained in any indenture, agreement, lease or other
instrument to which it is a party.

3. Tax Liabilities. Other than tax liabilities, regardless of whether disputed, which
have been adequately reserved for by Pioneer, no tax liabilities have been asserted against

Pioneer by the Internal Revenue Service or any other governmental body, nor does Pioneer

i

. believe that any tax liabilities will be asserted against it by the Internal Revenue Service or any
' 4 other governmental body which, if adversely determined, would have a materially adverse

effect on the condition of it, financial or otherwise.

l 4. Litigation. Pioneer has no knowledge of any action, suit or proceeding (i) in
',. ény tribunal, whether at law or in equity, or (i) by or before any governmental
instrumentality or other agency, whether such action, suit or proceeding be pending or
threatened against Pioneer or any of its Subsidiaries or affecting it or any of its Subsidiaries,
or any of its assets or property which, if adversely determined, would have a materially adverse

effect on its financial condition or would otherwise adversely affect its ability to perform its

obligations under this Agreement.
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5. Liens and Encumbrances. None of the proéerty of Pioneer or of any of its
Subsidiaries is subject to any lien or encumbrance except in favor of the Baﬁks or, in the case
of its Subsidiaries, in favor of Pioneer, and except for current taxes not delinquent and
involuntary liens, if any, on tangible personal property which have been adequately reserved

for by Pioneer.

6. Records. The books and records of Pioneer are located at its business offices,

the current address of which is 4233 Roanoke Road, Kansas City, Missouri 64111.

7. Enforceable Agreement. This Agreement and all notes and other documents
referred to herein, when executed and delivered to the Banks, will constitute the valid and
legally binding obligations of Pioneer, enforceable against Pioneer in accordance with the
respective terms thereof, subject, however, to the provisions of all laws governing bankruptcy,
insolvency, moratorium or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally or by
the unavailability of specific performance or other equitable remedies.

8. Debt Ranking. Pioneer’s obligations under this Agreement and under all notes
executed by Pioneer in favor of the Banks, whether now or hereafter existing, are superior
in rank to all other indebtedness of Pioneer and to the rights of all common and preferred
shareholders. |

9. Regulation U. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and all borrowings

which may occur in connection herewith will not create a violation of Regulation U of the

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

10. ERISA. To the best knowledge of Pioneer, no prohibited transaction,’

accumulated funding deficiency or reportable event has occurred with respect to any plan to
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which it is a party and which is covered by Title IV of ERISA (the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended). The present value of all benefits vested under all
such plans maintained by Pioneer did not, as of the last annual valuation date exceed the value
of the assets of all such plans allocable to such vested benefits. Neither Pioneer nor any of its
Subsidiaries participate in any multiemployer plans or, to the best knowledge of Pioneer, are

subject 10 any delinquent liability under ERISA in respect to any multiemployer plan or any

other plan.
III._ EXTENSIONS OF CREDIT
1. Term. The term of the Senior Lending Agreement between Pioneer and the

Banks dated as of June 9, 1993 shall terminate on March 1, 1996 and the term of this
Agreement shall commence on March 1, 1996 and shall terminate on March 1, 1998, unless
otherwise extended as provided herein. Unless any of the Banks gives written notice of their
objection to the other Banks and to Pioneer not less than ninety (90) days prior to the date
which is one (1) year prior to the expiration of any existing term hereof, such existing term
shall be automatically extended for one (1) additional year. In the event of any such objection,
the exisfing term of this Agreement shall terminate on the last day thereof, but all Senior Debt
shall be payable by Pioneer in accordance with the maturity stated in the note or notes
evidencing such Senior Debt. In the event all Senior Debt has not been paid in full prior o
the termination of this Agreement, all terms and conditions hereof except Sections Il and IV

hereof shall remain in full force and effect until all Senior Debt is paid in full; provided,

however, that after the termination date and throﬁgh the date all Senior Debt is paid in full,”

any of the Banks may, in their sole discretion, extend unsecured Subordinated Debt and only
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unsecured Subordinated Debt to Pioneer on such terms as any of the Banks may détermine
and, provided, further, that this sentence of this Section III shall also remain in full force and
effect.

Pioneer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon thirty (30)
days prior written notice to all of the Banks if all Senior Debt other than that payable to
Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. is paid in full at the same time on or within ten (10) days
following the last day of such thirty (30) day notice period.

2. Credit Facilities. From time to time during the term hereof Pioneer may submit
to any of the Banks a request for extensions of credit to be evidenced by a Revolving Grid
Note, an Amortizing Note, or a Single Pay Term Note. Such requests for credit may be made
verbally or in writing. Upon receipt of any such request by any of the Banks, the Bank
recetving such request shall, if it desires to extend credit to Pioneer at that time, submit,

verbally or in writing, an offer to extend credit to Pioneer. None of the Banks have any

 commitment to extend any credit requested by Pioneer and any offer by any of the Banks to

extend credit to Pioneer pursuant to a request shall be in the sole discretion of the Banks. In

the event any Bank to which a request for credit is made by Pioneer fails to submit an offer

to extend credit within five (5) Business Days following the request, the request‘shall be
deemed to be denied. Upon acceptance by Pioneer of any offer of an extension of credit the
extension of any such credit, and all terms thereof, shall become a part of and be subject in

all respects to all terms and conditions of this Agreement. If requested by Pioneer, the Banks

agree to confirm in writing as of the date of each Quarterly Certificate, the amount and terms’
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of all credit which is available to Pioneer, subject to the absolute discretion of the Banks,
pursuant to Credit Facility Letters which have been delivered to Pioneer by the Banks.

- The terms of this paragraph 2 of Section III of this Agreement shall not in any way
limit the obligation of the Banks pursuant to paragraph 4 of Section X hereof to renew certain
existing indebtedness of Pioneer to the Banks in the event of failure to give the notice required
by éaragraph 1 of Section X hereof.

3. Note Pricing. All Revolving Grid Notes shall bear interest per annum at the
prime rate of interest as reported from time to time under Money Rates in the Wall Street
Journal, adjusted daily; provided, however, Pioneer shall have the right from time to time to
increase such rate of interest in response to changing market conditions so long as the rate of
interest on all existing Senior Debt which is payable to any Bank and which is evidenced by
a Revolving Grid Note also is increased to this new rate.

All Amortizing Notes shall bear interest per annum at a rate, calculated by reference
to data obtained from Bloomberg, equal to the ninety (90) ciay moving average rate of Treasury
Notes with maturities specified at the time of the extension of credit plus 270 basis points;
provided, however, Pioneer shall have the right from time to time to increase the number of
basis points in response to changing market conditions so long as no increase in the number
of basis points is agreed upon within thirty (30) days following an extension of credit pursuant
hereto by any Bank which is evidenced by an Amortizing Note bearing an interest rate

calculated using"a lower number of basis points.
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All Single Pay Term Notes shall bear interest per annum at such rate as may be a;greed
upon between Pioneer and the Bank extending credit to be evidenced by a Single Pay Term
Note.

Notwithstanding anything stated in this paragraph 3 of Section III to the contrary, in
the event of the increase in the ratio referred to in paragraph 6 of Section VIII the interest rate
payable on all indebtedness evidenced by Revolving Grid Notes then outstanding hereunder
and on all indebtedness incurred thereafter which is evidenced by Revolving Grid Notes,
Amortizing Notes and Single Pay Term Notes shall automatically be increased by 25 basis
points at all times such ratio is at least 6.5 to 1 but less than 7.5 to 1 and shall be increased by
an additional 25 basis points at all times such ratio equals or exceeds 7.5 to 1.

4. Credit Facility Letters. As of March 31 of each calendar year commencing on
March 31, 1996, each Bank which is a party hereto shall, at the request of Pioneer, deliver to
Pioneer a Credit Facility Letter therein indicating the maximum amount of each type of credit
referred to therein which each Bank may be willing to extend to Pioneer during the next

twelve (12) calendar months. Delivery of a Credit Facility Letter to Pioneer by any Bank shall
ﬁot obligate or commit such Bank in any way to extend any credit referred to therein to
Pioneer.

5. Notes and Other Documents to_Continue. Notwithstanding the execution
hereof and the termination on March 1, 1996 of the Senior Lending Agreement dated as of

June 9, 1993, all notes and other documents executed pursuant to such June 9, 1993 Senior

Lending Agreement and not maturing or terminating according to their respective terms on

or prior to March 1, 1996 shall continue in full force and effect, except to the extent amended
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| by this Agreement, beyond March 1, 1996 and any extensions of the term hereof, if any, until
their respective stated maturities.
IV. CONDITIONS TO EXTENSIONS OF CREDIT

No discretionary extension of credit to Pioneer pursuant to any Credit Facility Letter
which has been accepted by Pioneer shall be made by any Bank on or after March 1, 1996
until all of the Banks have received, in the form hereof or attached hereto, all of the following
except as otherwise provided:

(a) An originally executed copy of this Agreement duly signed by authorized officers
of Pioneer and authorized officers of the Banks, or a photocopy thereof certified by the Agent
Bank to be a true and correct copy thereof. Pioneer shall be required o deliver the documents
described in this subparagraph (a) only once to each Bank;

(b) A promissory note for each extension of credit in the form of Exhibit A, B or C
attached hereto duly executed by an authorized officer of Pioneer, each such note to be
delivered only to the Bank extending Senior Debt to be evidenced thereby;

(c) A duly certified resolution of the board of directors of Pioneer (which may be
relied upon until delivery to all of the Banks of a subsequent resolution prospectively revoking
the authority set forth in such earlier resolution, if any), authorizing the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and all notes and other documents to be executed pursuant hereto
or in connection herewith, such resolution designating the officers or employees of Pioneer
authorized to execute the same. Pioneer shall be required to deliver the documents described

in this subparagraph (c) only once to each Bank; and
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(d) A copy of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Pioneer certified by the
secretary of Pioneer and a Certificate of Good Standing for Pioneer and each of its Subsidiaries
issued not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of this Agreement by the Secretary of
State of the state of incorporation of each thereof. Pioneer shall be required to deliver the
documents described in this subparagraph (d) only once to each Bank.

V. NEGATIVE PLEDGE AND CONDITIONAL COLLATERAL

1. Negat'ive Pledge. Pioneer agrees that, at all times while there is any Senior Debt
payable to any of the Banks by Pioneer, it will not pledge any of its assets to any person or
entity other than the Banks nor will it allow any of its Subsidiaries to pledge any of their
assets to any person or entity other than Pioneer.

2. Collateral: Notes. Pioneer hereby grants to all of the Banks a security interest
in all notes payable to Pioneer by any and all of its Subsidiaries now or at any time hereafter
in the form of the Subsidiary Revolving Grid Note or otherwise.

Upon execution hereof, Pioneer will deliver to the Agent Bank possession of all existing
notes payable by any and all of its Subsidiaries to it and within three (3) days after the future
execution of any note payable by any Subsidiary to Pioneer it will deliver possession of the
same to the Agent Bank. All notes payable to Pioneer by its Subsidiaries shall be endorsed
in blank when delivered to the Agent Bank by Pioneer. The Banks agree that they will not,
prior to the declaration of a default hereunder, demand payment, except as otherwise expressly
provided in this Agreement, of any note in the possession of the Agent Bank which is payable

to Pioneer by any of its Subsidiaries because any such note is payable on demand.
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Pioneer also hereby assigns to all of the Banks, and grants to all of the Banks a security

interest in, all of its rights under that certain Assignment of Note Payments berween Pioneer

and each of its Subsidiaries, except Pioneer Military Insurance, dated June 9, 1993 to directly

receive from each of such Subsidiaries the proceeds of all note payments receivable by its |

Subsidiaries from their customers. The Banks further agree to forbear exercise of their rights
under such Assignment of Note Payments unless and until Pioneer receives notice from any
Bank declaring Pioneer to be in default hereunder because of the occurrence of an Event of
Default.

3. Conditional Collateral: Stock. As of the time any Bank declares Pioneer to be
(2) nonperforming under this Agreement because of the occurrence of a Performance Event
or (b) in default because of the occurrence of an Event of Default, Pioneer hereby grants to
the Banks a security interest in all shares of the capital stock, whether no\w or hereafter issued
and outstanding, of each of its Subsidiaries listed on Exhibit D attached hereto and all other
Subsidiaries which may hereafter be acquired or come into existence and at that time, upon
request of the Banks, Pioneer agrees to deliver, within three (3) Business Days of receipt of a
notice dec:-laring nonperformance, to the Agetﬁ Bank all stock certificates evidencing all such
shares with stock powers attached endorsed in blank. Such security interest shall attach to said
shares of stock .upon delivery of certificates evidencing the same to the Agent Bank. The
Banks agree to forbear exercising any rights or remedies which they may have in connection
with their security interest in all such capital stock unless and until any Bank declares Pioneer

to be in default hereunder because of the occurrence of an Event of Default.

17
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4. Collection of Collateral. In the event the Banks are entitled to collect payment
of notes payable to Subsidiaries of Pioneer, the Banks agree that they will exercise good faith
and commercially reasonable efforts to collect payment of such notes; provided, however, the
Banks shall have no obligation to pursue collection of any note which is delinquent by recency
of payment by 270 calendar days or more.

5. Release_of Stock. If any audit of Pioneer’s financial statements, or other

certification deemed acceptable by the Banks which is issued by independent certified public

accountants, discloses that the Performance Event or Events which caused Pioneer to

previously deliver to the Banks the stock described in Section V (3) hereof no longer exist as
of the last day of the period covered by such audited financial statements nor at the time of
delivery of such audited financial statements to the Banks, and Pioneer certifies in writing to
the Banks that it is not then in default under the terms of this Agreement and that no
Performance Event has occurred and is then continuing, the Banks shall redeliver possession
of such certificates evidencing such stock to Pioneer. In the event of any such redelivery, the
Banks shall have the right to possession of such stock in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement at any time and from time to time thereafter upon the future occurrence of any
Performance Event.
V1. PERFORMANCE EVENT
In the event of the occurrence of a Performance Event and any Bank, after satisfying

all requirements stated in paragraph 2 of Section X of this Agreement with respect to all other

Banks which are a party hereto, then exercises its right to declare Pioneer to be nonperforming

under the terms of this Agreement, Pioneer agrees that the Banks shall then and thereafter -
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have the right to receive eighty percent (80%) of all funds received by or under the control of
Pioneer which are proceeds of notes payable to the Subsidiaries of Pioneer, except Pioneer
Military Insurance. Upon receipt of written notice from the Agent Bank, Pioneer will
immediately commence and continue depositing on the fifth (5th) Business Day of each month
eighty percent (80%) of all funds received by or under the control of Pioneer which are
proceeds of notes payable to the Subsidiaries of Pioneer, except Pioneer Military Insurance, to

an account at the Agent Bank established ratably for the benefit of all Banks which are parties

to this Agreement.

The ratable amount payable to each Bank from funds payable for the ratable benefic
of all Banks in accordance with the provisions of the immediately preceding paragraph shall
be calculated by multiplying the total amount payable for the benefit of all Banks by a
fraction, the numerator of which shall equal the total outstanding principal indebtedness to
such Bank, regardless of the stated matunity date or dates, evidenced by Secured Revolving
Grid No‘tes,y Secured Amortizihg Notes and Secured Single Pay Term Notes and the
denominator of which shall equal the total outstanding principal indebtedness to all Banks,
regardless of the stated maturity date or dates, evidenced by Secured Revolving Grid Noteé,

Secured Amortizing Notes and Secured Single Pay Term Notes.

VII. AGENT BANK

1. Agent. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Agent Bank agrees to establish

an account for the benefit of all of the Banks which are parties to this Agreement to be used

for the deposit of funds for the benefit of all of the Banks pursuant to this paragraph of this

Agreement. (a) If the Banks have the right to receive eighty percent (80%) of all funds

19
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received by or under control of Pioneer pursuant to Section VI hereof, Pioneer shall transfer
on the fifth (5th) Business Day of each month eighty percent (80%) of all such proceeds to an
account established at the Agent Bank for the benefit mtﬁbly of all of the Banks which are
parties hereto. (b) If, because of the declaration of an Event of Default, the Banks are
permitted to direct that all proceeds of all notes payable to Pioneer’s Subsidiaries, except
Pioneer Military Insurance, by their customers be paid to an account designated by and subject
to the exclusive control of the Banks, the Agent Bank shall take possession of all such notes
and collect all payments and take such other actions as the Banks may direct, all ratably for
the pro rata benefit of the Banks.

2. Two-Thirds Rule. The Agent Bank shall follow all written directions from the
Banks with respect to collection and disposition of funds deposited in the account established

by it for the benefit of the Banks and collection of collateral so long as at least those Banks

which hold sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the outstanding principal amount of -

all Senior Debt of Pioneer except Senior Debt listed on Exhibit K and except Seniér Debt
payable to Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. have approved such directions, and so long as such
instructions are for the ratable benefit of all Banks. In the event those Banks which hold sixty-
six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the outstanding principal amount of all Senior Debt
of Pioneer do not approve of any written instruction, the Agent Bank shall use its own
discretion in the collection and disposition of funds deposited into such account and the
collection of collateral. In all cases other than the collection and disposition of funds and

collection of collateral covered by this paragraph 2 of Section VII and except as may otherwise
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be expressly provided in this Agreexﬁent, all of the Banks must approve all instructions to the
Agent and amendments to this Agreement.

3. Change of Agent. The Agent Bank may be changed upon thirty (30) Business
Days prior notice to the then Agent Bank at any time or from time to time upon the written
agreement of those Banks which are parties to this Agresment and which, at the time of any
such designation, hold sixty-six and 2/3 percent (66 2/3%) of the outstanding principal amount
of all Senior Debt of Pioneer except Senior Debt listed on Exhibit K and except Senior Debt
payable to Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc.

4, Indemnity. All of the Banks, on a pro rata basis to the extent of each of the
Bank’s percentage interest in the total principal amount of all Senior Debt except Senior Debt
listed on Exhibit K and except Senior Debt payable to Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc. shall
indemnify the Agent Bank and hold it harmless from all loss, cost, damage and expense
whatsoever in connection with its performance as the agent of the Banks hereunder except in
the event of the Agent Bank’s gross negligence or its wilful misconduct.

VIII. COVENANTS OF PIONEER

Pioneer covenants and agrees from the date hereof and until payment in full of all
indebtedness evidenced by any note in the form of Exhibits A, B or C attached hereto, that
Pioneer assumes the obligations set forth below:

1. Mergers. Pioneer will not, nor will it allow any of its Subsidiaries, without the
prior written consent of the Banks, to be a party to any merger, consolidation or other
combination of any kind with any other person or business entity nor will it or any of its

Subsidiaries, without the prior written consent of the Banks, acquire all or any significant
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portion of all of the assets of any other person or business entity nor will it or any of its
Subsidiaries, without the prior written consent of the Banks, dispose of all or any significant
portion of their respective assets; provided, however, this provision shall not prohibit Pioneer
and any or all of its Subsidiaries from merging any one or all into the other nor shall it
prohibit Pioneer or any of its Subsidiaries from selling to or acquiring from third parties
substantial blocks of notes receivable in the ordinary course of the business of Pioneer and its
Subsidiaries in a manner consistent with past practices; and, provided, further, that so long as
William D. Sullivan is the chief executive officer in the surviving corporation of a merger,
Pioneer shall not be prohibited from acquiring another corporation or corporations by way
of merger if (1) such corporation or corporations are in the same business or a business that
is directly or closely related to the business presently conducted by Pioneer and its Subsidiaries,
(i) such merger may reasonably be expected to expand and enhance the services presently
being provided to the customers of the Subsidiaries of Pioneer and (iii) such merger may not
reasonably be expected to cause any materially adverse financial effect on Pioneer and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole and will not cause the occurrence of a Performance Event after
giving effect thereto.

2. Nonconforming Debt. Pioneer will not, without the prior written consent of
all Banks which are a party to this Agreement, incur, create or permit tO exXist amy
indebtedness except (a) Senior Debt (b) those specific unsecured debt obligations listed in

Exhibit K attached hereto (c) Subordinated Debt (d) trade payables and leases incurred in the

ordinary course of business, and (¢) unsecured indebtedness payable to Pioneer Financial |

iiiud_nmbmio.id. Februwy & 1956 22



- K N - - - o P " " LR TN
- — - -,‘ - -"W‘u

wL

Industries, Inc. not to exceed at any time the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Five

Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) and which is a part of Senior Debt.

3. Indebtedness of Subsidiaries. Pioneer will not allow any of its Subsidiaries to
Incur, create or permit to exist indebtedness to any person or entity other than Pioneer except
for trade payables and lease obligations for real estate, fixtures and equipment incurred in the
ordinary course of each of such Subsidiaries’ respective business; and provided further that the
aggregate of all such indebtedness, excluding real property lease obligations, to persons and
entities other than Pioneer for each branch office location of each Subsidiary shall not exceed
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) at any time.

4. Senior Debt/Tangible Net Worth Ratio. Pioneer will at no time permit its
Senior Debt to exceed 4.75 times its Consolidated Tangible Net Worth.

5. Total Required Capital. At all times Pioneer will maintain a Consolidated Total
Required Capital of at least Four Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (§4,500,000.00) plus
fifty percent (50%) of the cumulative positive net income earned by Pioneer during each of its
fiscal years énding subsequent to September 30, 1992.

6. Consolidated Total Indebtedness/Total Required Capital Ratio. Pioneer will at

no time permit the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated Total Required

Capital to exceed 8 to 1.

7. Senior Debt/Net Receivable Ratio. Pioneer will at no time permit the ratio of

Senior Debt to all Consolidated Net Receivables to exceed .80 to 1.

8. Delinquency Adjusted Leverage Ratio. Pioneer will at no time permit the ratio

of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Adjusted Capital to exceed 8.5 to 1.
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9. Loan Loss Reserve. Pioneer agrees that it will maintain at all times a loan loss
reserve in an amount which is equal to or greater than thé loan loss reserve shown on its
audited financial statements as of the end of its most recent fiscal year and at no time shall the
loan loss reserve be less than 2% of Consolidated Net Receivables.

10.  Quarterly Certificate/Compliance Certificate. Pioneer agrees to deliver to all
of the Banks within thirty (30) calendar days after the close of each calendar quarter a
completed Quarterly Certificate and a completed Compliance Certificate, such certificates
being certified by an authorized officer of Pioneer.

11.  New Offices. Pioneer will not open any new branch office location nor will
it allow any Subsidiary to open a new branch office location during any fiscal year following
a fiscal year during which Pioneer and its Subsidiaries had a consolidated net operating loss
except, however, this prohibition shall not prevent Pioneer or any of its Subsidiaries from
moving an existing branch office location to a new location.

12.  Redemptions/Guarantees/Advances. Pioneer will not make any distribution of
assets to its shareholders except payments of dividends declared in the ordinary course of
business which do not create the occurrence of a Performance Event or an Event of Default
hereunder .nor will it purchase, redeem, retire or otherwise acquire any shares of its stock;
Pioneer will not make or guarantee any loan or advance to any person or entity except to its
Subsidiartes, and except to stockholders, officers or employees of Pioneer in an amount not

exceeding Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) in the aggregate except for reasonable

compensation for services performed or expenses incurred in the ordinary course of Pioneer’s -

business. Pioneer will not allow any of its Subsidiaries, now existing or hereafter acquired or
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created, to make or guarantee any loan or advance to any person or entity whatsoever except
to employees for reasonable compensation for services performed or expenses incurred in the
ordinary course of each Subsidiary’s business.

13.  Compliance With Laws. Pioneer will comply in all material respects with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders of any gov_ernmental authority which has

jurisdiction over it; provided, however, this paragraph 13 of Section VII shall not prohibit

Pioneer from contesting in good faith the application to it or any of its Subsidiaries of any law

or regulation of any governmental authority.

14.  Service Charges. Pioneer will not make any payment to Pioneer Financial
Industries, Inc. in any fiscal year for services performed or reasonable expenses incurred in an
aggregate amount greater than Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00); provided,
however, such amount may be increased on each anniversary of this Agreement by a
percentage amount equal to the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index published by
the United States Bureau of Labor for the calendar year then most recently ended.

IX. FINANCIAL INFORMATION |
1. Information. Pioneer agrees to provide to all of the Banks all of the following

: s
during the term of this Agreement: |

a. Quarterly financial statements, in the form used by Pioneer as of the date
hereof, within thirty (30) calendar days after the last Business Day of each calendar quarter.
Said financial statements shall contain at 2 minimum a balance sheet, an income statement and

a Quarterly Certificate.
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b. Audited financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles consistently applied, such statements to be prepared by an
independent certified public accounting firm acceptable to the Banks, an annual management
letter prepared by such independent certified public accounting firm, and a direct cash lending
questionnaire in a form consistent with industry standards, all of which is to be delivered to
the Banks within ninety (90) calendar days after the last business day of its fiscal year.

c. Projected financial statements for each fiscal year not later than thirty (30)
calendar days following the first Business Day of each fiscal year.

d. Such other information as the Banks may reasonably request at any time
and from time to time.

2. Inspection Rights. Pioneer further agrees to reasonably permit from time to
time agents or representatives of each of the Banks to examine Pioneer’s books and records and
to visit all business locations of Pioneer and of its Subsidiaries and discuss its business and
financial affairs with any of its officers or employees; provided, however, that Pioneer shall
not be required to make available any information, the disclosure of which would otherwise
cause Pibneer to be in violation of any law unless the Banks, or their agents or representatives,
execute a confidentiality agreement in a form which would enable Pioneer to legally disclose
any such information to the Banks. |

X. AGREEMENT AMONG BANKS

1. Default Following Nonperformance. After Pioneer has been declared to be

nonperforming because of the occurrence of a Performance Event, all of the Banks agree that

no Bank which is a party hereto may declare Pioneer to be in default other than as the result
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of the occurrence of an Event of Default listed in paragraphs 13(a), 13(c), 13(e) and 13(g) of

Section I hereof for at least one hundred twenty (120) Business Days unless all such Banks
waive such prior notice requirement.
2. Declaration of Intentions.

(@  Prior to declaring Pioneer to be nonperforming or in default under the
terms of this Agreement or otherwise demanding payment of any Senior Debt, any Bank
which is a party hereto shall give Pioneer and all of the Banks which have extended Senior
Debt to Pioneer, ten (10) Business Days prior written notice of its intent to declare

nonperformance or the occurrence of an Event of Default or make demand for payment.

(b)  Any Bank giving notice to Pioneer and the other Banks pursuant to .

paragraph 2(a) of this Section X shall grant to all of the other Banks which are a party to this
Agreement the right to purchase, on a pro rata basis, all Senior Debt of the Bank intending
to declare nonperformance or a default or demand payment, such right to purchase Senior
Debt to be available during the period of ten (10) Business Days following receipt of such
notice. In the event any Bank receiving such notice of intent to declare nonperformance or
a default or a demand of payment elects not to purchase its pro rata share of the Senior Debt
with respect to which payment is to be demanded, the remaining Bank or Banks holding
Senior Debt shall succeed, on a pro rata basis between themselves, to the purchase rights of
the Bank not desiring to purchase its pro rata portion of such Senior Debt. ‘Any Bank

purchasing any Senior Debt pursuant to this subparagraph shall be entitled to receive upon

payment therefor in good funds all notes evidencing such purchased Senior Debt endorsed in -

blank.
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(9  No Bank which is a party to this Agreement will, without the prior

written consent of all of the Banks which are a party to this Agreement, seek collateral, other

than as provided for herein, for all or any part of the Senior Debt nor will any Bank initiate

any legal proceedings against Pioneer or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates without giving ten
(10) Business Days prior written notice to all other Banks which are a party hereto. Any
notice which may be given pursuant to this paragraph may be given concurrently with any
other notice which may be given pursuant to this paragraph.

3. All Credit To Conform. All of the Banks which are parties to this Agreement
agree not to extend any credit to Pioneer and its Subsidiaries unless such credit is extended in
conformity with and subject to the terms of this Agreement and, if prior to termination
hereof, is evidenced by a note in the form of Exhibit A, B or C artached hereto.

4. Renewal Obligation. All of the Banks agree that in the event they do not advise
all of the other Banks and Pioneer of their intent not to renew indebtedness of Pioneer
evidenced by any Single Pay Term Note at least ninety (90) Business Days prior to the
maturity of any such note, the outstanding indebtedness evidenced by any such note will be
renewed on substantially the same terms as the exisfing note except for the interest rate
payable thereon which may be adjusted to a current rate unless all other Banks which are a
party to this Agreement and Pioneer waive in writing, on a case by case basis, such ninety (90)
day prior notice requirement.

XI._ADDITION OF OTHER BANKS
Pioneer shall be entitled to request that other banks or financial institutions become

parties to this Agreement but shall not incur Senior Debt with any other bank or financial
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institution unless such bank or financial institution has become a party hereto. Any bank or
financial institution may become a party hereto upon the request of Pioneer so long as all of
the following conditions are met:

1. Such new bank or financial institution must agree to all terms and conditions
of this Agreement by execution and delivery to Pioneer of an Amendment to this Agreement
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I. In the event any new bank or financial institution
desires to receive an updated opinion of counsel dated as of the effective date when such new
bank or financial institution is made a party hereto, the expense of such updated opinion must
be borne by the new bank or financial institution.

2. Pioneer must execute any amendment which has been executed by a new bank
or other financial institution and deliver an original copy of the same to each Bank which is
already then a party to this Agreement. Unless any Bank which is a party hereto objects in
a written notice delivered to Pioneer within ten (10) Business Days of the objecting Bank’s
receipt of the proposed amendment, the proposed amendment will automatically become
effective and the new bank or financial institution will become a party hereto on the eleventh

(11th) Business Day following the latest date of delivery of the proposed amendment to any

* of the Banks already a party hereto. Within three (3) Business Days following the effective

date of any proposed amendment, Pioneer agrees to send written notice of such effectiveness
to all Banks which are then parties to this Agreement.
XII. ACCELERATION
In the event of the occurrence of any one or more Events of Default which are defined

in paragraph 13 of Section I of this Agreement, and if any such Event of Default shall be
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continuing, any of the Banks may, after compliance with the provisions of paragraph 2 of
Section X of this Agreement, declare the entire principal amount of all Senior Debt of Pioneer
owing to the declaring Bank, together with interes; accrued thereon, to be immediately due
and payable to the: declaring Bank. Upon the declaration of any of the Banks of the
occurrence of an Event of Default, after the declaring Bank has complied with the terms of
paragraph 2 of Section X hereof, the Agent Bank shall have the right, on behalf of all the
Banks, to possession of all notes payable to all Subsidiaries of Pioneer by their respective
customers and the right to direct that all proceeds of such notes be paid directly to an account
designated by and subject to the exclusive control of the Banks at the Agent Bank and (i1) have
access to and use of, all computer hardware and software and related records, instructions and
manuals used by Pioneer or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with the documenting,
evidencing, listing, reporting and collecting of all notes receivable of all Subsidiaries of Pioneer
and an irrevocable Power of Attorney therefor is hereby granted to the Agent Bank. Upon
the declaration of the occurrence of an Event of Default by any of the Banks, the declaring
Bank may proceed to enforce payment of all indebtedness of Pioneer to it under this
Agreement or otherwise and it may exercise any and all rights and remedies afforded to it by
the Uniform Commercial Code of Missour or otherwise possessed by it. Any Bank declaring
Pioneer to be in default hereunder because of the occurrence of an Event of Default shall, after
compliance with the notice requireglents of paragraph 2(a) of Section X of this Agreement,

give written notice of such declaration of default to all other Banks which are parties hereto.
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XIII.  OPINION OF COUNSEL

Prior fo the first extension of any new credit by any Bank to Pioneer after the date
hereof, Pioneer agrees to furnish to each of the Banks an opinion of counsel to Pioneer in the
form of Exhibit L attached hereto to the effect that Pioneer is a corporation duly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the state of Missouri; that to the best of such counsel’s
knowledge and belief, Pioneer is qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in
good standing in every jurisdiction where the ownership of its properties or the nature of its
business requires qualification; that Pioneer has full power to execute and deliver this
Agreement, and all notes and other documents to be executed pursuant hereto or in
connection herewith; that all such actions have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate
action, and are not in conflict with the charter or bylaws of Pioneer, nor to the best of such
counsel’s knowledge and belief in conflict with any material agreement binding upon Pioneer;
that this Agreement and the Revolving Grid Notes, Amortizing Notes and Single Pay Term
Notes when executed and delivered by Pioneer to the Banks will be the legal and binding
obligations of Pioneer, subject to bankruptcy and other similar laws effecting the enforcement
of credifor’s rights generally and the unavailability of specific performance or other equitable
remedies; that as of the date of this Agreement, such counsel knows of no litigation or other
proceeding pending or threatened against Pioneer of the kind referred to in paragraph 4 of

Section II hereof.

XIV. GENERAL
1. Notices. All notices hereunder shall, unless otherwise specified herein, or unless’

any party hereto shall subsequently give written notice to the others specifying some other
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address, be deemed to be given when actually received, or if mailed, three (3) Business Days

after being deposited postage prepaid in the United States mail, certified mail return receipt

requested, addressed to the other parties hereto at their respective present mailing addresses

which are:

Bank of Boston

100 Federal Street - Box 2016

Dept. 01-13-01

Boston, Massachusetts 02106-2016

Attention: Gunther E. Fritze, Director Financial Institution

Boatmen’s First National Bank of Kansas City
14 W. 10th Street

P.O. Box 419038

Kansas City, Missouri 64183

Attention: Thomas J. Butkus, Vice President

First National Bank of Kansas
4650 College Boulevard
Overland Park, Kansas 66211
Attention: Craig A. Shy

LaSalle National Bank
120 South LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60603
Attention: Terry Keating

Liberty Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City,
National Association

100 North Broadway

P.O. Box 25848

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125

Attention: Laura Christofferson

Mercantile Bank of Kansas City
1101 Walnut

P.O. Box 419147

Kansas City, Missouri 64141
Attention: Mike Corless

2{sfeadumb]MacPioSrL February 6 19% 32

rdH



(-

) i 7 N
R ¢ ;

-y ‘e

b N

{

NBD Bank

611 Woodward Avenue

Detroit, Michigan 48226
Attention: Daniel ]. Clarke, Vice President
Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
4233 Roanoke Road

Kansas City, Missouri 64111
Attention: Thomas H. Holcom, Jr.
Southwest Bank of St. Louis

2301 South Kingshighway

St. Louis, Missour1 63110
Attention: Andrew S. Hereford
UMB Bank, N.A.

1010 Grand Avenue

Kansas City, Missouri 64106
Attention: Douglas F. Page.

2. No Waivers. No failure or delay by the Agent Bank or any of the other Banks
in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor
shall any single or partial modification or waiver of any provision of this Agréement or of any
note to be executed pursuant hereto or in connection herewith or a single or partial exercise
of any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of such or of any
other right, power or privilege.

3. Offsets. Pioneer specifically agrees that upon the declaration of an occurrence
of an Event of Default, and if such Event of Default is continuing, the Banks shall be entitled
to exercise any right of setoff or banker’s lien at any time, irrespective of the stated maturity

of any note executed pursuant hereto or in connection herewith evidencing any indebtedness
y P

of Pioneer to the Banks; provided, however, that all Banks exercising any right of setoff shall
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transfer all funds set off to the Agent Bank to be distributed ratably for the benefit of all of
the Banks.

4. Governing Law. This Agreement and all notes executed pursuant hereto or in
connection herewith shall be deemed to be contracts made under and shall be construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of Missouri.

5. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE
BETWEEN PIONEER AND ANY OF THE BANKS RELATED IN ANY WAY TO THIS
AGREEMENT WHICH BECOMES THE SUBJECT OF ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING
IN ANY COURT OF LAW, PIONEER HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT WHICH IT
MIGHT OTHERWISE HA.VE TO A TRIAL BY JURY.

6. Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement

or any note executed pursuant hereto or in connection herewith shall be invalid, illegal or

‘unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining

provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

7. Expenses. Pioneer agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, including
reasonable attorneys fees, incurred by the Banks in connection with the enforcement of the
rights of the Banks under this Agreement or any of the notes executed pursuant hereto or in
connection herewith and in connection with any Amendment, extension or renewal of any
thereof, or waivers thereunder.

8. Counterparts. This Agreement, and any Amendment hereto, may be executed
in two or more counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but when taken’

together, shall constitute but one agreement.
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9. Titles and Headings. All titles and headings which are used in this Agreement

are used solely for the convenience of the parties hereto and are not part of the agreement of

the parties.

10.  Conflicting Documents. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this

 Agreement and the terms of any note or other document executed pursuant hereto or in

connection herewith, the terms of this Agreement shall control.

11, Assignment. This Agreement and all provisions hereof shall be binding upen
and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns;
provided, however, that Pioneer may not assign any rights or obligations hereunder without
the prior written consent of the Banks; and provided further that Pioneer acknowledges and
agrees that the Banks may, in their sole discretion and without notice to Pioneer, grant one
or more participation interests in any of the obligations of Pioneer hereunder to any other
lender.

12.  All provisions of all documents executed and deli\;ered by Pioneer to or for the
benefit of the Banks pursuant to the Senior Lending Agreement between Pioneer and the
Banks déted as of June 9, 1993, except to the extent expressly modified by this Agreement,
shall remain in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with their respective terms
and any reference in any such documents to such Senior Lending Agreement shall be deemed
to refer to this Agreement and Pioneer shall be deemed to have executed and delivered all such
documents to or for the benefit of the Banks as if it had executed or reconfirmed the validity
and enforceability thereof in writing and delivered all such documents as originals dated as of

the date hereof pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
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13. Statutory Statement, Disclosure Required by Mo. Rev. Stat. Section 432.045.

ORAL AGREEMENTS OR COMMITMENTS TO LOAN MONEY, EXTEND CREDIT
OR TO FORBEAR FROM ENFORCING REPAYMENT OF A DEBT INCLUDING
PROMISES TO EXTEND OR RENEW SUCH DEBT ARE NOT ENFORCEABLE. TO
PROTECT YOU, PIONEER, AND US, THE BANKS, FROM MISUNDERSTANDING
OR DISAPPOINTMENT, ANY AGREEMENTS WE REACH COVERING SUCH
MATTERS ARE CONTAINED IN THIS WRITING, WHICH IS THE COMPLETE
AND EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN US, EXCEPT AS
WE MAY LATER AGREE IN WRITING TO MODIFY IT.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
day and year first written above.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.

By M
Name: Willia ullivan
Title: President

BANK OF BOSTON

BOATMEN’S FIRST NATIONAL BANK

/7 OF KANSAS CITY

by 4/%/ S AN
Name: -71\0mﬂ$ Blf‘!LKHS
Title: \/M

FIRST ATIONAI(BANK OF KANSAS LASALLE NATIONA BANK

By [ /7¢} / Bﬂ\ m

Name: Cne flv. Sty Nanfe: /"r;‘zz {A. p,\:r,
Title: <Ecen Nuce Pegsiaig” Title: (<7 \) 1%

| Co— Y‘CSI
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LIBERTY BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
OF OKLAHOMA CITY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION

BY %p-——z ///Aﬂ/ f e

/&/
ame: LW( (/V‘((Hép(“7c\y
Tltle L( < P/(,’d(‘}?—»

NBD BANK
Name: Decai el T. Clarke TT,
Title: VP

UMB BANK, N.A.

i)l 2. 727

Name: Mekewws £, i2ce
Title: Exge. V- P
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MERCANTILE BANK OF KANSAS CITY

oy Topue N fho & v/

Name: (aves B, 8ueE
“Title: EV.E

SOUTHWEST BANK OF ST. LOUIS

By 4%,44 _/g _/iﬁ/ﬂ_%%
Name: Anrdfrew 5 fferdfor

Title: View presi ofer
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SECURED
REVOLVING GRID NOTE
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

s and interest ,49

On Demand, for value received, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri Corporation,
promises to pay to (hereinafter called "Bank™) or
to its order at its main office, in 12 equal monthly principal payments, the principal sum of the
lesser of: (i) dollars; or (ii) the unpaid principal amount
of all advances made by Bank; together with interest on all principal amounts outstanding
hereunder from time to time, from date (s) of disbursement (s) until paid, at the rate of the Bank's__
per annum (365 day year), adjusted daily, with all accrued interest payable

monthly in arrears on the 10th day of each month. The first instaliment of principal shall commence
on the 10th day of the month following 30 days after demand was made on Maker.

“Collateral” as used herein shall mean all notes payable to Maker by any and all of its
Subsidiaries which are listed on Exhibit D attached to the Senior Lending Agreement described
below and all other Subsidiaries as otherwise defined in said Agreement, and all payments due
such Subsidiaries from their customers which have been assigned to Maker by such Subsidiaries
pursuant to an Assignment of Note Payments described below.

The undersigned Maker hereby grants to Bank a security interest in the Collateral for the
payment of all amounts due under this note and for the payment of ali other present and future
obligations to the Bank incurred pursuant to the Senior Lending Agreement described below.

If any of said installments, or any part thereof, is not paid when due and remains unpaid after
proper notice thereof is given by Bank to Maker, then the entire indebtedness then remaining
unpaid shall, at the option of the holder hereof, and without notice of demand, become immediately
due and payable, subject to the terms of the Senior Lending Agreement described below. Any

" amount not paid shall thereafter bear interest until paid at the rate hereinbefore specified, plus two
percent per annum. Unless Bank, in its sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all

payments shall be applied first to payment of accrued interest, and then to reduction of the
principal sum due hereunder. Any part of the outstanding principal balance hereof may be paid
prior to Demand without penalty, and if less than the principal sum stated above is outstanding, the
undersigned, may from time to time until Demand receive, but the Bank has no commitment to
make, further disbursements hereunder; provided, however, the aggregate amount of all principal
amounts outstanding hereunder shall at no time exceed the face amount of this note; and provided
further, that each and every disbursement made under this Revolving Grid Note shall be at the
Bank's sole discretion. All advances made by Bank to the undersigned and all principal and
interest payments thereon shall be recorded on the Schedule of Disbursements and Payments of
Principal; provided, however, that the failure to make such notation shall not affect the obligation of
the undersigned Maker to repay the outstanding principal amount of, together with interest on, any
advances made by the Bank to the undersigned Maker pursuant to the Senior Lending Agreement
described below; and Bank is hereby unilaterally authorized to make such notations thereon. The
amounts recorded shall be presumptive evidence of the outstanding pnncupal balance of this
Revolving Pmmnssory Note. .

This Note is the "Note"” referred to in the "Credit Facility Letter” dated ,'19
, and is one of the Revolving Grid Notes referred to in the Amended and Restated Senior

Lending Agreement dated June-0,-1883March 1, 1996, among Maker, the Bank, and certain other
financial institutions.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri Corporation (Maker)
By:

4233 Roanoke Road
Kansas City, MO 64111-4076
Note No. Tax Identification No. 44-0607504
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SECURED
AMORTIZING NOTE
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
SENIOR NOTE

3 and interest .19

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. promises to pay

(Bank) at its main office, or to its order, the principal sum of

Dollars, together with interest on the

unpaid principal balance from the date of this note until paid, at the rate of percent per

annum-{360-day-year}. This note shall be payable as follows: (i) For the period commencing with

the date of this note and extending to accrued interest only (360 day year) is payable

monthly at the above rate, on the 10th day of each month, and (ii) for the period commencing -

principal and interest {360 day year) shall be payable, in { ) consecutive monthly

instaliments of Dollars ($ __) each, the first to become due on
and on the 10th day of each month thereafter until the indebtedness evidenced by this

note is fully paid; provided, however, the final maturity date of this note shall be

Any amount not paid when due shall thereafter bear interest until paid at the rate herein before

specified, plus two percent annum. Unless Bank, in its sole discretion, may from time to time

- otherwise direct, all payments shall be applied first to payment of accrued interest, and then to

reduction of the principal sum due hereunder.

*Collateral” as used herein shaill mean all notes payable to Maker by any and all of its
Subsidiaries which are listed on Exhibit D attached to the Senior Lending Agreement described
below and all other Subsidiaries as otherwise defined in said Agreement, and all payments due
such Subsidiaries from their customers which have been assigned to Maker by such Subsidiaries
pursuant to an Assignment of Note Payments described below.

The undersigned Maker hereby grants to Bank a security interest in the Collateral for the
payment of all amounts due under this note and for the payment of all other present and future
obligations to the Bank incurred pprsuant to the Senior Lending Agreement described below.

The Maker will not prepay more than two scheduled payments of the principal amount of this
note, unless the Net Receivables owned by the Maker at the end of any month are less than 70

percent of the greatest amount of net consolidated Net Receivables outstanding at any quarterend -

during the term of this note, except as otherwise provided under the provisions of paragraph 1 of
Section 1l of the Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated June-8,-4893March 1,

1996.

This Note is the "Note" referred to in the "Credit Facility Letter” dated , 3883 _,
and is one of the Amortizing Notes referred to in the Amended and Restated Senior Lending

Agreement dated ‘
June-8,-4983March 1, 1996, among Maker, the Bank, and certain other financial institutions.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri Corporation (Maker)

By

4233 Roanoke Road
Kansas City, MO 64111-4076
Tax Identification No. 44-0607504

Note No.



SECURED
: SINGLE PAY TERM NOTE
s Dated as of

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC., a Missouri corporation, promises to payto _____

{herein the “Bank"), or order, on the Single Pay Note Expi Expiry
:Jate shown in the Credit Facmty Letter described below, the principal amount of
(] ) or such lesser aggregate amount of advances
as have been made by Bank pursuant to the Credit Facility Letter described below and which remain outstanding, which
amount shall be due and payable in lawfui money of the United States of America in immediately available funds. Maker
turther promises to pay Interest and principal when due, to the Bank at the Bank’s office located at
or such other office of the Bank as the Bank may direct in writing.

The undersigned further promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance from the date hereof until paid in full
at the rates and at the times as follows:

An advance will bear interest , a8 determined by the Bank (on
the basis of a 365 day year), in its sole discretion for fixed periods selected by the Maker (but not to exceed the Expiry
Date). Interest is payabie monthly in arrears on the tenth day of each month, or on the date of any payment or part
payment of any advance. Any amount which is not paid when due hereunder shall bear interest until paid in full at the
Bank’s prime rate of interest plus two percent per annum.

“Coliateral” as used herein shall mean all notes payable to Maker by any and all of its Subsidiaries which are listed on
Exhibit D attached to the Senior Lending Agreement described below and all other Subsidiaries as otherwise defined in
said Agreement, and ail payments due such Subsidiaries from their customers which have been assigned to Maker by
such Subsidiaries pursuant to an Assignment of Note Payments described below.

The undersigned Maker hereby grants to Bank a security interest in the Collateral for the payment of ail amounts due
under this note and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the Bank incurred pursuant to the Senior
Lending Agreement described below.

All advances made by the Bank to the undersigned pursuant to the Credit Facility Letter and all payments and

- wrepayments made on account of the principal balance hereof may be recorded by the Bank on the schedule annexed

Jereto; provided, however, that the failure to make a notation shall not affect the obligation of the undersigned hereunder
with respect to payments or principal or interest on this Note and provided, further, that Bank shall provide a written
notice and photocopy of such notations simultaneously to Maker.

The Maker may only prepay an advance at the end of the applicable fixed period except as otherwise provided herein
and except as otherwise provided under the provisions of paragraph 1 or Section lil of the Amended and Restated Senior
Lending Agreement dated June-8,4883March 1, 1996. In the event that the Maker does repay an advance on a day other
than the last day of a fixed period, the Maker shall promptly reimburse the Bank for all reasonably demonstrated losses

"and expenses incurred in liquidating or employing deposits obtained from third parties to make or maintain the advance

or any part thereof. Amounts which are repaid may be re-borrowed, subject to the terms and conditions of the Credit
Facllity Letter.

This Note is the “Note” referred to in the “Credit Faclltty Letter” dated .49 , and is one of the
Single Pay Term Notes referred to in the Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated June-8-4803March 1,

1996, among Maker, the Bank and certain other fi nancial institutions.
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri Corporation (Maker)

EXPIRY DATE:

By

4233 Roanoke Road

Kansas Clty, MO 64111-4076
Note No. Tax Identification NO. 44-0607504




PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES SUBSIDIARY LISTING
(Operating Subsidiaries)

Pioneer Military Lending of Colorado, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Kansas, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Louisiana, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending, Inc. a Nebraska Corporation
Pioneer Military Lending of Missouri, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Oklahoma, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Georgia, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Tennessee, Inc.
Military Acceptance Corporation of Nevada, Inc.
Pioneer Miiitary Lending of Nevada, inc.

Pioneer Lending of Washington, Inc.
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SUBSIDIARY REVOLVING GRID NOTE EXHIBIT E

$ and Interest .19

i’AYMENTS,’DISBURSEMENTS AND INTEREST
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned "Maker” promises to pay to the order of Pioneer Financial

Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation, (hereinafter called "Lender"), at its main office, on demand, but if

no demand is made then on .19 the principal sum of

or such other
lesser amount as shall be noted on the Schedule of Disbursements and Payments of Principal inciuded
herein or attached hereto pursuant to the authority set forth herein, together with interest on the unpaid
principal balance hereof from time to time outstanding from date(s) of disbursement(s) until paid, at the
rate of nine percent per annum with all interest calculated and payable monthly in arrears, based on the
month-end balance. Unless Lender, in its sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all
payments shall be applied first to payment of accrued interest, and then to reduction of the principal
sum due hereunder. This note shall bear interest after maturity, whether by reason of acceleration or
otherwise, at a rate of interest equal to two percent (2%) in excess of the rate stated above until paid in
full, and such interest shall be compounded annuaily if not paid annually. Any part of the outstanding
principal balance hereof may be paid prior to maturity and if less than the full amount due hereunder is
paid, the undersigned may from time to time until maturity receive, but the Lender has no commitment to
make, further disbursements hereunder; provided, however, the aggregate amount of all principal
amounts outstanding hereunder shall at no time exceed the face amount of this note; and provided
further, that each and every disbursement made under this Subsidiary Revolving Grid Note shall be at
the Lender's sole discretion. In the event the undersigned pays any part of the principal balance hereof
prior to maturity or, in accordance with the terms hereof, receives any additional disbursements of
principal hereunder, the principal amount due hereunder shall presumptively be the Jast amount stated
to be the Unpaid Principal Balance of Note on the Schedule of Disbursements and Payments of
Principal and the undersigned hereby authorize(s) the Lender to make notations on the Schedule of
Disbursements and Payments of Principal {or Lender's computer-generated grid) from time to time to
ev:dence payments and disbursements hereunder.

COLLATERAL
The term "Collateral” as used herein includes (but without limitation} all of the property listed below
now owned and hereafter acquired, all proceeds and products thereof, and all accessions thereto.

Description of Collateral: All cash, deposit accounts, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
Assignment of Note Payments, reserve for ioss and dealer reserve for loss.

GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST

The Maker hereby grants to Lender a security interest in the Collateral and pledges and assngns the
Collateral to Lender for the payment of all amounts due under this note, and all renewals and extensions
thereof, and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the holder, direct or
contingent, secured or unsecured, whether or not due, of Maker (ail of which amounts and obligations
are hereinafter referred to as "Secured Obligations”), and Lender may accordingly retain the Collateral or
any part thereof as security after the payment of all amounts due under this note. The Maker agrees to
give to Lender upon Lender's request, from time to time, such other and further security as Lender, in its
sole discretion, may deem necessary or appropnate. such additional security to become “Collateral”
under the provisions hereof.

RIGHTS RESPECTING COLLATERAL

After maturity, the holder may (1) transfer all or any part of the Collateral into the name of the holder
hereof or its nominee, with or without disclosing that such Collateral is subject to the lien and security
interest hereunder; (2) notify the parties obligated on any of the Collateral to make payment to the holder

. hereof of any amounts due or to become due thereunder; (3) enforce collection of any of the Collateral
3 by suit or otherwise and surrender, release or exchange all or any part thereof, or compromise, extend or
" renew for any period (whether or not longer than the original period) any indebtedness secured thereby;

(4).take control of any proceeds of the Collateral; (5) endorse any Collateral in the name of Maker
whenever, in the opinion of the holder, such endorsement may facilitate the handling of, or realization

—
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upon, the Collateral, and an irrevocable power of attorney therefor is hereby granted to the holder
hereof; however, any such action must comply fully with the Assignment of Note Payments and Senior

_ Lending Agreement executed by Lender if holder is other than Lender.

The Maker hereby agrees to take any and all steps necessary to preserve any rights in the Collateral
against prior parties and the holder hereof shall not be bound to take any such steps. Notwithstanding
any other provision herein, the Maker shall not give, transfer, sell, encumber or otherwise dispose of any
of the Collateral, or any interest therein, without Lender’s advance written consent. .

ACCELERATION AND EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Without limitation on the demand maturity of this note, the holder may, without demand or notice of
any kind, declare this note and any other of the Secured Obligations immediately due and payable in full
at any time that the holder deems itself insecure for any reason whatsoever in respect of any Secured
Obligation. Upon the occurrence of any of the following events of defauit: (1) failure of Maker to pay or
perform any other obligation of the Maker; (2) dissolution of, or termination of existence of the Maker; (3)
the failure of the Maker to pay debts as they mature; (4) appointment of a receiver of or for any part of
the property of the Maker, an assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Maker; or the commencement
of any proceedings under bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or against the Maker then this note and all
ather obligations of each of the Maker to the holder hereof shall immediately become due and payable in
full without notice or demand; provided, however, that ail such actions must be in accordance with ]
Senior Lending Agreement dated June 9, 1993 * among Lender and certain Banks therein
listed if holder is other than Lender.

MISSOURI LAW
The interpretation of this instrument and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto shall be

govemed by the laws of the State of Missouri.

COLLECTION EXPENSES
To the extent permitted by applicable law, the undersigned agrees to pay all expenses of the hoider

" in collecting this note and enforcing rights respecting and realizing upon any of the Collateral, including

reasonable attorneys' fees.

NO WAIVERS
Any failure by the holder hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of

the right to exercise the same or any other right at any other time and from time to time thereafter.

HEADINGS
All headings or titles appearing in this note are used as a matter of convenience only and shall not

affect the interpretation of the provisions hereof.

ASSIGNMENT _
Lender may assign this note together with all Collateral and alf rights hereunder without notice to or

consent of the undersigned.

* or March 1, 1996 as
the case may be,

By:

Title:
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| EXHIBIT F
| CREDIT FACILITY LETTER

. he undersigned bank, as of the date hereof, expects to offer a maximum aggregate credit facility of
$____ (“Credit Facility”) during the next twelve months to Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a
, * “'ssouri corporation, which shall be subject to all terms and conditions of that certain amended and

. .tified Senior Lending Agreement dated Jure-8-+883March 1, 1996 (the “Agreement”). The terms
hereof are hereby incorporated by reference into the Agreement, reference to which is made for a full
statement of all terms thereof. The specific terms of the Credit Facility are as follows:

i,

Lender:
(the “Bank”)
Borrower.  Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
4233 Roanoke Road
Kansas City, Missouri 64111 (the “Borrower”)
Drawings: This Credit Facility is available thfough , 19___unless terminated

earlier pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. All proceeds will be transmitted
to a specified bank and account number for the Borrower and initially that will be
Urited-MissouriMB Bank, n.a. in Account No. 9801049275.

——

Facility: = Revolving Grid Note:
: Revolving Grid Note Pricing:

Revolving Grid Note Maturity:
Amortizing Note(s) Funded:
Amortizing Note(s) Unfunded:
Amortizing Note(s) Pricing:
Single Pay Term Note Amount:
Single Pay Term Note Expiry Date:

We appreciate this opportunity to provide this statement of present expectations in support of your
financial requirements. Your acceptance of any credit which may be extended by the undersigned
constitutes a certification that all warranties and representations in Section Il of the Agreement are
true as of the date of the extension of any such credit and that Pioneer, as of such date, is not in
default under the terms of such Agreement. By delivery of this Credit Facility Letter to you, the
undersigned does not commit or otherwise obligate itself to extend to you any credit described in the
Credit Facility.

, Bank Name
Dated: By:
Name
Title
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Delinquency Adjusted Leverage

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
A Missouri Corporation

4233 Roanoke Road, Kansas City, MO 641114076

Compliance Certificate for Senior Lending Agreement Dated June 9, 1993

Calculation Date: __September 30, 1995
REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS
Senior Indebtedness/Tangible Net Worth ..........cccoceeeee. -
Senior Indebtedness/Net Receivable RAt0.........ccccerrecenrerincersnsessssesssnssnsssssessensesees
Total Indebtedness/Total Required Capital
Loans or advances to stockholders, offiCers of emplOYees..............oovvveeeeeeereeeemrrne

.............

Indebtedness of Any Branch Over $50,000

ACTUAL
128101

57.81%
484101

PERMITTED

475101
80 %
8tol

50,000

RAUO. e

T O

CAPITAL/RESERVE CALCULATIONS

Consolidated capital stock, preferred stock and earned surplus of
the company

.......................................................................................................

(2) Unpaid balance on "270-day” delinquent aCCOUDLS .......ccoceeemceeceenrenceneensreennssaserons
(3)  Total Required Capital...........ccoeririinrnrscsmrnsnesssssinsensssssisessissssesssssssnsssessssssasssasesenes
“) Junior Subordinated Indebtedness ...
' (5)  Senior Subordinated InAEDEANESS....oroosooe S
o) L.081 JOSS TESETVE ..cccvvirrirersrceereerenneresesaranetss et ssecssessosmeesneesas smessanesseseacessseesssasesssamren
) DCAlBT 1055 TESETVES.......coieeierereeciereersamiesssveesssssecessarssssssrarsessssssssesrnsssssassnsssssnsansran
SUBTOTAL........cooeirietrcntrcencreesiensassbesstssscassasastmstssssse s sensenentacosasssens

Less: "90-day” recency delinquent 3CCOUDLS ........ccoceeeecremruresareeecassnseresensenns A
TANGIBLE NET WORTH......coecreereesccccreecnunnns OSSO
(8) Loan Loss Reserve/Net Receivables RAHO. ... ..cccoicoticeecrieiienencenenceneseesnessesssnsssesssnsann

' INDEBTEDNESS CALCULATION

1) Short Term Notes due Bank...........c.ccccucueee.

(2)  Short Term Notes dﬁe ABHALES......cocinirerieniriniisnsisesisscssssssssssssssssnsesensasssassasens
Q3) Short Term Notes dug Others ........c..ociiiiieicitececeere it ere e sercr e eeesnssnesessnesnsessees
(4)  Senior TErM NOTES .....vmeeeniesre et sttt e
TOTAL SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS .........ccocseicriesmmnsiseresassessnsessissmmsossssessssssssessassessssasssasiess
TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS .......coooiirneneircneeenssese s ssasssnssssisssssssassssesssssssssassesassassssssess

) S e dEN

Chief Financial Officer

7,422,044

11,648,373

NONE
1,363,868
265,050
20,699,335

1,822.394

18,876,941
325%

4,185,000
289,756
NONE
19,778,674

$ 24,253,430

35,901,803

3,484,286

1,358,868

2.00 %

1, the undersigned Chief Financial Officer of the company, hereby state that the above information is true and correct. 1 am not
aware of any Event of Default on the above-referenced note that exists on the date this Certificate of Compliance is signed.
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QUARTERLY CERTIFICATE
FOR THE CALENDAR QUARTER ENDED:

} 1. EXECUTED REVOLVING GRID NOTES -

Maximum Principal
Amount Amount
Bank Authorized Qutstanding Note Nos.
2. EXECUTED AMORTIZING NOTES -
Original Outstanding Note
Principal Principal Maturity
Bank Note No/Date Amaount Amount Date
3. AMORTIZING NOTES -- UNFUNDED EXPECTED AVAILABILITY
Bank Unfunded Amounts Schedule
4, EXECUTED SINGLE PAY TERM NOTES - UNFUNDED EXPECTED
AVAILABILITY
Amount of
Unfunded
Principal Maturity Expected
Bank Note No/Date Amount Date Availability
This certificate is executed this day of : : , ¥98— pursuant to paragraph
VHI(10) of that certain Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated dure-3-3+893March

1, 1996.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

BY:




| EXHIBIT |
- v FORM OF AMENDMENT TO

SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT TO
ADD BANKS OR OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

RN

Amendment NQ». to Senior Lending Agreement

' This Amendment to that certain Amended and Restated Senior Lending
Agreement originally dated Jure-9—3993March 1, 1996, a copy of which is attached
hereto (hereinafter referred to as the "Senior Lending Agreement”) is made
. 19__ by and between all banks or other financial institutions which are as of the
date hereof parties to the Senior Lending Agreement; Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "Pioneer™) and , a
corporation with offices located at
{(hereinafter referred to as "New Bank").

WHEREAS, Pioneer has requested New Bank to extend credit to it and New
Bank is willing to extend such credit; and

WHEREAS, Pioneer is prohibited from receiving credit from New Bank unless
New Bank becomes a party to the Senior Lending Agreement; and

, WHEREAS, New Bank desires to become a party to the Senior Lending
)  Agreement. '

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement of the parties
hereto and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, it is agreed by and between Pioneer, New Bank and all of the banks
and financial institutions which are presently parties to the Senior Lending Agreement
as follows: '

1. The Senior Lending Agreement is hereby amended pursuant to Section X!
thereof to add New Bank as a party thereto on the eleventh (11th} business day
following delivery by Pioneer of a copy hereof executed by both Pioneer and New
Bank to each of the banks and financial institutions which are presently parties to the
Senior Lending Agreement if none of said banks or financial institutions objects to
New Bank becoming a party to the Senior Lending Agreement.

2. Upon the effective date hereof which shall be determined by paragraph 2 .
of Section X! of the Senior Lending Agreement, New Bank agrees to be bound by all
terms and conditions of the Senior Lending Agreement and further agrees that afl
credit which is extended by New Bank to Pioneer shall be subject to all terms and
agreements of the Senior Lending Agreement.

i .
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EXHIBIT |
3. Section | of the Senior Lending Agreement is hereby amended to add a
new paragraph numbered _ which shall state the following: " " shall mean _

of

4, Paragraph 4 of Section | of the Senior Lending Agreement is hereby
amended to add New Bank within the definition of "Banks”.

5. Paragraph 1 of Section XIV of the Senior Lending Agreement is hereby
amended to add the foliowing:

6. All terms of the Senior Lending Agreement, unless expressly amended
hereby, shall remain in full force and effect as if this Amendment had not been
adopted.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to
the Senior Lending Agreement as of the day and year first written above.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC
a Mnssoun corporation

By
Name:
Title:

Name:
Title:

(6



ASSIGNMENT OF NOTE PAYMENTS

This Assignment of Note Payments, made as of this 9™ day of June, 1993, ("Assignor”) to
Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. ("Assignee”).

in consideration of the outstanding indebtedness of Assignor to Assignee and future
loans which may be made by Assignee to Assignor, this Assignment is made to Assignee, and its
successors and assigns, as security for the payment of all loans from Assignee to Assignor
whether now or hereafter existing and for the performance and observance of all other
obligations of the Assignor to the Assignee now existing or hereafter created. Assignor does
hereby sell, assign, transfer and set over to Assignee, its successors and assigns, and grant a
security interest to Assignee, its successors and assigns in all payments which are or may be
due to Assignor from Assignor's customers, whether or not any of such obligations are
evidenced by a promissory note, together with all of Assignor's rights to collect such payments
at any time and from time to time hereafter. The acceptance of this Assignment and the
coilection of the payments and obligations of Assignor's customers shall not constitute a waiver
of any rights of the Assignee to the provisions of any note given by Assignor to Assignee or any
other document given by Assignor to Assignee which evidences any obligation of Assignor to
Assignee. Before or after maturity, whether by acceieration or otherwise, of any note or other
obligations of the Assignor to the Assignee, the Assignee, its successors or its assigns, may
notify the customers of the Assignor which are obligated to make payments to the Assignor to
make all such payments directly to the Assignee or to its successors or assigns, as the case may
be. The Assignee, its successors and assigns, may enforce collection of any such payments by
suit or otherwise and surrender, release or exchange all or any part of, or compromise, extend or
renew for any period (whether or not longer than the original period) any indebtedness of such
customers and an irrevocable power of attorney therefor is hereby granted to each of the
Assignee and its successors and assigns.

Assignee, its successors and assigns, shall not in any way be responsible for the failure
of the Assignor to perform any of the Assignor's obligations to its customers and Assignor
hereby agrees to hold Assignee and its successors and assigns harmless from any such
obligations, none of which are accepted by Assignee, its successors and assigns.

Assignor will, upon the request of Assignee or its successors or assigns, execute any
and ail other instruments and documents necessary to further carry these presents into effect or
to accomplish any other purpose necessary or appropriate in connection with this Assignment.

The payment obligations of Assignor's customers to it and any and all notes or other
documents evidencing the same shall not at any time be sold, assigned, transferred or set over
by Assignor nor shall Assignor at any time allow the same to become subject to any lien or
encumbrance except a lien or encumbrance in favor of Assignee or its successors or assigns.

Upon request, Assignor agrees to deliver into the possession of Assignee all notes and
other documents evidencing all obligations of its customers to Assignor. The enforcement and
implementation, both presently and prospectively, of this Assignment by Assignee, its
successors and assigns, shall not, and Assignor hereby further covenants and agrees that the
exercise of the rights of Assignee, its successors and assigns, under this Assignment shall in no
manner, be dependent upon, affect, impair or restrict the rights of the Assignee, its successors
and assigns, under any other document evidencing any obligations of Assignor to Assignee.
This Assignment, together with all of the covenants and warranties herein contained, shall inure
to the benefit of the Assignee, its successors and assigns, and Assignee may unconditionally
assign all of its rights under this Assignment to any person or entity at any time without any
prior notice to Assignor. Upon any assignment of the rights of Assignee hereunder to any
person or entity, any such person or entity receiving the assignment of all of Assignee's rights
hereunder shall be entitied to unconditionally exercise all rights of Assignee hereunder and

" receive all benefits which Assignee was previously entitled to receive hereunder.
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- This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when
$o0 executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and ali of which counterparts, when
taken together, shall constitute but one and the same agreement.

This Assignment shall be deemed to be made under and shall be interpreted under the
laws of the state of Missouri.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor has caused this Assignment to be duly executed as of
the day and year first written above.
ASSIGNOR

By

Name:
Title:

The undersigned, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. accepts the foregoing Assignment on
the terms and conditions stated therein as of this 9™ day of June, 1993.

ASSIGNEE PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

By

Name:
Title:

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. hereby assigns all of its rights hereunder as of this 9™
day of June, 1993 to United Missouri Bank, N.A,, as Agent of all fiduciary institutions that certain
Senior Lending Agreement dated June 9, 1993 to which it and all of such financial institutions are
parties. :

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

By

Name:
Title:

16/
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EXHIBIT K
OTHER SENIOR DEBT

NON-CONFORMING TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT -

DATED AS OF MARCH 1, 1996.

(Complete listing of financial institutions not adopting the Senior Lending Agreement.)

There is no other Senior Debt which is non-conforming to the Amended and
Restated Senior Lending Agreement.

" MafeadumbMeaePioSiL Febrsary & 19%
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EXHIBIT L

February 6, 1996

Bank of Boston

100 Federal Street - Box 2016
Dept. 01-13-01

Boston, Mass. 02106-2016

Attn: Gunther E. Fritze
Director Financial Institution

Boatmen’s First National Bank
of Kansas City

14 W. 10th Street

P.O. Box 419038

Kansas City, Missouri 64183

Attn: Thomas J. Butkus

Vice President

First National Bank of Kansas
4650 College Boulevard
Overland Park, Kansas 66211
Attn: Craig A. Shy

laSalle National Bank
120 south LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60603
Attn: Terry Keating

Liberty Bank and Trust Company
of Oklahoma City,

National Association

100 North Broadway

P.O. Box 25848

Oklahoma City, OK 73125
Attention: Laura
Christofferson

Mercantile Bank of Kansas City
1101 Walnut

P.O. Box 41947

Kansas City, Missouri 64141
Attention: Mike Corless

NBD Bank

611 Woodward Avenue
Detroit, Michigan 48226
Attn: Daniel J. Clarke
Vice President

southwest Bank of St. Louis
2301 South Kingshighway

st. Louis, MO 63110
Attention: Andrew S. Hereford

UMB Bank, N.A.
1010 Grand Avenue

Kansas City, MO 64106
Attention: Douglas F. Page

24985.9
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February 6, 1996
Page 2

Re: Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
Ladies and Gentlemen:

You have requested our opinion as special counsel for Pioneer
Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation (the “Company"®),
in connection with that certain Amended and Restated Senior
Lending Agreement by and among the Banks and the Company.
References herein to the "Agreement™ are to such Amended and
Restated Senior Lending Agreement, excluding any and all exhibits
thereto. In connection therewith, we have examined:

1. The Agreement and the exhibits thereto;

2. One or more original notes (or photocopies of original
notes) executed by the Company or purporting to be executed by
the Company and payable to one of the Banks, each of which is
substantially in the form of Exhibit A (Revolving Grid Note),
Exhibit B (Amortizing Note), or Exhlblt C (Single Pay Term Note)
(collectively, the "Notes");

3. The articles of incorporation of the Company and all
amendments thereto, and the by-laws of the Company and all
amendments thereto; and

4. Such other documents as we have deemed necessary to
render the opinions stated herein.

For convenience, the Agreement and the Notes are hereinafter
collectively called the "Loan Documents".

Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings given
them in the Agreenent.

We have assumed, for purposes of this opinion: (a) that the
Loan Documents have been duly authorized, executed and delivered
on behalf of the Banks; (b) that each of the Banks has been duly
organized and is validly existing under the laws of the
jurisdiction of its organization, that each of the Banks has the
‘power and authority to execute, deliver and comply with the
provisions of the Loan Documents, that the persons signing the
Loan Documents on behalf of each of the Banks have been duly
authorized to do so by all necessary corporate action, and that
the Loan Documents create legal, valid and binding obligations of
each of the Banks; (c) that the proceeds of the Loan will be
advanced to the Company in accordance with the Loan Documents;
(d) the legal capacity of all natural persons, the genuineness of
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February 6, 1996
Page 3

all signatures to all instruments referred to in this opinion,
other than signatures of the Company on the Agreement, and the
authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals and
the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted
«to us as copies; (e) that the proceeds of the Loan will be used
for business purposes only, and not for consumer, family or
household purposes; (f) that the proceeds of the Loan will be
used for a business purpose of the Company and not for the
individual benefit of any person connected with the Company; (9)
that all Subsidiary Revolving Grid Notes have been duly endorsed
by the Company in blank and delivered to the Agent Bank; (h) that
each of the Assignments of Note Payments from the Subsidiaries
listed in paragraph numbered 5 below to the Company has been duly
assigned and delivered by the Company to the Agent Bank; and (i) .
that financing statements describing the Assignments of Note
Payments from each of the Subsidiaries naming the Agent Bank as
secured party and the Company as debtor have been or will be duly
filed in the offices of the offices of the Secretary of State of
Missouri and the Director of Records of Jackson County, Missouri,
at Kansas City.

We understand that possession of the notes, the payments on
which are the subject of the various Assignments of Note Payments
from the Subsidiaries to the Company, will not be delivered to
either the Company or the Agent Bank at the time of execution of
the Agreement, or thereafter unless subsequent to the declaration
of an Event of Default under the Agreement the Company delivers
such notes to the Agent Bank pursuant to the requirements of the
Agreement.

We are of the opinion that:

1. The Company is a corporation, duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
Missouri, and has the corporate power and authority to execute
and deliver the Loan Documents and other documents to be executed
pursuant to the Agreement or in connection with the Agreement;

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company is
qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good
standing in every jurisdiction where the ownershlp of its
properties or the nature of its business requires qualification;

3. The execution and delivery of the Loan Documents and of
all other documents to be executed pursuant to or in connection
with the Loan Agreement have been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action, and are not in conflict with the
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February 6, 1996
Page 4

charter or bylaws of the Company or, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, any material agreement binding upon the Company.

4. The Loan Documents constitute, or will constitute when
executed and delivered, legal, valid and bindlng obligations of
the Company . :

5. Upon the making by each of the Banks of the loans
contemplated by the Agreement, the Agent Bank will have a valid
and perfected security interest in the Subsidiary Grid Notes and,
upon the filing of the financing statements as aforesald in the
following Assignments of Note Payments:

(a) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Colorado, Inc. to the
Company

(b) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending, Inc., of Kansas to the
Company

(c) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Louisiana, Inc. to the
Company

(d) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 39, 1993,

from Pioneer Military Lending, Inc., a Nebraska
Corporation, to the Company

{e) ~ Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,

from Pioneer Military Lending of Missouri, Inc. tovthe
Company
(£) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Oklahoma, Inc. to the
Company
(9) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Georgia, Inc. to the
Company
(h) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Tennessee, Inc. to the
Company

24885.9
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February 6, 1996

Page S5
(1) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 1, 1994,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Tennessee, Inc. to the
Company
(3) Dated June 1, 1994, from Pioneer Military

Lending of Washington, Inc., to the Company

(k) Dated September 14, 1994, from Pioneer Military
Lending of Nevada, Inc., to the Company .

(1) Dated September 14, 1994, from Military
Acceptance Corporation of Nevada, to the Company

As of the date hereof; we have no knowledge of litigation or
other proceedings pending or threatened against the Company of
the kind referred to in paragraph 4 of Section II of the

Agreement.
The foregoing opinion is subject to the qualifications that:

(1) we have not made any investigation of the title
to any assets of the Company (and to the extent required for
the opinions herein expressed, we have assumed that the
Company has good and marketable title to the assets intended
to be subject to the lien and security interest of the Banks)
or of the filing or priority of the Security Documents, and we
render no opinion with respect thereto;

(ii) our opinions are based upon the laws of the
State of Missouri, and we express no opinion as to the law, or
as to any matter which may be governed by the law, of any
jurisdiction other than the State of Missouri;

(iii) unless, and except as, expressly stated in the
above-numbered paragraphs, we express no opinion regarding the
treatment of the transactions contemplated by any of the
instruments referred to in this opinion under the securities
laws or regulations of the United States, the State of
Missouri or any other state;

(iv) we have assumed that the transactions
contemplated by the instruments referred to in this opinion
will be effected in the future in accordance with the terms

thereof;
v) the legality, validity and binding effect of the
instruments referred to in this opinion may be limited by

248859
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February 6, 1996
Page 6

applicable laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, equitable subordination, receivership,
arrangement, fraudulent transfers, moratorium or redemption,
by other laws relating to or affecting generally the
enforcement of creditors’ rights or the collection of debtors’
obligations, or by the valid exercise of the sovereign powers
of the United States or any other governmental entity;

(vi) the legality, validity and binding effect of any
of the instruments referred to in this opinion, including but
not limited to the enforceability of any and all rights of
acceleration and rights of payment on demand contained
therein, are subject to and may be affected by general
principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is
sought in proceedings in equity or at law), including the
inherent authority of a court of equity to deny enforcement of
any provision thereof on equitable grounds;

(vii) without limiting the generality of paragraph
(vi), above, we express no opinion with respect to the
availability of the remedy of specific performance or other
remedies requiring the exercise of judicial discretion;

(viii) the instruments referred to in this opinion may
be subject to an implied covenant of good faith and fair
dealing, and the Banks’ exercise of their rights thereunder
may be limited by standards of commercial reasonableness;

(1ix) certain provisions of the Loan Documents
referred to in this opinion may be invalid, in whole or in
part, but the inclusion of such provisions does not affect the
overall validity of the Loan Docunments;

(x) without limiting the generality of paragraph
(ix), above, we express no opinion as to the validity of any
provisions in the instruments referred to in this opinion
which (a) provide for liquidated damages, an increased rate of
interest or any other charge in the event of a default;

(b) waive the right to notice of acceleration of the debt or
of the sale of collateral; (c) authorize forcible entry on any
property encumbered by the instruments, or other self-help
remedies for default; (d) provide for the payment of a yield
maintenance premium or other penalty upon a prepayment of a
loan, whether by acceleration, realization upon collateral,
voluntary prepayment or otherwise; (e) provide for repayment
of any interest charge in excess of usury limitations; (f)
purport to appoint one or more attorneys-in-fact for the

24885.9
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Company; (g) bind the Company to submit to the jurisdiction of
any court; (h) waive the Company’s right to trial by jury; or
(1) disclaim any liability of the Banks to third parties;

(xi) the choice of Missouri law as the law governing the
instruments referred to in this opinion may be limited by
federal law to the extent that it preempts Missouri law;

(xii) the opinions stated herein are as of the date
hereof, and we assume no obligation to update or supplement
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances which may
hereafter come to our attention or any changes in laws which
may hereafter occur;

(xiii) except as specifically set forth herein, we
express no opinion as toc the accuracy or completeness of any
warranty or representation made in the instruments referred to
in this opinion;

(xiv) this opinion relates sclely to the matters
explicitly addressed herein, and no opinion is implied or may
be inferred with respect to any other matter; and

T o(xv) references herein to our "knowledge" and the
“best of our knowledge”, and other references herein of
similar import, refer to the present, conscious and actual
knowledge of lawyers in this firm currently engaged in
providing services to the Company in connection with the
instruments referred to in this opinion and the transactions
contemplated thereby, and, except as otherwise stated in this
opinion, shall not imply that we have conducted a general
review of our files or made any inquiry or factual
investigation (beyond the examination of documents
specifically referred to herein) relating to the Company or
that any other lawyers in this firm have been consulted with
respect to their knowledge regarding any matter referred to
herein.

et

This opinion is directed solely to the Banks and their counsel
in connection with the transactions contemplated by the
instruments referred to in this opinion, and may not be used,
circulated, quoted, relied upon or referred to in connection with
any transaction other than those contemplated by the Agreement or
by any persons other than the Banks and their counsel without our
prior written consent, except that any of the Banks may provide
copies of this opinion to its auditors and attorneys and to

28859
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requlatory authorities in connection with regulatory
examinations.

Yours very truly,

LATHROP & GAGE L.C.

By:

Charles Frisbie

- ' _

. " I
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EXHIBIT M
Incorporated under the laws of the State of Missouri

- This Debenture is one of an authorized issue of Junior Subordinated Debentures to be issued by the Company. The name of the person to whom this
Debenture shall be ariginally issued and the name of each transferee hereof shall be registered on the Books of the Company. No transfer bereof shall be valid
/m&mwamamwmmmlwm«mwwmmww The registered holder bereof shall be deemed
and treated as the owner hereof for all intents and purposes and the shall nat, in ary way, be affected by any notice to the contrary. The shall
have the privilege of prepaying this instrument, without penaity o premmum, upon 30 days prior written notice mailed or delivered to the registered holder bereof
according to the records of the Company at holder’s address on said records and no imerest shall accrue after the prepayment dats. If less than all of the

outstandang Debentures are to be redeemed, the Debentures to be redeemed shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Companry.

This Debenture is issued subject 1o the following subordination provisions, and each person holding this Debexmure whether upon original isase or
transfer or renewal or assignment thereof, accepts and agrees to be bound by said provisions as follows, to wit:

The indebtedness evidenced by this Debenture, and any rmahormmomthamﬁshaﬂbembmhnﬂemd;mmngmofpaymem,maﬂ
respects, to all Superior Indebtedness ( wh:chshaﬂmeanaﬂmdebladnmofmeComp for money borrowed which is not expressed to be subordinate or junior
to any other indebtedness of the Company) and Subordinated Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebtedness of the Company for borrowed money which is
expressad to be subordinate and junior to all Superior Indebtedness of the Company but not to any other indebtadness of the Company) or Series A Subordinated
Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebledness of the Company for borrowed money which is expressed to be subordinate and junior to all Superior
mdSubadmnedhdeM&oﬁheCompmyhnmmmyodmmdehedn&ofmeCmy)ofme , whether outstanding at the date bereof or
bereafter incurred. Without limiting the effect of the foregoing, “subordinate” and “junior™ as used herein mcludewnhmthcwmmngthefollowmg:(x)
that in the event of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings, and in any receivership, liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceedings in connection
therewith relative to the Company or its creditors o its property, and in the event of any proceedings for voluntary liquidation, dissolution or other winding up of
the Conrpany, an«mvohmgmolvawywbmk:uptzypmeeedmg,thmaﬂprmapalmdﬂa&maﬂSupmendcbwdn&andSuhadmamd
Indebtedness and Series A Subordinated Indebtedness (bereinafter called Prior Debt) shall first be paid in full, or such payment be provided for, before any
.. payment on accourt of principal or interest is made upon the indebtedness evidenced by this Debeature, and in any such proceedings any payment or distibution
“of amy kind or character, whether in cash or property or securities, which may bé payable or deliverable in respect of this Debentire shall be paid or delivered
“directly to the hoiders of such Prior Debt for application in paymen thereof, unless and until such Prior Debt shall have been paid and satisfied in full or such
payment and satisfaction shall have been provided for; provided, however, the foregoing provisions are subject to the power of a court of competent jurisdiction to
makea.b:requmblepmmoureﬂeam the rights conferred herein upon the Prior Debt and the holders thereof with respect to the junior subordinated
indebtedness represented by this Debennneandtheholdmmaeofbynlawﬁxlplanofmmzanonuudarhnpphmblebmhupwthand(n)mﬁ:cevun
that this Debenture is for any reason declared due and payable by any holder or holders prior to its expressed maturity date (under circumstances when the
pmvmonsoftheforegomgcluxse(l)shallnotbeapphcable)andtbeboldarofﬁnsDebenﬁn’eshaﬂbeemnledtopaymm after there shall first have been
paid in full the Prior Debt outstanding a1 the time this Debenture so becomes due and payable because of such event of default, or such payment shall bave been
provided for. No present or future bolder of Prior Debt shall be prejudiced in his right to enforce subordination of this Debenture by an act or failure to act o the
part of the Company. The provisions of this section are solely for the purpose of defining the relative rights of the holders of Prior Debt on the one hand, and the
bolder of this Debenture on the other hand and pothing berein shall upair, as between the Company and the bolder of any Debenture, the obligation of this
Company which is unconditional and absolute, 1o pay 1o the bolder thereof the principal and interest thereon in accordance with ifs terms, nor shall anything
berein prevent the holder of this Debenture from exercising ail remedies otherwise permitted by applicable law or hereunder upon default hereunder, subject to the
nghts.xfany,mda'thxsscaxmofboldusoanorDebuoreeewemsh.propatywmambqwmpayablewdehvnhlewmeboldsofmnm

Anry one of the following shal] constitute an event of default as to this Debenture: If the Company ceases doing business; if any installment of principal
or interest on this Deberture is not paid within ten (10) days afler written notice from the regisiered bolder of such non-payment; or bankruptcy, reorganization or
msolvency proceedings. If an event of default as herein defined occurs, the Company agrees to give the registered boider of this Debenture, upon request, the

names and addresses of ail registered Debertture holders.

This Deberture will automatically renew for additional tenms (“Extension Term”) each equal in length to the original term, unless and until the
mg:ﬁaedboldahmrequ&edpaymeu!mwmmgonor;norwammmydan Immfwad:Enmmeshannmembmgoﬂ‘mbythe
Debentirres of like denomination and maturity at the time of commencement of such Extension Term. The Company reserves the right

Company on newly issued
1o issue mdsdlmhebebamnmhavmgequdmkmdmanywﬂhthxsmbenmn.

INWITNESSWHBREOF mmmmmmmumemmmwmmammeu
mmmmmsumummmmwmwwmdmmwam th day of ,19

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES

President

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES
Inc.,
Junior Subordinated Debertture
! For valus received the Pioneer Financia] Services, Inc. (hereinafier called Company) promises to pay at its Home Office in Kansas City,

Missouri to the order of:
an the maturity date, together with the imerest at the rate and when due, all as follows: .

Issue Maxturity Interest Interest Interest

Date Amomn¢ Term Date Rate Doe Payment

15



Pioneer Financial Services, inc.
: 4233 Roancke Road
I Kansas City, Missouri 64111
The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this certificate, shanbewstruedasm:ghﬁweywewnﬂenomtnmﬂmdmgto
applicable laws or requlations:

.; TEN COM - as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT - Custodian
/ TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties (Cust) {Minor)
JTTEN . - asjointtenants with right of under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act of
survivorship and not as tenants (State)
: in common
.. Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

' FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersngned hereby‘
D Sells, assigns and transfers unto

. (Name and Address of Assignee, Including Zip Code, Must Be Printed or Typewritten)

the within Certificate, and ali rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and appointing
Wiliam D. Suliivan or Mary Owens or Shannon S. Spangler Attormey to transfer said Certificate on the

' , books of the Custodian, with full power of substitution in the premises.
Please Insert Social Security or Other
Identifying Number of New Owner
I Permanently Changes the Name(s) OLD NAME (Registration) ;
or Registration
NEW NAME (Registration):
5 Redeems the within Certificate Please Send Check to:
" At Maturity Value
Reinvests the maturity value
. of the within Certificate (Please camplete and include an Offer to Purchase and Receipt Form for your new certificate.)
i DATED:
- X Subscribed and sworn to before me
AN .
I STy Registered Owner this day of 19 .
i N (SEAL)
- Regisiored Owner Netary Public My Commission Expires
B
‘- Registered Owner

NOTICE: The signature must correspond with the name as it appears upon the face of the within Certificate in every particular,
without alteration or enlargement or any change whatever.

;.FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby celftiﬁes that this debenture has been assigned to:

(Narne and Address of Assignee, Including Zip Code, Must Be Printed or Typewritten)

X _ . Subscribed and sworn to before me
Registered Owner this ___day of 19

'x (SEAL)
Registered Cwner Notary Public My Commission Expires, -

| RELEASE OF ASSIGNMENT: The undefsigned hereby releases the above described assignment and reassigns this
! debenture to the original named owner (s).

Subscribed and swomn to before me
Lending institution this____day of 19

(SEAL)

CEnding Insuon Notary Public My Commission Expires
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ASSIGNMENT OF NOTE PAYMENTS

This Assignment of Note Payments, made as of this _9th day of June , 1993,
by Pioneer Military Lending of GeorcuaLLInc. (Assignor’) to Pioneer ‘
Financial Services, Inc. ("Assignee’). ;!

In consideration of the outstanding indebtédness of Assignor to Assignee and future loans
which may be made by Assignee to Assignor, this Assignment is made to Assignee, and its
successors and assigns, as security for the paymént of all loans from Assignee to Assignor
whether now or hereafter existling and for the performance and observance of all other obligations
of the Assignor to the Assignee now existing or hereafter created. Assignor does hereby sell,
assign, transfer and set over to Assignee, its successors and assigns, and grant a security interest
to Assignee, its successors and assigns in all payments which are or may be due to Assignor from

-Assignor’s customers, whether or not any of such obligations are evidenced by a promissory note,
together with all of Assignor's rights to collect such payments at any time and from time to time
hereafter. The acceptance of this Assignment and the collection of the payments and obligations
of Assignor's customers shall not constitute a waiver of any rights of the Assignee to the
provisions of any note given by Assignor to Assignee or any other document given by Assignor to
Assignee which evidences any obligation of Assignor to Assignee. Before or afler maturity,
whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any note or other obligations of the Assignor to the
Assignee, the Assignee, its successors or its assigns, may notify the customers of the Assignor
which are obligated to make payments to the Assignor to make all such payments directly to the
Assignee or to its successors or assigns, as the case may be. The Assignee, is successors and
assigns, may enforce collection of any such payments by suit or otherwise and surrender, release
or exchange all or any part of, or compromise, extend or renew for any period (whether or not
longer than the original period) any indebtedness of such customers and an irrevocable power of
attorney therefor is hereby granted to each of the Assignee and its successors and assigns.

Assignee, its successors and assigns, shall not in any way be responsible for the failure of
the Assignor to perform any of the Assignor’s obligations to its customers and Assignor hereby
agrees to hold Assignee and its successors and assigns harmless from any such obligations,
none of which are accepted by Assignee, its successors and assigns.

Assignor will, upon the request of Assignee or its successors or assigns, execute any and
all other instruments and documents necessary to further carry these presents into effect or to
accomplish any other purpose necessary or appropriate in connection with this Assignment.

The payment obligations of Assignor’s customers to it and any and all notes or other
documents evidencing the same shall not at any time be sold, assigned, transferred or set over by
Assignor nor shall Assignor at any time allow the same to become subject to any lien or
encumbrance except a lien or encumbrance in favor of Assignee or its successors or assigns.

Upon request, Assignor agrees to deliver into the possession of Assignee all notes and
other documents evidencing all obligations of its customers to Assignor. The enforcement and
implementation, both presently and prospectively, of this Assignment by Assignee, its successors
and assigns, shall not, and Assignor hereby further covenants and agrees that the exercise of the
rights of Assignee, its successors and assigns, under this Assignment shall in no manner, be
dependent upon, affect, impair or restrict the rights of the Assignee, its successors and assigns,
under any other document evidencing any obligations of Assignor to Assignee. This Assignment,
together with all of the covenants and warranties herein contained, shall inure to the benefit of the
Assignee, its successors and assigns, and Assignee may unconditionally assign all of its rights
under this Assignment to any person or entity at any time without any prior notice to Assignor.



Upon any assignment of the rights of Assignee hereunder to any person or entity, any such §
person or entity receiving the assignment of all of Assignee’s rights hereunder shall be entitled to
unconditionally exercise all rights of Assignee hereunder and receive all benefits which Assignee

was previously entitled to receive hereunder.

This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so
executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which counterparts, when
taken together, shall constitute but one and the same agreement.

This Assignment shall be deemed to be made under and shall be interpreted under the
laws of the state of Missourl.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor has caused this Assignment to be duly executed as of L
the day and year first written above.

ASSIGNOR Pioneer Military Lendipg of Georgia, Inc.
4
By LA &
Narfe: _Thomas H. Holcom}'jr.
Title: President

Thé undersigned, Pioneer Financial Services, inc. accepts the foregoing Assignment on

the terms and conditions stated therein as of this _9th day of June )
1993 .
"ASSIGNEE PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. i

a Missouri corporation

By %&Q‘Qg‘—r‘u
Name Wm. D. Lul

Title: President

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. hereby assigns all of its rights hereunder as of this __sth
day of __June , 1993 to __United Missouri Bank NA, Agent Bank
pursuant to the terms of that certain Senior Lending Agreement dated June 9 .

j 1993 to which it and certain financial institutions are parties.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

By W Q/%QQRM
Name: Wm. D/ SUrlivan

Title: President

(1



SUBSIDIARY REVOLVING GRID NOTE

'PAYMENTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND INTEREST

Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation, (hereinafter called "Lender’), at its main office, on demand, but if no
demand is made then on June 30 _, 1956 the principal sum of ___Ten Million and
no/100 Dollars or such other
lesser amount as shall be noted on the Schedule of Disbursements and Payments of Principal included herein
or attached hereto pursuant to the authority set forth herein, together with interest on the unpaid principal
balance hereof from time to time outstanding from date(s) of disbursement(s) until paid, at the rate of _nine
percent per annum with all interest calculated and payable monthly in arrears, based on the month-end
balance. Unless Lender, in its sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all payments shall be
applied first to payment of accrued interest, and then to reduction of the principal sum due hereunder. This
note shall bear interest after maturity, whether by reason of acceleration or otherwise, at a rate of interest
equal to two percent (2%) in excess of the rate stated above until paid in full, and such interest shall be
- compounded annually if not paid annually. Any part of the outstanding principal balance hereof may be paid
prior to maturity and if less than the full amount due hereunder is paid, the undersigned may from time to time
until maturity receive, but the Lender has no commitment to make, further disbursements hereunder;
provided, however, the aggregate amount of all principal amounts outstanding hereunder shall at no time
exceed the face amount of this note; and provided further, that each and every disbursement made under this
Subsidiary Revolving Grid Note shall be at the Lender’s sole discretion. In the event the undersigned pays
any part of the principal balance hereof prior to maturity or, in accordance with the terms hereof, receives any
additional disbursements of principal hereunder, the principal amount due hereunder shall presumptively be
the last amount stated to be the Unpaid Principal Balance of Note on the Schedule of Disbursements and
“ -y Payments of Principal, and the undersigned hereby authorize(s) the Lender to make notations on the Schedule
-+ of Disbursements and Payments of Principal (or Lender’'s computer-generated grid) from time to time to
evidence payments and disbursements hereunder.

' v B
3 " . A% pas

'\-

COLLATERAL
The term "Collateral” as used herein includes (but without limitation) all of the property listed below
now owned and hereafter acquired, all proceeds and products thereof, and all accessions thereto.

Description of Collateral: All cash, deposit accounts, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
Assignment of Note Payments, reserve for loss and dealer reserve for loss.

' GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST
The Maker hereby grants to Lender a security interest in the Collateral and pledges and assigns the
Coliateral to Lender for the payment of all amounts due under this note, and all renewals and extensions
' thereof, and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the holder, direct or contingent,
secured or unsecured, whether or not due, of Maker (all of which amounts and obligations are hereinafter
- referred to as "Secured Obligations”), and Lender may accordingly retain the Collateral or any part thereof as
' security after the payment of all amounts due under this note. The Maker agrees to give to Lender upon
Lender’s request, from time to time, such other and further security as Lender, in its sole discretion, may
‘ deem necessary or appropriate, such additional security to become *Collateral” under the provisions hereof.

RIGHTS RESPECTING COLLATERAL
After maturity, the holder may (1) transfer all or any part of the Collateral into the name of the holder
l hereof or its nominee, with or without disclosing that such Collateral is subject to the lien and security interest
hereunder; (2) notity the parties obligated on any of the Collateral to make payment to the holder hereof of
~-.any amounts due or to become due thereunder; (3) enforce collection of any of the Collateral by suit or
therwise and surrender, release or exchange all or any part thereof, or compromise, extend or renew for any

' $__10,000,000.00 and interest ‘ June 9 , 1893

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned "Maker’ promises to pay to the order of Pioneer Financial



AN s

e

4

- e

g

:

period (whether or not longer than the original period) any indebtedness secured thereby; (4) take control of
any proceeds of the Collateral; (5) endorse any Collateral in the name of Maker whenever, in the opinion of
the holder, such endorsement may facilitate the handling of, or realization upon, the Collateral, and an
irevocable power of attorney therefor is hereby granted to the holder hereof; however, any such action must
comply fully with the Assignment of Note Payments and Senior Lending Agreement executed by Lender it
holder is other than Lender.

The Maker hereby agrees to take any and all steps necessary to preserve any rights in the Collateral
against prior parties and the holder hereof shall not be bound to take any such steps. Notwithstanding any
other provision herein, the Maker shall not give, transfer, sell, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of the 3
Collateral, or any interest therein, without Lender’s advance written consent.

ACCELERATION AND EVENTS OF DEFAULT |
Without limitation on the demand maturity of this note, the holder may, without demand or notice of :

any kind, declare this note and any other of the Secured Obligations immediately due and payable in full at
any time that the holder deems itself insecure for any reason whatsoever in respect of any Secured Obligation.
Upon the occurrence of any of the following events of default: (1) failure of Maker to pay or perform any other
obligaticn of the Maker; (2) dissolution of, or termination of existence of the Maker; (3) the failure of the-Maker
to pay debts as they mature; (4) appointment of a receiver of or for any part of the property of the Maker, an
assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Maker; or the commencement of any proceedings under
bankrupicy or insolvency laws by or against the Maker then this note and all other obligations of each of the
Maker to the holder hereof shall immediately become due and payable in full without notice or demand;
provided, however, that all such actions must be in accordance with Senior Lending Agreement dated ____
June 9, 1993 among Lender and certain Banks therein listed if holder is other than Lender.

MISSQURI LAW
The interpretation of this instrument and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto shall be

governed by the laws of the State of Missouri.

g

COLLECTION EXPENSES
To the extent permitted by applicable law, the undersigned agrees to pay all expenses of the holder

in collecting this note and enforcing rights respecting and realizing upon any of the Collateral, incfuding
reasonable attorneys’ fees. :

NO WAIVERS
Any failure by the holder hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver

of the right to exercise the same or any other right at any other time and from time to time thereatfter.

IS

HEADINGS
All headings or titles appearing in this note are used as a matter of convenience only and shall not

affect the interpretation of the provisions hereof.

Uremintiraiwd

ASSIGNMENT
Lender may assign this note together with all Collateral and all rights hereunder without notice to or !

consent of the undersigned.
PIONEER MILITARY LENDING OF GEORGIA, INC.
By: %m ,
7 { —4-

7
Title: _ _President %

W%/u/QQLzzM June 9, 1993

Wllllafn D/Squlvan, President (\
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o’ IMPORTANT~READ INSTRUCTIONS ON BACK BEFORE FILLING OUT FORM

paCIng

783G ROE LANE

!C. kS &01C]
This FINANCING STATEMENT is presented to a Filing Officer tor No. of Agditional 1 3. To be Recorded.in Book: _
filing pursuant 1o the Uniform Commercial Code: Sheets Presented: O Reai Estate Records| Page:
L Debtor(s) (Last Name First) and Address(es): 2. Secured Partylies): Name(s) Address(es): 4. For Filing Officer use only:
_?J.oneer Financial Services, Inc. United Missouri Bank, N.A.,
a Missouri Corporation as agent for itself and various
4233 Roanoke Road ’ other lenders
Kansas City, MO 64111-4076 1010 Gramd Avenue

Kansas City, MO 64106

5. This Financing Statement Covers the Fotiowing Types (or items) of Property:

General intangibles consisting of various Assignments of Note

Payments more particularly described om Exhibit A attached hereto,

and all proceeds thereof. O Products of the Collateral are Also Covered.

6. Description of Real Estate:

7. Name{s) of Record Owner(s):

This statement is signed by the Secured Party instead of the Deotor to perfect a security interest in collateral:

(Please O atready subject to a security interest in ancther jurisdiction when it was brought into this state,

check or when the geptor's location was changed o this state. .

aporo- T which is proceeds of the original collateral described above in which a security interest was per-
fectea. Proceeas should be describeg above. .

8. Assignee(s) of Secured Party and Address(i

ggf)te O as 1o which the filing has laosed.
[J acauired after a change of name, idenuty or corporate structure of the debtor. O The Dedtoris 3 ransmitung utility.
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. UNITED MISSOURI BAMK, N.A.

LMC_Z ( Z Q). Use whichever signature line is applicable
By By

)

ya
Williza’ D, SEm v ghDedtons) 5

ENAPAGESS SESET TRy ies)
Approved By: ROY D. BLUNT SECRETARY OF STATE
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EXHIBIT A TO FINANCING STATEMENT

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. Debtor

United Missouri Bank, N.A., Secured Party, as Agent for itself and certain other
lenders.

Those certain Assignments of Note Payments dated as of June 9, 1993, to Debtor

from the following named corporations and all rights contained therein:

Pioneer Military Lending of Colorado, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending Inc. of Kansas

Pioneer Military Lending of Louisiana, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending Inc. a Nebraska Corporation

Pioneer Military Lending of Missouri, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending of Oklahoma, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending of Georgia, Inc.

Pioneer Military Lending of Tennessee, Inc.

2:(0/s sl IMiAm ProserItamdigm Muae 9, 199]



LAW OFFICES

LaTHrROP & GAGE L.C.

g!li“fl!lﬁﬁ

, .
. FAX NUMBERS:

MISSOUR! (816) 292-2001
KANSAS (913) 451-0875

8 4

Bank of Boston

100 Federal Street - Box 2016
Dept. 01-13-01

Boston, Mass. 02106-2016

Attn: Gunther E. Fritze
Director Financial Institution

- _?

Boatmen’s First National Bank
of Kansas City

14 W. 10th Street

P.O. Box 419038

Kansas City, Missouri 64183

Attn: Thomas J. Butkus

Vice President

-n .

First National Bank of Kansas
4650 College Blvd.

Overland Park, Kansas 66211
Attn: Craig A. Shy

LaSalle National Bank
120 South LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60603
Attn: Terry Keating

Liberty Bank and Trust Company
of Oklahoma City,

National Association

100 North Broadway '

P.0O. Box 25848
Oklahoma City, OK 73125
Attention: Laura
Christofferson

2345 GRAND BOULEVARD
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64108-2684
(816) 292-2000

1050/40 CORPORATE WOODS
9401 INDIAN CREEX PARKWAY
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66210-2007
(913)451-0820

Februar§ 6, 1996

Mercantile Bank of Kansas City
1101 Walnut

P.O. Box 41947

Kansas City, Missouri 64141
Attention: Mike Corless

NBD Bank

611 Woodward Avenue
Detroit, Michigan 48226
Attn: Daniel J. Clarke
Vice President

Southwest Bank of St. Louis
2301 South Kingshighway

St. Louis, MO 63110
Attention: Andrew S. Hereford

UMB Bank, N.A.
1010 Grand Avenue

Kansas City, MO 64106
Attention: Douglas F. Page
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Re: Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
Ladies and Gentlemen:

You have requested our opinion as special counsel for Pioneer
Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation (the "Company"),
in connection with that certain Amended and Restated Senior
Lending Agreement by and among the Banks and the Company.
References herein to the "Agreement" are to such Amended and
Restated Senior Lending Agreement, excluding any and all exhibits
thereto. 1In connection therewith, we have examined:

1. The Agreement and the exhibits thereto;

2. One or more original notes (or photocopies of original
notes) executed by the Company or purporting to be executed by
the Company and payable to one of the Banks, each of which is
substantially in the form of Exhibit A (Revolving Grid Note),
Exhibit B (Amortizing Note), or Exhibit C (Single Pay Term Note)
(collectively, the "Notes");

3. The articles of incorporation of the Company and all
amendments thereto, and the by-laws of the Company and all
amendments thereto; and

4. Such other documents as we have deemed necessary to
render the opinions stated herein.

For convenience, the Agreement and the Notes are hereinafter
collectively called the "Loan Documents”.

Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings given
them in the Agreement.

We have assumed, for purposes of this opinion: (a) that the
Loan Documents have been duly authorized, executed and delivered
on behalf of the Banks; (b) that each of the Banks has been duly
organized and is validly existing under the laws of the
jurisdiction of its organization, that each of the Banks has the
power and authority to execute, deliver and comply with the
provisions of the Loan Documents, that the persons signing the
Loan Documents on behalf of each of the Banks have been duly
authorized to do so by all necessary corporate action, and that
the Loan Documents create legal, valid and binding obligations of
each of the Banks; (c) that the proceeds of the Loan will be
advanced to the Company in accordance with the Loan Documents;
(d) the legal capacity of all natural persons, the genuineness of

e
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all signatures to all instruments referred to in this opinion,
other than signatures of the Company on the Agreement, and the
authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals and
the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted
to us as copies; (e) that the proceeds of the Loan will be used
for business purposes only, and not for consumer, family or
household purposes; (f) that the proceeds of the Loan will be
used for a business purpose of the Company and not for the
individual benefit of any person connected with the Company; (g)
that all Subsidiary Revolving Grid Notes have been duly endorsed
by the Company in blank and delivered to the Agent Bank; (h) that
each of the Assignments of Note Payments from the Subsidiaries
listed in paragraph numbered 5 below to the Company has been duly
assigned and delivered by the Company to the Agent Bank; and (i)
that financing statements describing the Assignments of Note
Payments from each of the Subsidiaries naming the Agent Bank as
secured party and the Company as debtor have been or will be duly
filed in the offices of the offices of the Secretary of State of
Missouri and the Director of Records of Jackson County, Missouri,
at Kansas City.

We understand that possession of the notes, the payments on
which are the subject of the various Assignments of Note Payments
from the Subsidiaries to the Company, will not be delivered to
either the Company or the Agent Bank at the time of execution of
the Agreement; or thereafter unless subsequent to the declaration
of an Event of Default under the Agreement the Company delivers
such notes to the Agent Bank pursuant to the requirements of the
Agreement.

We are of the opinion that:

1. The Company is a corporation, duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
Missouri, and has the corporate power and authority to execute
and deliver the Loan Documents and other documents to be executed
pursuant to the Agreement or in connection with the Agreement;

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company is
qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good
standing in every jurisdiction where the ownership of its
properties or the nature of its business requires qualification;

3. The execution and delivery of the Loan Documents and of
all other documents to be executed pursuant to or in connection
with the Loan Agreement have been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action, and are not in conflict with the
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charter or bylaws of the Company or, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, any material agreement binding upon the Company.

4. The Loan Documents constitute, or will constitute when
executed and delivered, legal, valid and binding obligations of
the Company.

5. Upon the making by each of the Banks of the loans
contemplated by the Agreement, the Agent Bank will have a valid
and perfected security interest in the Subsidiary Grid Notes and,
upon the filing of the financing statements as aforesaid, in the
following Assignments of Note Payments:

(a) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Colorado, Inc. to the
Company :

(b) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending, Inc., of Kansas to the
Company

(c) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Louisiana, Inc. to the
Company

(d) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,

from Pioneer Military Lending, Inc., a Nebraska
Corporation, to the Company

(e) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Missouri, Inc. to the
Company

(£) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Oklahoma, Inc. to the
Company

(g9) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Georgia, Inc. to the
Company

(h) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 9, 1993,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Tennessee, Inc. to the
Company

24885.10
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(1) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 1, 1994,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Tennessee, Inc. to the
Company

(3) Assignment of Note Payments dated June 1, 1994,
from Pioneer Military Lending of Washington, Inc., to the
Company

(k) Assignment of Note Payments dated September 14,

1994, from Pioneer Military Lending of Nevada, Inc., to
the Company

(1) Assignment of Note Payments dated September 14,
1994, from Military Acceptance Corporation of Nevada, to
the Company

As of the date hereof, we have no knowledge of litigation or
other proceedings pending or threatened against the Company of
the kind referred to in paragraph 4 of Section II of the
Agreement.

The foregoing opinion is subject to the qualifications that:

(1) we have not made any investigation of the title
to any assets of the Company (and to the extent required for
the opinions herein expressed, we have assumed that the
Company has good and marketable title to the assets intended
to be subject to the lien and security interest of the Banks)
or of the filing or priority of the Security Documents, and we
render no opinion with respect thereto;

(1i) our opinions are based upon the laws of the
State of Missouri, and we express no opinion as to the law, or
as to any matter which may be governed by the law, of any
jurisdiction other than the State of Missouri;

(iii) unless, and except as, expressly stated in the
above-numbered paragraphs, we express no opinion regarding the
treatment of the transactions contemplated by any of the
instruments referred to in this opinion under the securities
laws or requlations of the United States, the State of
Missouri or any other state;

(iv) we have assumed that the transactions
contemplated by the instruments referred to in this opinion
will be effected in the future in accordance with the terms
thereof;
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(v) the legality, validity and binding effect of the
instruments referred to in this opinion may be limited by
applicable laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, equitable subordination, receivership,
arrangement, fraudulent transfers, moratorium or redemption,
by other laws relating to or affecting generally the
enforcement of creditors’ rights or the collection of debtors’
obligations, or by the valid exercise of the sovereign powers
of the United States or any other governmental entity;

(vi) the legality, validity and binding effect of any
of the instruments referred to in this opinion, including but
not limited to the enforceability of any and all rights of
acceleration and rights of payment on demand contained
therein, are subject to and may be affected by general
principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is
sought in proceedings in equity or at law), including the
inherent authority of a court of equity to deny enforcement of
any provision thereof on equitable grounds;

(vii) without limiting the generality of paragraph
(vi), above, we express no opinion with respect to the
availability of the remedy of specific performance or other
remedies requiring the exercise of judicial discretion;

(viii) the instruments referred to in this opinion may
be subject to an implied covenant of good faith and fair
dealing, and the Banks’ exercise of their rights thereunder
may be limited by standards of commercial reasonableness;

(ix) certain provisions of the Loan Documents
referred to in this opinion may be invalid, in whole or in
part, but the inclusion of such provisions does not affect the
overall validity of the Loan Documents;

(x) without limiting the generality of paragraph
(ix), above, we express no opinion as to the validity of any
provisions in the instruments referred to in this opinion
which (a) provide for liquidated damages, an increased rate of
interest or any other charge in the event of a default;
(b) waive the right to notice of acceleration of the debt or
of the sale of collateral; (c) authorize forcible entry on any
property encumbered by the instruments, or other self-help
remedies for default; (d) provide for the payment of a yield
maintenance premium or other penalty upon a prepayment of a
loan, whether by acceleration, realization upon collateral,
voluntary prepayment or otherwise; (e) provide for repayment
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of any interest charge in excess of usury limitations; (f)
purport to appoint one or more attorneys-in-fact for the
Company; (g) bind the Company to submit to the jurisdiction of
any court; (h) waive the Company’s right to trial by jury; or
(i) disclaim any liability of the Banks to third parties;

(xi) the choice of Missouri law as the law governing the
instruments referred to in this opinion may be limited by
federal law to the extent that it preempts Missouri law;

(xii) the opinions stated herein are as of the date
hereof, and we assume no obligation to update or supplement
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances which may
" hereafter come to our attention or any changes in laws which
may hereafter occur;

(xiii) except as specifically set forth herein, we
express no opinion as to the accuracy or completeness of any
warranty or representation made in the instruments referred to
in this opinion;

(xiv) this opinion relates solely to the matters
explicitly addressed herein, and no opinion is implied or may
be inferred with respect to any other matter; and

(xv) references herein to our "knowledge" and the
"best of our knowledge", and other references herein of
similar import, refer to the present, conscious and actual
knowledge of lawyers in this firm currently engaged in
providing services to the Company in connection with the
instruments referred to in this opinion and the transactions
contemplated thereby, and, except as otherwise stated in this
opinion, shall not imply that we have conducted a general
review of our files or made any inquiry or factual
investigation (beyond the examination of documents
specifically referred to herein) relating to the Company or
that any other lawyers in this firm have been consulted with
respect to their knowledge regarding any matter referred to
herein.

This opinion is directed solely to the Banks and their counsel
in connection with the transactions contemplated by the .
instruments referred to in this opinion, and may not be used,
circulated, quoted, relied upon or referred to in connection with
any transaction other than those contemplated by the Agreement or
by any persons other than the Banks and their counsel without our
prior written consent, except that any of the Banks may provide
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copies of this opinion to its auditors and attorneys and to
regulatory authorities in connection with regulatory

examinations.
Yours very truly,
LATHROP & GAGE L.C.
Charles Frisbie
CF:jls
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First Amendment to Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement
dated January 26, 1998, between the Company and various banks named therein
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED
SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to that certain Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement
dated as of March 1, 1996 by and between Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. (“Pioneer”), UMB Bank,
n.a. (“UMB”), Mercantile Bank (formerly Mercantile Bank of Kansas City) (“Mercantile”), Bank
of Boston (“*Boston”), Bank of Oklahoma (“BOK?”), First National Bank of Kansas (“Kansas”),
LaSalle National Bank (“LaSalle”), Liberty Bank & Trust Company of Oklahoma City, n.a.
(“Liberty”), NBD Bank (“NBD”) and Southwest Bank of St. Louis (“Southwest”), all of UMB,
Mercantile, Boston, BOK, Kansas, LaSalle, Liberty, NBD and Southwest being hereinafter referred
to collectively as “Banks,” is made by and between Pioneer and the Banks as of this 'day of
January, 1998.

WHEREAS, Pioneer and each of the Banks desire to amend the before-described Amended
and Restated Senior Lending Agreement which was dated as of March 1, 1996 (the “Lending
Agreement”); and ‘

WHEREAS, Pioneer is willing to confirm that all provisions of such before-described
Lending Agreement and of all notes, documents evidencing or confirming the grant of liens and
security interests and all other related documents, except as otherwise expressly amended by this
Agreement, shall remain in full force and effect; and

WHEREAS, Pioneer and each of the Banks desire that all existing and future extensions of
credit by any of the Banks to Pioneer be subject to the terms and conditions of the before-described
Lending Agreement as amended by the terms hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements of the parties hereto and

for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties .

hereto agree as follows:

’ 1. The last paragraph of paragraph 3 of Section III of the Lending Agreement by and
between the parties hereto (the “Agreement”) is hereby deleted in its entirety. Such deleted
paragraph read as follows:

“Notwithstanding anything stated in this paragraph 3 of Section III to the
contrary, in the event of the increase in the ratio referred to in paragraph 6 of
Section VIII, the interest rate payable on all indebtedness evidenced by
~ Revolving Grid Notes then outstanding hereunder and on all indebtedness
_incurred thereafter which is evidenced by Revolving Grid Notes, Amortizing
Notes and Single-Pay Term Notes shall automatically be increased by 25
basis points at all times such ratio is at least 6.5:1 but less than 7.5:1 and shall -
be increased by an additional 25 basis points at all times such ratio equals or
exceeds 7.5:1.”7
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- 2. Paragraph 6 of Section VIII is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“6. Consolidated Total Indebtedness/Total Required Capital Ratio. Pioneer
will at no time permit the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to

Consolidated Total Required Capital to exceed 8.5:1.”

« 3. Paragraph 8 of Section VIII is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“8. Delinquency Adjusted [everage Ratio. Pioneer will at no time permit
the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Adjusted Capital to exceed
9.0:1.”

4. The Compliance Certificate set forth as Exhibit G to the Lending Agreement is
hereby amended by changing the ratio for line (3) in the column entitled “PERMITTED” for the
section entitled “REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS” from 8 to 1 to 8.5 to 1 and by changing
the ratio for line (4) in the same column and section from 8.5to 1 t0 9.0 to 1.

s All terms and conditions of the Lending Agreement and of all notes executed
pursuant thereto and all documents executed in connection therewith not expressly amended hereby
shall remain in full force and effect as if this Amendment had not been enacted.

6. Statutory Statement. Disclosure Required by Mo. Rev. Stat. § 432.045.

ORAL AGREEMENTS OR COMMITMENTS TO LOAN MONEY, EXTEND

CREDIT OR TO FORBEAR FROM ENFORCING REPAYMENT OF A DEBT INCLUDING
- PROMISES TO EXTEND OR RENEW SUCH DEBT ARE NOT ENFORCEABLE. TO

PROTECT YOU, PIONEER, AND US, THE BANKS, FROM MISUNDERSTANDING OR
DISAPPOINTMENT, ANY AGREEMENTS WE REACH COVERING SUCH MATTERS
ARE CONTAINED IN THIS WRITING, WHICH IS THE COMPLETE AND EXCLUSIVE
STATEMENT OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN US, EXCEPT AS WE MAY LATER
AGREE IN WRITING TO MODIFY IT.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment to

Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement as of this Zﬁih

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

)

Name: William ) Sulfivan
Title: Preside‘

BANK OF BOSTON
2 )
By: YV ud ADIFAT [Ty Lk

Name: Mar) Reth ks 7~
Title: Viee Presidet

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF KANSAS

Jcsse H -W’f)‘—
Vice Fres ) lewst—

BANK OF OKLAHOMA

by s L e

By: de&m"’
N !
le

Name Lawra (AL )"&Jo*o
Title: /.~

LA SALLE NATIONAL BANK

/,

Name. 57__,{/ 5C/_/7/'efk/(,7€_
Title: sean cmmicsIi

(OS]

day of January, 1998.

LIBERTY BANK & TRUST COMPANY OF
OKLAHOMA CITY, national association

By: W«g Cb\ﬂm

Name: M*E-’C’ e. Demos -
Title: <~ \>n..c, ?u‘,x@_(dk.

NBD BANK

By: M fm;,g:
Namé? Kle Ered o udh
Title: /;2,{{;} Ve /feﬂdp&.«pl’

UMB BANK, N.A.

By AL

Name: Douf#las F. Page
Title: Executive Vice President

MERCANTILE BANK (formerly Mercantile
Bank of Kansas City)

By: m'\é\ gjw
Name: Merk Dagqnes N7,
Title: se v f

SOUTHWEST BANK OF ST. LOUIS

By: %Jw Z /W

Name: dhdrew £ 1decetsrof
Title: Vice frtsa/wf‘
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EXHIBIT 3.5

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement
dated March 31, 2000, between the Company and various banks named therein
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SECOND AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to that certain Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement
dated as of March 1, 1996, as amended by First Amendment dated as of January 26, 1998, by and
between Bank of Oklahoma (“BOK”), Bank One, Oklahoma, N.A. ("Bank One"), First National Bank
of Kansas (“Kansas”), LaSalle Bank National Association (“LaSalle”), Mercantile Bank (formerly
Mercantile Bank of Kansas City) (“Mercantile”), Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. (“Pioneer”),
Southwest Bank of St. Louis (“Southwest”), UMB Bank, n.a. (“UMB”), and Union Bank of
California, N.A. (“Union”), all of BOK, Bank One, Kansas, LaSalle, Mercantile, Southwest, UMB
and Union being hereinafter referred to collectively as “Banks”, is made by and between Pioneer and
the Banks as of this 31" day of March, 2000.

WHEREAS, Pioneer and each of the Banks desire to amend the before-described Amended
and Restated Senior Lending Agreement which was dated as of March 1, 1996 and was previousiy
amended as of January 26, 1998 (the “Lending Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Pioneer is willing to confirm that all provisions of such before-described Lending
Agreement and of all notes, documents evidencing or confirming the grant of liens and security
interests and all other related documents, except as otherwise expressly amended by this Agreement,
shall remain in full force and effect; and

WHEREAS, Pioneer and each of the Banks desire that all existing and future extensions of
credit by any of the Banks to Pioneer be subject to the terms and conditions of the before-described
Lending Agreement as previously amended and as amended by the terms hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements of the parties hereto and for
other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

1. Paragraph number 6 of Section VIII entitled, “Consolidated Total Indebtedness/Total
Required Capital Ratio” is hereby deleted in its entirety.

2. Paragraph number 8 of Section VIII entitled, “Delinquency Adjusted Leverage Ratio”
is hereby deleted in its entirety.

3. The number in paragraph 5 of Section VIII of ". . . Four Million Five Hundred
Thousand Doliars (84,500,000) . . ." is hereby changed to ". . . Nine Million Dollars
(39,000,000) . . ."* and the date of ". . . September 30, 1992 . . ." in that same
paragraph is changed to ". . . September 30, 1999. . .". ,

4. The second sentence of paragraph 1 of Section IlI is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following: "Unless any of the Banks gives written notice of their
objection to the other Banks and to Pioneer prior to December 31 of any calendar
year commencing with 1997, the term of this Agreement shall be automatically
extended to March 1 of the year immediately succeeding the year this Agreement
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would otherwise terminate." The word "then" is hereby inserted immediately prior
to the term "existing term" in the third sentence of paragraph 1 of Section III of the
Agreement.

Paragraph 12(D) of Section I is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: "A
material breach by Pioneer of any covenant, obligation or requirement contained in
Section IX of this Agreement and in Section VIII of this Agreement, except
Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of Section VIII, and failure of Pioneer after receipt from
the Banks of written notice pursuant to Section X.2(a) hereof specifying the same, to
perform any such covenant, obligation or requirement;"

Paragraph 1 of Section XIV is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

1. Notices. All notices hereunder shall, unless otherwise specified herein,

or unless any party hereto shall subsequently give written notice to the others
specifying some other address, be deemed to be given when actually received, or if
mailed, three (3) Business Days after being deposited postage prepaid in the United
States mail, certified mail return receipt requested, addressed to the other parties
hereto at their respective present mailing addresses which are:

First National Bank of Kansas
4650 College Boulevard
Overland Park, Kansas 66211
Attention: Jesse West

LaSalle Bank National Association
135 South LaSalle Street, Room 362
Chicago, Illinois 60603

Attention: Terry Keating

Bank One, Oklahoma, N.A.

100 North Broadway

P.O. Box 25848

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125
~Attention: Mark C. Demos

Mercantile Bank

6333 Long

Shawnee, KS 66216
Attention: Tom Butkus

Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

P.O. Box 24128

Bank of Oklahoma Plaza
Oklahoma City, OK 73124
Attention: Laura Christofferson

2 WA 532573.2
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10.

11.

12.

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
4233 Roanoke Road

Kansas City, Missouri 64111
Attention: Thomas H. Holcom, Jr.

Southwest Bank of St. Louis
2301 South Kingshighway

St. Louis, Missouri 63110
Attention: Andrew S. Hereford

UMB Bank, N.A.

1010 Grand Avenue

Kansas City, Missouri 64106
Attention: Douglas F. Page

Union Bank of California, N.A.
350 California Street, 6™ Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104
Attention: Donald H. Rubin

The references in paragraph 1 of Section X to paragraphs 13(a), 13(c), 13(e), and
13(g) of Section I are hereby changed to references to paragraphs 12(a), 12(c), 12(e),
and 12(g) of Section L

The reference in Section XII to paragraph 13 of Section I is hereby changed to
reference paragraph 12 of Section L. :

In paragraph 12 of Section XIV, the phrase “. . . to the Senior Lending Agreement
between Pioneer and the Banks dated as of June 9, 1993 . . .” is hereby changed to
read . . . to the Amended and Restated Semor Lending Agreement between Pioneer
and the Banks dated as of March 1, 1996. .

Exhibits A through I and K through M tothe Lendmg Agreement are hereby amended
in their entirety and replaced with the form of Exhibits A through I and K through M
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

All terms and conditions of the Lending Agreement and of all notes executed pursuant
thereto and all documents executed in connection therewith not expressly amended
hereby shall remain in full force and effect as if this Amendment had not been enacted.
Statutory Statement Disclosure Required by Mo. Rev. Stat. § 432.045.

ORAL AGREEMENTS OR COMMITMENTS TO LOAN MONEY, EXTEND
CREDIT OR TO FORBEAR FROM ENFORCING REPAYMENT OF A DEBT,
INCLUDING PROMISES TO EXTEND OR RENEW SUCH DEBT ARE NOT
ENFORCEABLE. TOPROTECT YOU, PIONEER, AND US, THE BANKS, FROM
MISUNDERSTANDING OR DISAPPOINTMENT, ANY AGREEMENTS WE
REACH COVERING SUCH MATTERS ARE CONTAINED IN THIS WRITING,

WHICH IS THE COMPLETE AND EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF THE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN US, EXCEPT AS WE MAY LATER AGREE IN

WRITING TO MODIFY IT.

3 , WA 532573.2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Second Amendment to

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

By:
Name: William D. Sullivan
Title: President

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF KANSAS

By:
Name:

Title:

BANK OF OKLAHOMA

By:
Name:

Title:

LASALLE BANK NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION

By:

Name:

Title:

Title:

UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA, N.A.

By:

Name:

Title:

 Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement as of this 3 ( dayof_,Jan esf , 2000.

UMB BANK, n.a.

By:
Name: Douglas F. Page
Title: Executive Vice President

BANK ONE, OKLAHOMA, N.A.

By:
Name:
Title:

MERCANTILE BANK

By:
Name:
Title:

SOUTHWEST BANK OF ST. LOUIS

By:
Name:

WA 532573.2
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EXHIBIT A
=+ e - SECURED T T
REVOLVING GRID NOTE
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

$ and interest ' ,

On Demand, for value received, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., 8 Missouri Corporatlon, promises to pay to
(hereinafter called "Bank") or o its order at its main office, in twelve (12) equal
monthly principal payments, the principal sum of the lesser of: (i) dollars; or
(ii) the unpaid principal amount of all advances made by Bank; together with interest on all principal amounts outstandmg
hereunder from time to time, from date(s) of disbursement(s) until paid, at the rate of the Bank's
per annum (365 day year), ad)usted daily, with all accrued interest payable monthly in arrears on the 10® day of each
month. The first installment of principal shall commence on the 10 day of the month followmg 30 days after demand was

made on Maker.,

"Collateral” as used herein shall mean all notes payable to Maker by any and all of its Subsidiaries which are listed
on Exhibit D attached to the Senior Lending Agreement described below and all other Subsidiaries as otherwise defined
in said Agreement, and all payments due such Subsidiaries from their customers which have been assigned to Maker by
such Subsidiaries pursuant to an Assignment of Note Payments described below.

The undersigned Maker hereby grants to Bank a security interest in the Collateral for the payment of all amounts -

due under this note and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the Bank incurred pursuant to the
Senior Lending Agreement described below.

If any of said installments, or any part thereof, is not paid when due and remains unpaid after proper notice thereof
is given by Bank to Maker, then the entire indebtedness then remaining unpaid shall, at the option of the holder hereof, and
without notice of demand, become immediately due and payable, subject to the terms of the Senior Lending Agreement
described below. Any amount not paid shall thereafter bear interest until paid at the rate hereinbefore specified, plus two
percent per annum. Unless Bank, in its sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all payments shall be

applied first to payment of accrued interest, and then to reduction of the principal sum due hergunder. Any part of the

outstanding principal balance hereof may be paid prior to Demand without penalty, and if less than the principal sum stated
above is outstanding, the undersigned, may from time to time until Demand receive, but the Bank has no commitment to
make, further disbursements hereunder; provided, however, the aggregate amount of all principal amounts outstanding
hereunder shall at no time exceed the face amount of this note; and provided further, that each and every disbursement made
under this Revolving Grid Note shall be at the Bank's sole discretion. All advances made by Bank to the undersigned and
all principal and interest payments thereon shall be recorded on the Schedule of Disbursements and Payments of Principal;

provided, however, that the failure to make such notation shall not affect the obligation of the undersigned Maker to repay
the outstanding principal amount of, together with interest on, any advances made by the Bank to the undersigned Maker
pursuant to the Senior Lending Agreement described below and Bank is hereby unilaterally authorized to make such
notations thereon. The amounts recorded shall be presumptive evidence of the outstanding principal balance of this

Revolving Promissory Note.

This Note is the "Note" referred to in the "Credit Facility Letter" dated ' , and is
one of the Revolving Grid Notes referred to in the Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated March 31,
2000, among Maker, the Bank, and certain other financial institutions.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.
a Missouri Corporation (Maker)

By:

4233 Roanoke Road
Kansas City, MO 64111-4076
Tax Identification No. 44-0607504

Note No.

WA 537379.1
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

a Missouri corporation

DATE AMOUNT OF AMOUNT OF UNPAID
INTEREST INTEREST INTEREST PRINCIPAL . PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL DISBURSEMENT
DATE PAID TO RATE PAID DISBURSEMENT PAYMENT BALANCE APPROVED BY
]
T
WA 537379.1
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EXHIBIT B
SECURED AMORTIZING NOTE
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
SENIOR NOTE
$ and interest .

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. promises to pay

Dollars, together with interest on the unpaid principal balance from the
date of this note until paid, at the rate of percent per annum. This note shall be payable as follows: (i) For
the period commencing with the date of this note and extending to accrued interest only (360 day year)
is payable monthly at the above rate, on the 10 day of each month, and (ii) for the period commencing
, principal and interest (360 day year) shall be payable, in consecutive monthly
installments of Dollars (§ : ) each, the first to become due on

and on the 10® day of each month thereafter until the indebtedness evidenced by this note is fully paid; provided,
however, the final maturity date of this note shall be _ . Any amount not paid when due shall
thereafier bear interest until paid at the rate herein before specified, plus two percent annum. Unless Bank, in its
sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all payment shall be applied first to payment of accrued
interest, and then to reduction of the principal sum due hereunder.

"Collateral" as used herein shall mean all notes payable to Maker by any and all of its Subsidiaries which
are listed on Exhibit D attached to the Senior Lending Agreement described below and all other Subsidiaries as
otherwise defined in said Agreement, and all payments due such Subsidiaries from their customers which have been
assngned to Maker by such Subsidiaries pursuarit to an Assignment of Note Payments described below.

The undersigned Maker hereby grants to Bank a security interest in the Collateral for the payment of all
amounts due under this note and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the Bank incurred
pursuant to the Senior Lending Agreement described below.

The Maker will not prepay more than two scheduled payments of the principal amount of this note, unless
the Net Receivables owned by the Maker at the end of any month are less than 70 percent of the greatest amount of
net consolidated Net Receivables outstanding at any quarter end during the term of this note, except as otherwise
provided under the provisions of paragraph 1 of Section IlI of the Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement

dated March 31, 2000.

This Note is the "Note" referred to in the "Credit Facility Letter" dated , and is one
of the Amortizing Notes referred to in the Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated March 31,2000,
among Maker, the Bank, and certain other financial institutions.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
"a Missouri Corporation (Maker)

By:

4233 Roanoke Road
Kansas City, MO 64111-4076
Tax Identification No. 44-0607504

Note No.

WA 537667.1

(Bank) at its main office, or to its order, the principal sum of

0



EXHIBIT C

SECURED SINGLE PAY TERM NOTE
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

s and interest ,

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC., a Missouri corporation, promises to pay to
(herein the "Bank"), or order, on the Smgle Pay Note Expiry Date shown in the Credit Facility
Letter described below, the principal amount of 3 ) or
such lesser aggregate amount of advances as have been made by Bank pursuant to the Credit Facility Letter described below and
which remain outstanding, which amount shall be due and payable in lawful money of the United States of America in immediately
available funds. Maker further promises to pay interest and principal when due, to the Bank at the Bank's office located at
or such other office of the Bank as the Bank may direct in writing.

The undersigned further promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance from the date hereof until paid in full
at the rates and at the times as follows:

An advance will bear interest , as determined by the Bank (on the bases of a 365 day
year), in its sole discretion for fixed periods selected by the Maker (but not to exceed the Expiry Date). Interest is payable monthly
in arrears on the tenth day of each month, or on the date of any payment or part payment of any advance. Any amount which is not
paid when due hereunder shall bear interest until paid in full at the Bank's prime rate of interest plus two percent per annum.

"Collateral" as used herein shall mean all notes payable to Maker by any and all of its Subsidiaries which are listed on
Exhibit D attached to the Senior Lending Agreement described below and all other Subsidiaries as otherwise defined in said
Agreement, and ail payments due such Subsidiaries from their customers which have been assigned to Maker by such Subsidiaries
pursuant to an Assignment of Note Payments described below.

The undersigned Maker hereby grants to Bank a security interest in the Collateral for the payment of all amounts due
under this note and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the Bank incurred pursuant to the Senior Lending
Agreement described below.

All advances made by the Bank to the undersigned pursuant to the Credit Facility Letter and all payments and
prepayments made on account of the principal balance hereon may be recorded by the Bank on the schedule annexed hereto;
provided, however, that the failure to make a notation shall not affect the obligation of the undersigned hereunder with respect to
payments or principal or interest on this Note and provided, further, that Bank shall provide a written notice and photocopy of such
notations simultaneously to Maker. ‘

The Maker may only prepay an advance at the end of the applicable fixed period except as otherwise provided herein and
except as otherwise provided under the provisions of paragraph 1 of Section III of the Amended and Restated Senior Lender
Agreement dated March 31, 2000. In the event that the Maker does repay an advance on a day other than the last day of a fixed
period, the Maker shall promptly reimburse the Bank for all reasonably demonstrated losses and expenses incurred in liquidating
or employing deposits obtained from third parties to make or maintain the advance or any part thereof. Amounts which are repaid
may be re-borrowed, subject to the terms and conditions of the Credit Facility Letter.

This Note is the "Note" referred to in the "Credit Facility Letter” dated , and is one of the Single
Pay Term Notes referred to in the Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated March 31, 2000 among Maker, the
Bank, and certain other financial institutions.

EXPIRY DATE: ‘ PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri Corporation (Maker)

By:

4233 Roanoke Road
Kansas City, MO 641114076
Tax Identification No. 44-0607504

Note No.

WA 537675.1
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EXHIBIT D

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES SUBSIDIARY LISTING
(Operating Subsidiaries)
as of March 31, 2000

Pioneer Military Lending of Colorado, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Kansas, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Louisiana, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending, Ihc., a Nebraska Corporation
Pioneer Military Lending of Missouri, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Oklahoma, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Georgia, Inc.
Pioneer Militafy Lending of Tennessee, Inc.
Military Accebtande Corporation of Nevada, Inc.
Pioneer Military Lending of Nevada, Inc.

Pioneer Lending of Washington, Inc.

WA 537388.1
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EXHIBIT E
SUBSIDIARY REVOLVING GRID NOTE

$ and Interest ,

PAYMENTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND INTEREST

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned "Maker" promises to pay to the order of Pioneer
Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation, (hereinafter called "Lender"), at its main office, on
demand, but if no demand is made then on ‘ R , the principal sum of

or such other lesser amount as shall be noted on the Schedule
of Disbursements and Payments of Principal included herein or attached hereto pursuant to the
authority set forth herein, together with interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof from time to
time outstanding from date(s) of disbursement(s) until paid, at the rate of nine percent per annum with
all interest calculated and payable monthly in arrears, based on the month-end balance. Unless
Lender, in its sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all payments shall be applied
first to payment of accrued interest, and then to reduction of the principal sum due hereunder. This
note shall bear interest after maturity, whether by reason of acceleration or otherwise, at a rate of
interest equal to two percent (2%) in excess of the rate stated above until paid in full, and such
interest shall be compounded annually if not paid annually. Any part of the outstanding principal
balance hereof may be paid prior to maturity and if less than the full amount due hereunder is paid,
the undersigned may from time to time until maturity receive, but the Lender has no commitment to
make, further disbursements hereunder; provided, however; the aggregate amount of all principal
amounts outstanding hereunder shall at no time exceed the face amount of this Note; and provided
further, that each and every disbursement made under this Subsidiary Revolving Grid Note shall be
at the Lender’s sole discretion. In the event the undersigned pays any part of the principal balance
hereof prior to maturity or, in accordance with the terms hereof, receives any additional

disbursements of principal hereunder, the principal amount due hereunder shall presumptively be the

last amount stated to be the Unpaid Principal Balance of Note on the Schedule of Disbursements and
Payments of Principal, and the undersigned hereby authorize(s) the Lender to make notations on the
Schedule of Disbursements and Payments of Principal (or Lender’s computer-generated grid) from
time to time to evidence payments and disbursements hereunder.

COLLATERAL ,
, The term "Collateral" as used herein includes (but without limitation) all of the property listed
below now owned and hereafter acquired, all proceeds and products thereof, and all accessions

thereto.

Description of Collateral: All cash, deposit accounts, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
Assignment of Note Payments, reserve for loss and dealer reserve for loss.

WA 537388.1
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GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST
The Maker hereby grants to Lender a security interest in the Collateral and pledges and

assigns the Collateral to Lender for the payment of all amounts due under this Note, and all renewals
and extensions thereof, and for the payment of all other present and future obligations to the holder,
direct or contingent, secured or unsecured, whether or not due, of Maker (all of which amounts and
obligations are hereinafter referred to as "Secured Obligations"), and Lender may accordingly retain
the Collateral or any part thereof as security after the payment of all amounts due under this Note.
The Maker agrees to give to Lender upon Lender’s request, from time to time, such other and further
security as Lender, in its sole discretion, may deem necessary or appropriate, such additional security
to become "Collateral" under the provisions hereof.

RIGHTS RESPECTING COLLATERAL
After maturity, the holder may (1) transfer all or any part of the Collateral into the name of

the holder hereof or its nominee, with or without disclosing that such Collateral is subject to the lien
and security interest hereunder; (2) notify the parties obligated on any of the Collateral to make
payment to the holder hereof of any amounts due or to become due thereunder; (3) enforce collection
of any of the Collateral by suit or otherwise and surrender, release or exchange all or any part thereof,
or compromise, extend or renew for any period (whether or not longer than the original period) any
indebtedness secured thereby; (4) take control of any proceeds of the Collateral; (5) endorse any
Collateral in the name of Maker whenever, in the opinion of the holder, such endorsement may
facilitate the handling of, or realization upon, the Collateral, and an irrevocable power of attorney
therefor is hereby granted to the holder hereof, however, any such action must comply fully with the
Assignment of Note Payments and Senior Lending Agreement executed by Lender if holder is other

than Lender. :

The Maker hereby agrees to take any and all steps necessary to preserve any rights in the
Collateral against prior parties and the holder hereof shall not be bound to take any such steps.
Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, the Maker shall not give, transfer, sell, encumber or
otherwise dispose of any of the Collateral, or any interest therein, without Lender’s advance written
consent. ‘

ACCELERATION AND EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Without limitation on the demand maturity of this Note, the holder may, without demand or
notice of any kind, declare this Note and any other of the Secured Obligations immediately due and
payable in full at any time that the holder deems itself insecure for any reason whatsoever in respect
of any Secured Obligation. Upon the occurrence of any of the following events of default: (1) failure
of Maker to pay or perform any other obligation of the Maker; (2) dissolution of, or termination of
existence of the Maker; (3) the failure of the Maker to pay debts as they mature; (4) appointment of
a receiver of or for any part of the property of the Maker, an assignment for the benefit of creditors
by the Maker; or the commencement of any proceedings under bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or
against the Maker then this Note and all other obligations of the Maker to the holder hereof shall
immediately become due and payable in full without notice or demand; provided, however, that all
such actions must be in accordance with Senior Lending Agreement dated June 9, 1993, March 1,

2 WA 537388.1
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1996, or March 31, 2000, as the case may be, among Lender and certain Banks therein listed if holder
is other than Lender.

MISSOURI LAW
The interpretation of this instrument and the rights and remedies of the parties hereto shall

be governed by the laws of the State of Missour.

COLLECTION EXPENSES

To the extent permitted by applicable law, the undersigned agrees to pay all expenses of the
holder in collecting this Note and enforcing rights respecting and realizing upon any of the Collateral,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

NO WAIVERS
Any failure by the holder hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall not be construed as a

waiver of the right to exercise the same or any other right at any other time and from time to time
thereafier.

HEADINGS
All headings or titles appearing in this Note are used as a matter of convenience only and shall
not affect the interpretation of the provisions hereof. '

ASSIGNMENT , o
Lender may assign this Note together with all Collateral and all rights hereunder without

notice to or consent of the undersigned.

Dated:

By:
Name:
Title:

3 WA 537388.1
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' CREDIT FACILITY LETTER

The undersigned bank, as of the date hereof, expects to offer a maximum aggregate credit facility of

RS (“Credit Facility”) during the next twelve months to Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a
Missouri corporation, which shall be subject to all terms and conditions of that certain Amended and
Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated March 31, 2000 (the “Agreement”). The terms hereof are
hereby incorporated by reference into the Agreement, reference to which is made for a full statement
of all terms thereof. The specific terms of the Credit Facility are as follows: '

Lender:
' (the “Bank")
l Borrower:  Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
4233 Roanoke Road-
l Kansas City, Missouri 64111 (the “Borrower™)
‘ Drawings:  This Credit Facility is available through , 20___ unless terminated
earlier pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. All proceeds will be transmitted
l to a specified bank and account number for the Borrower and initially that will be
UMB Bank, n.a. in Account No. 9801049275.
P v
l’ ; Facility: Revolving Grid Note: y
Revolving Grid Note Pricing:
I Revolving Grid Note Maturity:
. Amortizing Note(s) Funded:

Amortizing Note(s) Unfunded:
I Amortizing Note(s) Pricing:

Single Pay Term Note Amount:
Single Pay Term Note Expiry Date:

We appreciate this opportunity to provide this statement of present expectations in support of your
financial requirements. Your acceptance of any credit which may be extended by the undersigned
l constitutes a certification that all warranties and representations in Section Il of the Agreement are
true as of the date of the extension of any such credit and that Pioneer, as of such date, is not in
. default under the terms of such Agreement. By delivery of this Credit Facility Letter to you, the
| undersigned does not commit or otherwise obligate itself to extend to you any credlt descrlbed in the

~ Credit Facility.

I Bank Name
. Dated: By:

Name

'. Title

l e e m ma e _- e T A MR AN S e
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3)

(4)
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(2)
(3)
(4)
()
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(N
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9

(M
(2)
3)
(4)

TOTAL SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS

TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS

I, the undersigned Chief Financial Officer of the company, hereby state that the above information is true
and correct. | am not aware of any Event of Default on the above-referenced note that exists on the date

s fiadb 4 RS

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

4233 Roanoke Road, Kansas City, MO 64111-4076

Compliance Certificate for Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement Dated March 31, 2000

Delinquency Adjusted Capital

Calculation Date: December 31, 1999

REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS

Senior Indebtedness/Tangible Net Worth ..............oooviiiiie s
Senior Indebtedness/Net Receivable Ratio .............cccvevveeviiriivcen e
Loans or advances to stockholders, officers or employees...........cccovevcernvcrneenee

Indebtedness of Any Branch Over $50,000.............ccoomeiirniniiiiinnninns

CAPITAL/RESERVE CALCULATIONS

Consolidated capital stock, preferred stock and earned surplus of
the company

Unpaid balance on "270-day" delinguent accounts ..........ccoeveeevnnnce oo
Total Required Capital..........o.cccoiiiiiirierreeciei st
Junior Subordinated INdebtedness. ..o
Senior Subordinated Indebtedness........c.cocoiiinic
Loan loss reserve ................................................................
Dealer 0SS FESEIVES ..ottt ettt s er e e

SUBTOTAL ..ot ettt STV
Less: "90-day" recency delinquent 8CCOUNES .........ccoovvieiiveie et

Tangible Net WOorth ... e s

Loan Loss Reserve/Net Receivables Ratio ............................................................

INDEBTEDNESS CALCULATION

Short Term Notes dug Bank ... et s e ee e e e ae e e
Short Term Notes due Affiliates................. et ebeterreirete st s res s e o e ety e s aerare et tesstaeannean
Short Term Notes du@ OLhEIS ...t re e s ee s evaaes

SN TOIM I INOIES . ..o ettt et e e e s e st st s e s snessrassnaesenes

this Certificate of Compliance is signed.

Thomas H. Helcom Jr., Chief Financial Officer

PERMITTED

ACTUAL
245t01 4.75t01
67.58 % 80 %
NONE  $50,000
NQNE $50,000
REQUIRED
12,013,265
0
12,013,265  $8,028,825
18,119,065
NONE
3,630,868  $3,300,868
1,399,900
35,083,101
3,911,300
31,151,801
13,032,733
313% 200%
6,574,917
116,420
0
69,636,624
76,327,961
94,447,029

Date



' EXHIBIT H
QUARTERLY CERTIFICATE
FOR THE CALENDAR QUARTER ENDED:
L EXECUTED REVOLVING GRID NOTES:
Maximum Amount  Principal Amount

Bank Authorized Outstanding_ Note Numbers

2. EXECUTED AMORTIZING NOTES:
. Original Principal Outstanding Note Maturity

Bank Note No/Date Amount Principal Amount Date
3. AMORTIZING NOTES — UNFUNDED EXPECTED AVAILABILITY ‘

Bank Unfunded Amounts Schedule

4. EXECUTED SINGLE PAY TERM NOTES - UNFUNDED EXPECTED

AVAILABILITY
Amount of
Unfunded
_ Expected
Bank Note No/Date Principal Amount Maturity Date Availability -
This certificate is executed this day of , pursuant to

paragraph VIII(10) of that certain Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated March 31, 2000.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

By:
Name:
Title:

WA 537409.1
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EXHIBIT I
FORM OF AMENDMENT TO
SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT TO
ADD BANKS OR OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Amendment No. __to Senior Lending Agreement

This Amendment to that certain Amended and Restated Senior Lending Agreement dated
March 31, 2000, a copy of which is attached hereto (hereinafter referred to as the "Senior Lending
Agreement") is made , by and between all banks or other financial institutions
which are as of the date hereof parties to the Senior Lending Agreement; Pioneer Financial Services,
Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "Pioneer ") and ,a
corporation with offices located at (hereinafter referred to as

"New Bank").

WHEREAS, Pioneer has requested New Bank to extend credit to it and New Bank is willing
to extend such credit; and

WHEREAS, Pioneer is prohibited from receiving credit from New Bank unless New Bank
becomes a party to the Senior Lending Agreement; and

WHEREAS, New Bank desires to become a party to the Senior Lending Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement of the parties hereto and for
other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, it is agreed by and
between Pioneer, New Bank and all of the banks and financial institutions which are presently parties
to the Senior Lending Agreement as follows:

1. The Senior Lending Agreement is hereby amended pursuant to Section XI
thereof to add New Bank as a party thereto on the eleventh (11") business day following delivery
by Pioneer of a copy hereof executed by both Pioneer and New Bank to each of the banks and
financial institutions which are presently parties to the Senior Lending Agreement if none of said
banks or financial institutions objects to New Bank becoming a party to the Senior Lending

Agreement.

2. Upon the effective date hereof which shall be determined by paragraph 2 of
Section XI of the Senior Lending Agreement, New Bank agrees to be bound by all terms and
conditions of the Senior Lending Agreement and further agrees that all credit which is extended by
New Bank to Pioneer shall be subject to all terms and agreements of the Senior Lending Agreement.

3. Section I of the Senior Lending Agreement is hereby amended to add a new

paragraph numbered . which shall state the following: " " shall mean
of

WA 537661.1
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4. Paragraph 4 of Section I of the Senior Lending Agreement is hereby amended
to add New Bank within the definitions of "Banks".

5. Paragraph 1 of Section XIV of the Senior Lending Agreement is hereby
amended to add the following:

"

6. All of the terms of the Senior Lending Agreement, unless expressly amended

- hereby, shall remain in full force and effect as if this Amendment had not been adopted.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to the Senior
Lending Agreement as of the day and year first written above.

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
a Missouri corporation

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:

WA 537661.1



EXHIBIT K
OTHER SENIOR DEBT

NON-CONFORMING TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SENIOR LENDING AGREEMENT
DATED AS OF MARCH 31, 2000.

(Complete listing of financial institutions not adopting the Senior Lending Agreement.)

There is no other Senior Debt which is non-conforming to the Amended and Restated
Senior Lending Agreement.

WA 537653.1
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EXHIBIT L

INTERESTED PARTIES

First National Bank of Kansas
4650 College Boulevard
Overland Park, Kansas 66211
Attention: Jesse West

LaSalle Bank National Association
135 South LaSalle Street, Room 362
Chicago, Illinois 60603

Attention: Terry Keating

Bank One, Oklahoma, N.A.

100 North Broadway

P.O. Box 25848

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125
Attention: Mark C. Demos

Mercantile Bank

6333 Long

Shawnee, KS 66216
Attention: Tom Butkus

Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

P.O. Box 24128

Bank of Oklahoma Plaza
Oklahoma City, OK 73124
Attention: Laura Christofferson

MARCH 31, 2000

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
4233 Roanoke Road

Kansas City, Missouri 64111
Attention: Thomas H. Holcom, Jr.

Southwest Bank of St. Louis
2301 South Kingshighway

St. Louis, Missouri 63110
Attention: Andrew S. Hereford

UMB Bank, N.A.

1010 Grand Avenue

Kansas City, Missouri 64106
Attention: Douglas F. Page

Union Bank of California
350 California Street, 11® Floor

San Francisco, CA 94101
Attention: Donald H. Rubin

WA 537653.1
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Incorporated under the Jaws of the State of ‘Missouri

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES

Inc. .
Junior Subordinated Debenture

Amount $" AMOUNT" NO. "DEBEN NO."

For value received the Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. (hereinafter called Company) promises to pay at its Home Office in Kansas City, Missouri to the order

of "REGISRATION"

"ADDF ESS IRA #"
on the maturity date, together with the interest at the rate and when due, all as follows:

Issue Maturity Interest Interest Interest
Date Amount Term Date Rate Due Payment
"ISSUE DATE" S$"AMOUNT" "TERM"mos"MATURE DATE""INT RATE"% "INT DUE" "INT PAYMENT"

This Debenture is one of an authorized issue of Junior Subordinated Debentures to be issued by the Company. The name of the person to whom
this Debenture shall be originally issued and the name of each transferee hereof shall be registered on the Books of the Company. No transfer hereof shall be
valid unless made on the Company books as directed by the registered holder in person or by his duly authorized attorney, The registered holder hereof shall
be deemed and treated as the owner hereof for all intents and purposes and the Company shall not, in any way, be affected by any notice to the contrary. The
Company shall have the privilege of prepaying this instrument, without penalty or premium, upon 30 days prior writteri notice mailed or delivered to the
registered holder hereof according to the records of the Company at holder’s address on said records and no interest shall accrue after the prepayment date. If
less than all of the outstanding Debentures are to be redeemed, the Debentures to be redeemed shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company. '

If this Debenture is issued in the names of the registered holders as joint tenants, the Company may recognize a transfer or re-registration of the
ownership of this Debenture upon the signature of one of such joint tenants, and the Company shall not be liable to the other joint tenants for any registration

or other transfer effected upon the signature of one of such joint tenants.

This Debenture is issued subject to the following subordination provisions, and each person holding this Debenture whether upon original issue or
transfer or renewal or assignment thereof, accepts and agrees to be bound by said provisions as follows, to wit:

The indebtedness evidenced by this Debenture, and any renewals or extensions thereof, shall be subordinate and junior in right of payment, in all
respects, 10 all Superior Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebtedness of the Company for money borrowed which is not expressed to be subordinate or
junior to any other indebtedness of the Company) and Subordinated Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebtedness of the Company for borrowed money
which is expressed to be subordinate and junior to all Superior Indebtedness of the Company but not to any other indebtedness of the Company) and Series A
Subordinated Indebtedness (which shall mean all indebtedness of the Company for borrowed money which is expressed to be subordinate and junior to all
Superior Indebtedness and Subordinated Indebtedness of the Company but not to any other indebtedness of the Company) of the Company, whether
outstanding at the date hereof or hereafter incurred. Without limiting the effect of the foregoing, “subordinate” and “junior” as used herein shall include within
their meanings the following: (i) that in the event of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings, and in any receivership, liquidation, reorganization or other
similar proceedings in connection therewith relative to the Company or its creditors or its property, and in the event of any proceedings for voluntary
liquidation, dissolution or other winding up of the Company, whether or not involving insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings, then all principal and interest,
including interest after the commencement of any such proceeding at a rate specified in the applicable indebtedness, whether or not such interest is an
allowable claim in any proceeding, on atl Superior Indebtedness and Subordinated Indebtedness and Series A Subordinated Indebtedness (hereinafter called
Prior Debt), and all post petition attorney’s fees and other collection costs incurred by the holders of all Prior Debt, shall first be paid in full, or such payment
be provided for, before any payment on account of principal or interest is made upon the indebtedness evidenced by this Debenture, and in any such
proceedings any payment or distribution of any kind or character, whether in cash or property or securities, which may be payable or deliverable in respect of
this Debenture shall be paid or delivered directly to the holders of such Prior Debt for application in payment thereof, unless and until such Prior Debt shall
have been paid and satisfied in full or such payment and satisfaction shall have been provided for; provided, however, the foregoing provisions are subject to:
the power of a court of competent jurisdiction to make other equitable provision reflecting the rights conferred herein upon the Prior Debt and the holders
thereof with respect to the junior subordinated indebtedness represented by this Debenture and the holders thereof by a fawful plan of reorganization under the
applicabte bankruptcy law; and (ii} in the event that this Debenture is for any reason declared due and payable by any holder or holders prior to its expressed
maturity date (under circumstances when the provisions of the foregoing clause (i) shall not be applicable} then the holder of this Debenture shall be entitled to
payment only after there shal! first have been paid in full the Prior Debt outstanding at the time this Debenture so becomes due and payable because of such
event of defaull, or such payment shall have been provided for. No present or future holder of Prior Debt shall be prejudiced in his right to enforce
subordination of this Debenture by an act or failure to act on the part of the Company. The provisions of this section are solely for the purpose of defining the:
relative rights of the holders of Prior Debt on the one hand, and the holder of this Debenture on the other hand and nothing herein shall impair, as between the
Company and the holder of any Debenture, the obligation of this Company which is unconditional and absolute, to pay to the holder thereof the principal and
interest thereon in accordance with its terms, nor shall anything herein prevent the holder of this Debenture from exercising aif remedies otherwise permitted
by applicable faw or hereunder upon default hereunder, subject to the rights, if any, under this section of holders of Prior Debt to receive cash, property or

securities otherwise payable or deliverable to the holder of this Debenture.

Any one of the following shall constitute an event of default as to this Debenture: 1f the Company ceases doing business; if any installment of
principal or interest on this Debenture is not paid within ten (10) days after written notice from the registered holder of such non-payment; or bankruptcy,
reorganization or insolvency proceedings. 1f an event of default as herein defined occurs, the Company agrees to give the registered holder of this Debenture,

upon request, the names and addresses of all registered Debenture holders.

This Debenture will automatically renew for additional terms ("Extcnsion Term”) each equal in length to the original term, unless and until the
registered holder has requested payment in writing on or prior to a maturity date. Interest for each Extension Term shall accrue at the rate being offered by the
Company on newly issued Debentures of like denomination and maturity at the time of commencement of such Extension Term. The Company reserves the

right to issue and sell other Debentures having equal rank and priority with this Debenture.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Company has caused this Debenture to be duly executed in its corporate name by its President or one of its Vice
Presidents, and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and attested by its Secretary or one of its Assistant Secretaries, this "DAY" day of "MONTH", "YEAR".

PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES

By:

Altest

President
{Seal)

I g



EXHIBIT 3.6

Form of Agreement between the Company and various banks named therein
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Administrative Support Group

4233 Roanoke Road 816/756-2020
Kansas City, MO 64111 Fax: 816/561-9333

May 25, 2000

Mr. Douglas F. Page e
Executive Vice President T
UMB Bank, N.A.

1010 Grand Avenue

POBox 419226

Kansas City MO 64106

Dear Doug:

Bill and | have a question about Pioneer Financial Services’ borrowing relationship with
the family holding company, Pioneer Financial Industries. At this time, PFl is loaning
Pioneer Financial Services $500,000, which is the maximum allowable under the Senior
Loan Agreement. PFlis “loaning” Charles Schwab (via money market funds) over
$500,000 and in this market the family would prefer loaning it to Pioneer Financial
Services.

Here are additional details. Article VI, paragraph 2 on page 22 refers to
Nonconforming Debt and states that “without written consent of All Banks which are a
party to this Agreement....”, we can not exceed $500,000 in unsecured indebtedness
payable to PF| and which is a part of Senior Debt.

When we wrote the Agreement, senior debt totaled less than $20 million; hence PFI
would represent about three percent (3%) of senior debt. Please authorize us to
increase PFI borrowing limits to $2.0 million. Call me if you have questions or concerns.
Otherwise, sign below and return for my records.

Thank Youl

Dz 727

Approvedby: grgz. vy,

Thomas H. Holcom Jr.
Chief Financial Officer s/50/00
Date

THH/cla

FEprenrdasd 0279 R e S S A I
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EXHIBIT 3.7

Promissory Note dated August 1, 2000, between the Company
and Pioneer Financial Industries, Inc.
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$2,000,000.00 And Interest AUGUST 1, 2000

i«
i
-
i
B

# On Demand, for value received, PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, a MISSOURI Corporation, promises to pay to PIONEER |

f FINANCIAL INDUSTRIES, INC. (hereinafter called “Bank™) or to its order, at its main office, the principal sum of the lesser §
M of (i) TWO MILLION AND NO/100 dollars or (ii) the unpaid principal amount of all advances made by Bank, together w1th
# interest on all principal amounts outstanding hereunder from time to time, from date(s) of disbursement(s) until paid, at the rate of
HINDEX RATE (Prime rate plus 2.00 points) percent per annum, adjusted daily, with all accrued interest payable § .
monthly. Unless Bank, in its sole discretion, may from time to time otherwise direct, all payments shall be applied first to payment §
H of accrued interest, and then to reduction of the principal sum due hereunder. Any part of the outstanding principal balance hereof §
#] may be paid prior to maturity and if less than the principal sum stated above is outstanding, the undersigned, may from time to time §
f until maturity receive, but the Bank has no commitment to make, further disbursements hereunder; provided, however, the‘
M aggregate amount of all principal amounts outstanding hereunder shall at no time exceed the face amount of this note; and provided §

, | further, that each and every disbursement made under this Revolving Promissory Note shall be at the Bank’s sole discretion. All ] E
| advances made by Bank to the undersigned and all principal and interest payments thereon shall be recorded on the Schedule of
H Disbursements and Payments of Principal listed below or on the grid attached hereto which is incorporated herein and made a part §
1 of this Revolving Promissory Note and Bank is hereby unilaterally authorized to make such notations thereon. The amounts §
. iff recorded shall be prima facie evidence of the outstanding principal balance of the Revolving Promissory Note. 3

i

i Demand, for payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, and notice of dishonor are hereby waived by all who are or shall become
pames to this instrument. Any failure by the holder hereof to, exercise any rights hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of
the right to exercise the same or any other right at any other time and from time to time thereafter.

.

g PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES §
A MISSOURI Corporation |

(2757 AL

PRESPOEN

SCHEDULE OF DISBURSEMENTS AND PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL

Date Date Interest Interest Amount of Amount of Unpaid Principal | Disbursement
Interest Rate Paid Principal Principal Balance Approved By
Paid To Disbursement Payment




EXHIBIT 6.1

Form of Readi-Loan Licensing Agreement dated October 1, 1997
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l T READI-LOAN LICENSING AGRE]

- THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this day of _October 19‘ } “Effectlve Date”), by.
and between WILLIAM D. SULLIVAN, an individual [hereinafter “Lxcensof’] and PION] TCITARY LENDING OF

LOUISIANA, INC., a corporation duly authorized and existing under the laws of the state of Louisiana [hereinafter “Lxcensee”]

1. Representations of Licensor. Licensor represents that he is the sole and exclusive owner and proprietor of all copyrights
and other property rights and interests in and to the following: (a) Readi-Loan Master Credit Agreement (b) Combined Readi-Loan
Promissory Note and Disclosure Statement; () Readi-Loan Endorsement [hereinafier collectively referred to as the “Documents”], .
free and clear of all known clalms and encumbrances for a term of not less than the term of the original United States copyright
therein. :

" 2. Grantof License. Licensor hereby grants and conveys to Licensee: (a) A non-exclusive license to print, publish,
distribute and utilize the Documents for the purpose of soliciting and making consumer loans to Licensee’s customers in the following
trade territory: Licensees State of Incorporation and if by mail any within 50 miles of any military installation in the world; (b)
Subject to Licensor’s prior written consent, the rights to alter and modify the Documents in order to make them suitable and proper
for any of the authorized uses in any State or on any military installation within Licensee’s trade territory. However, in no case shall
any deduction be made from the royalties or fees payable to Licensor hereunder in order to compensate the author of any such
alteration or modification. Such alternations and modifications shall become the sole and exclusive property of Licensor, shall be
deemed a work made for hire, and may be copyrighted by Licensor in his own name or any other name th:oughout the world, free of

' any royalty ubligations to Licensee except as may be approved in writing by Licensor.

a

3. Reservations. Licensor reserves unto himself: (a) The copyn,,hts in and to the Documents all’ adaptanons alterations
and modifications thereof in all countries of the world, including Licensee’s trade temtory, (b) The exclusive right to grant licenses
tor publication, distribution or utilization of the Documents and any adaptations, alterations or modifications thereof in all countries of

“the world, including Licensee’s trade territory; (¢) Any and all other rights not herein specifically and expressly granted to Licensee.
Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent Licensor from granting any other licenses for the use of the Documents or from utilizing
I the Documents in any manner whatsoever.

4. Copyright Notice. Licensee shall cause to be inserted in reasonably legible form and in not less than idfpoint type, on
the front or back of each Document distributed or utilized by Licensee, the following notice: ‘

. © 1994 William D. Sullivan

Provided, that such Notice need not appear on the Readi-L.oan Endorsement if said Endorsement Is attached, when prmted to the
Combined Readi-Loan Note and Disclosure Statement. :

5. Licensor’s Title and Protection. Licensee will not, during the term of this Agreement, attack the txtle or any nghts of -

Licensor in and to the Documents or attack the validity of this Agresment. Licensee shall assist Licensor, to the extent requested by

Licensor, in the procurement of any protection or defense of any of Licensor’s rights to the Documents and Licensor, if it so desires,
lm*—zy commence or prosecute any claims or suits in its own name or in the name of Licensee or join ‘Ligensee as a par‘y thereto

Licensee shall notify Licensor in writing of any infringements or imitations by others of the Documents which may come to -

Licensee’s attention, and Licensor shall have the sole right to determine whether or not any action shall be taken on account of any

such infringements or imitations. Licensee shall not institute any suit or take any action on account of any mfrmgements or umtattonc.'
lwnhout the prier written consent of Licensor.

6. Rovalties. Lxcensee shall pay to Licensor a royalty of $1.50 for each loan made under $2500; §2.50 for each loan made
.between $2,500 and $4,999; $3.50 for each loan made between 85,000 and §7,499; $4.50 for each loan made between $7,500 and
$9,999; $5.50 for each loan made between $10,000 and $19,999; and $6.50 for each loan made over 320,000 for the license granted
" hereunder. The royalties shall be due and payable no less often than quarterly from the effective date hereof for the original term and’

.any renewal thereafter.

7. Term. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a pericd of one (1) year from the Effective Date, and
shall be automatically renewed thereafter for successive one-year terms unless terminated in writing by Licensor or Licensee no less
an 30 days prior to the renewal date. Should Licensee fail to distribute or utilize the- Documents within one year after the Effective
ate, or fail to pay any royalties as set forth herein, and such failure is not cured within 30 days after the renewal date, then this
agreement shall aitomatically terminate and all rights herein granted to Licensee shall revert to Licensor without notice and without
'eleasing Licensee from any of its obligations hereunder.

8. Termination. In addition to the events of termination set forth in the preceeding paragraph, should Licensee or its
signee(s) fail to perform any other obligation required hereunder, and such failure is not cured within 30 days after written notice
lhereof is'sent to Licensee by Licensor, or should Licensee or its assignee(s) go into liquidation or bankruptcy, or make an assignment
or the benefit of creditors, or any insolvency or composition proceeding shall be commenced by or against the Licensee or its
assignee(s), the Licensor, in-addition to such other rights as he may have at law, equity or otherwise under this Agreement, may elect
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r;nmate this- Aoreement -without prejudice to any rights or claims he mayhave, and upon such terthination all rights heréin
P mantec’ to the Licensee shall cease and revert to the Licensor. The Licensee and its assignee(s) may not thereafter exercise any rights
' her”under and shall destroy all prmted copies of the Documents then in their possession. Licensor’s failure to terminate this
. Agreement upon any such event or default by Licensee shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of Licensor’s right to terminate this
Agreement for any subsequent event or default.

9. Assignment. Licensor may assign any of his right, title or interest in and to any of the Documents or this Agreement
without notice to Licensee. Licensee may not assign any rights or licenses granted hereunder without Licensor’s prior written
approval. Regardless of any such assignment, Licensee shall remain liable to Licensor for the full performance of its obligations
hereunder unless expressly released from said obligations by Licensor.

10. Notices. All statements, notices and mailings of any kind shali be deemed given, if addressed to Licensor, at PO Box
10090, Kansas City, MO 64111, and if to Licensee, at PO Box 4117, Fort Polk, LA 71459-1117, by first class mail, postage prepaid,

unless a party notifies the other by such notice of 2 new address, in which case such new address shall be employed for all subsequent
mailings. -

11. No Parmership or Joint Venture. This agreement shall not be construed as creating, directly or indirectly, a partnership'
or joint venture.

12. Rovalty Adjustment: The Licensee does hereby agree that the fixed royalty schedule provided above in Section 6 shail
be adjusted at the end of each license year of the primary term hereof or any renewals or extensions hereof during which there has
been an increase in the cost of living for all items as determined and computed in accordance with the following provisions:

2) Aspromptly as practical after the end of each license year during the primary term of this Licensing
Agreement, or any renewals or extensions thereof, the Licensor shall compute the increase, if any, in the cost of living for All
Items for such license year based upon the Revised Consumers Price Index U.S. City Average - All Items (1982-84 equal”

100) (ereinafter called the Index), published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor
(The Consumer Price Index).

b) The index number indicated in the column U.S. City Average for all urban consumers, “entitled all items”
published for October 1, 1997 shall be the Base Index Number and the corresponding index number for the last calendar

month published prior to the end of each license year during the pnmary term hereof or any renewals or extensmns thereof
shall be the Current Index Number. S _

there shall be subtracted the integer One (1) a.nd any resultma posmve number shal‘ bz deemed to be the petrcentage of
. increase.in the Index for royalties.- '

d) The percentage of i merease in the Index multlphed by the total royalties accrued and payable for the penod
according to the royalties schedule referenced in Section 6 shall be the increase in royalties payable for the calculation ‘period,

under this Licensing Agreement. Licensee will pay thts amount thhm .10 days from the date of btllmg or quarterly atthe
option of Licensor. ,

13. Benefit. This Agreement shall be bmdmg upon and inure to the benefit of the pames their respectlve successors and
permitted a551gns and shall be mterpreted and enforced in accord with the laws of the state of Missouri.

IN WITNESS WHEREOr the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be duly executed as of the day and year first
. above written.

-

LICENSOR:

WilfiamD.Su?én -
LICENSEE:

© Attest / '
Pioneer Miwgof Louisiana, Inc.
_ | By: (o
Secretary Its: L~—President <

' ¢) The applicable Current Index Number shall be divided by the Base Index Number. From the quotient thereof

'2,7,0



EXHIBIT 6.2

Office Building Lease dated January 31, 2001, between
the Company and Belletower Partners, L.L.C.
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OFFICE BUILDING LEASE

WITNESSETH, that for and in consideration of mutual covenants, Landlord and Tenant hereby agree
as follows:

ECTION A - Ba e De ons.
o
Date of Lease: January 31, 2001
Landlord: On-Site-Manager
Belletower Parmers, L.L.C, CRES Management Company
4510 Belleview
Kansas City, Missouri 64111
Tenant; Pioncer Financial Services, Inc.
4700 Belleview, Suite 300
Kansas City, Missouri 64111

Building: The multiple story building at 4700 Belleview, Kansas City, Missouri 64112, which
contains a total of approximately 81,917 net rentable feet.

Building Land: The land described on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference. v

Total Bullding Facilities: The Building Land and the Building, and other improvernents now existing
or hereafter constructed on the Building Land.

Premises: The premises located on the second and third level of the building which is outlined in red
on Exhibit "B" and which contains a total of 25,840 net rentable square feet of space and which shall be
commonly known as Suites 203 and 300 (Suite 203 consists of 720 net rentable square feet and Suite 300
consists of 25,120 net rentable square feet). '

Lease Term: Subject to paragraph 26, the term of this Lease shall commence on April 1, 2001 and
end on March 31, 2009, ~

Rent Commencement Date: Subject to paragraph 26, April 1, 2001.

Estimated Completion Date: N/A

Net Rentable Square Footage: For purposes of calculating the nes rentable area of the Building, the
rentable area of the floor shall be computed by measuring to the inside finished surface of the dominant portion
of the permanent outer building walls, excluding any major vertical penetrations of the floor, plus a common

load factor of eleven percent (11%) shall he included to help account for Tenant's pro rata share (load factor)
of those common areas within the Building.

Base Rent: Tenant shall pay to Landlord as Base Rent for the Premises the following surns over the
Loase Term:

April 1, 2001 - April 30, 2001: $57,526.75 monthly
May 1, 2001 ~ March 31, 2009: $42,526.75 monthly

Tenant! age of K Total Expenses: 31.10% (which percentage is calculated by dividing
the net rentable square footage of the Premises by the net rentable square footage of the Building),

Base Expenses: 2001 calendar base year expenses. Tenant shall be responsible for its full pro rata
share of any and all increases in utilities, real egtate taxes and insurance associated with the Building, No
deduction or exclusion shall be made by reason of interior partitions or other interior construction or
cquipment.

Permitted Uses: General business offices including financial services and ancillary uses

Security Deposit: Not applicable

Estimated Completion Date: N/A

State: Missouri

Vealon 5 1 JACLIBNTS\62196\00001\K01 62648, DOC
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Metropolitan Area; Kansas City

Total Expenses and Tenant's Expense Charge: As those terms are defined in Section 4 of the
Lease.

Each reference in this Lease to any of the foregoing Basic Lease Definitions shall be deemed to
incorporate all of the terms provided under each such Badfc Lease Definition.

SECTION B - Enumeration of Exhibits.

The Exhibits enumerated in this Section and attached to this Lease are hereby incorporated in this
Lease by this reference, and each party agrees to perform all obligations binding upon it under such Exhibits,

Exhibit “A”  Legal Description of Building Land.
Exhibit*B”  Plan delineating the Premises.

1. Premises, Landlord hereby leases the Premises to Tenant, and Tenant hereby rents the
Premises from Landlord.

2 Construction of Improvements. Landlord and Tenant agree that Tenant will accept the
Premises in its current “as is” condition upon commencement of the Lease Term, subject to legal compliance
of the Premises as of the commencement date.

3 Rent. Tenant shall, commencing with the Rent Commencement Date and thereafter during
the Lease Term, pay Landlord the Base Rent specified in Section A - Basic Lesse Definitions, without demand
or any right of set-off or deduction whatsoever, The Base Rent shall be paid in equal monthly installments on
the first day of each calendar month in advance at the address of Landlord set forth in Section A - Basic Lease
Definitions, or at such other place as Landlord may from time to time designate. Base Rent ghall be prorated
for any fractional calendar month. In addition to the Base Rent herein provided, Tenant shall pay as additional
rent all charges required to be paid by Tenant under this Lease, whether or not designated as “additional rent.”

4. Total Expense Escalation; Additional Rent,

(A}  The term *Tota] Expenses" shall mean the sum of (i) the “Operating Expenses"” (as
defined in paragraph (C) of this Section) plus (ii) the "Taxes” (as defined in paragraph (D) of this Section).

®B)  For each calendar year falling wholly or partially within the term of this Lease after
the Rent Commencement Date in which the Total Expenses shall exceed the 2001 calendar Base Year
Expenses, “Base Expenses," Tenant chall pay a portion of such excess amount ("Excess Total Expenses”)
determined by multiplying the Excess Total Bxpenses for such calendar year by Tenant's percentage of Excess
Total Expenses (such amount to be paid by Tenant being herein called “Tenant's Expense Charge”). Tenant's
Expense Charge for each calendar year shall be reasonably estimated by Landlord from time to time, and
Tenant shall pay the amount so estimated to Landlord in monthly installments on the first day of each calendar
month in advance. Within a reasonable period of time following the end of each calendar year during the term
of this Lease after the Rent Commencement Date in which there shall be Excess Total Expenses, Landlord
shall furnish Tenant with 2 statement in reasonable detail of the Total Expenses for such calendar year and,
within thirty (30) days after its receipt, Tenant shall pay Landlord, any fitrther amount of Tenant's Expense
Charge shown to be due by the staternent. If such statement shall disclose that Tenant shall have overpaid
Tenant's Expense Charge for such calendar year, such overpayment shall be applied against the next ensuing
payment(s) of Tenant's Expense Charge or upon the expiration of the Lease Term refunded to Tenant if Tenant
has discherged all of its obligations under the Lease. Landlord shall maintain the books and records with
respect to the Total Expenses in accordance with sound real estate accounting principles and management
practices. Tenant shall have the right to review, audit and copy the books and records, at Tenant’s expense,
and Landlord agrees to make them available to Tenant at reasonable times and locations, to determine the
accuracy of Landlord’s Total Expense calculation,

(©)  The term "Operating Expenses” shall include the total costs and expenses incurred
by Landlord in operating and maintaining the Building and Building Land including, without limitation, the
cost and expense of the following: snow removal, gardening, landscaping, planting, replanting, and replacing
flowers and shrubbery; cleaning, striping, and resurfacing of parking areas; public liability, property damage,
and fire insurance with such extended coverage, loss of rental and other endorsements as Landlord may, from
time to time, deem necessary, plus “sll risk” or “DOC” insurance; repairs and maintenance, painting and
decorating of common areas; electricity (exclusive of electrical service furnished to rentable space in excess
of that normally provided by Landlord and for which Landlord receives payment specifically therefor from the
occupant of such space), watet, gas and other utilities (including, without limitation, all capital expenditures
intended to reduce the cost of utilities); maintenance and replacement of fixtures and bulbs; elevators and
servioe contracts thereon; parking operation systems, and regulating automobile and pedestrian traffic; sanitary
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control; extermination, removal of rubbish, garbage and other refuse; security systems and policing of the
Building and Building Land; sewer charges; machinery and equipment used in the operation and maintenance
of the common areas (including the costs of inspection and depreciation thereof but not the capital cost
thereof); replacement of paving, curbs and walkways and drainage facilities; meintenance and repair of covered
pedestrian walkways and draining facilities; maintenance and repair of covered pedestrian walkways, if eny,
connecting the Building with other buildings; music program service and loud speaker systems; heating,
ventilating and air conditioning the Building; cleaning afd janitorial services; maintenance of decorations,
Javatories and elevators; maintenance and repair of all doors and glass in commen areas and Building roof and
exterior walls and glass; Jandscaping and fire sprinkler systems; cost of personnel (including security
personnel) directly involved in implementing all of the aforementioned (including fringe benefits and
workmen's compensation msurance covering persormel); plus an amount equal to 4% of gross revenues of the
Building. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, “Operating Expenses™ shall not include;

A, Leasing commissions, costs, disbursements and other expenses incurred for
leasing, renovating ar improving space for Tenant and other tenants;
B, Landlord’s costs of electricity or other services sold to tenants for which

Landlord is to be reimbursed as a charge over the rent and other charges payable under the lease with that
tenant;

C. Except as specifically permitted herein, costs incurred by Landlord for
alterations that are considered capital improvements and replacements under generally accepted accounting
principles consistently applied;

D. Costs incutred because the Landlord or another tenant violated the terms of
any lease;

E. Overhead and profit paid to subsidiaries or sffiliates of Landlord for
management or other services on or 1o the Property or for supplies or other materials, to the extent that the
costs of the services, supplies or materials exceed the competitive costs of the service, supplies or materials
were they not provided by a subsidiary or affiliate;

F, Interest on debt or amortization payments on mortgages or degds or trust of
other debt for borrowed money;

a. Compensation paid to clerks, attendants, or other persons in commereial
concessions operated by Landlord;

H. Items and services for which Tenant reimburses Landlord or pays third
parties or that Landlord provides selectively to one or more tenants of the Building other than Tenant without
reimbursement.

1 Advertising and promotional expenditures;

L. Repairs or other work needed because of fire, windstorm, or other casualty
or cause required to be insured against by Landlord;

K, Nonrecurring costs incurred to remedy structural defeets in original
construction materials or installations;

L. Any costs, fines or penalties incurred because Landlord violated any
govemmenta] rule or authority;

M. Costs incurred to test, survey, clean up, contain, abate, remove or otherwise

remedy hazardous wastes or asbestos-containing materials from the Building unless the wastes or asbestos-
containing materials were in or on the Building because of Tenant’s negligence or intentiona) acts; and

N. Other expenses that under generally accepted accounting principles
consistently applied would not be considered normal maintenance, repair, management or operation expenses.

Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to keep Operating Expenses at reasonable amounts,
while maintaining a first-class office building.

If occupancy during the base year is less than ninsty-five percent (95%) of the leasable area
of the Building, Operating Expenses for the base year and subsequent years will be grossed up to that amount
of Operating Expenses that, using reasonable projections, would normally be expected to be incurred during
such base year and subsequent years if the Building was ninety-five percent (95%) occupied during the base
year and subsequent years, as determined under generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

Landlord will provide in the Statement a reasonably detailed description of how the Operating Expenses were
grossed up. Only those component expenses that are affected by variations in occupancy levels will be grossed
up.

(o)

1) The term "Taxes" as used in this Section shall mean for each calendar year
falling wholly or partially within any Lease Year, al} real estate taxes, assessments, water and sewer rents and
other governmental impositions and charges of every kind and nature whatsoever, extraordinary, as well as
ordinary, foreseeable and unforesezable (including, withqut limitation, assessrments for public improvements
or benefits and interest on unpaid instaliments thereof), and each and every installment thereof which shall or
may during any Lease year be levied, assessed, imposed, become due and payable, or liens upon or arising in
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connection with the use, occupancy or possession of or grow due or, be payable out of, or for, the Building and
Building Land or any part thereof (including leasehold improvements, betterments and other permanent
improvements). A tax bill or copy thereof submitted by Landlord or Tenant shall be conclusive evidence of
the amount of Taxes or installment thereof.

2) Taxes shall not include any inheritance, estate, succession, transfer, gift,
franchise, corporation income or profit tax or capital levy that is or may be imposed upon Landlord; provided,
however, that if, at any time during the term of this Lease, the method of taxation prevailing at the execution
of thig Lease shall be altered so that in lieu of or as a substitute of the whole or any part of the taxes now
levied, assessed or imposed on rea) estate as such, there shall be levied, assessed or imposed (i) a tax on the
rents received from real estate, or (ii) a license fee measured by the rent receivable by Landlord or for the
Building and Building Land or any portion thereof or (jii) a tax or license fee imposed on Landlord which is
otherwise measured by or based, in whole or in part, upon the Building and Building Land or any portion
thereof or (iv) any other &ax or levy imposed in lisu of or as a supplement to Taxes which are in existence as
of the date of execution of this Lease, then the same shall be included in the computation of Taxes hereunder,
computed as if the amount of such tax or fee so payable were that due if the Building and Building Land were
the only property of Landlord subject thereto.

(E)  For any partial calendar years which fall within the first and last Lease Years, (i)
Tenant's Expense Charge shall be prorated and (ii) the Base Expenses shall, for the purpose of applying the
provisions of paragraph (B) of this Section, be reduced to an amount computed by multiplying the Base
Expenses by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days in such calendar year falling within the
first and last Lease Year, as the case may be, and the denominator of which is 360 days.

s. Late Charge, If Tenant shall fail to pay any rent or other monetary obligation payable under
this Lease within 10 days after notice that the same is due and payable, Tenant shall pay Landlord interest on
the past due amount at a rate of interest equal to the lesser of (i) the highest lawful rate of interest per annum
that may be charged to Tenant under the laws of the State of Missouri, or (ii) prime rate plus three percent (3%)
per annum, from the due date to the date of payment. Once a year, Landlord agrees to waive a late fee if any
overdue rent payment is paid within five (5) days after written notice from Landlord.

6. Security Deposit. Intentionally deleted.

7. Use, Tenant shall use the Premises solely for the Permitted Uses set forth in Section A - Basic
Lease Definitions, and for no other use or purpose whatscever. Tenant shall also have non-exclusive use in
conjunction with all other tenants of Building common areas including the exercise facility located on the B-1
Lower Level at no cost to Tenant, and the parking facilities to be owned and constructed by Landlord at 4707
Belleview Street.

8. Assignment and Subletting.

(A) Tenant shall not, voluntarily, involuntarily or by operation of law including
bankruptcy law, assign or encumber this Lease, in whole or in part, nor shall Tenant sublet all or any part of
the Premises without the prior consent of Landlord in each instance which shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed. Tenant may, without Landlord’s consent, sublease or grant use of the Premises or
assign this Lease to (i) any entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Tenant; (ii)
any entity or group of principals resulting from the merger or consolidation with Tenant or to any entity that
acquires substantially all Tenant's assets as a going concem of the business being conducted on the Premises.

In addition, Tenant may assign this Lease and/or encumber the leasehold estate created by this Lease to any
secured creditors of Tenant,

(B) - IfLandlord conveys or transfers ifs interest in the Buildmg and Building Land, upon
such conveyanee or transfer, Landlord (and in the case of any subsequent conveyances or transfer, the then
grantor or transferor) shall be entirely released from all liability with respeot to the performance of any
obligations on the part of Landlord to be performed hereunder from and after the date of such conveyance or
transfer.

9. Subordination; Atternment. Upon the written request of the holder of any mortgage deed
of trust or similar evidence of security (hereinafter "Mortgagee”) now or hereafier encumbering the Building
and Building Land, or any part thereof, Tenant shall subordinate its rights under this Lease to the lien of such
mortgage. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Mortgagee elects o have this Lease superior to its mortgage,
then upon Mortgagee's request, Tenant shall execute, acknowledge and deliver an instryment, in the form used
by said Mortgagee, effecting such pricrity. In the event proceedings are brought for the foreclosure of, or the
exercise of a power or sale under, any such mortgage, or in the event of a conveyance of the Building, Tenant
shall attorn to the purchaser and recognize such purchaser as Landlord under this Lease. Tenant, upon
Landlord's request, shall exccute, acknowledge and deliver such instruments as are required 1o effect the intent
of this paragraph. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, Tenant's obligation to subordinate to any Mortgagee shall
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apply only if such Mortgages agrees to provide standard and customary non-disturbance agreements in favor
or Tenant. Landlord will use its best efforts to obtain from the Mortgagee a non-disturbance agreement in
favor of Tenant.

10.  Estoppel Certificate, Tenant shall at any time and from time to time upon not less than ten
(10) days' prior written notice from Landlord execute, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord a statement in
writing (a) certifying that this Leage in unmodified and ip full force and effect (or, if modified, stating the
nature of such modification and certifying that this Lease as so modified, is in full force and effect) and the
date to which the rental end other charges are peid in advance, if any, and (b) aclmowledging that there are not,
to Tenant's knowledge, any uncured defaults on the part of the Landlord hereunder, or specifying such defaults
if any arc claimed. Any such statement may be relied upon by any prospective purchaser or encumbrancer
of all or any portion of the real property of which the Premises are a part,

1L Services to be Performed by Landlord. Landlord shall furnish the following services to
Tenant.

(A)  Air conditioning, ventilation and heating es required (in Landlord's reasonable
judgement) for comfortable use and occupancy under normal office conditions, from 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM,
Monday through Friday, and from 8:00 AM to 2:00 PM on Saturdays, but not on Sundays or legal holidays.
Tenant shall have the right to the comfortable use of air conditioning, ventilation and heating services in the
Premises during any hours excluded above with four (4) hours prior notice to Landlord. Tenant agrees to pay
Landlord $50.00 per hour for such services, Landlord agrees to bill Tenant for such services on a monthly
basis, In addition, Landlord acknowledges that Tenant may in the future determine that its business will
require extended hours on a regular basis, including, if necessary, 24 hour per day, 7 day per week operations
on site. In any such event, Landlord agrees to cooperate with Tenant and will approve, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, dedicated HVAC units, submeters or separately metered
utilities and services to all or 2 portion of the Premises in 8 manner which equitably allocates to Tenant such
additional costs and expenses provided any additional facilities, HVAC equipment or other improvements will
be provided, maintained and operated at Tenant’s cost and expense.

(B)  Water for drinking, lavatory and toilet purposes (but this shall not be construed as
requiring Landlord to install plumbing facilities in the Premises).

© Janitor service for the Premises which shall include only the dusting of ceiling light
fixtures and air grills, the washing of windows, the sweeping and cleaning of floors (exclusive of rug
shampooing and spot removal) and the disposal of non-biohazard waste,

(D)  Electrical energy for the Premises; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, in the event the
electrical energy estimated by Landlord’s engineer, from time to time during the terms of this Lease, to be used
in the Premises, shall exceed five (5) watts per square foot, Tenant shall pay Landlord the increase in cost
incusred by Landlord, as dstermined by Landlord's engineer, in furnishing to Tenant such excess electrical
energy, such amount to be paid monthly as additional rent, together with Tenant's monthly installment of Base
Rent.

E) Self-operated passenger elevator service.

No interruption or malfunction of any of such services shall constitute an eviction of Tenant
or a breach by Landlord of any of its obligations hereunder or render Landlord liable for damages or entitle
Tenant to be relieved from any of its obligations hereunder (including its obligation to pay Base Rent,
additional rent and other charges) or create in Tenant any right of set-off or recoupment, In the event of any
such interruption, Landlord shall use reasonable diligence to restore such service, Notwithstanding the
aforesaid, if the Premnises is rendered wholly or partially untenantable for Tenant’s business by reason of the
complete failure of any essential service for a period of ten (10) days, Tenant shall have the option of having
the Base Rent and any Additional Rent equitably abate. If the Premises is rendered wholly untenantable for
Tenant's business by reagon of the complete failure of any essential service for a period of thirty (30) days,
Tenant shall have the further option to terminate this Lease,

12. Repalr an ntenance.

(A)  Tenant shall take good care of the Premises, and the fixtures and equipment therein,
and shall comply with all federal, state, mumnicipal and other laws, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable
to the Premises and the buysiness conducted therein, and with any rules adopted from time to time by Landlord
or recornmended by Landlord’s insurance carriers, Notwithstanding the aforesaid, to the best of Landlord’s
knowledge, Landlord represents that the Premises, Building and Building Land shall be in compliance with
all applicable Jaws and regulations as of the commencement date.
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(B)  Subject to the provisions of Section 15 and 16, Landlord shall make or cause to be
made all necessary repairs to the Building and to the Premises, except whers the repair is made necessary or
aggravated by misuse or neglect by Tenant, its agents, servants, contractors, subtenants or invitees, in which
event Tenant shall make such repair with due diligence and at its sole cost, Landlord shall not be deemed to
have breached its obligation to make the repairs required to be made by Landlord hereunder unless Landlord
fails to make the same within a reasonable period (taking into consideration the type of repair involved) after
receiving notice from Tenant of the need therefor. Landlofd does agree to maintain the Building in a manner
consistent with similar office buildings in the Plaza area of Kansas City, and Landlord agrees to comply with
all laws, etc, applicable to the Building and Building Land,

13, Indemnity: Insurance: Mechanics Liens,

(A)  Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and agsinst any and all
actions, claims, demands, costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees), damages or expenses of any kind which
may be asserted against or incurred by Landlord as the result of any occurrence in or about the Premises, the
Building, or the Building Land, or by reason of Tenant's use or occupancy of the Premises, or by reason of the
failure of Tenant to perform any of its obligations under this Lease, including Tenant's agents, employees,
invitess, contractors, successors or permitted assigns. Tenant agrees to maintain during the term,
comprehensive general public liability insurance under which Landlord and Tenant are named as insureds,
with minimum policy limits of $2,000,000.00 bodily injury, and $500,000.00 property damage, and containing
a contractual endorsement covering Tenant's indemnity obligations under this paragraph, A current certificate
of such insurance shall be deposited with Landlord at all times which shall provide that such insurance may
not be altered, terminated, non-renewed or permitted to lapse without at least ten (10) days prior written notice
to Landlord.

(B)  Landlord shall indernnify and hold Tenant harmless from and against any and all
actions, claims, demands, costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), damages or expenses of any kind which
may be asserted ageinst or incurred by Tenant as a result of any occurrence in or about the Premises, the
Building, or the Building Land, or by reason of Landlord’s use or maintenance of the Building or the Building
Land, or by reason of the failure of Landlord to perform any of its obligations under this Lease, including
Landlord’s agents, employees, invitees, contractars, successors or permitted assigns. Landlord agrees to
maintain during the term, comprehensive general public liability insurance with minimum policy limits of
$2,000,000.00 bodily injury and $500,000.00 property damage. Landlord further agrees to maintain fire and
extended coverage insurance on the Premises and Building in an amount equal to the replacement cost thereof.

(C)  Anything in the Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, it is agreed that each party (the
“Releasing Party”) hereby releases the other (the “Released Party”) from any liability which the Released Party
would, but for this paragraph (C), have had to the Releasing Party during the term of this Lease, resulting from
the occurrence of any accident, or occurrence or casualty which is covered by casualty or property damage
insurance being carried by the Releasing Party at the time of such occurrence, which accident, occurrence, or
casualty may have resulted in whole or in part from any act or neglect of the Released Party, its officers, agents
or employees; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the releases hereinabove set forth shall become inoperative, null and
void if the Releasing Party wishes to place the appropriate insurance with an insurance company which (i)
takes the position that the existence of such release vitiates or would adversely affect any policy $o insuring
the Releasing Party in substantial manner and notice thereof is given to the Released Party, or (if) requires the
payment of an unreasonably higher premium by reason of the existence of such release, unless in the latter case
the Released Party within ten (10) days after notice thereof from the Releasing Party pays such unreasonable
increase in premium,

(D)  Tenant shall not suffer any mechanics or materialmen’s lien to be filed against the
Premises or the Building and Building Land or any part thereof by reason of work, labor, services or materials
performed or furnished to Tenant or anyone holding the Premises under Tenant. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid, Tenant shall have the right to contest the validity or amount of any such lien by appropriate
proceedings diligently pursued by Tenant.

14. Liability of Landlord, Landlord shall not be liable for damage to any property or injury to
any person in or on the Premises resulting from the condition of the Premises or the Building, or from the act
or amission of Tenant or of any other tenant, or from the bursting or leaking of any pipes, utility lines,
equipment or apparatus in, on or about the Premises or the Building or any part thereof, from water, rain or
snow which may leak into, issue or flow from any part of the Building, or due to fire, explosion, action of the
elements, or other casualty, or due to any lack of, or failure to provide, security with respect to the Building
or any part thereof, and Tenant hereby releases Landlord from any liability which Landlord would otherwise
have therefor. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, Landlord shall be liable for damage resulting from Landlord’s
or Landlord’s agent's or contractor’s gross negligence or willful acts. Tenant shall give Landlord prompt
written notice of any accident to or defect in the Premises or the Building or any portion thereof of which
Tenant has knowledge. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord's liabiliry shal] be limited in all cases where
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such liability exists to the assets constituting the Building, the Building Land, and all improvements now
existing or thereafter constructed thereon.

15.  Flre or Other Casualty. If the Premises or the Building shall be damaged or destroyed by
fire or other casualty, then Landlord shall repair or restore the Premises and the Building with reasonable
diligence (subject to delays cansed by reason of strikes, lockouts, labor troubles, inability 1o procure materials,
failure of power or other reasons of a like nature not thedault of Landlord), and during the period of such
restoration or repair the Base Rent shall equitably abate to the extent the Premises are materially affected
thereby; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, in the evens of any such casualty damage renders the Building more than
fifty percent (50%) untenantable Landlord shall have the right to terminate this Lease by giving notice thereof
to Tenant within thirty (30) days following the occurrence of such casualty, and if Landlord so elects, (i)
Landlord shall have no obligation to repair or restore the Premises or the Building, (if) this Lease shall
automatically terrninate as of the day of such notice, (iii) the Base Rent, additional rent and other charges shall
be adjusted as of the date of the occurrence of such casualty and (iv) neither party shall have any liability by
reason of such termination. In the event Landlord intends to restore, it shall notify Tenant within forty-five
(45) days after the date of the damage. If restoration cannot reasonably be completed within one hundred
twenty (120) days of the date the Landlord notifies Tenant of its intention to restore, Tenant shall have the
option to terminate the Lease by written notice to Landlord unless Landlord provides Tenant comparable
quality and size office space with parking, all reasonably acceptable to Tenant,

16. Eminent Domain. If the Premises, the Building or the Building Land or any part thereof,
shall be permanently taken by eminent domain, or conveyed in lieu thereof, Landlord shall have the right to
terminate this Lease by giving written notice thereof to Tenant, and if Landlord so elects, this Lease shall
cease, and the charges payable hereunder shall be adjusted, as of the date thirty (30) days following the giving
of such notice, If this Lease is not terminated, then Landlord shall repair any damage to the Premises, the
Building or the Building Land, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, and the Base Rent, additional
rent and other charges shall not be abated or reduced, except if a portion of the Premises is permanently taken
in which event the Base Rent and other charges shall be reduced in praoportion to the amount of net useable
footage of the Premises so taken, Irrespective of whether this Lease ig terminated, Landlord shall receive the
entire condemnation award, and Tenant hereby assigns to Landlord 2all of Tenant's interest therein,
Notwithstanding the aforesaid, Tenant shall be entitled to any award for moving costs, lost leasehold interest
or other award which does not affect Landlord’s award,

17 Surrender and Alterations.

(A)  On the last day of the term, or on the sooner termination thereof, Tenaat shall, (i)
subject to the provisions of Section 15, peaceably surrender the Promises in good order and repair (subject to
Landlord's obligations under paragraph (B) of Section 12), except for reasonable wear and tear, and any
casualty damage, and (if) at its expense, remove from the Premises its office supplies, moveable office furniture
and equipment and personal property (*Tenant's Property”). Any of Tenant's Property not so removed may,
at Landlord’s option and without limiting Landlord's right to compel the removal thereof, be deemed
abandoned and retained by Landlord.

(B)  The title to all alterations, additions, improvements, repairs and decorations
(including paneling, wal] coverings, wall to wall carpeting, view boxes, cabinets and any other article affixed
to the walls, floors, ceilings, or windows) but excluding Tenant fixtures, trade fixtures, computer equipment
and systeras etc., shall vest in Landlord upon the installation thereof and shall be surrendered with the Premises
as part thereof, without charge,

©) Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Premises
without the prior written consent of Landlord in each instance not to be unreasonably withheld,

1B.  Access to Pyemises. Landlord, its agents and employees, shall have the right to enter the
Premises at any time for any purpose deemed reasonable by Landlord. Landlord expressly reserves the right
to run necessary pipes, conduits and ducts through the Premises and to carry on work in the vicinity thereof,
and Tenant hereby waives any claim for damages, inconvenience or constructive eviction caused by reason
thereof. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, Landlord agrees to use reasonable effarts to minimize interference with
Tenant's business operations. Furthermore, in non-emergency situations, Landlord agrees not to enter secure
areas of the Premises (as designated by Tenant, in writing) without the accompaniment of Tenant's designated
employee(s) or representative,

19, Default and Remedies,

(A)  EBach of the following shall constitute an *Event of Default”;
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(¢)) If Tonant shall fail to pay when due any Base Rent, additional rent or other
monetary obligation payable by Tenant under this Lease and such default shall continue for ten (10) days after
Landlord gives written notice thereof to Tenant; or

(2)  If Tenant shall fail to observe or perform any other provision of this Lease,
and such default shall continue for a period of ten (10) days after Landlord gives written notice thereof to
Tenant; or if such default cannot be cured in such period éhd Tenant has commenced and diligently pursues
cure, Tenant shall be granted an additional sixty (60) days to effect cure; or

(3)  If Tenent vacates or pbandons the Premises without payment of Bass Rent
and Additional Rent or otherwise in violation of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease,

®) In the Event of Default, Landlord may, st its sole option, either (i) terminate this
Lease, or (ii) without terminating this Lease take possession of the Premises, with or without process of law,
using such force as may be necessary to remove all persons and personal property thersfrom, and in the event
of such re-entry without termination, Landlord may (but shall have no obligation to do so), lease the Premises
for the remainder of the term or for a lesser or longer period on such terms and conditions as Landlord, in its
sole judgement, deems advisable and for the purpose of such re-letting, Landlord is hereby authorized to make
such repairs and alterations as Landlord deems necessary, Notwithstanding any re-jetting without termination,
(i) Tenant shall remain liable for payments of the Base Rent, additional rent and all other monetary obligations
‘and for the performance of all other obligations to be performed by Tenant under this Lease and (ii) Landlord
may at any time thereafter elect to terminate this Lease for such previous breach. The rentals received from
any such re-letting shall first be applied to the expenses of such re-letting (including alteration and repair
expenses, and reasonablo brokerage and attorney's fees) and second to the payment of rent and other charges
due and unpaid hereunder. Tenant shall not be entitled to receive any surplus funds received by Landlord from
any such re-letting. If such funds from the re-letting are less than those required to be paid by Tenant
hereunder for any month, such deficiency shall be calculated and payable monthly by Tenant. Landlord shall
also be entitled to collect from Tenant any other loss or damage which Landlord may sustain by reason of
Tenant's default under this Lease, Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, in the event of Tenant’s
default, Landlord shall make reasonable efforts to mitigate its damages. .

20. Landlord's Rights fo Cure Defanlts. If Tepant fails to porform any obligation on its part
to be performed under this Lease, Landlord shall have the right (i) if no emergency exists, to perform the same
after giving twenty (20) days notice to Tenant; and (ii) in any emergency situation to perform the same
immediately without notice or delay. Tenant shall, on demnand, reimburse Landlord for all costs incurred by
Landlord in rectifying Tenant's defaults as aforesaid, including reasonable attorney’s fees. Except for gross
negligence by Landlord, Landlord shall not be liable for or in any way be responsible for any loss,
inconvenience or damage resulting to Tenant for any action taken by Landlord pursuant to this Section.

21, Legal Expenses; Remedies Cumulative.

(A)  In case suit shall be brought because of the breach by either party of any of its
obligations under this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all expenses incurred in
connection with such breach, including reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and expert/witess fees.

(B)  Landlord's rights and remedies shall be cumulative and may be exercised and
enforced concurrently, and no right or remedy of Landlord shall be deemed to be exclusive of any other right
or remedy Landlord may have,

22. Building Name. Landlord reserves the right to change the name of the Building from time
to time, and Landlord shall have no liability to Tenant in connestion therewith.

23.  Lendlord’s Right to Alter, Landlord shall have the right at any time (and from time to time)
(i) to alter the size, area, level and location of hallways, entrances, parking areas, driveways, sidewalks,
landscaped areas and all other portions of the Building and the Building Land, , (ii) to construet additional
stories on the Building, and additional buildings in the vicinity thereof, (iii) to permit owners or occupants of
land outside the Building Land and their invitees to use the parking areas, roads and sidewalks on the Building
Land and their invitees to use the parking areas, roads and sidewalks on the Building Land, (iv) to relocate all
or any part of any building or parking areas and, (v) to relocate the premises leased to any other tenant,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the common arezs and the entrance and exit to the Premises and the Building
will not be modified, reconfigured or aitered in any manner that would affect Tenant’s use of the Premises,
nor will any action be taken by Landlord with respect to such common areas, the effect of which would be to;

(a) Materially interfere with Tenant's business operation in or diminish the use and
enjoyment of the Premnises for the purposes intended; or

()  Discriminate between tenants in the Building,
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24.  Notices. Any notice or approval required or given in connection with this Lease shell be in
writing and shall either be delivered by hand, shall be sent by United States Certified Mail, postage prepaid,
or shall be sent yia avernight courier:

If to Landlord, at its address set forth in Section A - Basic Lease Definitions, with a copy to the on-site
manager as set forth in Section A - Basic Lease Definitions.

If to Tenant, at its address set forth in Section A - Basic Lease Definitions.

Each party's address may be changed from time to time by such parties giving notice as provided
above. Notice shall be deemed given when delivered (if delivered by hand or avernight courier) or when
postmarked (if sent by mail), Whenever Landlord's cansent or approval is required (i) the same must be
obtained in writing, and oral consents shall be of no effect, and (ii) such consent or approval may be withheld
arbitrarily unless otherwise herein specifically set forth to the contrary,

25, Rules and Regulations. Tenant agrees to comply with and observe the following Rules and
Regulations. Landlord reserves the right, at any time, once or more often, by notice to Tenant, to amend or
supplement said Rules and Regulations in a reasonable manner:

(A)  Tenant shall not obstruct or litter any of the Building common areas. Such areas shall
not be used by Tenant for any purpose except for ingress and egress, nor shall Tenant have any special rights
in the common areas on account of the use of the cormmon areas square footage to calculate the Net Rentable
Square Footage under Section A - Basic Lease Provisions,

(B)  Tenant shall not have any sign or lettaring on any part of the Building, or on any part
of the Premises which can be seen from the outside of the Premises, except for Tenant's identification in the
Building directory and on the entrance to the Premises, each of which identifications shall be of a design in
accordance with the design eriteria reasonably established by Landlord, and shall be at Tenant's expense.

©) Blinds, shades, draperies or other forms of inside window coverings shall not be
placed in the Premises except to the extent, if any, that the appearance thereof is approved by Landlord and
is in accordance with the design criteria established by Landlord, and Tenant shall not do any painting or
decorating in the Premises or make, paint, cut or drill into, drive nails or screws into, nor in any way deface
any part of the Premises or the Building without the prior written consent of Landlord. Tenant shall not
overload any floor or facility in the Building. Tenant shall keep the Premises sightly and clean,

(D)  Tenant shall not attach additional locks or similar devices to any door or window,
change existing locks, or make or permit {0 be made any additional keys. If mare than six keys for one lock
are desired, Landlord will provide them upon payment therefor by Tenant, Upon termination of this Lease or
Tenant's possession, Tenant shall promptly surrender to Landlord all keys to the Premises.

E) Tenant shall not use or permit to be brought into the Building hazardous materials
as defined in the Addendum to this Lease.

® Tenant shall not obstruct or interfere with the rights of other tenants, nor in any way
injure or annoy them, nor do anything which would constitute a nuisance or which would damage the
reputation of the building.

(G)  The bringing into the Building or removal therefrom of fumiture, fixtures or supplies,
when of large weight or bulk, shall be done at such times and along such Building routes as the custodian of
the Building shall require. All damage to the Building caused by such deliveries or removals shall be repaired
at the expense of Tenant,

H) If Tenant desires telephone connections, Landlord will designate the location and
manner in which the wires shall be introduced; and no other boring or cutting for wires will be permirted,

1)) Tenant shall not (i) install any internal combustion engine, boiler, refrigerator (except
small household type refrigerators customarily used in general offices), or heating or air conditioning apperatus
in the Building, (ii) carry on any mechanical business in the Building, (iil) use the Premises for housing,
ledging, or sleeping purposes, (iv) permit preparation or warming of food in the Premises nor permit food to
be brought into the Premises for consumption therein (warming of coffee and individyal lunches of employees
excepted), (v) place any radio or television antenna other than inside the Premises, (vi) operate any sound-
producing instrument which may be heard outside the Premises, (vii) operate any electrical device from which
may emanate electrical waves which may interfere with or impair radio or television broadcasting or reception
from or in the Building or elsewhere, (viif) bring into the Building any bicycle or other vehicle, or dog {except
in the company of a blind person), or other animal, insect or bird, (ix) permit any objectionable noise,
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vibration or odor to emanate from the Premises, (x) disturb, solicit or canvass any occupant of the Building,
(xi) use the plumbing facilities for any purpose other than that for which they are constructed, or (xii) waste
any of the utilities furnished by Landlord.

() Tenant shall not store any trash, rubbish or garbage in the Premises except in 2
sanitary and inoffensive manner inside the Premises or in areas approved by Landlord, Biohazard waste
generated by Tenant shall be stored and disposed of as refuired by spplicable law, ordinance or regulation,
and at Tenant's sole expense,

x) Tenant shall use its best efforts to secure compliance with these Rules and
Regulations (together with any authorized amendment or supplement thereto) by Tenant's customers,
contractors, employees and other invitees,

26. Par! Areas.

(A)  Toserve generally Landlord's designees and the occupants of the Building, and their
invitees, Landlord shall, subject to any govemmental taking or conveyance in lieu thereof, maintain parking
areas on the Building Land, which shall be subject to the exclusive contyol of Landlord, provided Tenant shall
have the non-exclusive rights of use and enjoyment hereafter described. Tenant agrees to furnish Landlord,
upon request, license numbers of all automobiles of Tenant and its employees, and agrees to keep such list
current. Landlord shall have the right to re-arrange the leyout or location of the parking areas from time to
time, 30 Jong as such new arrangement does not materially interfere with Tenant’s eage of access and use of
the parking areas and any such relocation shall not be further than a radius of 100 feet from the main front
entrance of the Building. Landlord specifically agrees to provide Tenant 85 non-exclusive and unmarked
parking spaces in the covered portion of the parking garage attached to the Building (25 of which shall be full
sized and reserved to Tenant alone, and located in the covered portions of the garage) and 15 spaces in the
existing surface parking lot of 4707 Belleview, all of which are available from the commencement date through
September 30, 2001, If the additional parking described in Section B. below is then available, commencing
Qctober 1, 2001, through the Lease termination date, inclusive of any extensions thereof, Landlord shall
provide 81 covered parking spaces in the Belletower Garage (including the 25 reserved spaces), and the
exclusive use of an additional 44 parking spaces on the surface parking lot to be obtained by Landlord at 4707
Belleview. If such additional parking is not available effective October 1, 2001, throygh the Lease termination
date, inclusive of any extensious thereof, such failure shall be a default by Landlord hereunder, entitling Tenant
to the rights and remedies described in paragraph (B) below, including the Liquidated Damages described
below, Landlord shall restripe the Belletower garage by no later than October 1, 2001, After such restriping,
all parking stalls funished in the Belletower garage shall be full size spaces 8 ¥ fest wide and compact spaces
7 V4 feet wide, with a ratio of 50% full size, 47% compact size and 3% handicapped size required. In the 4707
Belleview facility, all parking spaces shall be 9 feet in width,

(B)  Within five (5) days after this Lease has been executed and delivered by both parties,
Landlord shall commence acquisition of the 4707 Belleview property with the intent to constryct the
supplemental parking described in subparagraph A, ebove. The parties contemplate that the commencement
date for the Premises will be April 1, 2001. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, in the
event Landlord has not: (i) on or before March 1, 2001 acquired fee simple title in Landlord’s name to the
property located at 4707 Belleview; or (ii) on or before August 1, 2001, completed demolition, obtained all
construgtion permits and commenced canstruction of the 4707 Belleview parking facility, then in any such
event such failure shall be a breach by Landlord entitling Tenant to liquidated damages in the amount of
$650,000 (“Liquidated Damages™) to cover the costs and expenses to be incurred by Tenant, which sum the
parties agree ig a reasonable sum, considering all the circumstances existing on the date of this Lease, including
the relationship of the sum to the range of harm to Tenant that reasonably could be anticipated and the
anticipa\\'\on that proof of actual damages would be costly, inconvenient or difficult 1o estimate, and in addition,
Tenant, ut its sole election, may (a) terminate this Lease at any time thereafter upon ten (10) days’ prior written
notice to Landlord; (b) delay taking possession of the Premises and the commencement date of the Lease unti]
such time as the additional parking shall be available for occupancy as evidenced by a valid centificate of
occupancy as issued by the City of Kansas City, Missouri; or (c) take possession on the original
commencement date or at any time thereafter upon ten (10) days® prior written notice to Landlord, and if in
any such circumstances the Liquidated Damages are not paid promptly by Landlord to Tenant, such Liquidated
Damages may be offset against Base Rent and any other sums payable by Tenant to Landlord pursuant to this
Lease. In the event Tenant elects under (b) or (c) above, the commencement date shall be deemed to be the
date Tenant takes possession and the Lease Term shall expire 96 months thereafter.

(C)  In the event Tenant shall expand the Premises during the initial term or any
extensions or renewals thereof, cither"pursuant to the right of first refusal in Addendum paragraph 5 hereof,
or otherwise, Landlord agrees to provide not less than 5 parking spaces per 1,000 rentable square feet of such
expansion area. If the expansion area is more than 2,000 rentable square feet (or if Landlord is unable to
deliver the required 5 per thousand parking ratio to Tenant at any time prior to such expansion), Landlord will
provide such additional parking by re-striping the existing Belletower parking garage to accommodate not less
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than an additional 27 parking spaces, taking the total from 185 garage spaces to 212 garage spaces. If Tenant
shall expand the Premises by more than a total of 14,000 rentable squars feet in excess of the original
Premises, Landlord covenants and agrees to build a parking garage deck either at the parking lot obtained at
4707 Belleview, or to add a level to the existing Belletower garage parking lot in order to provide such
additional parking. The rate for such expansion space and additional parking shall be at the then current
Market Rate as defined and determined in paragraph 4 of the Addendym hereto, except that if such additional
space is obtained pursuant to a right of first refusal under piragraph 5 of the Addendum hereto, then the rental
rate shall be as set forth therein and shall include such parking as described therein, and Landlord will provide
the additional parking required by this paragraph 26 (if in excess of that provided under paragraph S of the
Addendum) at the then current Market Rate for parking spaces in the Country Club Plaza area market, In the
event Landlord shall fail to provide the additional parking as required above, or commence construction and
diligently pursue completion, by not later than 120 days after such additional office space is acquired by
Tenant, then in any such event such failure shall also be a breach by Landlord and Tenant, at its sole election,
may, without limitation (a) terminate this Lease at any time thereafter upon ten (10) days prior written notics
to Landlord, or (b) delay taking possession of the expansion areas of the Premises and the commencement date
for such expansion areas of the Lease unti] such time as the additional parking shall be available for occupanoy
as evidenced by a valid certificate of occupancy as issued by the City of Kansas City, Missouri, In the event
the requirement of constructing a parking structure as described above is invoked for any reason, including
acquiring additional leased premises by right of first refusal, Landlord and Tenant each agree that 2 minimum
remaining leage term of not less than six (6) years shall be required and if necessary, the existing lease term
for the Premises and any expansion areas shall be so extended upon all of the same terms and conditions set
forth in this Lease, but subject to adjustment of Base Rent to Market Rate, as determined in the Addendum
Paragraph § for any extended term applicable.

27. Non-Waiver. Neither acceptance of rent by Landlord or failure by Landlord to complain of
any default of Tenant shall constitute a waiver of any of Landlord's rights hereunder. Waiver by Landlord of
any breach of any provision herein by Tenant shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach of the
same or any other provision herein contained, No provision of this Lease shall be deemned to have been waived
unless such waiver shall be in writing and signed by Landlord, Receipt by Landlord of Tenant's keys to the
Premises shall not constitute an acceptance of surrender of the Premises.

28.  Helding Over. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after the expirasion of the
term of this Lease, without the execution of a new lease, then, at Landlord's option, Tenant shall be deemed
to be occupying the Premises as a month to month Tenant, subject to all the provisions of this Lease insofar

- ag they are applicable to a month to month tenancy, but at a monthly rental of one hundred fifty percent (150%)

of the per month rentel provided under this Lease.

29, Limitation of Landlord's Liability. Notwithstanding anything set forth in this Lease to the
contrary, it is agreed that Tenant shall look sclely to the equity of Landlord in the Building and the Building
Land for the satisfaction of the remedies of the Tenant in the event of a breach by Landlord of any of the
provisions of this Lease, and Landlord shall not be liable for any such breach except to the extent of Landlord's
equity in the Building and the Building Land.

30.  Entire Agreement and Binding Rffect. This Lease and any attached addenda, guarantees
or exhibits constitute the entire agreement between Landlord and Tenant; no prior written, or prior or

contemporaneous oral, promises or representations shall be binding. This Lease shall not be amended,
changed or extended excepi by written instrumnent signed by both parties hereto, Section captions herein are
for convenience only, and neither limit nor amplify the provisions of this Lease, The provisions of this Lease
shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Missourl. The provisions of this instrument shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, succegsors and permitted
assigns of the parties, but this provisions shall in no way alter the restriction in this Lease against assignment
and subletting by Tenant. If there is more than one Tenant under this Lease, they shall be bound jointly and
severally by all provisions herein contained,

31. Trial by Ju alver.

THE PARTIES WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR
COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER PARTY AGAINST THE OTHER ON ANY MATTER
ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS LEASE, THE RELATIONSHIP
OF LANDLORD AND TENANT, OR TENANT'S USE AND OCCUPANCY OF THE PREMISES.

32. Intentionally deleted .

33, Agency Diselosure, Sharon L. Gartin (hereinafter “Landlord's Broker”), as s Jicensed real
estate broker and as an Independent Contractor of Kessinger/Hunter & Company, L.C. is assisting Landlord
in this transaction and is acting as the Landlord’s agent. Landlord’s Broker is not the agent of the Tenant, and
any information given to Landlord's Broker by the Tenant or jts agent may have been disclosed to the
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Landlord. If compensation of any kind is due to Landlord’s Broker in association with this Lease, it shall be
paid by the Landlord, None (hereinafier “Tenant's Broker") is acting as the Tenant's agont; Tenant's Broker

is not the agent of the Landlord, and any information given to Tenant's Broker by the Lindlord or its a

t may

have been disclosed to the Tenant. Landlord shal) pay'a leasing commission to Tenant's Broker in ac¢ordance
with 8 separate letter agreement between Landlord and Tenant's Broker, By signing this Lease, LandFlord and
Tenant acknowledge that the agency relationships described herein were previously disclosed to each of them
and/or their respective Licensees no later than the first showing of the property or immediately upon the
occurrence of any change in the relationships. Landlord and Tenant also acknowledge that the Broker
Disclosure Form has been fumished to them in accordance with the license laws of the State of Missouri,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first sbove

written.
wmswﬁ__ LANDLORD:
Wi

Witness ¢ 7~

B

'7fdg1'

STATE OF /L1 950uR | )
: )ss i

COUNTY OF T AC K20 )

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, appeared Y.

—

personally known to me or having produced adequate proof of identity, who, being first duly cautioned and
sworm, acknowledged the signing of the foregoing to be his ar her free act and deed, both personally and on
behalf of said Corporation, and that the signing of the foregoing document was duly authorized by such

Corporation.

—

—~TH
e ibed before me this __5 T day of_tM&ef_, 2001.
N i ny \
"'%333 1318830 L . & QUJL

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: 5L =2 7~

TENANT'S NOTARY

—

!

STATEOF _/7p )
)ss
COUNTY OF JACKSsn )
Before me, 8 Notary Public in and for said County and State, appeared “747p gr05 /7 ﬁ& deort T/

personally known to me or having produced for me adequate proof of identity, who, being first duly cautioned

and sworn, acknowledged the signing of the foregoing to be his or her free act and deed,

Swom to and subscribed before me this __/ ¢ day of FES, )z'um/gx , 2001,
et BN

. Nogary Public hn T, Alfano
i Commise - Public-Notary Seal
y Commission Expires / Stats of Missourd

Jackson County
My Commission Expires August 1, 200

—
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The land located in the County of JACKSON, State of MISSOURI, and
described as follows:

v

Lots 107 to 113, both inclusive, PENN PARK, a subdivision in Kansas City,
Jackson County, Missouri, according to the recorded plat thereof recorded
in Plat Book B-13 at Page 42 in the office of the Director of Records in and
for Jackson County, Missouri, at Kansas City.
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Addendum to Office Building Lease between the Company and Belletower Partners, L.L.C.
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ADDENDUM

Addendum to Lease dated January ___, 2001 by and between Belletower Parmers, LL.C, (Landlord)
and Ploneer Financial Services, Inc, (Tenant).

1, Environmental, v
A, Definitions.

@ “Hazardous Substance” shall mean () "hazardous waste” as defined by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended; (b) *hazardous substance” as defined by the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Corapensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended; (c) “toxic
substances” as defined by the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended; (d) "hazardous materials” as defined
by the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended; (¢) any other substances regulated under
applicable federal, state or local laws, and the regulations adopted under these acts, as amended; (f) oil or other
petroleurn products; (g) eny highly combustible substance; (h) polychlorinated bipheyls; (i) any other substance
whose presence could reasonably be detrimental to the Building, the Premises or the Building Land, or which
could be hazardous to health or the environment.

(i) "Release” shall be defined as transport onto or across, storage, dumping,
spilling, leaking, atmospheric injection, generation, uge causing or permitting to escape, onto or from the
Building, the Premises, or the Building Land, of any Hazardous Substance,

B, Landlord's Representations and Obligations.

Landjord has no knowledge of the presence of any Hazardous Substance currently on or the

present Release of any Hazardous Substance onto or from, the Building, the Premises or the Building Land,

Landlord further represents that no governmental entity is currently investigating or conducting remediation

activities at the Building, nor has the Building been declared 2 “Superfund” site. Landlord, its agents or

employees, shall not, either with or without negligence, Release any Hazardous Substance on or about the
Building, the Premises or the Building Land,

C. Tenant's Representations and Obligations.

Tenant, its agents, invitees, suppliers, contractors and employees, shall not, either with or
without negligence, Releass any Hazardous Substance on or about the Building, the Premises or the Building
Land. Tenant shall execute affidavits, represontations and the like from time to time at Landlord's request
conceming Tenant's best knowledge and belief regarding the presence or Release of Hazardous Substances
about the Building, the Premises or the Building Land,

D.  Liability.

If any lender, purchaser or governmental agency shall ever require testing of the Building, the
Premises, or the Building Land to ascertain whether or not there has been any Release of Hazardous
Substances, and such Release is reasonably determined to be attributable to Tenant, its agents, invitees,
suppliers, contractors or employees, Tenant shall be liable to the extent caused by Tenant for all testing,
remediation costs including returning the Building, the Premises or the Building Land to their previous
conditions, any sums paid for settlement of claims, judgments, and any govermnmental fines associated, directly
or indireetly, with such Release, and Tenant shall indemnify against and hold Landlord harmless therefrom.
If such Release is reasonably determined NOT to be attributable to Tenant, its agents, invitees, suppliers,
confractors or employees, Tenant shall not be liable for any testing, remediation, any sums paid for settlement
of claims, judgments, or fines associated therewith, and Landlord shall indemnify against and hold Tenant
harmless therefrom, The representations and obligations set forth in this Environmental section shall survive
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

2. Disclosure: Tenant shall timely, completely and properly comply with all federal, state and
local reporting requirements relating to the use, storage, transponation and disposal of hazardous material
including bio-hazardoug waste, and Tenant shall deliver a copy of all such reports to Landlord with current

copies of all material safety data sheets which Tenant is or may be required to keep for the Premises under state
law.

3. Landlord’s Work: Landlord shall not be obligated to make any irnprovements to the Premises

except that Landlord agrees to assume the totel cost of constructing a demising wall in Suite 203 2s shown on
Exhibit “B” attached hereto,
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4. Right to Renew:

A. Provided Tenant is not in default of any of the terms, conditions or covenants of this
Lease, it is agreed by and between the parties that Tenant shall have two (2), five (5) year options to extend
the term of the Lease requiring a minimum of six (6) months written notice to Landlord. The same terms
which apply during the original term shall apply during the extension terms, except that the Base Rent for the
extension terms shall be at the then prevailing “Market Ratt” for similar space as such term is defined below.

B. For purposes of this section, “Market Rate™ shall be defined as the then fair market
net rental value of the Premises, as of the date of commencement of the renewal term, determined in
accordance with the provisions set forth below. The fair market net rental value of the Premises shall mean
the net rental that would be agreed to by Landlord and & new tenant, each of which is willing, bus neither of
whom is compelled, to enter into the Lease transaction. The fair market net rental value shall be determined
on the basis of the assumptions that: (i) the Operating Expense base year shall be updated to the first fu)l lease
year of the renewal term; and (ii) the fair market nes rental value shall be projected to the commencement date
of the applicable renewal term. The fair market net rental value to be determined shall not take into account
any existing tenant improvements or special uses or rights afforded to the Tenant under the Lease in connection
with the Premises except for the additional value attributable to Additional Parking provided to this Tenant
in excess of normal building parking ratios, but shall take into account the following factors:

(i) rental for comparable space in “Comparable Buyildings” (taking into
consideration but not Himited to use, location, and/or floor leve) with any applicable building, definition of net
rentable area, quality, age and location of the applicable buildings);

(ii) the rentable area of the Premises;

(iii) the length of the pertinent renewal term;

(iv)  the extent to which the tenant improvement allowance, rent, credit, moving
allowance, space planning allowance, or similar inducements given to Tenant are lesser or greater than that
which would have been given to 2 comparable new tenant in a Comparable Building; and

()] the quality and creditworthiness of Tenant,

For purposes of this Section, “Comparable Buildings” shall mean similar office buildings
located within the vicinity of the Building, being of like construction, management and quality.

o8 Arbitration. The Base Rent for any extension term shall be agreed upon by the
parties prior to the expiration of the then current term. If the parties cannot agree on the new Base Rent, then
each party shall designate an expert, and each expert shall agree on a third expert, all of which must be
members in good standing with the Kansas City Metropolitan Board of Realtors, or, if no longer in existence,
its successor, experienced in valuing rental rates for commercial office space in central Kansas City, Missouri,
The determination of Market Rate as set forth above, shall be made by the third expert so chosen, whose
decision shall be binding on all parties. All costs and expenses for such process shall be split by the parties
equally.

s. Right of First Refusal: Subject to the other tenants’ rights and provided Tenant is not then in
default of any of the terms or conditions of this Lease, Tenant shall have a right of first refusal to lease any
space in the Building if it should becomne vacant, available and offered to a third party for lease. Tenant shall
have five (5) business days after recejving such notice from Landlord that the Available Space is offered to
the third party and to notify Landlord whether or not Tenant will lease the Additional Space based on the terms
offered to the third party plus the costs of additional parking at Market Rate and not at the cost of constructing
such additional parking facilities. In the event Tenant elects to lease the Additional Space, the Additional
Space shall be added to the Prernises and the term of this Lease shall be extended for three (3) years at the then
applicable Marcket Rate from the time Tenant hegins paying rent for the Additional Space if said Lease has less
than three (3) years remaining in the term. The parties shall execute an amendment to this Lease which
incorporates the foregoing terms. If Tenant does not exercise the Right of First Refusal as herein provided,
such right shall terminate with respect to that Additional Space,
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6 Use of Exercise Facility: The Landlord agrees that Tenant may have the right to utilize the
exercise facility located on the B-1 Lower Level of the Building at no cost to Tenant throughout the Lease
Term.

Witness M LANDLORD:
&

BELLETOWER PARTNE
1mess

Witness Wm/

\V}mess 5 / /‘9 PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
' P
By% Presisedi

& —
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO OFFICE BUILDING LEASE

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO OFFICE BUILDING LEASE (the “Lease”) dated January 31,
2001 and executed February 1, 2001 by and between Belletower Partners, L.L.C. (“Landlord™)

and Pioneer Financial Services, Inc, (“Tenant”) is made this 19th day of July, 2001. Landlord
and Tenant hereby agree, that the Lease shall be amended as follows:

1. The time restriction recited in Paragraph “26” subparagraph “(B) (ii)” is hereby
extended by thirty (30) days to September 1, 2001,

All other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment To
Office Building Lease the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD:

C.R.E.S. Management, L.L.C. as agent for
Belletower Partners, L.L.C.

7 Handy Opligger
Chief Financial Officer
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LANDLORD'’S NOTARY

STATE OF MISSOURI }

} ss
COUNTY OF JACKSON }

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, appeared James E, Lippert,
Managing Member of C.R.E.S. Management, L.L.C., as agent for Belletower Partners, L.L.C.,
and being personally known to me or having produced adequate proof of identity, who, being
duly cautioned and sworn, acknowledged the signing of the foregoing instrument to be his free
act and deed, on behalf of said Company, and that the signing of the foregoing document was
duly authorized by said Company.

Sworn 1o and subscribed before me this 19th day of July 2001. o,
a-l“ \"-P. \\»L'W iy, ’F’j”@
S <
§X7 oY s ﬁ‘*‘. ?ﬁ
s 7 % 1
g i 3 2
Wde £l ~e 17
-3 JA 2 1‘.‘ = H
Teresa Lynn Wilson B, Tiaspuee ;"\:5
Notary Public *" ™
°r~‘ mv"‘.\«‘
TERESA“ g
Netary poys LYNN wiLsoy
¥ 'J “ﬂ(‘; State aow o,
ON g
TENANT’S NOTARY Y B G e 2 200
STATE OF MISSOURI }
} ss

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, appeared Randy Oplistger,
Chief Financial Officer of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., personally known to me or having
produced adequate proof of identity, who, being duly cautioned and sworn, acknowledged the
signing of the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed on behalf of said Company, and
that the signing of the foregoing document was duly authorized by said Company.

Swom to and subscribed before me this 19th day of July 2001,

Notary Pubhc-Notary Seal
State of Missowri
Jackson County
My Commission Expires August . 2001
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' EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

Whitbread Management, Inc., hereinafter designated as "Employer,” agrees to and does employ . ‘
l Randall Josaph Opliger, hereinafter designated as "Employee,” who accepts said employment on the following basis:

NO. 766 P.2

1. Employee shall work In the business of Employer, according to the job duties and Jocations assigned by Employer.

2, The Employse's salary shall be at the rate of $3.461.54 payable biwaekly. The services to be rendered by
Employee shall begin on the 1l day of_© G- | 2001 If requested, Employes will obtaln a license as an Insurance
agent and walves any claim to commisalons which may arise as 2 result of Insurance sales, and hereby assigns any
rights or interest therein to Employer.

3. Employes, throughout his/her employment, must qualify for a fidelity bond with a company designated by Emplayer.

4. Employee will devote his/her entire time and attention to the business of Employer and will engage in no ather
. business or sideline, except with Employer's prior written consent.

5. It is understood that Employer, aver a perlod of time, has developed lists of customers and prospects and other
frade secrets that copstitute valuable business essels, In conjunction with Employee's employment, Employee will
be granted reasonahle accsss to this information and contact with Employer's valued customers, in recognition of
Employer's legitimate privacy rights to this Information:

ﬂ\\

(@) During the term of employment and thereafter, Employee agrees not to disclose or use the Employer's list of
customers or prospects or other trade secrets in any business which directly or indlrectly compates with Employer;
and

(b) For a perjod of two (2) years subsequent to termination of employmant (with or without cause) Employee shall not
directly or indirectly soliclt any customers or former custamers of Employer; and

(¢} Employee agress that, for a period of two (2) years subsequent to termination of his/her employment (with or without
cause), he/she shall not, without Employer's prior written consent, sngage n any manner whatsoever, either directly

or indirectly, or agslst in any way in any other loan ar finance business diractly related.to millitary lending in any of the
citios or towns in which the Employer conducts businass; and

(d) Employee agrees that during the life of this contract, and for two (2) years subsequent to termination of his/her

employment (with or without cause), Employee will not, diractly or Indiractly, Inducs, Influence or advise any person
' (e

If Employes violates any of the restrictions of this Paragraph, then the duratlon of the restrictions shall be extended
by the time period Employee engages in conduct violating any such restrictions.

-

who Is or shall then be in the service of Employer to leave the service of Employar.
{f) If Employee breaches any of the terms of this Paragraph, he/she shall pay to Employer the costs, expenses and
attorney fees in enforcing those terms, if and as permitted by applicable law.
8. It Is also recognized that money deamages are not an adequate legal remedy to enforce the provisions of Paragraph
5 and that Employer has the right to restrain any violations of that Paragraph by seeking an Injunction or restraining

order in any court(s) of campetent jurisdiction. Howsver, this shall not, in any way, [imlt the Employer from seeking
an award of damages for acts by Employes which violate Paragraph 5.

7. Either party may isminate Employes's employment at any time by providing five (5) days' witten notice, provided
that aald employment may be terminated without notice for cause or for violatlon of any provisions of this
Employment Contract. .

8. Subject fo Paragraph 6 (which contemplates that Employer may seek certain equitable relief in any court(s) of

competent jurisdiction), the parties agree that any ciaims or disputes arising out of or relating to this Employment
Contract, the terms and conditions of Employee's employment, or the termination of that employmant will be
resolved exclusively by binding arbitration.

{a) The scope of this agreement to arbitrate Includes, but is not limited to, claims and disputes Involving the following
types of allegatlons: wrongfu) discharge under statutory law and/or common law; employment discrimination based
on any fedaral, state or local statute, ordinance or ragulation; rstaliatory discharge or other adverse employment
actlon; compensation disputes; tortious conduct; breach of contract; ERISA violations; and other statutory and/or
comman law claims and disputas, regardiess of whether the statute was enacted or whether the common-law
doctrine was recognized at the time this Employment Contract was signed.

AR
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(b) This agreement to arbitrate shall be enforced in accordance with the Federa) Arbitration Act ("FAA”) or, if it s
determined that the FAA does not apply, the Unifarm Arbitration Act and/or other applicable state law. Unless the
partiss agree In writing to a different locatlon, any arbitratlon proceeding shall take place in the city'and state in
which Empioyee was last assigned to perform services for Employer before the filing of the demand for arbitration,
irrespective of the fact that any party to (or third-party beneficlary of) this agreement to arbitrata is now or may
bacome a resident of a different jurlsdiction, All arbitration proceedings shall be confidential.

{c) A single arbltrator engagsd In the practlce of law shall conduct the arbitration procesding under the American Arbitration
Assaciation's National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes (the *Rules™) then In effect. Before signing this
Agresment, each of the parties had an opportunfty to review the Rules (including the Administrative Fee Scheduls),
which are accessible online at http:/Avww.adr.ory. The arbltratar shall have no authority to modify existing law, and may
be authorized to rule on motions that shal} dispose of issues as s matter of law. The arbitrator shall igsue a wiftten
decision and award s'ating the reasons therefor, Such dacision(s) and/ar award(s) shall be final and binding on the
partias and their respective heirs, executors, adminlistrators, successors and assigns, and judgment(s) therson may
be entsred in any court(s) of competant jurisdiction, The pravalling party(ies) shall be entlitled to recover all attomeys’
fees, expenses and costs incurred in connaction with the arbftration proceeding.

Employee understands that by signing this agreement to arbitrate, Employee s agreeing to substitute one legilimate
form of dispute rasolution (arbitration) for another (litigation), and is thereby waiving Employese's right to hava claims
and disputes resolved in court. This substitution invelves no surrender, by sither party, of any substantive statutory
or common-law benefit, protaction, or defanse. If Employee seeks to invalidats this agresment to arbitrate on the ... -
ground that arbltratien would be prohlpitively expensive, Employes shall baar the burden of showing (f) that the Jikely
arbltration costs would preclude Employee from pursuing Employse’s rights in the arbitral forum, and (i) that a request
to postpone, reallocate andfor walve some or all such costs has been rejected by both Employer and the arbitrator.

(d

~—

8 This Employment Contract sets forth the entire agresment of the parties regarding its subject matter, and
supsrsedes and replaces any and all prior employment contracts and/or relationships Employee may have had with
Employer or any of its affiliates. All the ggreements in this Employment Contract are severable, and in the event any
portion of this contract be held invalid, the contract shall be construed as if such invalid portions were not herein

contained, and the remaining portions shall remain fully enfarceabie.

10. Employer's rights and obligations under this Employment Contract shall be fresly assignable to any parent,
subsidlary or other affiliate of Employer, without the consent of Employee.

11. This Agreement shall be govemed by and interprated In accordance with the laws of the stats in which Employee is
assigned to perform services for Employer, except fo the extent such (aws are preempted by the FAA and/or other
applicable fedaral law(s).

SIGNED AND SEALED by me, this ' (> dayof _ € 7 1206 §

WITNESS:!

{ E‘r'npioyee

ACCEPTED, this _\o _ day of O LX ,200] . ; :
' Employer

BY

24
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Twelve Wyandotte Plaza

120 West 12th Street, Suite 1200
Kansas City, MC 64105-1936
816 221-6300 Fax 816-221-6380

bkd.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CONSENT

The Board of Directors
Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.:

We consent to the use of our report dated November 18, 2002, with respect to the consolidated
balance sheets of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. as of September 30, 2002 and 2001, and the
related consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended September 30, 2002, included herein and to the reference to our firm
under the heading “Experts” in the offering circular.

BKO, Lo P

BKD, LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 10, 2003

Salutions
or
uccess

A member of )
Moores Rowiand M|
Intemational
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned Directors and Officers of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., do hereby
name, constitute and appoint Thomas H. Holcom, Jr. and Randall J. Opliger, and each of them,
our agent and attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for each of us
and in our respective behalves as Directors and/or as Officers of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.,
to sign and execute any and all amendments or supplements to this Offering Statement on Form
1-A, relating to a rescission offer to all persons who purchased junior subordinated debentures of
Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and any other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting
such attorneys-in-fact full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorneys-in-fact, each acting alone or his
substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Executed this §I *’ Tday of January, 2003.

Lo/

William D/&ulli¥

/4
Réndall J. Opliger

KC-1040324-1
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PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300
Kansas City, Missouri 64112

Dear Debentureholder:

As 1s explained in more detail in the offering circular accompanying this letter, we are
offering to repurchase the Pioneer Financial Services debentures issued or renewed since January
1, 2002. We urge you to carefully read the enclosed offering circular for a complete description
of the terms and conditions of this rescission offer before deciding whether or not to tender your
debentures to us for payment.

If, after reviewing the attached offering circular you have unanswered questions about
this rescission offer, you may contact Melissa Kuhn, Investment Analyst, at 816-756-2020 or via
e-mail at mkuhn@askpioneer.com. Please be advised, however, that neither the Company nor
any of our employees may make any recommendation to you with respect to whether to accept or
reject this offer.

While all of the debentures affected by this recission offer were registered with the
Securities Division of the Missouri Secretary of State, we recently discovered that the exemption
from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 that we relied on may not have been available
due to the increased scope 1n our business activities in recent years. We do not believe or admit
that we violated any federal securities law; however, we believe that it is in the best interests of
the Company to make this recession offer at this time.

Please note you are not required to accept this offer.

Sincerely,

William D. Sullivan
Chief Executive Officer

A
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
PIONEER FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300, Kansas City, Missouri 64112
, 2003

Instructions

Introduction. This letter of transmittal is being sent to you in connection with the rescission
offer being conducted by Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. in which we are offering to repurchase all of
the junior subordinated debentures that we have issued or renewed since January 1, 2002. Please
review the accompanying offering circular for information about the terms and conditions of the
rescission offer.

Acceptance of Rescission Offer. To accept our rescission offer and receive payment for your
debentures, you must:

1. Check the “Accept” box on this letter of transmittal, sign and date it, and have your
signature notarized. Please note that by marking the “Accept” box, you will be waiving
any claims you may have against us for failing to register the debentures under the
Securities Act of 1933 and will be appointing Randall J. Opliger, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., as your attorney-in-fact to do
all things necessary to effectuate your acceptance of the rescission offer;

2. Check the “sells, assigns and transfers” box on the back of your debenture and insert
Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. on the line to the right (as shown in Exhibit A,
attached hereto) and sign and date the debenture, and have your signature notarized.
If you do not have any printed text on the back of your debenture, simply sign the
back of your debenture and have your signature notarized. If you have lost your
debenture, sign and date the enclosed Affidavit of L.ost Debenture and Indemnity
Agreement and have your signature notarized;

3. Complete and sign the enclosed Substitute Form W-9; and

4. Send or deliver the above-listed documents to us at 4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300,
Kansas City, Missouri 64112; Attention: Melissa Kuhn, Investment Analyst. If you
send your debenture rather than hand deliver it, we recommend that you use an
insured delivery service.

THE RESCISSION OFFER EXPIRES ON APRIL 7,2003. WE MUST RECEIVE ALL OF
THE ABOVE-LISTED DOCUMENTS, PROPERLY EXECUTED, BY 5:00 P.M. (KANSAS CITY
TIME) ON APRIL 7, 2003.

Please note that if you debenture currently earns interest at a rate greater than 8%, the
interest rate applicable to this rescission offer is less than the current rate of interest on your
debenture. By tendering your debentures you will not be entitled to any other payments on your
debentures, including, without limitation, any accrued and unpaid interest.
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Please note that if you hold your debenture in an IRA, a simplified employee pension
account or a Roth IRA you may suffer adverse tax consequences if you do not comply with all
applicable IRS rules and regulations. Please see the offering circular for more information.

If you elect to accept our rescission offer and deliver all of the above-listed documents to us,
properly executed, prior to the expiration of the rescission offer, we will mail payment for your
debentures within fifteen business days after the expiration of the rescission offer to the address to
which this letter of transmittal was sent, unless a different address 1s listed in the letter of transmittal.

Any defect or deficiency in the documents delivered must be cured prior to the expiration of the
offer unless waived by us. Tenders of outstanding debentures will not be deemed to have been made
until all defects and irregularities have been waived by us or cured. Neither we, nor any other person,
is under any duty to give notice of any defects or irregularities in tenders of debentures, or will incur
any liability to you for failure to give any such notice.

Rejection of Rescission Offer. To reject our rescission offer:

1. Check the “Reject” box on this letter of transmittal, and sign and date it. Please note
that by marking the “Reject” box, you will be affirmatively waiving any and all claims you
may have against us for failing to register the debentures under the Act; and

2. Send or deliver the above-listed document to us by 5:00 p.m. (Kansas City time) on
April 7, 2003, at 4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite 300, Kansas City, Missouri 64112.

Debenture holders who fail to respond to the rescission offer by 5:00 p.m. (Kansas City
time) on April 7, 2003 will be deemed to have rejected the rescission offer.

A decision to reject the rescission offer will result in you continuing to own your debenture,
continuing to receive interest payments on your debenture at its stated rate and having a right to be
paid its principal amount upon maturity unless the debenture is earlier redeemed in accordance with its
terms. We believe that by conducting this rescission offer, you will be precluded from requiring us in
the future to repurchase your debenture for our alleged failure to register the debenture under federal
securities law.

Withdrawal of Tender. You may withdraw your tender of your debentures at any time prior to
5:00 p.m., Kansas City time, on April 7, 2003. To withdraw your tender, you must send written notice
to: Melissa Kuhn, Investment Analyst, Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., 4700 Belleview Avenue, Suite
300, Kansas City, Missouri 64112. The notice must contain the following information: the name of
the debenture holder of record, the principal amount and number of the debenture, and the date the
debenture was issued. The notice must also be signed by the registered debenture holder and
notarized.

Neither we nor any of our employees makes any recommendation to you with respect to
this rescission offer. We urge you to read this offering circular carefully and to make an
independent evaluation with respect to the rescission offer.

25}
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ACCEPTANCE

The undersigned hereby ACCEPTS the rescission offer of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. (the “Company”) to
repurchase the debentures listed below, all of which were purchased by the undersigned, or renewed in
accordance with their terms, since January 1, 2002. The undersigned further represents that the undersigned is the
holder of record of the debentures. In consideration of the rescission offer, the undersigned hereby irrevocably
releases and forever discharges the Company and its past, current and future directors, stockholders, employees,
affiliates, representatives and agents (collectively, the “Released Parties™) from any and all claims that the
undersigned and the undersigned’s successors and assigns have or might have against the Released Parties in
connection with the sale and issuance by the Company of the debentures subject to the rescission offer, to the
maximum extent permitted by applicable law. The undersigned further appoints Randall J. Opliger, Chief
Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of the Company as the undersigned’s attorney-in-fact with full power
of substitution and resubstitution, to cause or to do or cause to be done all acts, as he, in his sole and absolute
discretion, deems necessary or desirable to fully effectuate the undersigned’s acceptance of the rescission offer.

Debentures Tendered for Payment.

Alternate Address for Payment. If you are accepting the rescission offer and would like payment for your debenture
sent to an address other than the one to which this letter of transmittal was sent, please indicate the alternative address to
which we should send your payment. '

The undersigned hereby acknowledges having received and carefully read the Offering Circular and the terms and
conditions of this letter of transmittal.

Date: Debenture Holder(s):
Name:
STATE OF ) Name:
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
Before me, , a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, appeared

personally known to me or having produced for me adequate proof of identity, who, being
first duly cautioned and sworn, acknowledged the signing of the foregoing to be his or her free act and deed.

Sworn to and subscribed to me this __ day of , 2003.

My Commission Expires: Notary Public

**PLEASE NOTE THAT YOU DO NOT NEED TO SIGN OR RETURN THIS PAGE IF YOU ARE
REJECTING THE RESCISSION OFFER
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REJECTION

The undersigned hereby REJECTS the rescission offer of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc. (the “Company”) to
repurchase all of the debentures purchased by the undersigned or renewed in accordance with their terms since
January 1, 2002, and acknowledges that the Company will not make any future offers to repurchase the
debentures purchased by the undersigned. The undersigned hereby irrevocably releases and forever discharges
the Company and its past, current and future directors, stockholders, employees, affiliates, representatives and
agents (the “Released Parties”) from any and all claims that the undersigned and the undersigned’s successors and
assigns have or might have against the Released Parties in connection with the sale and issuance by the Company
of the debentures subject to the rescission offer, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law.

The undersigned hereby acknowledges having received and carefully read the Offering Circular and the terms and
conditions of this letter of transmittal.

Date: Debenture Holder(s):

Name:

Name:

**PLEASE NOTE THAT YOU DO NOT NEED TO SIGN OR RETURN THIS PAGE IF YOU ARE
ACCEPTING THE RESCISSION OFFER
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' R Lo “This cerlificate Is transferable only on the books ehnd-by'arry'lﬁﬁm'rWesenling the originat Debenture at the Office of

according to applicable laws or ragulations:

l TEN COM

- as tenants n common

TEN ENT . as tenants by the entireties
' . JTTEN - as Joint lenants with right of
) survivorship and not as tenants
fn common

ExHIGT A

Pioneer Financial Services, Inc.
4700 Belleview, Suite 300
Kansas City, Missouri 84112-1359

The Iollow!ng abbreviations, when tsed In the inscription on the face of this certificate, shall be construed as though thay were written out in full

UNIE GIFT MIN ACT - ___ ' Custodlan

(Cust)
' ‘under Uniform Gilts to Minors Act of

(Slare)

Additional abbrevlallons may also be used though not In the above list,

ERTIEIC \NSFERSAND' JoN

l FOR VALUE RECEIVED the underslgned hereby:

Sells, assigns and transfers unto

PIONEER FINANCIAL (ERVICES | THC.

(Name and Address of Assignes, Including Zip Code, Must Be Printed or Typewritten)

the within Certificats, and all rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and appointing
Witliam 0. Sullivan or Donald D. Herlford Attorney to transfer said Cerlificate on the books of the
Custodian, with full power of substitution In the premises.

Pleass Insert Soclal Security or Other
{denlifying Number of New Owner

1
1
1

- Permanenlly Changes the Name(s) OLD NAME (Registration) :
or Raglstration ‘ .
NEW NAME (Registration):
Redeems the within Certlficate Please Send Check fo:
At Maturity Value : L
Relnvests the maturity value S
: r of the within Certificate (Please complete and Include an Offer to Purchase and Receipl Form for your new cerlificate.)
DATED
' _ " Subscribed and sworn o batore me .
: , Registored Ovmer this ___day of . 19
i Registered Owner . Notary Public My Commission Expires
x .
’ Reglsleted Owner . R
" NOTICE: The signature must correspond with the name as It appears upon the face of the within Cerlificate in every pamcular without
alteralion or enlargemént or any change whatever. .

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the underslgned hereby certlﬂes that this debenture has been assigned to:-

(Name and Address of Assignes, Including Zip Code, Musl Be Printed or Typewrliten) ’

>

Subscribed and sworn to before me

Reglstered Owner

>

this ___day of 19

- Regislered Owner

Notary Pubilc My Commission Explrés__

RELEASE OF ASSIGNMENT: The underslgned hereby releases the above descrlbed asslgnment and reasslgns this
debenture to the origlnal named owrier (s).

=

Subscnbed and sworn to before me '

Lending Institution”

><

State of Missouri )

: )ss.
County of Jackson b}

LERTMG Institution

this___dayof . 19

Pioneer Financial Serv[ces. inc.

By: )
Presiden ﬂA'I‘ 7 7S
By:

Secretary__¢

Subscrrbed and sworn to before me this /May of December 2001

My Commission Expires:_g=/=0J_ -

I Notary Public My Commlsslon Explres

CldohnT Altane
Notary Public - Notary Seal
‘tata'of: Missouri

Innbrarr Ml .

AN
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SUBSTITUTE
W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give form to the
Form g . e . requester. Do not
Identification Number and Certification send to the IRS.
Name
Business name, if different from above
o
1]
[=2]
2
8 c
2y
- L
=3 Individual/ Exempt from backup
€% | Check appropriate box: I___] Sole proprietor D Corporation D Partnership D Other ¥ e St D withholding
- 3
o
? Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) Requester’s name and address (optional)
2
5 | City, state, and ZIP code
2
7]
@ | List account number(s) here (optional)
%7}
W Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). oclal security number
However, for a resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part | instructions on
page 3. For other entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number,

HENESNN

Employer identification number

EAEEEEE

see How to get a TIN on page 3.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose number
to enter.

m Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and

2. A am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has
notified me that | am no longer subject to backup withholding, and

3. lama U.S. person (including a U.S. resident alien).

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup
withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not
apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual
retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the Certification, but
you must provide your correct TIN. (See the instructions on page 4.)

Sign Signature of
Here U.S. person » Date »

KC-1046083-1 16423/2
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AFFIDAVIT FOR LOST DEBENTURE
AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

The undersigned, being duly sworn and under penalty of perjury, does hereby state and certify that:
1. The undersigned is at least 18 years of age,

2. The undersigned is the legal and beneficial owner of the following junior subordinated
debenture(s) of Pioneer Financial Services, Inc., a Missouri corporation (the “Company”), issued or renewed
since January 1, 2002 (the “Debentures”):

3. The undersigned wishes to accept the rescission offer of the Company, pursuant to which the
undersigned agrees to sell the Debentures to the Company;

4, The Debentures have been mislaid, lost, stolen or destroyed;
5. The Debentures were registered in the name of the undersigned;
6. The undersigned has not disposed of or transferred the Debentures or any interest therein to

any other person or persons and has not pledged or hypothecated the Debentures or given any person or
persons any security interest therein or any proxy, power of attorney, order or authority of any kind or nature
whatsoever to transfer the Debentures or any interest therein;

7. This Affidavit for Lost Debenture and Indemnity Agreement is made and given for the
purpose of inducing the Company to repurchase the Debentures;

8. The undersigned agrees that if the Debentures come into the possession, custody or power of
the undersigned, the undersigned will deliver the Debentures to the Company immediately; and

**PLEASE NOTE THAT YOU DO NOT NEED TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS AFFIDAVIT FOR

LOST DEBENTURE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT UNLESS YOU ARE ACCEPTING THE
RESCISSION OFFER AND HAVE LOST YOUR DEBENTURE

KC-1041860-4
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9. In consideration of the repurchase of the Debentures by the Company, the undersigned, for
himself and his heirs, personal representatives and assigns, does hereby agree to indemnify the Company and
its directors, officers and principals from and against any and all claims and demands of every kind and
nature, actions, causes of action, suits and controversies, and from and against any and all losses, damages,
costs, charges, attorneys’ fees, expenses and liabilities, arising out of or related to (a) any claim by any other
person or entity based on or asserting ownership or title in, or any lien or encumbrance or other interest
(legal or beneficial) in, the Debentures; or (b) any inaccuracy in or breach of the representations and
covenants of the undersigned set forth herein; or (c) any other matter or thing relating to the Debentures.

10. The undersigned agrees that if required by the Company, the undersigned will post an
indemnity bond in an amount sufficient, in the reasonable judgment of the Company, to protect the Company
or any agent of the Company from any loss they may suffer in connection with the Debentures. The
undersigned further agrees that if the undersigned fails to do so, that the Company may reject this Affidavit
for Lost Debenture and Indemnity Agreement and that if the undersigned is unable to deliver such
Debentures to the Company on or before , 2003, that the undersigned will be deemed to have
rejected the rescission offer with respect to the Debentures not so delivered.

Executed this day of , 2003.

Registered Holder(s):

Name:

Name:
STATE OF )

) ss.
COUNTY OF )
I hereby certify that on this _ day of , 2003, before me, a Notary Public of the State

of , personally appeared , known to me to be the

person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same
for purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

*PLEASE NOTE THAT YOU DO NOT NEED TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS AFFIDAVIT FOR
LOST DEBENTURE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT UNLESS YOU ARE ACCEPTING THE
RESCISSION OFFER AND HAVE LOST YOUR DEBENTURE

KC-1041860-4 y
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